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Action Recommended

1.  Public Comment (yellow card) 

Public comment is being taken in written format and will be 
entered into the official minutes of the meeting. 

1.   For Information 

2. Chief Financial Officer’s Update 
 
Paul Hodgins, CFO, will provide an update on information 
shared with the Financial Working Group (FWG). 
 

2. For information 

3. Minutes 

Minutes from the November 12, 2020 Audit and Finance 
Subcommittee meeting are presented for approval. 
 

3. For action 

4. Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

Staff recommends that the Audit and Finance 
Subcommittee accept the RPTA and VMR Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Reports and Single Audit Reporting 
Packages for 2019-2020. 

4. For action 

5. Advertising on Buses

Hillary Foose, Director Communication and Strategic 
Initiatives, will present information on advertising on Valley 
Metro RPTA operated buses. 

5. For discussion 

6. Internal Audit Update 

Sebrina Beckstrom, Chief Auditor and Jennifer Davis, Sr. 
Internal Auditor, will provide an update on the actions taken 
in Internal Audit and external reviews. 

6.  For information 
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7. Internal Audit Exceptions Update

The Internal Audit Exceptions log is presented for 
information. 

7. For information 

8. Budget Assumptions

Paul Hodgins, CFO, will review the FY22 Budget 
Assumptions. 

Presented at the January 27, 2021 Board Study Session. 
 

8.  For information 

9. FY21 2nd Quarter Budget Review

Tyler Olson, Manager of Budget and Operational Financial 
Controls, will review the budget variance reports for the 
quarter ended December 31, 2020. 

9.  For information 

10. Future Agenda Items

Chair Arredondo-Savage will request future AFS Agenda 
items from members and members may provide a report on 
current events. 

FY22 Preliminary Operating and Capital 
Budgets March 2021
Valley Metro Office Space March 2021
FY22-26 Preliminary Five-Year Forecasts April 2021 
TLCP Update April 2021 

April 2021 Valley Metro Regionally Operated Service 
FY22 Proposed Operating and Capital Budgets May 2021
Farebox Recovery/Fare Enforcement May 2021

10.  For information 

The next meeting of the Audit and Finance Subcommittee is scheduled for March 4, 
2021 at 12:00 p.m. 

Qualified sign language interpreters are available with 72 hours notice. Materials in 
alternative formats (large print or flash drive) are available upon request. For further 
information, please call Valley Metro at 602-262-7433 or TTY at 602-251-2039.  To 
attend this meeting via teleconference, contact the receptionist at 602-262-7433 for the 
dial-in-information. The supporting information for this agenda can be found on our web 
site at www.valleymetro.org.  

http://www.valleymetro.org/
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DATE AGENDA ITEM 1
January 28, 2021 

SUBJECT 
Public Comment 

PURPOSE 
Public comment is being taken in written format and will be entered into the official 
minutes of the meeting. 

COST AND BUDGET 
None 

RECOMMENDATION 
This item is presented for information only.  

BACKGROUND | DISCUSSION | CONSIDERATION 
None 

COMMITTEE PROCESS 
None 

CONTACT  
Paul Hodgins 
Chief Financial Officer 
602-262-7433 

ATTACHMENT 
None 

Information Summary 
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DATE AGENDA ITEM 2
Janaury 28, 2021 

SUBJECT 
Chief Executive Officer’s Report 

PURPOSE 
Paul Hodgins, Chief Financial Officer, will provide an update on information share with 
the Financial Working Group. 

COST AND BUDGET 
None  

RECOMMENDATION 
This item is presented for information only. 

BACKGROUND | DISCUSSION | CONSIDERATION 
None 

COMMITTEE PROCESS 
None 

CONTACT  
Paul Hodgins 
Chief Financial Officer 
phodgins@valleymetro.org
602-262-7433 

ATTACHMENT 
None 

Information Summary 
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January 28, 2021 AGENDA ITEM 3

Audit and Finance Subcommittee 
Thursday, November 12, 2020 

Via WebEx/Phone 
12:00 p.m. 

Meeting Participants 
Councilmember Robin Arredondo-Savage, City of Tempe, Chair 
Mayor Kate Gallego, City of Phoenix 
Councilmember Lauren Tolmachoff, City of Glendale 
Vice Mayor Bill Stipp, City of Goodyear 
Councilmember Francisco Heredia, City of Mesa 

Chair Arredondo-Savage called the meeting to order at 12:08 p.m. 

Chair Arredondo-Savage said thank you everybody.  Hope everybody's doing well. Let's 
go.   

1. Public Comment  

None. 

2. Minutes 

Chair Arredondo-Savage said the minutes from the October 15, 2020, meeting are 
presented for approval.  Do I have a motion for approval?  

IT WAS MOVED BY VICE MAYOR STIPP, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER 
TOLMACHOFF, AND UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO APPROVE THE OCTOBER 15, 
2020 AFS MEETING MINUTES. 
 
3. Fiscal Year (FY21) 1st Quarter Budget Review 

Mr. Hodgins said thank you. Our item today is really serving dual purpose.  A couple of 
months ago Vice Mayor Stipp had asked for a little deeper dive into our Budget 
Variance report.  Typically, we provide a quarterly report to the Board of Directors which 
is very high level, so today's presentation and back-up materials are much more 
detailed.  We've modelled our back-up materials, there are a couple of hand outs in the 
packet that are modelled after the budget so you could compare the first quarter budget 

Minutes 
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results versus the budget document.  It's kind of the same format.  Our presentation is 
condensed a little, but it still has a lot of information.  

The other purpose really going back to the budget development process for fiscal 2021.  
We had included, the Board allowed us to include, three percent merit into the budget 
but didn't allow us to distribute.  Given a lot of the revenue uncertainty around COVID, 
they wanted to have the AFS do a review of the first quarter budget before making a 
recommendation for the full Board to allow us to distribute those merit.  So, a couple 
things, get a deeper dive, but also to discuss whether to release those merit increases.   

So, we'll start with RPTA.  Starting with sources of revenue.  Our operating revenues, I 
know there's a lot of numbers on the slide, we probably could have split it between 
operating and capital.  For operating revenues, we are above budget.  Primary reason 
for that is our Prop 400, the public transportation funds.  We are about ten percent 
above the budgeted amount.  Performing quite well so far in the first quarter.  Capital 
revenues follow capital expenses, that's not typically spread out equally over the 12 
months and our expenses are just starting so revenue is a little bit well under budget at 
this point, but overall, I'd say our sources of revenues are pretty much on target or 
above target.   

Looking at a high level on the uses of funds.  

Vice Mayor Stipp said Paul so I don't have to do the math.  Are we or should we be at 
25 percent?  Is that what you're showing the first quarter?   

Mr. Hodgins said sorry, I was going to mention that, yes.  The way we presented this is 
the full annual budget with our actuals so if we were right on target, we would be a 
quarter of the way through.  So, the percent spent would be 25.  So, on the revenue 
side, if we're above 25, obviously, that's good.  On the expense side, if we're below 25 
then that's favorable.   

Councilmember Tolmachoff said I have a question.  Because to me it seems a big part 
of the revenue picture is unspent CARES money.  Is that right?  Or am I wrong there?   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said I don't know.  I think Paul would have to give us some 
more specifics on where we are with CARES money spent to date.   

Councilmember Tolmachoff said well, I'm looking at page 3.  

Mr. Hodgins said right.  So, on the overall sources, we have programmed just under $50 
million this year for CARES Act money coming in and through September, we are at 
about $13.3 million.  That is less than the number we showed you at the Executive 
Committee last week, but that's because that was an up-to-date number through 
October.  This is a number through September.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

Councilmember Tolmachoff said but if we take that CARES money out and I don't know 
if you went through the (indiscernible), how are we performing without it?   

Mr. Hodgins said so, the CARES Act is at 27 percent so it's pretty close to being right on 
budget, a quarter of the revenues for the year.  The main reason revenues are above 
budget is our public transportation funds, the Prop 400 money, we are coming in 
significantly above budget for the first three, in fact, the first four months.  October is not 
shown here, but we received that a couple of days ago and it continues to be about ten 
percent above budget.   

We're pretty much on track for reimbursements from the cities.  That's that transit 
reimbursement line.  Fare revenue, we're under budget so we will come in a little under 
on the fare revenue, unless that can pick up in the second half of the year.   
Well, there were a couple of questions about the sources.  So, I kind of went back a  
slide.   

Did I answer your question about the CARES Act?  Or were there any other questions 
about the Sources slide?  

Councilmember Tolmachoff said you answered my question, Paul.  Thank you.   

Mr. Hodgins said okay.  Then looking a little higher level on the uses.  So, in our 
operating budget, fixed route operations, paratransit operations, you can see we're well 
under budget on those.  I would note or just remind you that we had budgeted for a full 
return to service for our operations just so that we had the funding available whenever 
we were ready to return to full service.  We have not returned to full service yet, so it 
makes sense that we are under budget there.   

Van pool is a little bit under budget.  We have had a significant number of our van pools 
turn back because of COVID because companies aren't commuting like they used to.  
Our planning and then regional services and administration and finance, I want to note 
that we are well under budget for those. Those are more of our discretionary, of our 
internal costs and we have been very careful about what we spend in the first quarter, 
so we are under budget on all of those.   

Past-through funds as they relate to Valley Metro Rail.  The regional area road funds 
that we get, we disperse to Valley Metro Rail at the beginning of the year 100 percent 
so we're at a hundred percent there that's not going to go up.  That's the full allocation 
that VMR gets.  And then revenues from Valley Metro Rail to offset the staffing costs so 
a little bit under budget there.  Capital again, revenues tend to lag.  We have to spend 
the money before we can get reimbursed, but we're about seven percent so the 
revenues will catch up in the next quarter.  Again, the capital doesn't spread out equally 
over the year.  It's based on when fleet comes in and when fleet is ordered when work is 
done.  So, a little bit under budget, but we do expect it to catch up over time.   
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Overall, in the uses of funds on the operating side, we're at 20 percent which if we were 
right on target, we would be at 25, so we're under budget there.  And on capital at about 
15 percent a little more under, a little further under budget.   

So, again, as more of an overview just the first part of the operating from the last slide.   

So, a little bit more of the detail.  Again, the handouts that were in the packet have more 
detail under each of these categories, but our fixed route operations, operations 
services that's, primarily, what we pay for our contractors, First Transit, Total Transit.  
And includes fuel that we pay for to support operations, facility maintenance, and 
administrative support.  So, the operations side as I mentioned, we haven't gone back to 
full service so it make sense we're a little under budget there, a little under on facility 
maintenance, and about right on target for administrative support.   

Paratransit operation services, again, that's primarily our contracts with Transdev and 
ALC for the RideChoice services but does include some reimbursements to cities such 
as City of Phoenix and Glendale for some of the ADA service that they provide.  A little 
under budget, 19 percent for the operations, well under budget on the administrative 
support.  

So, there was some discussion at the Executive Committee about how the CARES Act 
money works, how it's applied, what it's spent on.  So, I wanted to give just a highlight of 
how this works.  So, looking at our fixed route contracts, our fixed route services, 
looking at the '21 budget as an example, we've budgeted $98 million for the service, 
$3.6 million for maintenance, $2 million for administrative support so an overall budget 
of about $104 million.  We have to subtract the fare revenue of $2.9 million and what's 
left then are costs that are eligible for reimbursement from the CARES Act.  So, it would 
be about a hundred just under a $101 million from a budget perspective and what we've 
programmed is to draw down and use just under $44 million for our fixed route services.  
We have some other federal money programmed.  So, when we get down then to the 
net cost, of the $104 million in costs about half of that then $52.3 million roughly is kind 
of the net subsidy provided by either the Prop 400 funding or the member city funding.  

So, looking at the actuals, we gather up the pool of costs for fixed route service for all 
the operations, so we've spent about $22.6 million so far in the first quarter.  $420,000 
in fare revenues so we have $22 million in eligible costs for CARES Act and so far 
we've drawn down $12 million.  Those are all on a reimbursement basis so it does lag a 
little bit.  We'll catch up on that in the next quarter.  So, those CARES Act funds, our 
system doesn't say whether it was used for facility maintenance or the First Transit 
contract, but it's used to offset all of the operating costs that go into providing fixed route 
service.  So, I hope that clarifies a little bit how we use the funds.  I know there were 
some questions.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said is there any questions for Paul before we go on?   
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Vice Mayor Stipp said so Paul, just kind of strategically talking about this.  Assuming 
next year there is no CARES money and, I think, we all hope that there would be, but 
assuming that there's not.  Based on the current revenue trends, that would have a 
pretty, significant impact on us, wouldn't it?   

Mr. Hodgins said yes.  Not having additional CARES Act, potentially, could require us to 
reduce service to reduce our administrative costs.  I mean, we'll be looking at all of that 
will anyway, but the revenue trends so far this year have been positive.  It's higher than 
budget and as we talked about the budget process a few months ago with all the 
uncertainty, we acknowledged that the CARES Act would give us the time this fiscal 
year to monitor the revenues and to look at whether we really needed to do service 
reductions in the future.  So, it buys us the time, but certainly, if there's no CARES Act 
next year that net cost at the bottom there that has to be covered either by Prop 400 or 
member city local funds goes back up.   

Mr. Smith said it goes back up from a base.  Let's be clear about this.  Currently, our 
services are funded through a combination primarily of Prop 400 or PTF and cities.  Our 
Prop 400 revenues are running above what we expected so we're not seeing a shortfall 
in the PTF revenues.  And the CARES money has been utilized to offset current year 
expenses for cities.  If that holds true, then we will be looking at a similar budget 
situation as we were prior to COVID meaning that the PTF funds would be at normal 
levels and the cities would be asked to fund at their normal levels.  Right now, with the 
CARES Act, we are gaining relief both from a PTF and cities to cover, primarily, on the 
straight numbers for lost fare revenue.   

So in 2022, it doesn't go back all the way back up to a dire situation, it just reverts back 
to a pre-COVID basic situation which may or may not depending on where your cities 
personal finances are and assuming that the Prop 400 revenue continues to outperform 
what expectations were.  Right now, we're over budget.  We're getting more money in 
than we expected.  We are not experiencing a shortfall in Prop 400 funds.  And we are 
experiencing less fare revenue.  We don't expect that to recover so there may be an 
additional expenditure that's required, net expenditure to cover up for the shortage in 
fare revenue, but there will be a big difference in your city budgets because we will, 
basically, be reverting back to pre-COVID expectations through the IGAs. 

Because, basically, it may turn out that we somewhat got a windfall this year.  If city tax 
revenues are equal, if PTF is equal, then the only revenue shortfall we had from COVID 
would be fare revenue, but we go to the whole CARES money to cover that.  So, the 
cities got a benefit and our PTF fund got a benefit this year from CARES if our revenue 
stream holds for the remainder of the year.  So, next year we would have to go back, 
but we would simply have to cover the fare shortfall.  

Mr. Hodgins said yes.  We budgeted fare revenue fairly conservatively and we're 
underperforming there so.   
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Mr. Smith said so that may be a shock to the cities because your IGAs right now are 
reaping the benefit.  What we're getting from the cities is reaping the benefit of the 
CARES money.  That benefit goes away so you may be looking at reverting back to pre-
CARES Act budgeting levels.   

Vice Mayor Stipp said for each of the participant cities?   

Mr. Smith said yes.  Because the cities all benefitted from the CARES money because it 
flowed through.  Basically, instead of asking you, Goodyear, to cut a check, the CARES 
money cut a check to cover a portion of those expenditures that you would have 
normally had to cover.  That goes away after CARES and we will ask you to cut the 
check that was a normal expenditure, normal levels of expenditures.   

Vice Mayor Stipp said okay.  So, I appreciate that detailed explanation. I think that's 
important for us to understand as we go forward.  What is the real implication of losing 
CARES Act money?  And how does that impact us?   

The other question that I had was on that operation services, the $98 million that we 
have budgeted.  Is that all bus contract or are there additional costs included in that?   
Operational contracts in that?   

Mr. Hodgins said it's primarily our contracts with First Transit, Total Ride for the service 
in the west and the east Valley, but it also includes fuel which we pay for, the 
contractors don't and, I believe, there's one other line.  I'm looking at Tyler.  The bulk of 
it is the service contracts.   

Tyler said yes. that's correct Paul.  I'd say 90 percent of it is transit service contracts 
and fuel with that. The remaining is other contractual services support for that, probably 
vehicle inspections, things like that.   

Vice Mayor Stipp said so the things that we truly have control over that aren't really 
contractual in nature are really the administrative support and then the facility 
maintenance.   

Mr. Hodgins said yes.  So, the facility maintenance includes some cleaning, I believe, it 
may include some security costs, but our administrative support is, primarily, our 
internal costs that aren't contractual.   

Vice Mayor Stipp said so if we're going to make an impact theoretically that's really the 
only place we can outside of a contract change.   

Mr. Hodgins said correct.   

Vice Mayor Stipp said okay.  Thank you.   
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Chair Arredondo-Savage said thanks, Bill.  Anybody else got any questions?  I just want 
to think a little bit about what Bill said too.  I do worry about next year and the CARES 
money going away and what that looks like and, I guess, in the city of Tempe, I mean, 
we're a little bit more concerned and a little more conservative moving forward so, I'm 
taking this with a grain of salt and I appreciate that so let's go ahead and move on.  Go 
ahead, Paul.  

Mr. Hodgins said so, just moving on a little bit to some of the other areas, regional 
services.  Included in regional services are, primarily, our marketing and public 
information areas.  It includes our Customer Service Call Center.  It includes the ADA 
Certification Office, the Mobility Center so those are primarily under the administrative 
support because they are done by our staff.  The operations services would be ADA 
Certification Office and then trips to bring applicants in to be certified so it's a smaller 
piece, but I just wanted to let you know what all was included in what we call regional 
services.  It looks like we have a math error.  Zero percent spent is probably not 
accurate, but overall, 15 percent so we're a little under budget.  This area is one 
hundred percent funded with Prop 400, PTF, so we try to manage that as well as we 
can.   

On the planning, three different areas, systems development that includes our Service 
Planning Group, corridor and facilities and then the administrative support, we are about 
18 spent there so a little under budget.   

Administration and finance that includes my group, Finance and Procurement.  It 
includes the CEO's Executive Office, things that really are internal and administrative to 
the agency.  About 15 percent spent so we're under budget there.  

Commute Solutions that's our group that goes out and works with employers to promote 
alternative work arrangements, to promote transit service, to promote van pooling, all of 
those things, working with employers in the area to reduce travel.  We're just about, just 
slightly under budget, but more or less on target for the year there.  Van pool operations 
a little bit under budget, as I mentioned, we've lost several van pool groups because of 
COVID.  

So, just a quick overview of our capital.  Again, we haven't spent a whole lot of our 
capital budget yet that's based on the biggest piece here, the regional fleet.  It's based 
on when we place orders and when the fleet comes in.  We don't pay for it until it's 
accepted and put into service.  So overall, about seven percent of the budget is spent, 
but we do expect that to catch up over time.  And then disbursements to Valley Metro 
Rail for the major capital programs about 30 percent spent, but again, that's based on 
progress on the projects, it's not necessarily a 1/12th every month.  So overall, on the 
capital about 15 percent spent for the year.   

So, were there any other questions about RPTA before I move on to VMR? 
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So, looking at Valley Metro Rail.  Again, same format, fiscal year 2021 budget actuals, 
our target to be spent is 25 percent.  On the sources of funds overall, about 12 percent, 
you can see by category.  Member city contributions, typically, come in the first of the 
month so we're a little bit ahead of our schedule.  That's not unusual.  Regional area 
road funds, we spent almost half.  We try to spend those on our planning projects first 
before we have to use PTF, Prop 400 funds.  Fares again, under budget, we tried to be 
conservative, but we clearly weren't conservative tough in estimating those.  We are 
only to about 16 percent of our fare revenue.  And probably will not catch up too much 
until we can get back to front-door boarding on the bus system and full fare enforcement 
on the rail system.  We don't have a time frame for that quite yet.   

But overall, 12 percent on our operating revenues.  Capital again, well under budget.   
Typically, on a reimbursement basis so it does lag the expenses.   

So, about 19 percent overall, again, we budgeted for a return to full service.  We have 
not returned to full service, so we are a little under budget on the light rail O & M as a 
result of that.  Obviously, Streetcar was not anticipated to begin until May.  It's been 
pushed to fiscal year 2022 so that will remain a zero for the rest of the year.  Security, 
we're just about on target 23 percent.  We did not change our level of security as a 
result of changing headways to 15 minutes, so security is pretty much right on target.  

Our planning, future project development is a little under budget.  Some of those costs 
due tend to lag so we expect that to catch up some and our agency operating which is 
essentially the CEO's budget, we are, as with RPTA, well under budget there, watching 
our costs trying to contain our costs.   

And on the capital side at a high level about 11 percent spent.  Most of these are major 
capital projects that are continuing.  Tempe Streetcar we're starting to wind down.  OMC 
expansion, we have almost half the budget spent, but we expected that based on the 
timing of the project.   

Looking at a little bit more of the detail.  I do want to make a slight correction on 
operations. We're showing 25 percent spent for light rail, that included some accruals 
that we made to the first quarter because our invoices were lagging.  The accruals were 
made based on budget which was higher.  It shouldn't have been done.  Our actual 
expenses are well below.  The operations spent really should be 22 percent not 25 so 
we will correct that.  And it will be corrected as we get through to the next quarter, but I 
just wanted to make that clear.  This is a little bit overstated because of the accruals.  
Vehicle maintenance considerably under budget.  Maintenance of way, administrative 
support, again, under budget there.   

Again, just a quick look at how we apply the CARES Act revenues here.  It's, basically, 
the same methodology for the fixed route budget.  We accumulate all of our costs, our 
operating expenses, in this case, it's operations, maintenance, administrative support, 
and security.  We have to take the fare revenue off, that's not eligible for federal 
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reimbursement.  So, for the year, we would be looking at $55 million in eligible funds 
and we've programmed to use about $43 million in CARES act funds.  We have some 
other federal and some advertising revenue leaving a net for the three rail cities to fund 
of about $10 million this year.  So, so far for the year, we've drawn down about three 
and a half million dollars in CARES Act fund through September. 

Continuing on with some of the budget to actual.  When we look at the future project 
development, well under budget on the corridor and facility.  There are some lags in 
invoices from some of our consultants, so we expect that to catch up over time.  System 
development, administrative support both around 20 percent so a little under budget 
there and as I mentioned, agency operating about 16 percent of the budget.  And then 
just looking at each of the capital projects, at various stages, we do expect for the most 
part those projects to be right on target as we get closer to the end of the year.   

So, that is a summary of our first quarter performance.  I'd be happy to take any 
additional questions on that.  If not, if there aren't any questions, we do want to discuss 
a little bit the merit that was budgeted.  

As I mentioned, the Board authorized us to include a three percent merit increase for 
the year based on FY20, based on last year's performance, but they wanted us to do 
this review of the first quarter performance of revenues and expenses, get a 
recommendation from Audit and Finance which would go to the full Board next week for 
a formal action.  Given that our revenues are above budget, our expenses are below 
budget, we've been very careful with our administrative expenses given that all of our 
staff are performing despite COVID.  All of our operating staff have continued to come 
to work, continued to operate, to expose themselves through the pandemic. We believe 
that we should move forward with distributing those merit increases for the year and we 
would like AFS's support in moving that forward to the Board.  I'd be happy to answer 
any questions or entertain some discussion around that.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said yes.  I was just going to say.  I'm going to throw that out 
to the committee.  Any concerns or questions in regard to the merit increases?  I know 
we said that we would put a hold on it for the first quarter and review where we are 
budget-wise.  So, I'm going to ask each one of you, what are your thoughts?  Anyone?   
Bill, go ahead.  

Vice Mayor Stipp said actually, I'm not. So, Paul, are you suggesting this effective now?  
Effective when?  

Mr. Hodgins said we believe it should be retroactive to July 1st.  We budgeted for a full 
year of the increase and we would like it to be effective July 1st.  

Mayor Gallego said Chair Arredondo-Savage?  

Chair Arredondo-Savage said go ahead, Mayor Gallego.   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 
 

Mayor Gallego said thank you.  In talking to people out in Phoenix, is it tough out there.  
People are hurting.  It doesn't feel -- a lot of families are making very difficult financial 
decisions right now.  I know when we've cut service at the City just as when Valley 
Metro has cut service, we have heard from people who have been impacted by those 
service changes and it's -- what we do is very meaningful to people, connectivity and 
transportation are essential to daily lives and now more than ever we're serving 
essential workers who keep us going.  I'm very appreciative of Valley Metro staff for 
tightening belts while our community has tightened belts and I'm, as you know, I'm 
nervous about what's to come.   

Today the City of Chicago announced they are going to a stay-at-home order.  Our 
country has had a rough 10 days with a million COVID cases and I don't know what is in 
front of us, so I think is it fair to be conservative.  I'm also grateful for people who are out 
there working and taking risks so I will move that we do a 3 percent raise forward 
looking starting January 1st and we can move forward with compensation as we move 
forward with restoring service. 

Chair Arredondo-Savage said thank you, Mayor Gallego.  I think that's a good 
suggestion.  Is there any other questions or follow up to that for the Mayor's 
recommendation?   

Councilmember Tolmachoff said I agree with Mayor Gallego.  Literally there are 
discussions happening about possible service reductions and service cuts in our future.  
And so, nobody likes to have these kinds of conversations and it's not that we don't 
value Valley Metro staff and the work that they're doing.  It's important work, but given 
the uncertainty of the future, we literally don't know the situation.  We're in a much more 
precarious position right now then we were when we had this discussion previously as 
far as the number of COVID cases and how widespread it's becoming.  

I just think that it's probably prudent for us to be effective January 1st and then Mayor, 
you're speaking not retroactive just effective January 1st for the final two quarters of the 
year.  And I think that's a self-awareness of our organization, of where we are as a 
community.  Keeping in mind also that MAG employees received no raise this year.  
And  there's a lot of organizations that weren't able to do that.  So, I think half of a year 
shows good faith and that we appreciate the employees and the work that they're doing, 
but it also shows, and I keep saying fiscal restraint.  And I think as an organization that 
we need to continue showing fiscal restraint because it's just uncertain where we're 
going.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said thank you, Lauren.  Anybody else?  

Vice Mayor Stipp said I would agree.  I think by the time next Thursday rolls around 
when we have our Board meeting, it could be completely different than is it today in a 
bad way.  So this a is good conservative way of going forward recognizing the hard 
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work and maintaining tight control over what is, ultimately, taxpayer money so I'm in 
support of that.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said okay.  Thank you, Bill.  Frankie, are you on?  I didn't 
know if you had anything you wanted to add.   

Councilmember Heredia said I would agree.  Looking at the recommendations, I think 
it's prudent to see how we can make sure that services and, but also looking at the staff 
that's been doing the good work how we can provide some merit pay increase, but in a 
way that make sense for Valley Metro.  So, I would -- what Mayor Gallego mentioned 
that would work for me.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said thank you, Frankie.  And I also agree so I appreciate the 
recommendation from Mayor Gallego.  I think that's a really good compromise and does 
show some fiscal restraint, but yet an appreciation for our employees that have been 
working really hard and diligently to provide the best service as possible so I think that's 
a good solution moving forward.   

I will say this, I know I do always worry and maybe I'm a little more conservative about 
the overly optimistic financial forecast that we continue to see and I just feel that we 
need to be a little bit more pessimistic in the sense of not knowing.  There's so much 
uncertainty.  We've been struggling with ridership even before the pandemic start so I 
much lean on the concerned side.  And so, I do think this is a great opportunity for us to 
just say thank you to our employees, but yet still be responsible at the same time so I 
certainly appreciate that.  And, Paul, I think you kind of got the message from the AFS 
for our recommendation.   

Ms. Tameron-Kinsey said Chair Arredondo-Savage, members, I have the pleasure of 
serving as Chief of Staff to this organization which I have grown to very much 
appreciate particularly during COVID.  I would be remiss if I did not mention what I've 
heard from division directors, specifically and directly, over the last few months in terms 
of maintaining, in particular, the folks on our outreach staffs who have been out in the 
public in addition to our OMC staff who are not represented through labor contracts that 
we've had a hard time keeping people and keeping them motivated during a very rough 
time.  And I know you're experiencing this with your city staffs who are also deemed 
essential workers who have been out there not missing a beat since day one of this 
pandemic.  And what I've heard from our division directors is that there was, obviously, 
concern for those who are out on the front lines who have not, like I said, skipped a 
beat, who have kept service on the road during a difficult time.  

We also, because of the budget saving measures that we have gone through and I have 
helped to instruct staff to continue to do, I will indicate that there was a sense of, I don't 
want to say relief, but of messaging we had provided the staff those folks in particular 
that we value them, that we value there service in a very difficult time, and that of their 
families who are worried about their exposures as well.  We will certainly take your 
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feedback into consideration I know that this will, ultimately, go to the Board to decide, 
but I do think that because of some of the concerns we've had that you've heard 
previously as the Audit and Finance Subcommittee in terms of retaining staff in 
particular of our folks who are serving out whether it be the Greenfield, EVBOM, or the 
OMC in particular.  We will have a lot of, I don't want to say explaining to do, but folks 
who are going to have to take care of who were hoping for a different outcome.  Thank 
you.  

Councilmember Tolmachoff said for the thousands and thousands of people that are not 
bringing home a paycheck right now.  That are, literally, living on 240 bucks a week 
trying to pay their bills.  As a Board member, my first and I know that especially this 
Committee, my first priority is to maintain service (indiscernible) and we, literally, 
through our conversation about possibly cutting service.  So, I understand where staff is 
coming from, but what if we did this?  If we make the recommendation to the full Board 
that the raises go into effect as Mayor Gallego suggested.  I think that's an excellent 
compromise and that we leave to the table that if by the end of the fiscal year that we 
stay the course with these projections are reliable and we get to the end of the year and 
we're still in this condition that we could offer a bonus of whatever the three percent 
would have been back to, from July 1st through January 1st.  That they would be made 
whole.  But that would be dependent on the health of the organization at the end of the 
fiscal year.   

I don't know whether anybody would be willing to consider that.  I just think 
(indiscernible) fiscally responsible and that if things continue on as they are that the 
employees could be made whole for the entire fiscal year, but that we just aren't 
comfortable making that decision today.  And I'd like to hear what everybody else thinks 
about that.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said thank you for the suggestion, Lauren.  Any other thoughts 
from the Committee?   

And before I do, I guess, I would just say this.  I would really hate to think that there 
were promises made before there was any conversation or discussion about what our 
financial future is and the Board to really put the Board and this Committee in a tough 
spot.  So, I think that we've been doing our due diligence and really trying to understand 
the budget, but also the appreciation not only within Valley Metro, but within our own 
cities itself and the work that our individual employees continue to do every, single day.  
So, we take that very seriously and I know I can speak for everybody that's on this 
Committee.  So, I'll ask the Committee members.  Any other thoughts about Lauren's 
suggestion?   

Vice Mayor Stipp said I think it's difficult for us to make a future promise because it's 
certainly worth the conversation for Scott and Alexis who are going to have to deal with 
communicating this to the employee group that we've had some discussion about end of 
the year and take another look.   
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But I tend to agree that when, and this was the point that I tried to make not so 
delicately last week at the Board meeting, when we're looking at $200,000 expenditures 
here and half million dollars there and $3 million here, those are big real numbers.  And 
those all have an impact on what we're trying to do from a financial perspective, and I 
don't think that Scott and the rest of the leadership team are thinking anything 
differently.  But, I think at the end of the day, we have a responsibility to the taxpayer 
that's putting this money forward that we make sure that we're guarding it as best we 
can to those that rely on this bus service when to Lauren's point they're on 
unemployment and they're only way to get from point A to point B is this form of 
transportation.  And if we're going to cut that route in the spring because we don't have 
the money, but yet we turned around and gave out raises.  That's a hard way to go. 

And so, I think we hold the course and at least from this perspective, there's another 14 
people who sit on the Board outside of the five of us.  I'd certainly like to hear from 
Mayor Gallego since she's the one that made the motion, but I'm hesitant at making a 
future promise because, I think, we'll be in this exact same situation come April or July.   
I certainly would entertain a much larger raise for the next fiscal year given what we did 
this fiscal year should things work out.  And I would be the first one to entertain that 
discussion when we're going through the budget in April that instead of a two and a half 
or a three percent raise, we look at something much more substantial, a five or six 
percent, if the budget can sustain that depending on how we move forward.  

Chair Arredondo-Savage said great.  Thank you, Bill.  Yeah.  I completely understand 
and agree.  Mayor Gallego, did you have anything that you want to discuss regarding 
Lauren's thoughts and ideas and Bill's suggestion also?   

Mayor Gallego said I guess, I am just not ready to make future commitments.  It sounds 
like already commitments were communicated to staff that did not have Board approval 
and that's, again, we have to work on our communication.  But I just want people out 
there who are riding public to know that we understand it impacted their lives when we 
cut services and that we're all trying to tighten belts and be fiscally conservative 
because people are going to be hurting for quite a while out there.  I guess, I'm coming 
off a time here where I've been talking to a lot of small businesses that are going out of 
business.  People who I care about and it just feels like there's a lot of hurt in the 
community right now and people for whom an even salary or a paycheck is a dream 
come true.  And so, we just have to balance while we are cutting services, what kind of 
fiscal message we send knowing that everyone is taking great risks out there and I 
appreciate that people have tightened belts while we have cut services.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said okay.  Thank you for those comments.  And I would 
agree with that too.  I don't want to make future promises.  It feels like I'm already kind 
of backed in the corner a little bit, but I feel like this is a really good compromise and this 
is us being fiscally responsible, but yet also appreciative to our employees.  So, I do 
agree that we kind of hold the line here and move forward with that recommendation, 
but I'll throw it out.  Is there anybody else that wants to make a couple, any comments?   
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Councilmember Tolmachoff said actually, I like Bill's idea better than mine even.  And I 
don't know about five or six percent, Bill, but depending on if the situation has 
completely improved we can address that in next year's budget even if it’s about, like I 
said, five or six percent, but maybe four percent something.  If we're able to recover 
from this financially although I think that's very, very ambitious thinking.  I just don't see 
it.  I walked around downtown Glendale this morning to go get some coffee and there 
are more and more empty store fronts everywhere and I know we're all experiencing 
that in our cities.  That there are literally and, you know, for every (indiscernible) jobs 
are lost, families are devastated.  I mean, these are hard times for everyone in this 
country. Everyone in the world not just this country.  

So, I think Bill's idea is better. We recommend to the Board, effective January 1st as 
Mayor Gallego suggested and that we take a look when we start with the budget 
preparations. We take a look at what can the organization do for the employees going 
forward in the next fiscal year.  I think Bill's idea is better so I'm backing off that idea.   

Ms. Tameron-Kinsey said I just want to make a clarification.  Nothing had been 
conveyed to the employees of Valley Metro indicating that they were going to get 
something.  No promises have been made.  I want to make sure that that's clear.  We 
have I'm sure a lot of Valley Metro employees who are tuned into this meeting right now.  
Nothing was told to them in any certain terms of promises or anything of that nature.  
They knew that this conversation was going to be taking place at AFS and that it will 
proceed to the Board.  I just to want make sure that there's not any indication that 
anything was promised to the staff or conveyed to the staff that was not.  

Mr. Smith said well, can I clarify that?  Actually, there was.  Not by us.  And Chair 
Arredondo-Savage, that promise was made when the Board, and we had a lengthy 
discussion at the time, approved the entire, a full $800,000 budget for merit pay which 
was the entire year's merit pay.  And the discussion at that time and that was approved 
by the Board and our employees saw that.  The conversation at the time was that we 
would defer that entire merit pay, the entire year's merit pay until we could see the 
impact of the finances on the organization.  And we would defer until this time to make 
that call.  

Well, I think what we've seen and what you haven't seen and I thought we were going to 
have this discussion after the next presentation.  Our PTF fund is collected $5 million 
year-over-year over last year.  You know, apples to apples, COVID calculation  
(indiscernible) most of your cities, I think almost all your cities have collected more than 
they envisioned they would collect so the economy has performed much better than 
anyone imagined.   

Now that could change, but until right now, we are in a much better position and a very, 
strong position with the CARES money that is turning into a windfall for every city.  And 
our employees saw that promise that was we're going to budget this, but we're going to 
defer it and see what the financial situation is like.   
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There's no doubt that there is uncertainty in the future and I've sat in your chair and I 
know the challenges that people have in this economy and outside, but if you recall 
about two months ago, we came to this group to ask to take care of those people who 
work at our Operations Center.  And mind you, this doesn't affect me at all so I'm trying 
to speak on behalf of those who don't have a voice in this.  Who showed up every day, 
who worked at great personal risk, and who continued to put out service on a consistent 
basis in spite of that personal risk.  And we ask for that merit to go through just for that 
group.  And this Committee decided no, we want to treat everyone as the same.  They 
saw that and they're going to see this too.   

There was a promise made.  The promise that was made back when the budget was 
discussed, and the discussion was had early on that what you would do to review this.  
And it wasn't to defer the payment, it was to defer the decision.  And so, I have to admit 
I understand where you are coming from, as I've said, I've been there, but I am 
disappointed because I think that the fact is that nobody right now is talking about 
cutting services, significantly, because our financial situation doesn't demand that, 
doesn't warrant that.  And for the foreseeable future, it doesn't demand that because our 
collections for the funds that matter are coming in healthy and, actually, above what was 
permitted or what was expected.   

So, I'm disappointed and I will tell you that our workers will see this in the light and I 
care about them.  I know you do too, but this action, I don't believe is fully respectful for 
them or what they have done.  Or the expectations and, yes, the somewhat of a 
promise that was made back when the budget was discussed, and this was debated a 
lot and the decision was made to defer the decision until this time.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said I would say, as the Chair, I would just agree to disagree 
with you, Scott.  I don't agree with that at all.  I think that this Committee has been 
talking consistently about being conservative, about showing fiscal restraint from the 
very beginning, and understanding that CARES money has been a really nice needed 
addition. However, there still has been some struggles that we've been dealing with for 
years, one of them being ridership and that even happened way before COVID hit.   

So, I mean, we may just agree to disagree and realize that when we are just making a 
recommendation to the Board that the Board will have the ultimate say, but I do think 
that this Committee has really taken a deep dive and understands where we are 
financially, and some of the restraints that we think we need to have, but yet still honor 
our employees.  This, to me, does not show any ill will to them.  I think that we have 
tried very hard over the years to make sure that they are compensated well and 
appreciated.   

So, I would say as we move forward, this has to be a united front that we are doing what 
we believe is best for the organization, as a whole, and, with that I'll turn it back over to 
the Committee members and see if you have anything to add.  But I will say based on 
what Alexis said earlier that there was going to be some discussions that were going to 
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need to be had so, obviously, there were some promises made and/or presumed so, I'll 
just ask my Committee members if you have anything you would like to add?   

Vice Mayor Stipp said no.  The recommendation of the Committee is pretty straight 
forward.  It does go to the whole Board for their decision that the member cities are the 
ones who are going to pay the price of the decision to go forward.  I think it's important 
that we do remind them that we are planning for discussions about service reduction in 
early calendar year 2021 to be effective later.  And we can't pretend that that's not going 
to happen because I think we all inherently know that there are going to be service 
reductions across the system.  So, I think that recommendation of this Committee is 
standing unless three other members say no, and we will let the full Board decide.  I 
won't be upset if the full Board decides to go one way or another because it's their 
decision, but I think, the recommendation coming out of AFS is January.   

Councilmember Tolmachoff said I don't have anything.  I agree with Bill.  It's only a 
recommendation.  This literally comes down to how the Board decides. It’s not meant to 
be unappreciative or insulting.  It's just, as Robin said, we have from the very beginning 
said, we want to show fiscal restraint.  We have no idea what the future holds and, it's 
not up to us.  We're only making the recommendation so, a lot of it is how it's presented 
(indiscernible). I don't know that all of the (indiscernible) that's it's presented to the staff 
we are trying to, (indiscernible) organization as well as we are doing that in our cities 
and it's not meant to show that we don't appreciate what you're doing, but that 
(indiscernible) not just with the virus, but now, politically.  There's just so much going on 
right now I'm just not comfortable doing anything other than what Mayor Gallego 
suggested.  So it's up to the Board though ultimately, not us.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said thank you, Lauren.  Frankie, do you have anything you 
would like to add?  Mayor Gallego?  All right.   

I didn't hear any which means, I think, we're going to stick with the original 
recommendation to the whole Board and I do hope as we move forward we're able to 
have a united voice and a positive message moving forward too.  I know somebody else 
mentioned that they were disappointed, and I would say the same. Anything else in 
regarding to agenda Item Number 3?  We're going to go ahead and move on to agenda 
Item Number 4.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said okay. So, looks like we need a motion to approve the first 
quarter budget review with a recommendation to make the merit raises effective 
January 1st.   

IT WAS MOVED BY MAYOR GALLEGO, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER 
TOLMACHOFF, AND UNAMIOUSLY CARRIED TO FORWARD TO THE BOARDS OF 
DIRECTORS THAT MERIT PAY BE RELEASED FOR DISTRIBUTION TO STAFF 
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2021. 
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4. Review and Service Planning Process for FY22 

Mr. Hodgins said so this item going back to a discussion we had a couple months ago 
about potential alternate revenue forecasts for our Prop 400 funds.  Chair Arredondo-
Savage, you had made a request that we go out and gather some information about 
what's happening with local revenues, so this is in response to that. 

But then as a follow up we also have some discussion, we will have Joe Gregory, our 
manager of Service Planning, talk a little bit about what the planning process is, right 
now, to look at what is our base scenario.  What happens if revenues begin to decline?  
So, he will talk a little bit about that approach and how the Service Planning Working 
Group is moving forward.   

So, just starting with our survey of the members, we reached out to everybody.  We had 
responses from ten of our members in various levels of detail.  Some was just kind of a 
narrative, some of them we got some actual hard data.  There's a summary in the 
packet from each of the cities.  We did get a request this morning from the City of 
Tempe to edit the summary for Tempe in there so we will provide the edit and send that 
summary back out.  But just at a high level, what we heard from the cities is that on 
average across the ten that responded, there's a projection of a decrease of about 2.6 
percent in fiscal year 2021 over fiscal year 2020.   

Now, that was a broad range from a two and a half percent increase from the City of  
Mesa, I think, it was about a seven percent decrease for the City of Scottsdale.  And 
again, these were estimates that were generated as part of the budget process back in 
late fiscal year 2020 with a lot of uncertainty about COVID, but that's what we heard.  
We heard that currently, only one city has planned to reduce service this fiscal year, but 
most of the other cities are monitoring revenues looking at what those trends are and 
making plans, developing plans or strategies in case revenues do decline.  

Just as a note, we did get some more hard data from those with a dedicated transit tax.  
Glendale, Tempe, and Phoenix, in particular, so we will have a couple slides on those.  
Currently on average for those cities, revenues are up four percent year-over-year for 
the first two months.  We did receive the data for July and August. 

PTF revenues are up ten percent, clearly, well outperforming those other sales taxes.  
Ten percent for the first three months and, as I mentioned, we got our October revenue 
a couple of days ago that was still up ten percent so very much performing well.   

Just to look at this in kind of a chart format, bringing back our discussion from a couple 
of months ago on the scenarios.  That city average, as I mentioned, is part of the budget 
process was a decline of about 2.6 percent on average, but quite a range of responses.  
The current forecast from ADOT and, again, they developed this with a panel of expert 
economists, State demographers, they look at what's going on.  Their current projection 
and, again, this was done in August so they had the benefit of some of what happened 
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during COVID or after, during the summer, so their projection is a 4.8 percent increase 
this year.  Looking at the three scenarios that we presented, our more optimistic was a 
1.7 percent increase, well below ADOT's official forecast, scenario two about a 2.5 
percent increase that would be in line with what the city average was before the 
beginning of the year -- a decrease, excuse me.  And then kind of worst-case scenario  
it would be about a 6.6 percent decrease.   

So, year-to-date for those three cities with the PTF, our actual revenues so Glendale 
had the most pessimistic view here, a little over six percent decrease was their 
projection for fiscal year 2021.  The first two months their decrease, I believe, was about 
a half percent, but outperforming the projection.  City of Phoenix projected a slight 
increase about 7/10ths of a percent for fiscal year 2021.  They're at about six percent so 
far.  City of Tempe was projecting just under a six percent decrease, so far they're at a 
six percent increase for the first two months and, as I mentioned, with our Prop 400, 
about a 1.7 percent increase is what we projected and well over ten percent so far.  So, 
you know, this is an early trend, but it is optimistic that projections for, not just for PTF, 
but the cities are outperforming their budget amount. 

Mr. Smith said and Paul, what's the dollar amount on that ten percent?  The raw dollars 
for PTF?   

Mr. Hodgins said for PTF through four months, it's just over $5 million above budget.  
So, I provided a month-by-month, year-over-year growth for each of those four taxes 
that I mentioned.  While month-to-month you can see some differences, for example, in 
October of 2019, for some reason Glendale experienced significant increase over the 
previous year. 

Tempe was a bit of a decrease, you know, so month-to-month there's some changes, 
but overall, the pattern is about the same.  We had good growth through fiscal year 
2020, through the first part, they call dropped to the end of fiscal year 2020, but then we 
have seen some increases starting in fiscal year 2021.   

So, again, as we've discussed, we have those three scenarios and we want to plan for 
what we think is reasonable. At this point given the revenue situation, we believe that 
that scenario 1 is reasonable, but we're also providing strategies should revenues 
decline next week or next month or three months from now.  We will have strategies in 
place to pivot the budget to a different scenario before it's adopted by the Board.   

So, I'd like to turn it over next, unless there are questions on some of the local revenues 
and again, we will continue to get some input from the cities and update these to keep 
the AFS informed on what's happening with the cities. I'll turn it over to Joe Gregory to 
talk a little bit about the approach they're taking with your staff to develop some of these 
scenarios.  
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Chair Arredondo-Savage said Paul, thank you.  I’ll just ask really, quick if there's any 
questions from any of the Committee members?  I just know, I think, our perception of 
our budget maybe a little bit different than your interpretation, Paul, and that was why 
we sent forth a little bit different of a statement.  One of those things we've got to work 
through, but I will say I do appreciate you really talking to the local cities and 
understanding where everybody is at because everybody is a little bit different and fund 
things a little bit differently.  And, I think, we all have to realize that if there are some 
challenges with one city within the region it impacts the whole region.  So, it's really 
important that we have a really good understanding of how things are looking so thank 
you, Paul. 

Mr. Gregory said everyone, thanks for allowing me to come to this group today.  I'm 
going to talk a little bit to our approach to the service cuts and the optimization that 
we're planning for going forward.  

Again, I just wanted to just make sure that everyone has seen this map before, but 
there's a really complicated funding structure to a lot of our routes.  As you can see, 
many of them are regionally funded, some of them have a local and regional funding 
mix, some of them are local funded especially within the city of Phoenix and then they 
become regionally funded once they leave Phoenix.  So, I just wanted to make sure that 
everyone has some kind of a baseline as we're working through these things to see that 
as we're working through them that it's not as easy as it may seem to just cut 15 percent 
or something like that.  It would just be able to cut it without any kind of impact to the 
system overall. 

So, as Paul was going through those numbers, we are also trying to stay on track with 
what is shown into the budget document.  And so, we're working on somewhat of a dual 
track of looking at scenario 1 and scenario 2 for maybe a ten percent cut over the life of 
the TLCP for scenario 1 and then a 15 percent cut for scenario 2.  We're also taking into 
account any requests for local service cuts.  As we kind of went through what the cities 
were reporting to what Paul referred to, that's, basically, the same information that we're 
getting too in that most cities have not at this point talked very much about any local 
service cuts except for City of Tempe and City of Phoenix has been looking a little bit at 
some of their local cuts as well.  But, the Mesas, the Glendales, those types of other 
cities have not been talking to us about needing local service cuts to kind of balance out 
their local budget or for the most part, we're looking at the PTF funds as far as what we 
need to fund the savings from.   

So, what we're trying to do is thread a really small needle.  We want to make sure that 
we're protecting the integrity of the system, protecting the ability of people to move 
around and make connections, and to continue to get to the places where they need to 
go while still finding room in there, in our system to make these budget cuts.  

So, we established a set of guiding principles that we're using as somewhat of our North 
star when we're looking at some of these reductions and they're mostly centered around 
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making sure that we're not unduly cutting our productive service or our services that are 
really helping people.  While at the same time, we don't want to geographically impact 
the services because especially, because say we cut off some of our far routes that are  
way on the east side or the west side some of the north side routes, we would also be 
impacting a lot of other things as well.  We would be impacting Title 6, we would be 
impacting the paratransit service areas, all those types of things.  So, we're really trying 
to keep the geographical integrity as well to make sure that we're not having kind of 
downstream effects as far as what's going to happen if there are just kind of the more 
severe scenario 2 service cuts.  

And so, as we're going through this, we're using like a task force like approach.  We 
have been talking to all of the member city staff at the Service Planning Working Group 
every month, the first Tuesday of the month, we always meet.  And then we also have 
been setting up sub regional meetings mid-month.  And so for November, December, 
and January, we plan to have those sub regional meetings where we can really get into 
the meat of what actually makes sense to cut and what kind of service reductions could 
still keep the integrity of the system going while still finding some savings as far as for 
the PTF budget.   

So, we're, again, at this Audit and Finance Subcommittee here on November 12th and 
will continue to hold our sub regional meetings starting this month and going into the 
next few months.  And then we want to really have this flushed out by the end of 
January and then be able to go through our regular board process for the service cuts.  

Starting in October for the 2021 cuts and at least have a plan if it's going to be a multi-
service change approach of cutting a little bit at that time to make sure that we at least 
have that plan laid out well beforehand and we can still be flexible as far as what the 
budget will look like as we move forward.   

So, we're looking to package the multiple options keeping in touch with the fact that 
we're looking at different scenarios and trying to stay flexible.  So, we want to look at 
multiple options and then give the cities the chance to tell us their priorities and make 
sure that we're all on the same page as we move forward.  And so, it's not certainly 
going to be something where we come down and tell cities to cut certain routes or 
certain things.  We want this to be a collaborative process so that's why we're trying to 
make sure that every step of the way we're meeting with the city staff and we're 
understanding how the priorities are moving forward. 

So, I believe, that it's for my portion.  Does anyone have any questions about that?  

Mr. Smith said Joe, if I could just add on.  If I could summarize Joe's presentation of this 
because there's a little bit of a concerning thing to me that this process and approach 
has taken on a life of its own as though service cuts are a given or that must be done.   
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As Joe said and because we started this process during the early days of COVID when 
we anticipated significant revenue drops.  And so, wanting to be ahead of the game, we 
started that.  But we also looked at what reality would be and what the actual 
performance would bring us.  I think the important thing to look at is and we need to put 
into perspective as Joe pointed out, is that the RPTA as an organization is really an 
allocation, an operator, but, also, we allocate regional funds.  And I think as Joe said, 
there are, I think four or five local routes that are funded completely by PTF, by Prop 
400 monies and then there are express routes, I believe, it's about 14 that are funded by 
monies.  Everything else is either funded completely by a city or by a combination of city 
and regional monies.  

So, if there is any service reduction, it would be a combination of the regional funds, 
financial health, and individual cities financial health.  At this time, at the regional level 
based on what Paul said, we are well ahead of expectations on revenue and we have 
cut expenditures so that from a standpoint, we have no plans and there is no need to 
cut the level of regional funding into the pool.   

We recognize that individual cities may have a difference so I just to want make sure we 
understand that we're not making the decision as to where funding goes and that our 
plan, right now, is we do not anticipate service cuts that are funded completely by the 
region, by RPTA, simply because our financial situation at the present time does not 
merit that.  If a city or cities have different concerns or different situation, obviously, we 
talk to them and, for example, if Happy Valley said we simply can't continue to fund this 
route at the level we have, that merits a discussion as to the impact that would have on 
the overall system.  And if a city does not have the resources or is experiencing 
something different then that certainly would create an imperative to adjust that route.   

However, from the regional standpoint, we don't find ourselves in that situation.  And so 
I want to make sure that when we talk about these service cuts, it's not something we 
have to do.  It's something we are planning, in case, as we move down, the financial 
situation does not continue along the route that it currently is.  As Paul said, we have 
over $5 million in the first four months, we were not expecting.  We did not budget and 
so that give us a pretty, good cushion along with the $3 to $5 million in budget savings 
that we have created.  We have between $7 and $10 million of money at the regional 
level that we did not expect from where we are in March and April.  So, just want to put 
that in context and perspective as to how this process will play out.   

Vice Mayor Stipp said I have to ask the question.  We've heard a number of times today 
about cuts that have been made administratively.  Are those permanent cuts?  Are 
those just temporary for this year?  And then what are they?  What are we really talking 
about on the administrative side?  I think I'd be curious to hear and not today, 
necessarily, but I'd be curious to hear and see what those are kind of across the board 
to really paint the rest of that picture.  If you were to just have stepped in at the very tail 
end of our previous discussion and then in to this one, I think you would be very 
confused by the, what do you mean we have plenty of money, but you're talking about 
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this gigantic effect on how you're going to do service cuts?  They're in direct conflict with 
one another but understanding that it's a contingency planning group which makes a lot 
more sense.  I think I would encourage the title of the group being called that 
contingency planning group, but I'd be curious to where we're at with those expense 
reductions because we don't get to see those. 

Chair Arredondo-Savage said I think you brought up a really good point too.  And I know 
the AFS Committee, one thing that we've also pushed too is really looking forward with 
the budget in a parallel with a parallel path, one being more optimistic and one being a 
little bit more pessimistic and more conservative.  So, Paul, can you kind of elaborate a 
little bit on is this part of that parallel process of if we don't rise to the level of 
expectations, this is some of the things that we could encounter?  And I do like Bill's 
suggestion about really knowing more of the specifics of what, specifically, we have 
done?  And what the cost saving is related to each of those particular changes?    

Mr. Hodgins said I think we can dig into that a little bit more and provide some more 
detail.  I know that we have a freeze on non-essential vacancies.  We review each of 
those that come up on whether we want to fill them, so we've got some savings there.  
Clearly, we haven't been traveling.  We review all of our expenses quite carefully.  But 
we can provide a little more detail.   

As far as the parallel track, it's never been my intention to present two separate budgets 
for the Board to pick from, but the two tracks are really, and part of it is what Joe's group 
is going through, is to have two different paths of potential however the budget ends up 
looking like.  We don't want to get to say March and the revenues have declined and, 
suddenly, we have to scramble to come up with a plan.  So, we'll have two plans, 
internally, that we're working on and when we get to bringing the budget to the Board in 
March and then approval in May, looking at the revenue situation, PTF, with the cities, 
looking at where we stand, we will present to the Board the appropriate scenario, the 
budget that most appropriately addresses the revenue situation at the time.  So we have 
kind of these paths of well, yes, right now, we don't foresee service reductions, but will 
have a contingency plan in place that if revenues decline, we can quickly pivot the 
budget and present one that represents the revenues that we see at the time.  So, it's 
not two complete budgets in parallel, but it's a planning process behind the scenes in 
parallel so that we can present the budget that makes the most sense when we get to 
March, May.  Is that clear? 

Chair Arredondo-Savage said crystal clear.  Any questions from the Committee 
members?  Hey, Joe.  I just want to say thank you for your work.  I mean, I think that's 
going to be really essential for us to make good decisions moving forward.  And I 
noticed one thing and there weren’t very many slides, but when we talk about this again, 
will you have some dollar amounts next to these different items.  Is that something?  Did 
I miss that?  Or is that something that is also going to be helping to make the decisions 
moving forward?   
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Mr. Gregory said yes.  We will certainly have dollar amounts as we move forward 
especially with specific route cuts.  Right now, we have been kind of just working off of 
percentages to try to get us into the right kind of target of where we're looking at for 
these contingencies.  And I appreciate, you know, labeling this contingency planning 
because that's really what we're hoping it happens. I mean, we really hope that none of 
these really have to come into effect, but we don't want to be caught flat footed like -- 
kind of like we were in March or something when this all kind of hit us without us 
knowing what was going to happen.  

Mr. Smith said if I could give Joe and his group a shout out because as he mentioned, it 
is a complex process because we're trying to balance the regional assets and the funds 
we have and each of the cities and what their situation and concerns are and Joe and 
his group do an amazing job of juggling and trying to take care of every city and the 
concerns and realities that your staffs bringing up with how it impacts other cities and 
how it relates to the regional fund.  And it's pretty thankless job to have to do that and 
they do a great job of it and they do a great job of serving your individual staffs and they 
work very closely together with your staffs to try and come up with something that 
balances those interests and yet takes care of both regional and local needs.  So, kudos 
to Joe and his staff.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said I certainly agree and I think this is one thing that AFS 
Committee can really appreciate is we have been a little bit concerned about what may 
happen so being able to look a little bit in the future and be proactive is much better that 
us trying to be reactive at the last minute and then make bad decisions. So, I certainly 
do appreciate that, Joe.  Thank you.  Was there anything else that you wanted to add?   

Mr. Gregory said not that I do.  Thank you.  

Chair Arredondo-Savage said okay.  Paul, did you have anything that you wanted to 
add?  

Mr. Hodgins said no, there's nothing else I want to add.  

Chair Arredondo-Savage said okay.  Then I think just before we wrap up Item Number 4 
is just for information.  Paul had mentioned it earlier, but I just want to reemphasize it.  
When we actually went back and saw the individual descriptions of all the local city 
budgets, I actually took that to my Budget Director and our Chief Financial Officer and 
we reviewed it together and did make some changes because, I believe, the city's 
interpretation is a little bit different than Valley Metro's interpretation of what our budget 
looks like.  So, just wanted to make that clear and you will probably notice that what you 
see today is not what you'll probably see next week.  And that's all I have for Item 
Number 4. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24 
 

5. Internal Audit Update 

Ms. Davis said good afternoon, Chair Arredondo-Savage, AFS Board members, thank 
you for your time today.  The internal audit update that was provided to you shows that 
the credit card transactions and the travel expenses audit has been put on hold 
because I've been helping Safety, Security and Quality Assurance group with their 
required ADOT reviews that need to be completed by the end of the year.  So, if you 
see at the bottom of that slide there, we have three of those audits covering six 
elements in progress right now and another three elements due in the next couple 
weeks.  So, I do anticipate at the end of December or early January being able to get 
back into that credit card transaction review. 

Additionally, we do have the Arizona Auditor General doing their MAG Regional 
Transportation Plan audit.  That kicked off the end of October and we have worked with 
their group to schedule internal meetings the week after Thanksgiving to facilitate their 
next set of reviews.   

Mr. Hodgins said can I just add on to that real quick.  So that MAG audit or the audit 
being done by the Auditor General is our five-year performance audit that's required by 
statue.  And it's a performance audit of the Regional Transportation Plan or Prop 400 so 
this is the third one, believe it or not, so we're on to our 3rd performance audit.  They 
look at the last five years for Prop 400, what we've accomplished, if it's kind of moving 
along according to plan and they will look forward at the next five years and make some 
recommendations about whether we should proceed with what's in the plan.  So it's a 
fairly detailed look at the entire Prop 400, all three lifecycle programs:  freeways, 
arterials, and transit.   

Ms. Davis said thank you. 

Mr. Hodgins said sorry.  Just wanted to give a little bit of a detail about what that was.  

Ms. Davis said no, I appreciate that.  Any questions on the internal audit update?  

Chair Arredondo-Savage said I don't have any.  Do Committee members?  Go ahead, 
Jenn.   

This item was presented for information only. 

6. Internal Audit Exceptions Update 

Ms. Davis said so we do still have six open recommendations, but four of them are 
pending that travel and credit card review.  One is still delayed due to the Oracle 
changes.  And then the last one is due by the end of the fiscal year looking at those 
ERP system changes for automated professional development forms.   
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And that IT was able to remediate the last audit finding that we had from the reviews 
and getting their acceptable use policy up-to-date and some new processes out there 
for the software items.   

So really appreciate IT's work on making sure that they have in addressing those audit 
recommendations and then implementing them and getting that information out to the 
agency.   

Any questions on the exceptions?  

Chair Arredondo-Savage said I don't know if there's any questions, but, Jennifer, I just 
want to say thank you to you and your diligence. Your plate has been very full and you 
definitely continue to do amazing work and push us forward so I'm really grateful for 
that.  And I know we're glad to see that IT one get wrapped up so that's really good 
news too.  So, thank you so much for what you do.  Really appreciate it.   

Ms. Davis said thank you.   

This item was presented for information only. 

7. Intergovernmental Agreements, Contract Change Orders, Amendments and 
Awards 

Mr. Hodgins provided a brief overview of Intergovernmental Agreements, Contract 
Change Orders, Amendments and Awards that included the following: 

A. Operations Cleaning Services Contract Award 
B. Landscaping Services Contract Award 
C. Insurance Coverage Renewal: Commercial Property and Liability and 

Workers Compensation and Employer’s Liability 
D. Planning and Community Relations Support Services Contract Extension 

and Additional Funding 
E. Non-Revenue Vehicles Purchase 

Mr. Hodgins said thank you.  There are five items on here.  Given the time, I'd be happy 
to just answer any questions if there are any.  Or I could talk through them, but your 
pleasure.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said hey, Paul, how about just a real quick overview.   

Mr. Hodgins said okay.  The first is award of a cleaning services contract.  This covers, 
primarily, Valley Metro Rail for facilities, vehicles, but it also covers some cleaning 
services for RPTA at the Greenfield facility.   
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Landscaping services contract award.  These are both five-year terms with some 
options.  Primarily, landscaping for Valley Metro Rail along, I believe, along the 
alignment.   

There's our annual insurance renewal, commercial property and liability.  You will notice 
there are significant increases.  It's a tough insurance market.  Our broker is still working 
to trying to get those down so we have a kind of a not to exceed amount in the memo 
right now.  We are still working on those.   

We want to extend our planning and community relations support services contract with 
HDR for another year.  I believe, it's another year.  They provide a lot of support on our 
major capital projects and some of our planning services including, you know, some of 
the corridor planning for Cap I10.  

And then we need to replace 6 non-revenue vehicles and so we have a cooperative 
agreement through the State to do that.  That was as quick as I could make it.   

Chair Arredondo-Savage said that's fantastic.  I certainly appreciate it.  I just think it's 
good for transparency too because I know we're not going through the slides, but if 
people are, actually, listening and tuning in we just want to make sure that they get just 
a little bit of a brief picture of some of the things that we're talking about.  Committee, is 
there any questions regarding our IGAs?  I don't see any.  Thank you for the 
information, Paul.  I certainly appreciate that.   

This information presented for information only. 

8. Future Agenda Items Request and Report on Current Events 

Chair Arredondo-Savage said I don't know if you guys can notice I just want to say 
thanks to Stephanie.  We have kind of just been working through this a little bit.  If you 
look at your agenda, we have tried to include those items that we have on our radar.  
Things to discuss in the future and they have, actually, kind of put some idealistic 
timelines by them so those are for just for us to kind of have an idea of when those 
items are going to be talked about and discussed.  And I just wanted to keep everybody 
on the same page and thought that they were good just in front of us so, hopefully, 
that's okay with everyone.   
And I would ask you is there any future agenda items that anybody has right now that 
they would like to see in the future?   
And then what I would do since I don't see any, I would ask Alexis really quick, if it's 
okay, to just maybe quick, Alexis, give us an update in regards to our hiring process.   
What that might look like, so nobody is surprised.   
Ms. Tameron-Kinsey said sure.  We have had quite a number of submissions.  I had 
shared earlier today with Chair Arredondo-Savage that I would be reaching out to you 
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and your assistants in the next day or so to get some availability from you for next week 
to do a couple of meet and greets, if you will.  So I provide that information to you if not 
later on today, by first thing in the morning because as we would all like to make sure 
we continue on our path on our audit plan and get the help that we need in.  It's not 
something that we want to not pursue, hopefully, getting something on your calendars 
next week prior to the Thanksgiving holiday.   
Chair Arredondo-Savage said thank you, Alexis.  Just wanted to keep everybody -- 
Alexis said you’re welcome.   
Vice Mayor Stipp said Alexis, thank you.  Can you do me a favor and just reach out to 
me directly?  My calendar for the next couple weeks is fairly, dynamic so it's very hard 
for me to keep the city staff informed and myself sane that kind of thing.  So, if you don't 
mind just reaching out to me, I can coordinate that much faster.  Thank you.  I 
appreciate it.   
Ms. Tameron-Kinsey said yes, sir, will do.   
Mr. Smith said once again, since you talked about it, I just want to give Jennifer a shout 
out.  She has just done a great job filling in and really holding down the fort as a lone 
solder there and has really, really done well, helped out a lot with our safety and 
security and in some of the audits that they're doing.  So, I just want to make sure and 
I've done this before, but she just continues to do a great job so thank you, Jennifer.  I 
want to let her know that.   
Chair Arredondo-Savage said we agree.  So, thank you guys very much and if you get a 
chance just look at the future agenda items that we have there.  There's a few so just 
want to make sure that we're all on the same page and if there is something that we 
have missed just let myself or Stephanie know and we will make sure it gets added and 
that we will have discussion in the future.   
No meeting in December though we will be getting together for a meet and greet of the 
finalists soon, hopefully, we will get that on the radar.  And with that I wish you all a 
Happy Thanksgiving.   
Mr. Hodgins said I just want to throw out one thing for consideration.  It's not a future 
item, but it's related to future meetings.  One of the challenges that we have with the 
meeting date for AFS is, it's one week before the Board meeting so anything that comes 
out of this meeting, we have a hard time getting into the packet to get the Board packet 
out a week ahead of time.  And, similarly, when we get information that comes through 
the Management committee, we have to get the AFS packet out, basically, the next day.  
So, I'd like to consider moving the AFS meeting up a week so that we would have our 
Management committee on Wednesday, AFS on Thursday and then that would give us 
a full week to incorporate comments from both committees into the Board packets that 
the Board would get a more complete packet.  I know that affects everybody's 
schedules, but if we could kind of look at that and maybe consider it for calendar year 
2021, I think it would help us out and help the Board to get better information that 
comes through the committee process.   
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Chair Arredondo-Savage said I think that is a solid recommendation.  I think we can 
certainly all look into that.  Would it be okay either you or Alexis maybe check in with all 
of our agency and if that's something that we can arrange?  Is everybody okay with that 
moving things up to the first week of the month instead of the second?  If I don't hear 
from you that means, yes, you think it's okay, but we will check and confirm.   
Mr. Hodgins said yes.  
Ms. Dillon said we will send out a list of the potential meeting dates that everyone can 
compare and then if you can get back to me then we will schedule accordingly.   
Chair Arredondo-Savage said excellent.  Well, and I just want to make sure.  I mean, I 
know this Committee we work really hard and we do deep dives on a lot of things and I 
want to make sure that our messages and the information that we receive, digest, and 
give recommendations, you know, gets vetted thoroughly so if that is what is it going to 
take then let's just try to make that happen.   
All right.  If there is nothing else, then I think our next meeting will be schedule for 
January 14th or maybe the week before that if all goes well.  Sound good?  So that 
would be January 7th possibly.     
Without further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 1:15 p.m. 
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DATE AGENDA ITEM 4
Janaury 28, 2021 

SUBJECT 
Fiscal Year 2020 (FY20) Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA) and Valley 
Metro Rail (VMR) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and Single Audit 
Reporting Package (SARP) 

PURPOSE 
To request acceptance of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports and Single Audit 
Reporting Packages for the period ended June 30, 2020. 

BACKGROUND | DISCUSSION | CONSIDERATION 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA), Certified Public Accountants, has completed the 
audits of RPTA and VMR financial statements and Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Valley Metro has complied 
with both state and federal statutory audit requirements as well as adhered to 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in financial reporting. The 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports demonstrate Valley Metro’s commitment 
to the highest standard of financial reporting for a governmental entity.  

In performing the audit of the financial statements, CliftonLarsonAllen LLP considered 
internal controls in order to determine auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing 
opinions on the financial statements fair presentation, in all material respects, of the 
financial position of RPTA and VMR and not to provide an opinion on the organizations 
internal controls.   

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP identified two uncorrected misstatements during the audit of 
RPTA. The effects of these uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements. The uncorrected 
misstatements relate to $530,029 of governmental activities construction in 
progress that was not capitalized in the prior year in the government wide financial 
statements and $99,872 in accrued liabilities that should have been recorded in the 
general fund financial statements as of June 30, 2020. The construction in progress was 
subsequently capitalized in the current fiscal year. 

RPTA and VMR’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for FY20 received 
unmodified opinions. RPTA and VMR received the GFOA Certificate of Excellence 
in Financial Reporting for the FY19 CAFRs, which demonstrates the agency’s 
commitment to the highest standard of financial reporting for a government entity.   

Information Summary 
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The Independent Auditor’s Report for RPTA and VMR are attached. The RPTA 
and VMR full CAFRs, which include the Independent Auditor’s Report and the 
Single Audit Reporting Package are available on request or on Valley Metro’s 
website.  

COST AND BUDGET 
None 

COMMITTEE ACTION 
Staff recommends that the AFS accept the FY20 Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Reports and the Single Audit Reporting Packages. 

CONTACT 
Paul Hodgins 
Chief Financial Officer 
602-523-6043 
phodgins@valleymetro.org

ATTACHMENT 
Independent Auditor’s Report – RPTA and VMR 

These documents are also available on the Valley Metro website at the following 
URL:  
https://www.valleymetro.org/finance-budget-reports

Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports – RPTA and VMR 
Single Audit Reporting Package – RPTA and VMR 

mailto:phodgins@valleymetro.org
https://www.valleymetro.org/finance-budget-reports
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The Introductory Section includes the Authority’s transmittal letter and the Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting.
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January 27, 2021 

To Chair and Members of the Valley Metro RPTA Board of Directors: 

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Valley Metro Regional Public 
Transportation Authority (the Authority) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, is hereby 
submitted as mandated by state statute. The statute requires that the Authority annually 
issue a report on its financial position and activity, and that the Authority’s records be 
audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants. Responsibility for both the 
accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including 
all disclosures, rests with management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the 
enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner that 
presents fairly the financial position and results of operations of the Authority on both a 
government-wide and fund basis. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain 
an understanding of the Authority’s activities have been included. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for local governments as 
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 

The Authority’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal 
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the Authority are protected from 
loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow 
for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The Authority’s 
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance 
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) 
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the 
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

The independent certified public accounting firm of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP whose report 
is included herein, has audited the basic financial statements and related notes. As stated 
in the independent auditors’ report, the goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the basic financial statements of the Authority for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2020, are free from material misstatement. The independent audit 
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements; assessing accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The 
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independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable 
basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the basic financial statements of the 
Authority as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are fairly presented, in all 
material respects, in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors’ report is 
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent 
auditors’ report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the 
basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should 
be read in conjunction with it. 

Additionally, the Authority is required to have an independent audit of expenditures of 
federal awards received (Single Audit) by the Authority directly from federal agencies or 
passed through to the Authority by other governmental entities during the fiscal year. 
The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to 
report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the 
Authority’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements having a direct and 
material impact on major programs, with special emphasis on internal controls and 
compliance requirements involving the administration of major federal awards. 

As a subrecipient of federal and state financial assistance, the Authority is responsible 
for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure and document 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to these programs. This internal 
control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management and by the Authority’s 
independent audit firm. As part of the Authority’s Single Audit, tests were made of the 
internal control structure and of its compliance with applicable laws and regulations, 
including those related to federal awards. The auditors’ reports on internal controls and 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations are included in a separately issued 
Single Audit Report. 

PROFILE OF THE AUTHORITY 

The Authority was established in 1985 along with the passage of a one-half of one percent 
sales tax increase to fund regional highway and public transportation improvements in 
Maricopa County, Arizona (the County). The Authority was created to develop a regional 
transit plan and to develop and operate a regional transit system in the County. The 
financial reporting entity of the Authority includes all its funds and does not include any 
component units (i.e., legally separate entities for which the Authority is financially 
accountable). 

In fiscal year 2020, the Authority was governed by a nineteen-member Board of Directors 
consisting of a member of the County Board of Supervisors and the mayors (or their 
designees) of the member cities and towns. The members included Maricopa County, 
the cities of Avondale, Buckeye, Chandler, El Mirage, Glendale, Goodyear, Mesa, 
Peoria, Phoenix, Scottsdale, Surprise, Tempe and Tolleson and the Towns of Fountain 
Hills, Gilbert, Queen Creek, Wickenburg, and Youngtown. Any municipality in the County 
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may join the Authority and have one elected official serve on the Board of Directors. A 
Chief Executive Officer, appointed by the Authority’s Board of Directors, is responsible to 
carry out policy and plan, manage, supervise and coordinate all day-to-day activities. The 
Authority procures regional bus, paratransit and vanpool services, provides regional 
transit and capital planning support, coordinates the County’s transportation demand 
management activities, and provides general operational and administrative support to 
its members. 

The annual budget serves as a foundation for the Authority’s financial planning and 
control. Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds and enterprise funds are 
included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (i.e., the level 
at which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations) is the total annual 
appropriated budget. Costs in excess of the total annual appropriated budget require 
approval of the Board of Directors.  The Authority maintains budgetary control by 
conducting both monthly and quarterly evaluations of expenditures against 
appropriations and through close monitoring of revenues. As demonstrated by the 
statements included in the financial section of this report, the Authority continues to meet 
its responsibility for sound financial management. 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Local Economy 

The Authority serves Maricopa County, which is located in central Arizona. According 
to the US Census Bureau, Maricopa County measures 9,200 square miles, with a 
population estimated at 4.485 million as of 2019. The metropolitan area is home to the 
state capitol and includes the City of Phoenix, population 1.681 million, making it 
Arizona’s major center of political and economic activity. In fact, more than 61% of the 
state’s population resides in Maricopa County, which is home to over 15 institutions 
of higher learning, including Arizona State University; various cultural attractions; 
professional baseball (Arizona Diamondbacks), basketball (Phoenix Suns and Phoenix 
Mercury), football (Arizona Cardinals) and hockey (Arizona Coyotes); and Sky Harbor 
International Airport, one of the top fifteen busiest airports in the United States with over 
1,200 daily flights. 

The outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, specifically identified as "COVID 19", 
has resulted in Arizona governments enacting emergency measures to combat the 
spread of the virus. These measures which include the implementation of travel bans, 
self-imposed quarantine periods and social distancing, have caused material disruptions 
to business in Arizona resulting in an economic slowdown.  Prior to the emergency 
measures, Arizona continued to show steady growth in jobs and income, with the 
Phoenix metropolitan area driving the job gains. After the emergency measures were 
implemented Arizona and Maricopa County experienced substantial declines in 
employment and income. At this time, it is not possible to estimate the length of 
continued severity of these developments. Despite the economic disruptions, personal 
income for the Maricopa County area is forecasted to grow, annually, between 2% and 
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6% over the next five years. Retail sales growth is projected between 2% to 8% during 
the same period. Non-farm job growth is projected to decline in 2020 by 2% but then 
grow, annually, between 2% and 4% through 2024. These projections are published by 
the University of Arizona, Economic and Business Research Center. Sales tax 
projections prepared by Arizona Department of Transportation forecast the revenues to 
grow by an average of 5.7% per year for the next five years. 

Major Initiatives 

On November 2, 2004, the voters of Maricopa County approved Proposition 400, the 
continuation of the transportation tax, for a 20-year period, beginning in calendar year 
2006. The approximate total vote in favor was 57.5 percent. This was a major milestone 
in transportation funding and service in the region. The Proposition had unanimous 
support from the Mayors of all of the cities in the region and the Maricopa County Board of 
Supervisors, the Maricopa Association of Governments Regional Council, the Authority’s 
Board of Directors and the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT). It also had 
the support of nearly every major business and community agency in the region. With 
the passage of Proposition 400, a new era began for the Authority. For the 20 year period 
2006 thru 2025, a significant stream of regional funds has vitalized public transportation 
in the region. Valley Metro’s mission is to continue to put those funds to work to 
effectively and efficiently serve our member agencies and their residents.  

To implement the projects approved with the passage of Proposition 400, staff worked with 
member agencies and other stakeholders to develop the Transit Life Cycle Program 
(TLCP). This project included the development of three major program elements: 
guiding principles, financial model and policies and procedures. The TLCP is updated 
annually, with a thorough review by the member cities and the Board of Directors. The 
TLCP ensures that projects can be delivered with the revenues that are forecasted to 
be available through 2025. 

During the year, various major accomplishments were realized.  Some of these were: 

•

•

Since late March 2020 the Authority has provided extraordinary effort to kee p 
customers safe and continue to provide transit services during the COVID 1 9 
pandemic.  The Authority enhanced cleaning and introduced additional safet y 
measures.  Buses were cleaned by fogging, which is an anti-viral/anti-bacterial 
vapor misting system that disinfects large spaces by leaving a longer, residu al 
clean, three times per week.  On days fogging is not used to clean buses, high-
touch areas are cleaned with an anti-viral solution.  Paratransit vehicles are bein g 
cleaned with a broad-spectrum disinfectant nightly. Drivers are also wiping dow n 
high touch areas with disinfectant throughout the day.

Beginning on March 30, 2020, the Authority began providing additional servic es 
to help during the COVID 19 pandemic. To help limit interaction betwee n 
Paratransit drivers and passengers, Valley Metro provided a delivery service f or 
meals, pharmacy, and groceries when possible to Paratransit certified customers.
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• Starting in March of 2020, to protect both customers and drivers, bus riders have
been asked to board from the rear door to enhance the distance between
operators and passengers.  In addition, seats near the bus operator are blocked
off and a safety barrier was added between the driver and passengers.

• Valley Metro is committed to operating an environmentally responsible public
transit system and is involved in a variety of initiatives to help enhance air quality
and protect the local environment.  In June 2020, Valley Metro completed the
installation of 3,500 new solar panels at the Mesa maintenance facility.  With the
completion of the installation, all Valley Metro maintenance facilities now rely on
solar power.  The new panels are expected to produce 2.1 million kilowatt-hours
per year, equivalent to the power used by 171 homes in a single year. They are
anticipated to save $35,000 a year in energy costs and more than $2 million
throughout the term of the solar purchase agreement.  The canopies provide a
total of 76,000 square feet of shade coverage for buses across four separate
structures.  With temperatures in the shade as much as 40 degrees lower than in
direct sun, buses will not have to spend time idling to cool down before service.
Savings are estimated at $67,000 per year in fuel costs due to the new shade
structures.  Another example of the commitment is 95 percent of the bus fleet runs
on alternative fuels and seats on Express Buses are made from recycled plastics
and bottle caps.

•

•

•

Vanpooling is a cost-saving commute alternative for qualifying groups of 6-15 
commuters.  Valley Metro provides the vans that are driven by one of the vanpool 
members.  Passengers share the cost of gas, insurance, and vehicle maintenance 
costs.  Valley Metro’s vanpool program, includes approximately 400 vans.  In 
2019, the program saved approximately $4 million in fuel costs and 420,450 
pounds of pollution.

Local commuters recognized for being champions of clean air – In October 2019 
Valley Metro celebrated those who travel with the environment in mind. From 
bicycling and carpooling, to traveling on light rail and bus, the 32nd Annual Clean 
Air Campaign Awards recognized Valley commuters who are committed to 
promoting and using alternative modes of transportation.

The Authority continues to work together with member cities to provide transit 
options.  On September 23, 2019, the Peoria Park and Ride at Old Town was 
opened for service.  The Park and Ride was built in partnership with city of Peoria 
to meet short-term and mid-term transportation needs and provide an opportunity 
for future expansion, including support of potential express service and commuter 
rail.  The park-and-ride is the second in the state to feature pervious concrete, a 
more porous concrete alternative that helps recharge the local groundwater and 
reduces the heat island effect.
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Declining Ridership 

Ridership in public transportation had been slowly declining over the last four years 
(-4.8%).  The effect of COVID 19 pandemic dropped ridership dramatically in fiscal year 
2020 (18.4%).  Increases in population and employment will continue to drive increased 
demand for quality public transportation and improved air quality. 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the 
Authority for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019. This was the 19th consecutive year the Authority has achieved this prestigious 
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish 
an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This 
report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 
requirements. 
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A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our 
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of 
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its 
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The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient 
and dedicated services of the Authority's finance staff. As always, we are appreciative 
of the support provided by the Board of Directors. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Scott Smith Paul Hodgins 
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 
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Financial Section
The Financial Section includes the independent auditors' report, Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A), the basic financial statements (government-wide statements and fund statements), notes to the 
financial statements, required supplementary information (RSI), other supplementary information (OSI) 
and other financial schedules.



On June 23, 2020 Valley Metro officially celebrated the activation of 3,500 new solar panels at the 
Mesa Bus and Operations Center. The panels are expected to produce 2.1 million kilowatt-hours per 
year, equivalent to the power used by 171 homes in a single year. They are anticipated to save 
$35,000 a year in energy costs and more than $2 million throughout the term of the solar purchase 
agreement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority
Phoenix, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Valley Metro Regional 
Public Transportation Authority (Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions.



Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority

(2)

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority
as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information – Schedule of 
the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension/OPEB Liability and Contributions and the 
General Fund budgetary comparison schedule, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary 
information which include the Introductory Section, Other Supplementary Information – Combining and 
Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules, and Statistical Section are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Other Supplementary Information – Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and 
Schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements 
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Other
Supplementary Information – Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The introductory Section and Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
January 27, 2021, on our consideration of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority‘s 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Valley Metro 
Regional Public Transportation Authority‘s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority‘s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
January 27, 2021



As management of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority (the Authority), we offer this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2020. This discussion and analysis is designed to (1) assist the reader in focusing on significant 
financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the Authority’s financial activity, (3) identify changes in the 
Authority’s financial position, (4) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (adopted annual 
budget) and (5) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

• On the Government-Wide Financial Statements, the Authority’s total assets plus deferred outflows 
of resources exceeded its total liabilities plus deferred inflows at the close of the fiscal year by
$44.8 million (net position).

• On the Government-Wide Financial Statements, the Authority's total net position decreased by
$8.4 million or 15.7% as compared to June 30, 2019. Net position decreased as net position was 
used to fund current year expenses and lead agency disbursements to VMR for capital rail 
projects.

• At the close of the fiscal year, the governmental activities revenues increased by approximately
$8.1 million (4.6%) over the previous year primarily due to increased sales tax revenue.

• The business-type activities revenues increased by approximately $20.1 million (20.1%) from the
previous year primarily due to increased support of operations funded by the federal CARES act
funding and additional federal funding received for bus replacements.  However, operating
revenues were down as fare revenues decreased by $3.1 million due to a decrease in ridership
between March and June 2020 due to COVID 19.

• At June 30, 2020, the Authority’s governmental fund balance sheet reported a combined ending
fund balance of $30.2 million, a decrease of $9.6 million (24.1%) compared to the previous fiscal
year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements are presented as follows:

• Government-wide reporting – presents financial statements on a government-wide basis.

• Fund financial statements – presents governmental and proprietary fund financial statements, with 
the focus on major funds within each fund type.

• Measurement focus for governmental activities – the government-wide financial statements are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. The 
current financial resources focus and modified accrual basis of accounting are followed for the 
governmental fund financial statements.

• Measurement focus for business type activities – the business type financial statements are 
reported using a flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of 
accounting.

• Budgetary reporting – the display of both the original adopted budget and the revised budget in 
the budgetary comparison schedules is required by GAAP. These schedules are only required for 
the General Fund and major special revenue funds; the General Fund budget to actual statement 
is presented as required supplementary information. The Authority has presented this information 
for nonmajor governmental funds and the proprietary funds in Other Supplementary Information.

• Required narrative analysis – the financial statements are required to be accompanied by 
narrative introduction and analytical overview of the government’s financial activities in the form of 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” (MD&A).

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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As presented below, the financial section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
Authority consists of this discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements and required 
supplementary information (other than MD&A). There are also additional non-required 
supplementary schedules presented after the basic financial statements. The basic financial statements 
include the government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial 
statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (see pages 15 - 17) are designed to provide a broad 
overview of the Authority’s finances in a manner similar to those used by private businesses. All of the 
activities of the Authority, except those of a fiduciary nature, are included in these statements.

The activities of the Authority are broken down into two columns on these statements – governmental 
activities and business-type activities. A total column for the Authority is also provided.

• The governmental activities include the basic services of the Authority including general
government (administration), regional planning, transportation demand management and regional
customer services. Grants and general revenues generally support these activities.

• The business-type activities include the private sector type activities which are transit service
operations and light rail transit. These activities are partially supported by user charges and
provide substantial benefits, both direct and indirect, to the public at large.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority’s assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position. The 
focus on net position is designed to be similar to the emphasis for businesses. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority 
is improving or deteriorating. To assess the overall health of the Authority, other indicators, including non-
financial indicators like the Authority’s tax base and the condition of its capital assets, should also be 
considered.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Authority’s net position changed over 
the most recent fiscal year. Since full accrual accounting is used for the government-wide financial 
statements, all changes to net position are reported at the time that the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. This statement also focuses on both 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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the gross and net costs of the various functions of the Authority, based only on direct functional revenues 
and expenses. This is designed to show the extent to which the various functions depend on general 
taxes and revenues for support.

Fund Financial Statements

Also presented are more traditional fund financial statements for governmental funds and proprietary 
funds. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or conditions. Funds are used to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements as well as for managerial control to demonstrate 
fiduciary responsibility over the assets of the Authority.

Governmental funds – Governmental funds are used to account for most of the Authority’s basic 
services. Unlike the governmental activities column on the government-wide financial statement, these 
fund financial statements (pages 18 - 20) focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such information is useful in looking at the Authority’s near-term financial requirements. The 
governmental activities on the statements focus on near-term spendable resources, while the 
governmental activities on the government- wide financial statements have a longer term focus. 
A reconciliation of the differences between the two statements is provided following the fund 
financial statements and is also provided in Note 2 (pages 32 - 34).

Proprietary funds – Proprietary funds are used to account for business-type activities of the Authority. 
Enterprise funds are used for activities that primarily serve customers outside the governmental unit. The 
proprietary fund financial statements (pages 21 - 23) are prepared using the same long-term focus as the 
government-wide financial statements. The enterprise funds generally provide information similar to the 
business-type activities column of the government-wide financial statements, but provide more detail and 
additional information (i.e., cash flows).

Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes to the financial statements (pages 24 – 55) provide 
additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide 
and fund financial statements and should be read with the financial statements.

Required supplementary information other than MD&A – Governments have an option of including 
the budgetary comparison statements of the general fund and major special revenue funds as either part 
of the fund financial statements within the basic financial statements or as required supplementary 
information after the footnotes. The Authority has chosen to present these budgetary statements as 
required supplementary information other than the MD&A.

The Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension/OPEB liability/asset and contributions to the cost-
sharing pension/OPEB plan are presented as required supplementary information other than MD&A.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following tables and analysis discuss the financial position and changes to the financial position for 
the Authority as a whole as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, with comparative information for the 
previous year.

Net Position

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The following 
table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2020 compared to the prior year:

Condensed Statement of Net Position
As of June 30

(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government

Percent
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 Change

Current and other assets $ 15,859 $ 29,826 $ 117,190 $ 121,515 $ 133,049 $ 151,341  (12.1) %
Noncurrent assets

Investments 17,180 13,332 — — 17,180 13,332  28.9 %
Due from other governments — — 12,493 — 12,493 —  100.0 %
Due from Rail - PTF advance bond proceeds — — 14,749 25,044 14,749 25,044  (41.1) %
Net pension and other postemployment 
benefits asset 19 25 43 50 62 75  (17.3) %
Capital assets 1,778 1,166 103,790 86,243 105,568 87,409  20.8 %

Total assets 34,836 44,349 248,265 232,852 283,101 277,201  2.1 %

Deferred outflows related to pensions and other 
postemployment benefits 2,012 2,074 4,528 4,306 6,540 6,380  2.5 %
Deferred charge on debt refunding — — 1,247 1,558 1,247 1,558  (20.0) %

Total deferred outflows of resources 2,012 2,074 5,775 5,864 7,787 7,938  (1.9) %

Other liabilities 5,513 5,827 92,340 55,976 97,853 61,803  58.3 %
Long-term liabilities 12,204 13,726 133,496 152,293 145,700 166,019  (12.2) %

Total liabilities 17,717 19,553 225,836 208,269 243,553 227,822  6.9 %

Deferred inflows related to pensions and other 
postemployment benefits 688 1,265 1,518 2,513 2,206 3,778  (41.6) %
Deferred inflows for debt refunding — — 282 338 282 338  (16.6) %

Total deferred inflows of resources 688 1,265 1,800 2,851 2,488 4,116  (39.6) %

Net position:
Net Investment in capital 
assets, 1,778 1,166 77,550 58,587 79,328 59,753  32.8 %
Restricted 149 47 20,436 19,704 20,585 19,751  4.2 %
Unrestricted 16,516 24,392 (71,582) (50,695) (55,066) (26,303)  109.4 %

Total net position $ 18,443 $ 25,605 $ 26,404 $ 27,596 $ 44,847 $ 53,201  -15.7 %

The Authority’s total net position decreased by $8.4 million in FY 2020, comprised of a decrease of $7.2 
million in governmental activities and a decrease of $1.2 million in business-type activities. Total net        
o position of the Authority is $44.8 million.

Of the $44.8 million total net position, $79.3 million are the Authority’s net investment in capital assets. 
The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services to the region’s citizens; consequently, it is not 
the Authority’s intention to sell these assets, and they are therefore not available for future spending. The 
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capital assets are reported net of related debt; as discussed in the Capital Assets and Debt 
Administration section (pages 12 - 13). The Authority has pledged future transportation excise 
tax revenues to repay the outstanding debt obligations. The capital assets themselves are not intended to 
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

In fiscal year 2020 Business-type restricted assets include $20.4 million for cash in escrow for debt 
service. The governmental activities reported a decrease of $7.9 million of unrestricted net position over 
the prior year largely attributed to the transfer of prior year sales tax collections to the Transit 
Service Operations and Valley Metro funds.  The significant  decrease of $20.9 million of unrestricted net 
position over the prior year in business-type activities is primarily due to Lead Agency Disbursements 
to Valley Metro Rail for future rail capital projects of $89.2 million.

Changes in Net Position

The following table compares the revenues and expenses of the Authority for the current and previous 
fiscal year. The increase (decrease) in net position for each year represents the extent to which 
revenues were over (under) expenses during the year.

Changes in Net Position 
Fiscal year ended June 30 
(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental
Activities

Business-type 
Activities

Total 
Primary Government

Percent
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 Change

REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 199 $ 199 $ 73,995 $ 75,245 $ 74,194 $ 75,444  -1.7 %
Operating grants and contributions 13,045 12,967 13,095 8,698 26,140 21,665  20.6 %
Capital grants and contributions — — 32,484 14,778 32,484 14,778  119.8 %

General revenues:
Sales taxes 168,626 160,461 — — 168,626 160,461  5.1 %
Interest earnings 1,032 1,426 239 656 1,271 2,082  -38.9 %
Other 296 65 334 693 630 758  -16.8 %

Total revenues 183,198 175,118 120,147 100,070 303,345 275,188  10.2 %

EXPENSES
Governmental activities:
Regional planning 1,990 2,775 — — 1,990 2,775  -28.3 %
Transportation demand 
management 1,135 956 — — 1,135 956  18.7 %
Regional customer services 10,938 10,665 — — 10,938 10,665  2.6 %
Administration 5,217 4,862 — — 5,217 4,862  7.3 %
AZ Lottery fund disbursements 10,227 16,299 — — 10,227 16,299  -37.3 %

Business-type activities:
Transit service operations — — 166,362 160,084 166,362 160,084  3.9 %
Light rail transit — — 115,830 69,453 115,830 69,453  66.8 %

Total expenses 29,507 35,557 282,192 229,537 311,699 265,094  17.6 %

Excess (deficit) before transfers 153,691 139,561 (162,045) (129,467) (8,354) 10,094  (182.8) %
Transfers in (out) (160,853) (152,930) 160,853 152,930 — — N/A

Increase (decrease) in net position (7,162) (13,369) (1,192) 23,463 (8,354) 10,094  (182.8) %
Net position - beginning 25,605 38,974 27,596 4,133 53,201 43,107  23.4 %
Net position - ending $ 18,443 $ 25,605 $ 26,404 $ 27,596 $ 44,847 $ 53,201  (15.7) %

The largest source of revenue for the Authority are sales taxes (55.6%). The major funding sources of 
governmental activities are sales taxes (92.0%) and federal and state grants (7.1%). The major funding 
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sources for business-type activities in FY 2020 are charges for services to member cities (61.6%) and 
capital grants and contributions (27.0%). The Authority’s overall revenues increased by $28.2 million, or 
10.2%, compared to last fiscal year. Total revenues of governmental activities increased by $8.1 million 
(4.6%) over the previous year primarily due to increased sales tax revenues, up $8.2 million. Program 
revenues of business-type activities increased by $20.9 million or 21.1%, compared to last fiscal year.   
Operating grants and contributions increased by $4.4 million or 50.6% over the previous year due to 
CARES act federal funding received as funding for operations during the COVID 19 pandemic. Capital 
grants and contributions increased substantially by $17.7 million or 119.8% due to increases in federally 
funded bus fleet vehicle purchases.  

Spending of the Authority’s sales tax revenues is limited to funding those activities necessary to 
implement the Proposition 400 Transit Life Cycle Program (TLCP). The Public Transportation Fund (PTF) 
revenues are restricted to the implementation of the transit element of the Regional Transportation Plan 
(RTP). Regional Area Road Fund (RARF) revenue is limited to fund planning and administration activities 
of the RTP.

Business-type activities are the largest users of resources for the Authority with $282.2 million of 
expenses (90.5%) which include Transit Service operations and Light Rail Transit lead agency 
disbursements. Governmental activities expended $29.5 million, with the largest being Regional 
Customer Services of $10.9 million and AZ Lottery Fund Disbursements of $10.2. Administration, 
Regional Planning, and Transportation Demand Management activities totaled $8.3 million for the year.

Total Primary Government expenses increased by $46.6 million, or 17.6% compared to last fiscal year. 
The governmental expenses decreased by $6.1 million, or 17.0%, over the prior year.  This change was 
primarily due to a decrease in Lottery Funds disbursements. In the prior year, $6.0 million in expenses 
were recorded to recognize the liability for the working capital advance from Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality(ADEQ), however, in the current year there was no expense recorded for the ADEQ 
advance working capital recorded in the statement of activities.

Business-type activity expenses increased by $52.7 million, or 22.9%, compared to the prior year. The 
increase in business- type activity expenses included an increase of $6.3 million for Transit Service 
Operations (TSO) and $46.4 million for Light Rail Transit (VMR).

For TSO, operating expenses increased by $0.6 million. Bus service delivery costs increased by $1.4 
million, paratransit service costs decreased by $0.6 million, depreciation expense decreased by $0.3 
million, and paratransit costs increased by $0.1 million. 

TSO non-operating expenses increased by $5.7 million.  Lead Agency disbursements increased by $3.8 
million due to increased levels of regional bus fleet purchases for member cities.  Capital conveyances of 
bus fleet to Member Cities were $6.8 million in FY20 compared to capital conveyances of $4.3 million in 
FY19. 

For VMR, non-operating expense activities increased by $42.1 million primarily due to changes in Lead 
Agency Disbursements, that increased by $42.2 million as a result of an increase in the construction 
costs by Valley Metro Rail that are funded by lead agency disbursements by the VMR fund. Those 
construction projects included the Operations and Maintenance center expansion and Tempe Street car 
capital projects, scheduled preventive maintenance costs to maintain the light rail system in a state of 
good repair, and payments for new light rail vehicles.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY’S FUNDS

As previously mentioned, the Authority maintains fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with 
budgetary and legal requirements. The following is a brief discussion of financial highlights from the fund 
financial statements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the governmental funds financial statements (pages 18 – 20) is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. The fund balance of the governmental 
funds is $30.2 million, a decrease of $9.6 million, or 24.1%, from the previous year. Of the $30.2 million 
fund balance, $130.0 thousand is restricted for transit planning and transportation demand management 
purposes. The remainder is either nonspendable or unassigned fund balance in the General Fund (see 
Note 7 - page 42). Unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s net 
resources available for spending at the end of the year. Of the $30.2 million fund balance, $30.0 million is 
unassigned.

The General Fund accounts for activities that include regional customer service, financial management 
and agency administration. General Fund revenues increased $8.0 million (4.6%) over the previous year. 
Public Transportation Fund (PTF) sales tax revenue increased by $8.1 million (5.2%) in FY20 to $163.5 
million. Regional Area Road Funds (RARF) sales tax revenues increased slightly by $0.1 million (2.3%) in 
FY20 to $5.1 million. General Fund expenditures were up slightly in FY20 at $28.8 million.  The primary 
cause of the increase in expenditures was a $2.0 million payment of AZ Lottery Funds for the 
agreement with Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) a portion of the monies 
transferred by the Arizona State Legislature to RPTA, in 1994.   In the prior year, there were no 
payments to ADEQ. (See Note 13a on page 49 for additional information).  Excess General Fund 
revenues over expenditures were $152.9 million for the year versus $147.7 million in the prior year, up 
$5.2 million or 3.5%, of which most is attributable to the increase in PTF sales tax revenues.

Proprietary Funds

The proprietary fund financial statements (pages 21 – 23) are prepared on the same accounting basis 
and measurement focus as the government-wide financial statements, full accrual but provide additional 
detail since each enterprise fund is a major fund and is shown discretely on the fund statements.

The Transit Service Operations (TSO) Fund accounts for the activities related to the operations of local 
and express bus, paratransit and vanpool services for the region. In addition, the TSO Fund contains PTF 
bond financing activities to support the Transit Life Cycle Program (TLCP). The main activities are bus 
and paratransit capital financing activities shown in the TSO Fund.

The TSO Fund net position increased by $20.9 million in the current year versus $3.9 million in the 
prior year. FY20 activities increased net position mainly due to increased capital contributions of 
$17.7 million and increased transfers from the general fund of $4.7 million compared to the prior 
year.  The increase in capital contributions and transfers in were from federal revenues and sales tax 
used as a local match to fund bus purchases during the year.

• TSO operating revenues of $51.3 million decreased by $3.2 million mainly due to decreases in
fare revenues.  Fare revenues decreased from $11.8 million to $8.7 million or $3.1 million due to a
decrease in ridership between March and June 2020 due to reduced ridership and rear door
boarding, which reduced fare collections, for driver and passenger safety during the COVID 19
pandemic.

• TSO operating expenses of $135.0 million increased by $0.6 million (0.4%). Increases in local and
express bus service costs of $1.4 million were the result of increased services for fixed route bus
service until costs decreased starting in March 2020 due to reduced service during the COVID 19
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pandemic.  Paratransit service costs decreased by $0.6 million or 2.8% primarily due to 
decreased passenger trips between March and June 2020 due to the COVID 19 pandemic. 

• Non-Operating revenues of $13.1 million increased by $4.1 million.  This increase was due to an 
increase in federal grant revenues of $4.4 million as a result of the receipt of $5.7 million in 
CARES act funding in FY20 used to supplement funding for operations during the outbreak of 
COVID-19.

• Non-operating expenses of $31.3 million increased by $6.0 million. Lead Agency disbursements 
increased by $3.8 million due increased levels of regional bus fleet purchases by member cities. 
Capital conveyances of bus fleet to Member Cities were $6.8 million compared to capital 
conveyances of $4.3 million in FY19.

• Capital Contributions of $32.5 million were up $17.7 million primarily due to federal funding to 
support bus fleet and vanpool purchases during the year.

• Net Transfers into the TSO from the General Fund of $90.4 million increased by $4.7 million due 
to expenses for bus fleet purchases for which the Authority provides local funding match to federal 
grant funds with transfers of sales tax revenues.

The Valley Metro Rail Fund accounts for staffing and administrative services that are contractually 
provided by the Authority to Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR) and the PTF sales tax revenues and expenses 
of such funds related to the Regional Transportation Plan approved light rail projects. Valley Metro Rail, 
Inc. is a nonprofit corporation organized for the purpose of planning, designing, constructing, and 
operating the light rail transit project in metropolitan Phoenix (see Note 1(a) on page 24).

The VMR Fund has a deficit net position of $(61.9) million as of June 30, 2020 as compared to a deficit 
net position of $(39.7) million at the end of the previous year. The GASB 68 and GASB 75 requirement to 
record pension/OPEB liability continues to reduce net position. At June 30, 2020 the net pension/OPEB 
liability is $20.2 million for VMR. 

• The VMR Fund operating activities are primarily staffing services by RPTA employees performing 
work for Valley Metro Rail, Inc. In FY20 operating revenues were $23.0 million and operating 
expenses were $25.2 million. Total operating revenues increased by $2.1 million and operating 
expenses increased by approximately $4.3 million due to an increase of charges for services for 
light rail capital project development, design and construction.  Net operating loss in FY20 was
$2.2 million.

• Non-Operating expenses include Lead Agency Disbursements to Valley Metro Rail, Inc. to fund 
light rail capital project development and design and construction. In FY20 Lead agency 
disbursements were $89.2 million compared to $47.0 million in FY19. This is primarily due to an 
increase in VMR construction costs associated with the Operations and maintenance center 
expansion and Tempe Street car capital projects, the scheduled preventive maintenance costs to 
maintain the light rail system in a state of good repair, and payments for additional light rail 
vehicles.  Bond Interest expense related to light rail bond funded activities was $1.4 million in 
FY20. Total non-operating expense for the VMR Fund in FY20 was $90.6 million.

• Net transfers into the VMR Fund of PTF from the General Fund totaled $70.5 million for the year.
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OVERALL AND GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The Authority's adopted budget for the General Fund for FY2020 was $180.7 million in revenues, $31.1 
million of expenditures, and $167.1 million of transfers to other funds.  The adopted budget was revised 
increasing the transfers to transit service operations by $4.8 million.

The General Fund actual revenues were greater than the adopted budget by $1.0 million or 0.1% due to 
receiving more interest earnings and miscellaneous revenues during the year than 
projected. Expenditures were lower than the revised budget by $2.3 million or 7.3%  as costs for regional 
customer service, finance and management services, and for the Executive Director's office were less 
than expected. Transfers out were about $9.3 million less than the revised budget or 5.4% due to 
overall expenditures for the Authority being less than projected.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2020, the Authority had $105.6 million invested in various capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, for its governmental and business-type activities. The overall net increase in 
the Authority’s capital assets for the current fiscal year was $18.2 million, an increase of $0.6 million for 
governmental activities and an increase of $17.5 million for business-type activities for the current year. 
Major capital asset events in the current year attributing to the increase included the following:

• New capital assets added for Governmental Activities were $1.1 million, offset by depreciation
charges of $0.5 million.  Additions included costs associated with a new HR system that was not
placed into operation at June 30, 2020.

• New capital assets added for Business Activities were $31.7 million, offset by depreciation
charges of $13.6 million. The  Authority purchased new replacement buses, vanpool vehicles,
and site improvements at the Mesa Bus facility.  In addition, work continued on the real time
vehicle locator system for the bus fleet that was not placed into operation at June 30, 2020.

• Capital asset retirements for Business Activities were $12.4 million for transit fleet and
equipment.  This included retirements of old buses and vanpool vehicles.

The table on the next page provides a breakdown of capital assets of the Authority at June 30, 2020 
with comparative information for the previous year. Additional information on the Authority’s 
capital assets may be found in Note 8 on pages 43 – 44.
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Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
As of June 30

(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental
Activities

Business-type 
Activities

Total 
Primary Government

Percent
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 Change

Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ — $ — $ 5,292 $ 5,292 $ 5,292 $ 5,292  0.0 %
Work-in-progress 966 — 5,511 3,369 6,477 3,369  92.3 %

Depreciable assets:
Transit fleet — — 78,243 61,788 78,243 61,788  26.6 %
Vehicles 47 73 3 18 50 91  (45.1) %
Building — — 9,898 10,189 9,898 10,189  (2.9) %
Site improvements 23 26 2,594 2,992 2,616 3,018  (13.3) %
Computers & software 277 468 — — 276 468 
Ticket Vending Machines — — 879 990 879 990 
Equipment 148 208 1,355 1,588 1,505 1,796 
Furniture & fixtures 317 391 — — 317 391 
Infrastructure — — 15 17 15 17 

Total assets $ 1,778 $ 1,166 $ 103,790 $ 86,243 $ 105,568 $ 87,409 

 41.0 %  
(11.2) %  
(16.2) %
 18.9 %  

(11.8) %    
20.8 %

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2020, the Authority had total bonded debt outstanding (including unamortized premium) of 
$128.4 million related to business-type activities. The Authority has pledged future transportation excise 
tax revenues to repay this outstanding debt. The Authority’s current bond ratings on transportation excise 
revenue tax bonds are AA+ from Standard & Poor’s and AA from Fitch.

Business-type
Activities

(in millions of dollars) 2020 2019
Revenue bonds payable:

2009 Bond Series $ — $ 7.0 
2014 Bond Series 70.5 80.2
2016 Bond Series 22.7 22.7

   2019 Bond Series 23.6 23.6
Plus unamortized premium:

2014 Bond Series premium payable 7.3 10.1
2016 Bond Series premium payable 1.3 2.2
2019 Bond Series premium payable 3.0 3.8

Total $ 128.4 $ 149.6 

In the prior year, the Authority issued Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Refunding bond issue Series 
2019 to refund the taxable portion of the 2009 Bond Series. The proceeds from the issuance were used 
to redeem the $26.8 million in refunded bonds on July 1, 2019.

Additional information on the Authority’s bonded debt and other long-term liabilities can be found in 
Note 11 on pages 45- 48.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

RPTA undertook a number of key initiatives during FY19 and FY20, as the agency continues the 
implementation of the TLCP operating and capital projects. Funding for these initiatives comes from a 
combination of regional sales tax revenues, member city service payments and federal grants.

The adopted FY21 combined operating and capital budget is $335.1 million, which is a 9.8% decrease 
from the prior year budget of $371.8 million.  The adopted fiscal year 2021 budget includes $196.5 million 
for operations, $53.9 million to be passed through to other governments and Valley Metro Rail, and $84.8 
million for capital improvements.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances and to 
demonstrate accountability for the use of public funds. Questions about any of the information provided in 
this report, or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Authority’s Chief 
Financial Officer, Valley Metro RPTA, 101 N. 1st Avenue, Suite 1300, Phoenix, AZ 85003.
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On Tuesday, October 20, 2020, Valley Metro presented the 33rd Annual Clean Air Campaign Virtual Awards 
Ceremony. The event was hosted by Valley Metro CEO Scott Smith with Master of Ceremonies Sean McLaughlin 
of CBS 5 News, keynote speaker Adam Lee Brooks. Winners received their awards through the mail. 
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Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

Assets
Current Assets

$ 3,464 $ 25,115 $ 28,579 
19,098 3,484 22,582 

— 20,393 20,393 
24 66 90 

(21,508) 21,508 —
14,678 36,329 51,007 

— 10,295 10,295 

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Restricted cash and investments 
Receivables
Interfund balances
Due from other governments
Due from Rail - PTF advance bond proceeds 
Prepaid Items 103 — 103 
Total current assets 15,859 117,190 133,049 

Noncurrent Assets
Investments 17,180 — 17,180 
Due from other governments — 12,493 12,493 
Due from Rail - PTF advance bond proceeds — 14,749 14,749 
Net pension and other postemployment benefits asset 19 43 62 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 966 10,803 11,769 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 812 92,987 93,799 
Total noncurrent assets 18,977 131,075 150,052 

Total assets 34,836 248,265 283,101 

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions and other postemployment benefits 2,012 4,528 6,540 
Deferred charge on debt refunding — 1,247 1,247 

Total deferred outflows of resources 2,012 5,775 7,787 

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 997 19,120 20,117 
Accrued salaries and benefits 1,061 208 1,269 
Due to other governments 52 51,212 51,264 
Working capital advance from ADEQ 2,000 — 2,000 
Revenue bonds payable — 17,385 17,385 
Bond interest payable — 3,007 3,007 
Compensated absences payable 707 1,408 2,115 
Other liabilities 696 — 696
Total current liabilities 5,513 92,340 97,853 

Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension and other postemployment benefits liability 10,094 22,280 32,374 
Compensated absences payable 110 278 388 
Working capital advance from ADEQ 2,000 — 2,000 
Revenue bonds payable, including unamortized premium — 110,938 110,938 
Total noncurrent liabilities 12,204 133,496 145,700 

Total liabilities 17,717 225,836 243,553 

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions and other postemployment benefits 688 1,518 2,206 
Deferred inflows for debt refunding — 282 282

Total deferred inflows of resources 688 1,800 2,488 

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,778 77,550 79,328 
Restricted for OPEB benefits 19 43 62 
Restricted for debt service — 20,393 20,393 
Restricted for transit planning 107 — 107 
Restricted for transportation demand management 23 — 23 
Unrestricted 16,516 (71,582) (55,066) 

Total Net Position $ 18,443 $ 26,404 $ 44,847 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Program Revenues
Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants

Expenses Services and Contributions and Contributions
Programs
Governmental activities:

Regional planning:
Corridor and facility planning $ 200 $ — $ 47 $ — 

Systems and service development 1,314 — 284 — 

Program support 476 — 29 — 

Transportation demand management:
Trip reduction 497 — 498 — 

Ridesharing 603 — 609 — 

Other programs 35 — — — 

Regional customer services:
Marketing 2,082 — — — 

Call center 4,905 190 — — 

Other programs 3,951 9 105 — 

AZ Lottery funds 10,227 — 11,473 — 

Administration:
Executive director’s office 1,709 — — — 

Finance & management services 3,508 — — — 

Total governmental activities 29,507 199 13,045 — 

Business-type activities:
Transit service operations 166,362 50,995 13,095 32,484 

Light rail transit 115,830 23,000 — — 

Total business-type activities 282,192 73,995 13,095 32,484 

Total primary government $ 311,699 $ 74,194 $ 26,140 $ 32,484 

General revenues:
Sales taxes: 
Public transportation funds
Regional area road funds

Interest earnings
Other income
Transfers in (out) 
Total general revenues & transfers
Change in net position

Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

(Continued)

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Net (Expense) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business Type

Activities Activities Total

$ (153) $ (153) 

(1,030) (1,030) 

(447) (447) 

1 1 

6 6 

(35) (35) 

(2,082) (2,082) 

(4,715) (4,715) 

(3,837) (3,837) 

1,246 1,246 

(1,709) (1,709) 

(3,508) (3,508) 

(16,263) — (16,263) 

— $ (69,788) (69,788) 

— (92,830) (92,830) 

— (162,618) (162,618) 

$ (16,263) $ (162,618) $ (178,881) 

$ 163,534 $ — $ 163,534 

5,092 — 5,092 

1,032 239 1,271 

296 334 630 

(160,853) 160,853 — 

9,101 161,426 170,527 

(7,162) (1,192) (8,354) 

25,605 27,596 53,201 

$ 18,443 $ 26,404 $ 44,847 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Non-major Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,452 $ 12 $ 3,464 
Investments 36,278 — 36,278 
Receivables 13 11 24 
Due from other governments 14,182 496 14,678 
Due from other funds 159 — 159 
Prepaid Items 103 — 103 

Total assets $ 54,187 $ 519 $ 54,706 

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 775 222 997 
Accrued salaries and benefits 1,050 11 1,061 
Due to other funds 21,508 159 21,667 
Due to other governments 32 20 52 
Other liabilities 696 — 696 

Total liabilities 24,061 412 24,473 

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Prepaids 103 — 103 
Restricted — 130 130 
Unassigned 30,023 (23) 30,000

Total fund balances 30,126 107 30,233 
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 54,187 $ 519 $ 54,706 

Reconciliation of the balance sheet to the statement
of net position

Fund balances, total governmental
funds balance sheet $ 30,233 

Amounts reported for governmental
activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Governmental capital assets 7,036 
Less accumulated depreciation (5,258) 

Governmental compensated
  absences (817) 

Net pension/OPEB assets 19 

Net pension/OPEB liability (10,094) 

Deferred outflows of resources 
related to pensions/OPEB liabilities 2,012 

Deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions/OPEB liabilities (688) 

Working capital advance from ADEQ (4,000) 
Net position of governmental
activities, statement of net position $ 18,443 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020
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Non-major Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
Revenues:

Sales taxes:
Public transportation funds $ 163,534 $ — $ 163,534 
Regional area road funds 5,092 — 5,092 

Intergovernmental:
AZ Lottery fund proceeds 11,473 — 11,473 
State & county grants & federal pass through grants — 301 301 
Federal Transit Administration 104 59 163 
CMAQ — 1,108 1,108 

Charges for services 199 — 199 
Interest earnings 1,032 — 1,032 
Miscellaneous 268 28 296 
Total revenues 181,702 1,496 183,198 

Expenditures:
Current:
Regional planning:

Corridor and facility planning — 200 200 
Systems and service development — 1,314 1,314 
Program support & administration — 476 476 

Transportation demand management:
Trip reduction — 497 497 
Ridesharing — 603 603 
Other programs — 35 35 

Regional customer services:
Marketing 2,082 — 2,082 
Call center 4,905 — 4,905 
Other programs 3,951 — 3,951 

Administration:
Executive director’s office 1,709 — 1,709 
Finance & management services 3,102 — 3,102 

AZ lottery fund disbursements 12,227 — 12,227 
Capital outlay 842 — 842 

Total expenditures 28,818 3,125 31,943 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures 152,884 (1,629) 151,255 

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in — 1,714 1,714 
Transfers out (162,567) — (162,567) 
Total other financing sources (uses) (162,567) 1,714 (160,853) 

Net change in fund balances (9,683) 85 (9,598) 
Fund balance, beginning 39,809 22 39,831 
Fund balance, ending $ 30,126 $ 107 $ 30,233 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Net change in fund balances, total governmental funds $ (9,598) 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because:

1. Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of capitalized assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which depreciation expense was less than capital outlay expense, 
net of the residual value of capital assets at the time of disposal in the current period. 612 

(115) 

888 

(949) 

2. The governmental funds, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, do not report 
the unpaid compensated absences as an expenditure or liability, as they are not paid with 
expendable available financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, which is 
presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when 
financial resources are used.

3. Pension/OPEB contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds 
when made.  However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the 
Statement of Net Position because the reported net pension/OPEB liability is measured a 
year before the Authority's report date.

4. Pension/OPEB expense, which is the change in the net pension/OPEB liability adjusted 
for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB, is 
reported in the Statement of Activities.

5. AZ Lottery Funds expenses for the agreement with Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality to repay $6 million in monies transferred by the Arizona State Legislature to RPTA, 
in 1994, by July 2021, were reported in the statement of activities in FY19 but are 
reported in the governmental funds when the payment occurs.  In FY20 there was a 
$2 million payment. 2,000 

Change in net position of governmental activities, statement of activities $ (7,162) 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Valley Metro 
Regional Public Transportation Authority
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Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Total

Transit Service Valley Metro Proprietary
Operations Rail Funds

Assets

Current assets:
$ — $ 25,115 $ 25,115 

— 3,484 3,484 
3,928 16,465 20,393 

66 — 66 
25,336 10,993 36,329 

— 10,295 10,295 

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Restricted cash and investments 
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Due from Rail - PTF advance bond proceeds 
Due from other funds 15,554 7,997 23,551 

Total current assets 44,884 74,349 119,233 

Noncurrent assets:
Due from other governments — 12,493 12,493 
Due from Rail - PTF advance bond proceeds — 14,749 14,749 
Net other postemployment benefits asset 4 39 43 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 10,803 — 10,803 
Capital assets, net of accumulated  depreciation 92,987 — 92,987 

Total noncurrent assets 103,794 27,281 131,075 

Total assets 148,678 101,630 250,308 

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions and other postemployment benefits 396 4,132 4,528 
Deferred charge on debt refunding 594 653 1,247 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 990 4,785 5,775 

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 19,120 — 19,120 
Accrued salaries and benefits 16 192 208 
Due to other funds 2,043 — 2,043 
Due to other governments 13,051 38,161 51,212 
Bond payable - current 3,376 14,009 17,385 
Bond interest payable 551 2,456 3,007 
Compensated absences payable 156 1,252 1,408 

Total current liabilities 38,313 56,070 94,383 

Noncurrent liabilities:
 Net pension and other postemployment benefits liability 2,090 20,190 22,280 
Compensated absences payable 31 247 278 
Revenue bonds payable, including unamortized premium 20,701 90,237 110,938 

Total noncurrent liabilities 22,822 110,674 133,496 

Total liabilities 61,135 166,744 227,879 

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions and other postemployment benefits 142 1,376 1,518 
Deferred inflows on debt refunding 134 148 282 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 276 1,524 1,800 

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 77,550 — 77,550 
Restricted for OPEB benefits 4 39 43 
Restricted for debt service 3,928 16,465 20,393 
Unrestricted 6,775 (78,357) (71,582) 

Total net position $ 88,257 $ (61,853) $ 26,404 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Valley Metro
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Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Total

Transit Service Proprietary
Operations Valley Metro Rail Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 42,249 $ 23,000 $ 65,249 
Fare Revenues 8,746 — 8,746 
Miscellaneous 334 — 334 
Total operating revenues 51,329 23,000 74,329 

Operating Expenses:
Local & express bus service 98,444 — 98,444 
Light rail staff and administration — 25,237 25,237 
Paratransit service 21,831 — 21,831 
Vanpool service 893 — 893 
Safety and security 219 — 219 
Depreciation 13,630 — 13,630 
Total operating expenses 135,017 25,237 160,254 

Operating income (loss) (83,688) (2,237) (85,925) 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Lead agency disbursements (23,862) (89,190) (113,052) 
Federal Grants 13,095 — 13,095 
Interest income 27 212 239 
Loss on disposal of capital assets (306) — (306) 
Capital conveyance (6,759) — (6,759) 
Interest expense (418) (1,403) (1,821) 
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (18,223) (90,381) (108,604) 
Income (loss) before contributions
  and transfers (101,911) (92,618) (194,529) 

Capital contributions 32,484 — 32,484 
Transfers in 90,363 70,490 160,853 

Changes in net position 20,936 (22,128) (1,192) 

Net position, beginning 67,321 (39,725) 27,596 

Net position, ending $ 88,257 $ (61,853) $ 26,404 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Transit Valley Total
Service Metro Proprietary

Operations Rail Funds
Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers $ 46,993 $ 23,000 $ 69,993 
Payments to suppliers (121,325) (398) (121,723)
Payments to employees (1,961) (21,372) (23,333) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (76,293) 1,230 (75,063) 

Cash flows from noncapital and related   financing activities
Transfers in - sales taxes 89,545 70,490 160,035 
Receipts from federal operating grants 13,095 — 13,095 
Lead agency disbursements (15,199) (500) (15,699)
Transfers in - AZ Lottery fund proceeds 818 — 818 
Due from other funds (750) (2,179) (2,929) 
Due to other funds 2,043 — 2,043 

89,552 67,811 157,363   Net cash provided by noncapital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchases of capital assets (28,395) — (28,395) 
Conveyance of capital assets (6,759) — (6,759) 
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 583 — 583 
Principal paid on long-term debt (3,345) (13,460) (16,805) 
Interest paid on capital debt (915) (5,875) 
Lead agency disbursements (8,663) 

(4,960)
(53,093) (61,756) 

Capital contributions 33,852 — 33,852 
Advance bond proceeds received — 9,780 9,780 
Interest subsidy — — — 

(13,642) (61,733) (75,375) Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities
27 212 239 
27 212 239 

7,164 (356) 7,522 
4,284  37,544 41,828 

Interest received on investments
   Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$ 3,928 $ 45,064 $ 48,992 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ — $ 25,115 $ 25,115 
Investments — 3,484 3,484 
Restricted Cash 3,928 16,465 20,393

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,928 $ 45,064 $ 48,992 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ (83,688) $ (2,237) $ (85,925) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

  cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 13,630 — 13,630 
(Increase) decrease in assets/deferred outflows:

Accounts receivable 754 — 754 
Due from other governments (10,052) 1,054 (8,998) 
Net other postemployment benefits asset 1 6 7 
Deferred outflows related to pensions and other postemployment benefits 11 (233) (222) 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities/deferred inflows:
(2,088) — (2,088) 

16 151 167 
4,962 23 4,985 

(33) 297 264 
291 3,066 3,357 

Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other governments
Compensated absences payable
Net Pension and other postemployment benefits liability
Deferred inflows related to pensions and other postemployment benefits (97) (899) (996) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (76,293) $ 1,230 $ (75,063) 

Noncash Transactions affecting Financial Position
Amortization of deferred amount on refunding $ (121) $ (134) $ (256) 
Amortization of premium 815 3,651 4,466 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(In thousands of dollars)

23



Notes to the Financial Statements



Arcadia High School student, Kate Flores, was the winner of Valley Metro’s 20th Annual Design a Transit 
Wrap contest in 2020. Her artwork, titled Oh the places you’ll go with Valley Metro, was featured on a 
bus and light rail train. Flores’ design was chosen out of more than 100 entries submitted by high school 
students across Maricopa County.



1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Regional Public Transportation Authority (the Authority) conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The following summary of the more significant accounting policies of the Authority is presented to
assist the reader in interpreting these financial statements, and should be viewed as an integral part
of this financial report.

a. Financial Reporting Entity

The Authority was established under the laws of the State of Arizona in 1985 along with the
passage of a one-half of one percent sales tax increase to fund regional highway and public
transportation improvements. The Authority was charged with developing a regional transit
plan and developing and operating a regional transit system for Maricopa County (the
County). In 1993, the Authority’s Board of Directors adopted Valley Metro as the identity for the
regional transit system. Valley Metro was chosen to give the region’s buses a more
recognizable identity and to help unify public transit systems in the County.

The Authority is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of a member of the County Board
of Supervisors and the mayors (or their designees) of the member cities and towns. For fiscal
year 2020, the members included the cities of Avondale, Buckeye, Chandler, El Mirage,
Glendale, Goodyear, Mesa, Peoria, Phoenix, Scottsdale, Surprise, Tempe and Tolleson, the
towns of Fountain Hills, Gilbert, Queen Creek, Wickenburg, and Youngtown and Maricopa
County. A municipality may have one elected official serve on the Authority’s Board of
Directors by adopting an ordinance declaring its participation.

In October 2002, the city councils of Glendale, Mesa, Phoenix and Tempe approved the
formation of a public nonprofit corporation by the name of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR). The
nonprofit corporation was organized for the purpose of planning, designing, constructing and
operating the Light Rail Transit Project. In February of 2012, the Board of Directors for the
Authority and VMR took action to appoint a single CEO to manage both financial entities
under a single integrated agency. The Authority and VMR entered into an intergovernmental
agreement providing for the single CEO to serve both organizations effective March 1, 2012.

VMR contracts with the Authority for certain administrative functions, including personnel,
administration and financial and accounting services. This activity is recorded in the
Authority’s Valley Metro Rail Enterprise Fund. The Board of VMR is solely responsible for the
governance of VMR, and the Authority’s Board of Directors has no responsibility for VMR.
VMR is not a component unit of the Authority because the economic resources received by
VMR are entirely for the direct benefit of VMR, and the Authority is not entitled to and has no
ability to otherwise access any of the economic resources received or held by VMR. However,
VMR is a related party of the Authority since the cities who are members of VMR’s Board of
Directors are also members of the Authority’s Board of Directors.

b.Basic Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and Statement of
Activities) report on the Authority as a whole. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The
government-wide financial statements focus more on the sustainability of the Authority as an
entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal
period.

Valley Metro
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Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide 
financial statements. Net interfund activity and balances between governmental activities and 
business-type activities are shown in the government-wide financial statements. Interfund 
services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. 

The government-wide Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources of 
the government. It is displayed in a format of assets and deferred outflows of resources less 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources equal net position, with the assets and liabilities 
shown in order of their relative liquidity. Net position is required to be displayed in three 
components: 1) net investment in capital assets 2) restricted and 3) unrestricted. Net 
investment in capital assets is capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable 
to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Restricted net position is 
those with constraints placed on their use by either: 1) externally imposed by creditors (such 
as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other 
governments, or 2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. All 
net position that is not otherwise classified as restricted is shown as unrestricted. Generally, 
the Authority would first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes 
for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. 

Internally imposed use of net position by the reporting government, whether by administrative 
policy or legislative action of the reporting government, are not shown on the government-wide 
financial statements. Note 7 discusses the internally imposed use of fund balance/net position 
in the various funds to demonstrate the government’s intended use.

The government-wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct 
expenses of the various functions and segments of the Authority are offset by program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or users who purchase, use or 
directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a particular function or segment 
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes, investment income and the other 
revenues not identifiable with particular functions or segments are included as general 
revenues. The general revenues support the net costs of the functions and segments not 
covered by program revenues.

Also part of the basic financial statements are fund financial statements for governmental 
funds and proprietary funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual 
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

c. Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Authority are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which includes
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity,
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their
intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-
related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained
consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
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The following fund categories (further divided by fund type) are used by the Authority: 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for the Authority’s general government activities. The 
focus of Governmental Fund measurement, in the fund financial statements, is upon 
determination of financial position and changes in financial position rather than upon net 
income. The Authority reports the following major Governmental Funds: 

The General Fund is the Authority’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund.

Other Non-major Governmental Funds are reported in a single column and combining 
statements are presented following the supplementary information other than the MD&A. 

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds account for activities of the Authority similar to those found in the private 
sector, where cost recovery and the determination of net income are useful or necessary for 
sound fiscal management. The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon the 
determination of operating income, changes in net position, financial position and cash flows. 
Currently, enterprise funds are the only type of proprietary funds that the Authority uses.

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that provide services to the general 
public for a fee. Enterprise funds are also required for any activity whose principal revenue 
sources meet any of the following criteria: 1) any activity that has issued debt backed solely by 
the fees and charges of the activity, 2) if the cost of providing services for an activity, including 
capital costs such as depreciation or debt service, must legally be recovered through fees and 
charges, or 3) it is the policy of the Authority to establish activity fees or charges to recover the 
cost of providing services, including capital costs.

The Authority reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Transit Service Operations Fund accounts for the activities related to the operations of 
local and express bus, dial-a-ride and vanpool services for the region.

The Valley Metro Rail Fund accounts for the activities related to the staffing and 
administrative services that are contractually provided by the Authority to Valley Metro Rail, 
Inc. and transfers in of the Public Transportation Fund (PTF) and the Regional Area Road 
Funds (RARF) sales tax revenues and expenses of such funds related to the Regional 
Transportation Plan approved light rail projects.

d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Governmental fund types are presented, in the fund financial statements, using the flow of
current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. With
this measurement focus, operating statements present increases and decreases in net current
assets and unrestricted fund balance is a measure of available spendable resources. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e., when they are “measurable and available”). “Measurable” means the amount of
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the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period 
or soon thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The Authority considers revenues 
available under modified accrual, if they are earned by June 30 (all eligibility requirements 
have been met) and the revenue is expected to be collected within 120 days after year-end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.

This is the traditional basis of accounting for governmental funds and also is the manner in 
which these funds are normally budgeted. This presentation is deemed most appropriate to 1) 
demonstrate legal and covenant compliance, 2) demonstrate the sources and uses of liquid 
resources, and 3) demonstrate how the Authority’s actual revenues and expenditures conform 
to the annual budget. Since the governmental fund financial statements are presented on a 
different basis than the governmental activities column of the government-wide financial 
statements, a reconciliation is provided immediately following each fund statement. These 
reconciliations briefly explain the adjustments necessary to transform the fund financial 
statements into the governmental activities column of the government-wide financial 
statements. Additional reconciliations are also provided in Note 2.

Receivables and revenues are recognized when the applicable eligibility requirements, 
including time requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements 
are met are reported as deferred inflows of resources.

Interest income is recognized on the modified accrual basis. Changes in fair value of 
investments are recognized in investment income at the end of the year.

Sales taxes, entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if 
the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as 
revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements 
have been met. For the governmental fund statements, grant revenue earned but not 
expected to be received within 120 days of year end is recorded as deferred inflows of 
resources.

The flow of economic resources measurement focus emphasizes the determination of net 
income.

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

On the proprietary fund financial statements, operating revenues are those that flow directly 
from the operations of that activity, i.e., charges to customers or users who purchase or use 
the goods or services of that activity. Operating expenses are those that are incurred to 
provide those goods or services. Non-operating revenues and expenses are items like 
investment income and interest expense that are not a result of the direct operations of the 
activity.

e. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

An annual budget of revenues and expenditures is prepared and adopted by the Board of
Directors each fiscal year for all funds. The legal level of budgetary control is the total annual
appropriated budget. Costs in excess of the total annual appropriated budget require approval
of the Board of Directors. Transfers of appropriations between departments require the
approval of the Chief Executive Officer. The annual budget is adopted on a basis consistent
with generally accepted accounting principles for the governmental and proprietary funds.
Encumbrance accounting is used and all appropriations lapse at year end. Prior to final
adoption, a proposed budget is presented to the Board of Directors for review and public
comment is received. Final adoption of the budget must be on or before June 30 of each year.
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Budgetary comparison statements for the general fund and major special revenue funds must 
be presented as part of the basic financial statements or as required supplementary 
information.

The Authority has chosen to present this information as required supplementary information. 
These statements must display original budget, amended budget and actual results (on a 
budgetary basis). Budgetary comparisons for the major enterprise funds are presented in the 
combining statements following the notes to the financial statements. Where necessary, a 
reconciliation has been provided of the adjustments required to convert the budgetary 
revenues and expenditures or changes in net position on a budgetary basis to revenues and 
expenditures/expenses or change in net position on a GAAP basis.

f. Deposits and Investments

State statutes authorize the Authority to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and any of
its agencies, corporations or instrumentalities, collateralized repurchase agreements,
certificates of deposit and the State of Arizona’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).
Currently the Authority invests in the LGIP, which is operated by the Arizona State Treasurer’s
Office, as authorized by Arizona Revised Statues, §35-326. Arizona Revised Statutes §35-312
and §35-313 regulate authorized investments.

Local Government Investment Pool investments are carried at fair value. The fair value of
pooled investments is determined annually and is based on current market prices. The fair
value of participants’ position in the pool approximates the value of the pool shares. The
method used to determine the value of participants’ equity withdrawn is based on the book
value of the participants’ percentage participation at the date of such withdrawal.

The Authority maintains pooled cash and investments. Income from pooled cash and
investments is allocated to the individual funds based on the fund’s month end cash balance
in relation to the total pooled cash and investments. Authority management has determined
that the investment income related to all funds except the Transit Service Operations Fund
and Valley Metro Rail Enterprise Fund should be allocated to the General Fund.

Each fund’s equity in the pooled cash and investments is tracked on an ongoing basis. In the
event that a certain fund overdraws its share of pooled cash, the overdraft is reported as due
to other funds at year end.

g.Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The
Authority uses the consumption method to report prepaid items when they are purchased.
They are recorded as assets and the expenditure/expense is recognized when the assets are
consumed or used.

h.Capital Assets

All capital assets, whether owned by governmental activities or business-type activities, must
be recorded and depreciated in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. No long-term assets or depreciation are shown in the governmental fund financial
statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life greater than one year. The Authority has no public domain
infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and other assets that are immovable and of
value only to the Authority) or capital construction projects. Capital assets are recorded at cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded
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at the acquisition value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs 
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 
Major improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the 
related capital assets. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 
following estimated useful lives:

Assets
Useful Life

(Years)
Equipment 3-20
Vehicles

Cars and vans 4
Buses greater than 30 feet 10
Buses greater than 40 feet 20

Computers and software 3-5
Site improvements 16-30
Bus Shelter 7-10
Buildings 46-50

Capital assets transferred between funds are transferred at their net book value (cost less 
accumulated depreciation) or net realizable value, if lower, as of the date of the transfer.

i. Transactions Between Funds

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are reported in the fund financial statements as “due
to/from other funds”. See Note 6 for further discussion of the interfund receivables/payables at
June 30.

Certain transactions occurring between funds that are combined within the same fund type or
displayed in the same financial statement column for presentation in these annual financial
statements have been eliminated from the financial statements. In the government-wide
financial statements, only the net interfund activity and balances between governmental
activities and business-type activities are shown (reported as “internal balances”).

j. Receivables

Receivables primarily result from accrued member city service billings and various grants
awarded by the Federal Transit Administration and the Federal Highway Administration. The
grant receivables are passed through to the Authority and are due from the City of Phoenix,
Maricopa Association of Governments, Maricopa County, and the Arizona Department of
Transportation as reimbursement for eligible grant expenditures associated with operating,
capital projects and capital maintenance.

k. Compensated Absences

Employees of the Authority are entitled to 15.0 - 31.5 paid time off days (vacation and sick
leave) per calendar year - based on an eight-hour workday, depending upon length of service.
For governmental funds, there is no legal requirement to accumulate expendable available
financial resources to liquidate the obligation; thus expenditures are recognized in the
governmental funds when payments are made to employees. The current portion of the
accrued compensated absences liability is based on the average annual amount of leave
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charged over the preceding three years. Generally, resources from the General Fund are used 
to liquidate the governmental funds liabilities for compensated absences. 

l. Long-term Obligation

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities on the Statement of Net
Position. Bond premiums and discounts, and the difference between the reacquisition price
and the net carrying amount of the old debt, are amortized over the life of the bonds using a
method that approximates the effective interest rate over the term of the related debt.
Issuance costs are expensed in the current period.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are expensed in the
current period.

m. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

The statement of net position and balance sheet include separate sections for deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources
represent a consumption of net position that applies to future periods that will be recognized
as an expense or expenditure in future periods. Deferred inflows of resources represent an
acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to future periods and will be recognized
as a revenue in future periods.

n.Pension and Postemployment benefits

For purposes of measuring the net pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
assets and liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions and OPEB, and pension and OPEB expense, information about the plans'
fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plans' fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plan. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

o.Net Position

In the government-wide financial statements, net position is reported in three categories: net
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. Net
investment in capital assets is separately reported because capital assets make up a
significant portion of total net position. Restricted net position accounts for the portion of net
position restricted by parties outside the Authority. Unrestricted net position is the remaining
net position not included in the previous two categories.

p.Fund Balances

Fund balances of the governmental funds are reported separately within classifications based
on a hierarchy of the constraints placed on the use of those resources. The classifications are
based on the relative strength of the constraints that control how the specific amounts can be
spent. The classifications are nonspendable and spendable fund balances. Spendable fund
balances include restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance classifications.
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The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are either not in spendable form such as inventories, or are legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted fund balances are those that have externally imposed restrictions on their usage by 
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations. 
The committed fund balances are self-imposed limitations approved by the Authority’s Board 
of Directors, which is the highest level of decision-making authority within the Authority. Only 
RPTA’s Board of Directors can remove or change the constraints placed on committed fund 
balances. The formal action that is required to be taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund 
balance commitment is a resolution approved by the Board of Directors at a Board of Directors 
meeting. The Board of Directors must commit fund balances before the end of the fiscal year. 
Assigned fund balances are resources constrained by the Authority’s intent to be used for 
Specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The Board of Directors has 
authorized the Chief Executive Officer or designee to make assignments of resources for a 
specific purpose. The unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General 
Fund and includes all spendable amounts not reported in the other classifications. 

When an expenditure is incurred, it is the Authority’s policy to use restricted fund balance first, 
then committed, assigned and unassigned fund balances as resources are available.

q.Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers short-term investments in the State of Arizona’s Local Government
Investment Pool, mutual fund-money market, U.S. Treasury bills and notes with maturities of
three months or less at acquisition date to be cash equivalents.

r. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America necessarily requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting financial period. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

s. Restricted Cash and Investments

The Authority considers restricted cash to be restricted in use by outside entities for specific
purposes. Generally, cash set aside for debt service payments is restricted for the purpose of
funding debt service payments. Also, any bond proceeds are considered restricted cash or
investments to be used only for the purposes specified in bond covenants.

t. Donated Personal Protective Equipment

In June of 2020 the Authority received a donation of 25,000 cloth face coverings from the
Federal Transportation Authority. These face coverings were donated at no cost to the
Authority.  As of June 30, 2020, 3,700 of the donated face coverings had been distributed to
municipal partners and customers.  The Authority did not record any revenues or expenses for
the masks in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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2. Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Financial Statements to Government-Wide
Statements (In thousands of dollars):

Reclassifications
Total Long-term for Internal Statement of

Governmental Assets/ Balances and Net Position
Funds Liabilities Eliminations Totals

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,464 $ — $ — $ 3,464 
Investments 36,278 — — 36,278 
Receivables 24 — — 24 
Due from other funds 159 — (21,667) 
Due from other governments 14,678 — — 14,678 
Prepaid items 103 — — 103 
Net pension and other 
postemployment benefits asset — 19 — 19 
Capital assets (net) — 1,778 — 1,778 

Total assets 54,706 1,797 34,836

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions and 
other postemployment benefits — 2,012 — 2,012 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources — 2,012 — 2,012 

Liabilities
Accounts payable 997 — — 997 
Accrued salaries and benefits 1,061 — — 1,061 
Due to other funds 21,667 — 
Due to other governments 52 — — 52 
Other liabilities 696 — — 696 
Compensated absences — 817 — 817 
Working capital advance from ADEQ — 4,000 4,000 
Net pension and other 
postemployment benefits liability — 10,094 — 10,094 

Total liabilities 24,473 14,911 17,717

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions and 
other postemployment benefits — 688 — 688 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources — 688 — 688 

Fund Balance/Net Position
Total fund balance/net position $ 30,233 $ (11,790) $ — $ 18,443 

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased, the costs of those 
assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds, and thus a reduction in fund balance. 
However, the Statement of Net Position includes those capital assets among the assets of the 
Authority as a whole (In thousands of dollars):

Cost of capital assets $ 7,036 

Accumulated depreciation (5,258) 

Capital assets, net $ 1,778 

Interfund transactions between governmental activities of $159 (Thousand) are eliminated in the 
consolidation of these activities for the Statement of Net Position and Due to Other Funds between 
governmental activities and business type activities is classified as interfund balances.
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Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, the governmental funds do not accrue for unpaid 
compensated absences in the amount of $817 (Thousand) as a liability, as they are not paid with 
expendable available financial resources. However, the Statement of Net Position includes the 
unpaid compensated absences as long-term liabilities regardless of when financial resources are 
used, and thus a reduction in net position.

Net pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) asset is a long-term asset and 
therefore, is not reported as an asset in the funds.  Net pension and OPEB liability is not due and 
payable in the current period and therefore, is not reported as a liability in the funds. Further, 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB are applicable to future 
reporting periods and therefore, are not reported in the funds.

The liability to repay ADEQ for a working capital advance is not payable in the current period and 
therefore, is not reported as a liability in the funds.

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities (In thousands of dollars):

Total Depreciation Working Statement
Governmental Capital and Compensated Pension Pension Capital of Activities

Funds Purchases Disposals Absences Contributions Expense Advance Totals
Revenues
Sales taxes $ 168,626 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 168,626 
Intergovernmental 13,045 — — — — — — 13,045 
Interest earnings 1,032 — — — — — — 1,032 
Charges for services 199 — — — — — — 199 
Miscellaneous 296 — — — — — — 296 

Total revenues 183,198 — — — — — — 183,198 

Expenditures/Expenses
Current:

Regional planning 1,990 — — — — — — 1,990 
Transportation demand
  management 1,135 — — — — — — 1,135 
Regional customer
  services 10,938 — — — — — 10,938 
AZ Lottery fund
  disbursements 12,227 — — — — (2,000) 10,227 
Administration 4,811 (269) 499 115 (888) 949 — 5,217 
Capital outlay 842 (842) — — — — — — 

Total expenditures/expenses
  and other uses 31,943 (1,111) 499 115 (888) 949 (2,000) 29,507 

Other financing uses/
  changes in net position

Transfers in 1,714 — — — — — — 1,714 
Transfers out (162,567) — — — — — — (162,567) 

Net transfers (160,853) — — — — — — (160,853 

Net change for the year $ (9,958) $ 1,111 $ (499) $ (115) $ 888 $ (949) $ 2,000 $ (7,162) 

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased, the resources 
expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the 
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense. As a result, fund balance increases by the amount of the financial resources 
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expended for capital outlay $1,111 (Thousand), whereas net position decreases by the amounts of 
disposals and depreciation expense charged for the year $499 (Thousand).

The governmental funds do not report the change in unpaid compensated absences in the amount of 
$115 (Thousand) as expenditures, as they are not paid with expendable available financial 
resources. However, the Statement of Net Position includes the change in unpaid compensated 
absences as accrued expenses regardless of when financial resources are used, and thus a 
reduction in net position.

Pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made. However, 
they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because the 
reported net pension liability is measured a year before the Authority’s report date. Pension expense, 
which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows 
of resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

The governmental funds report payments of the working capital advance from the Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) as an expenditure when the monies are paid by the 
Authority.  In FY20, $2 (Million) was paid by the Authority.

3. Deposits and Investments

Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the Authority to invest public monies in the State
Treasurer’s investment pool; obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States or any of the
senior debt of its agencies, sponsored agencies, corporations, sponsored corporations, or
instrumentalities; specified state and local government bonds, notes, and other evidences of
indebtedness; interest-earning investments such as savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and
repurchase agreements in eligible depositories; specified commercial paper issued by corporations
organized and doing business in the United States; specified bonds, debentures, notes, and other
evidences of indebtedness that are denominated in United States dollars; and certain open-end and
closed-end mutual funds, including exchange traded funds. In addition, the Authority may invest trust
funds in certain fixed income securities of corporations doing business in the United States or District
of Columbia.

Credit risk. Statutes have the following requirements for credit risk: 1. Commercial paper must be of
prime quality and be rated within the top two ratings by a nationally recognized rating agency. 2.
Bonds, debentures, notes, and other evidences of indebtedness that are denominated in United
States dollars must be rated “A” or better at the time of purchase by at least two nationally
recognized rating agencies. 3. Fixed income securities must carry one of the two highest ratings by
Moody’s investors service and Standard and Poor’s rating service. If only one of the above-
mentioned services rates the security, it must carry the highest rating of that service.

Custodial credit risk. Statutes require collateral for deposits at 102 percent of all deposits federal
depository insurance does not cover.

Concentration of credit risk. Statutes do not include any requirements for concentration of credit risk.

Interest rate risk. Statutes require that public monies invested in securities and deposits have a
maximum maturity of 5 years. The maximum maturity for investments in repurchase agreements is
180 days.

Foreign currency risk. Statutes do not allow foreign investments unless the investment is
denominated in United States dollars.
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The Authority maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund 
type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the government-wide Statement of Net Position as “Cash 
and cash equivalents” or "Investments".

a. Deposits

The carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits at June 30, 2020, was $28.232 (Million) and the
bank ledger balance was $29.768 (Million). The difference represents $1.535  (Million)  in
deposits in transit and outstanding checks. Of the bank balance, $1.500 (Million) was covered
by federal depository insurance and $28.268 (Million) was covered by collateral held by the
pledging financial institution in the Authority’s name. Further, cash held with the bond fund
trustee was $20.740 (Million) which was held with the trustee in a commercial money market
account. $20.393 (Million) held by the bond trustee is reported as restricted for debt service
payments scheduled for July 1, 2020, the remaining $347 (Thousand) that will be used for
future debt service payments is reported as cash and cash equivalents.

b. Investments

It is the policy of the Authority to invest public funds in a manner which will provide for the
maximum security and preservation of principal and meet liquidity demands while achieving the
highest rate of return possible. Additionally, it is the policy of the Authority to comply with all
applicable State statutes governing the investment of public funds, including (without limitation)
Title 35 of the Arizona Statutes (“Title 35”). Beginning in FY16, Valley Metro RPTA Investment
Funds are the investment portfolio managed in conjunction with an Investment Adviser selected
by the Authority with a Board-approved procurement, and held by an independent custodian.
The adviser is required to follow state law, the Authority’s investment policy, and such other
written instructions as provided. The Valley Metro RPTA Investment Funds are managed within
three categories for the purpose of allocation of interest income as RPTA PTF Investment
Funds, Rail PTF Investment Funds, and RPTA RARF Investment Funds.

Fair Value Reporting

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements for investments within the hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has
three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value.

The categorization of investments within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency
of the instrument and should not be perceived as the particular investment’s risk.

• Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

• Level 2 – Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived
valuations in which all significant inputs are observable.

• Level 3 – Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which significant inputs are
unobservable.

Investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its 
equivalent) as a practical expedient are not classified in the fair value hierarchy.

Level 1 debt and equity securities are valued based on prices quoted in active markets for 
those securities. Level 2 securities are valued using a matrix pricing technique that values 
securities based on their relationship to benchmark quoted prices. Level 3 securities, whose 
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stated market prices are unobservable by the market place, are priced by the investment 
manager  using discounted cash flow techniques.  

The Authority has the following investments within the hierarchy framework as of June 30, 2020 
(In thousands of dollars):

Investments Measured at Fair Value

Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments by fair value level
US Treasury Notes/Bills $ 9,709 $ — $ 9,709 $ — 
US Agencies:

Federal Home Loan Bank 4,430 — 4,430 — 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation. 11,505 — 11,505 — 
Federal National Mortgage 
Association 1,843 — 1,843 — 

Corporate bonds 6,559 — 6,559 — 
34,046 $ — $ 34,046 $ — 

External Investment pools 
measured at net asset value
State Investment Pool 5 5,716 

Total investments $ 39,762 

Investments in the State Treasurer’s investment pools are valued at the pool’s share price 
multiplied by the number of shares the Authority held. The fair value of a participant’s position 
in the pools approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares. The State Board of 
Investment provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s investment pools.

Credit Risk 

State statutes authorize the Authority to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and any of 
its agencies, corporations or instrumentalities, collateralized repurchase agreements, 
certificates of deposit and the LGIP. The Authority’s investment policy does not further limit its 
investment choices. The LGIP is operated by the Arizona State Treasurer’s Office, as 
authorized by Arizona Revised Statutes §35-326. Arizona Revised Statutes §35-312 and 
§35-313 regulate authorized investments.
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At June 30, 2020, credit risk for the Authority’s investments was as follows (In thousands of 
dollars):

Rating

Investments type Rating Agency AAA AA+ A+ A A- Amount
US Agencies:

Federal Home Loan Bank Standard & Poor's — $4,430 — — — $4,430 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation Standard & Poor's — 11,505 — — — 11,505 

Federal National Mortgage 
Association Standard & Poor's — 1,843 — — — 1,843 

Corporate bonds Standard & Poor's — — 1,912 1,922 2,725 6,559 

State Investment Pool 5 Moody's 5,716 — — — — 5,716 

Total investments $ 5,716 $ 17,778 $ 1,912 $ 1,922 $ 2,725 $ 30,053 

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the counterparty’s 
failure, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in an outside party’s possession. Without limiting the requirements of Title 
35, the Authority’s policy is that collateralization is required on two types of investments: 
certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and 
provide a level of security for all funds, the collateralization level is the greater of the 
requirements imposed by Title 35, or 102% of market value of principal and accrued interest. 
Collateral is to always be held by a designated third-party with whom a custodial agreement 
exists and a safekeeping receipt must be issued to the Authority. Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, provides for 
disclosures of custodial credit risk associated with investment securities. An exception is 
provided for investments in external investment pools and for investments in open-ended 
mutual funds.

Concentration of Credit Risk. 

It is the policy of the Authority that no greater than 30% of the Authority’s total cash and 
investment assets may be invested in money market mutual funds. Further the total combined 
investment may not exceed 40% of the Valley Metro RPTA Investment Funds and no greater 
than 5% may be invested in any one issuer in the following security types:

Municipal Obligations as outlined in a. and b. as follows and rated “A” or better by a 
NRSRO.

a. Bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness of this state or any of its
counties, incorporated cities or towns, school districts or special taxing
districts, including registered warrants that shall bear interest pursuant to
section 11-635.

b. Bonds, notes or evidences of indebtedness of any county, municipal
district, municipal utility or special taxing district of any state that are
payable from revenues, earnings or a special tax specifically pledged for
the payment of the principal and interest on the obligations, and for the
payment of which a lawful sinking fund or reserve fund has been
established and is being maintained, but only if no default in payment on
principal or interest on the obligations to be purchased has occurred
within five years of the date of investment, or, if such obligations were
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issued less than five years before the date of investment, no default in 
payment of principal or interest has occurred on the obligations to be 
purchased nor any other obligations of the issuer within five years of the 
investment. 

Commercial paper of prime quality that is rated within the top two ratings by a NRSRO. All 
commercial paper must be issued by corporations organized and doing business in the 
United States.

Medium-term corporate notes, which include bonds, debentures, notes or other evidences 
of indebtedness that are denominated in United States dollars and that carry at a minimum 
an "A" or better rating, at the time of purchase, from at least two NRSROs.

Negotiable or brokered certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state chartered bank 
or savings and loan association that are rated A-1/P-1 or “A” or better by a NRSRO.

The Authority had investments at June 30, 2020, of 5 percent or more in Federal Home Loan 
Bank and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. These investments were 11.14% and 
28.93%, respectively of the Authority’s total investments. These security types have no 
maximum investment restrictions.  Also, the Authority had investments of 14.38% in the State's 
Investment pool.  These security types have no maximum investment restrictions.  

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates, the Authority’s investment policy provides for matching investment maturities with 
anticipated cash flow requirements while maintaining an emphasis on liquidity. Unless 
matched to a specific cash flow requirement, the Authority will not directly invest in securities 
maturing more than two years from the date of purchase. Valley Metro RPTA Investment 
Funds may be invested in securities exceeding two years if the maturity of such investments 
are made to coincide as close as practicable with the expected use of the funds.

At June 30, 2020, the Authority had the following investments in debt securities (In thousands 
of dollars):

Investment Maturities
Investment Type Fair Value < 1 yr 1-2 years
US Treasury Notes/Bills $ 9,709 $ 5,037 $ 4,672 
US Agencies:

Federal Home Loan Bank 4,430 4,430 — 
Federal National Mortgage Association 1,843 1,843 — 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corportation 11,505 — 11,505 

Corporate bonds 6,559 5,556 1,003 
State Investment Pool 5 5,716 5,716 — 

$ 39,762 $ 22,582 $ 17,180 
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A reconciliation of cash, deposits, and investments to amounts shown on the Statements of Net 
Position follows (In thousands of dollars):

Cash, deposits, and investments:
Carrying amount of the Authority's deposits $ 28,232 
Cash and investments with bond fund trustee - unrestricted 347 
Cash and investments with bond fund trustee - restricted 20,393 
Valley Metro RPTA Investment Funds 34,046 

Investments in the LGIP 5,716 

$ 88,734 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

Statement of net position:

$ 3,464 $ 25,115 $ 28,579 
36,278 3,484 39,762 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments
Restricted cash and investments — 20,393 20,393 

Total $ 39,742 $ 48,992 $ 88,734 
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4. Receivables and Due from Other Governments

Receivables primarily result from accrued member city service billings and various grants awarded
by the Federal Transit Administration and the Federal Highway Administration. The grant receivables
are passed through to the Authority and are due from the City of Phoenix, Maricopa Association of
Governments, Maricopa County, and the Arizona Department of Transportation as reimbursement for
eligible grant expenditures associated with operating, capital projects and capital maintenance.

Due from Other Governments at June 30, 2020 consist of the following(In thousands of dollars):

Governmental Proprietary
Funds Funds Total

Due from Other Governments

Arizona State Treasurer-PTF Funds $ 13,769 $ — $13,769
AZ Dept of Transportation 344 344 
City of Avondale 14 107 121 
City of Buckeye — 188 188 
City of Peoria — 2 2 
City of Phoenix 59 19,107 19,166 
City of Scottsdale — 22 22 
City of Surprise — 160 160 
City of Tempe — 3,427 3,427 
City of Tolleson — 478 478 
Gila River Indian Community — 151 151 
Internal Revenue Service — 565 565 
Maricopa Association of Governments 174 — 174 
Maricopa County 133 777 910 
Tolleson Union High School District — 1 1 
Town of Gilbert — 8 8 
Valley Metro Rail, Inc. 529 23,485 24,014 

Total Due From Other Governments $ 14,678 $ 48,822 $ 63,500 
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5. Due from VMR/Note Receivable for Advance Bond Proceeds

During FY15, RPTA and VMR Boards amended the interagency LRT Program Agreement, whereby
RPTA will hold an inter-agency receivable from VMR for the advance of bond proceeds in the original
amount of $69.584 (Million). In order to accelerate planning, design and construction of the Light Rail
Capital Projects as identified in the Regional Transportation Plan, RPTA advances bond proceeds
prior to the collection of sales tax proceeds necessary to fund the debt service payments.

The inter-agency receivable from VMR of the Advance Bond Proceeds shall be paid from the
collection of PTF Sales Taxes and payment of related debt principal. As debt service payments are
made, RPTA will record Lead Agency disbursements expense and reduce the note receivable.

As of June 30, 2020, PTF Advance Bond Proceeds balance remaining totaled $25.0 (Million).
Principal and interest payments follow the Series 2014 Debt Service schedule as shown in table
below (In thousands of dollars).

Fiscal 
Year End

Interest Debt 
Service Payments

Principal Debt 
Service Payments

2021 $ 1,901 $ 10,295 
2022 1,623 10,835 
2023 1,331 3,914 

Total $ 4,855 $ 25,044 

* Note A portion of the total Series 2014 Bond Issue interest expense is allocated to the Series
2014 Advance.  The allocation is based on the ratio of Series 2014 Advance Note Payable 
$69.6 (Million) versus the Total Series 2014 Bond Proceeds $135.4 (Million).

6. Interfund Receivables/Payables and Interfund Transactions

Interfund receivables and payables within the governmental activities and business-type activities
are eliminated for the government-wide financial statements at June 30, 2020. The following
interfund receivables and payables are included in the fund financial statements at June 30, 2020
(In thousands of dollars):

 Due from other Funds

Transit Service Valley Metro
General Operations Rail Total

Due to other funds
Governmental funds:

General Fund $ — $ 15,554 $ 5,954 $ 21,508 
Non-major Governmental funds 159 — — 159 
Total governmental funds 159 15,554 5,954 21,667 

Enterprise funds:
Transit Service Operations — — 2,043 2,043 

Total enterprise funds — — 2,043 2,043 
Grand totals $ 159 $ 15,554 $ 7,997 $ 23,710 

The interfund balances for the Enterprise funds at June 30, 2020 are for the June 2020 PTF 
Revenue allocation for the VMR portion and for PTF revenues due from the General fund to the 
TSO fund for eligible expenses and funding of future debt service.  The interfund balance between 
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the Transit Service Operations fund and Valley Metro Rail fund are for Valley Metro Rail funds used 
by the Transit Service Operations fund.

Interfund transfers are primarily used for transfers of sales tax revenues from the General Fund to 
the various funds that receive earmarked sales tax revenues. 

The following interfund transfers are reflected in the fund financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2020 (In thousands of dollars).

Transfers Out
General

Transfers In
Governmental funds:
Non-major Governmental funds $ 1,714 

Total governmental funds 1,714 

Enterprise funds:
Transit Service Operations 90,363 
Valley Metro Rail 70,490 
Total enterprise funds 160,853 

Grand totals $ 162,567 

Net transfers from governmental activities to business-type activities on the government-
wide statement of activities are in the amount $160,853(Thousand).

7. Fund Balance Classifications

Fund Balance classifications reported in the governmental funds include the following (In thousands
of dollars):

Non-major
Governmental

General Funds Total
Nonspendable

Prepaids $ 103 $ — $ 103 
Restricted for

Corridor and facility planning — 107 107 
   Clean Air Activities — 23 23 
Unassigned 30,023 (23) 30,000

$ 30,126 $ 107 $ 30,233 

In the Restricted for Clean Air activities are for monies contributed by vendors for use on the Annual 
Clean Air Campaign Awards and Luncheon.  The restricted balance for Corridor and facility 
planning are for monies from the Maricopa Association of Governments for use on for Corridor and 
facility planning activities.
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8. Capital Assets

A summary of capital asset activity, for the government-wide financial statements, for the year
ended June 30, 2020 (In thousands of dollars):

Balance, Balance,
July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020

Governmental activities:
Non-depreciable assets:

Work in progress $ — $ 966 $ — $ 966 
Total non-depreciable assets — 966 — 966 

Depreciable assets:
Site improvements 624 — 624 
Computers & software 3,536 145 — 3,681 
Equipment 639 — 639 
Vehicles 286 — 286 
Furniture & fixtures 840 — — 840 

Total depreciable assets at  historical cost 5,925 145 — 6,070 

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Site improvements (598) (3) — (601) 
Computers & software (3,068) (336) — (3,404) 
Equipment (431) (60) — (491) 
Vehicles (213) (26) — (239) 
Furniture & fixtures (449) (74) — (523) 

Total accumulated depreciation (4,759) (499) — (5,258) 

Total Governmental activities capital assets being depreciated, net 1,166 (354) — 812 

 Governmental activities capital  assets, net $ 1,166 $ 612 $ — $ 1,778 

Business-type activities:
Non-depreciable assets:

Land $ 5,292 $ — $ — $ 5,292 
Work in progress 3,369 2,239 (97) 5,511 

Total non-depreciable assets 8,661 2,239 (97) 10,803 

Depreciable assets:
Transit fleet 136,349 29,294 (12,354) 153,289 
Vehicles 171 187 358 
Building 13,391 13,391 
Site improvements 8,900 97 8,998 
Computers & software 94 94 
Ticket vending machines 1,663 1,663 
Equipment 6,950 
Furniture & fixtures 127 

(37) 6,193
127 

Infrastructure 29 — — 29 
Total depreciable assets at  historical cost 167,674 29,578 (12,391) 184,861 

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Transit fleet (74,561) (12,296) 11,811 (75,046) 
Vehicles (153) (202) (355) 
Building (3,202) (291) (3,493) 
Site improvements (5,908) (496) (6,404) 
Computers & software (94) — (94) 
Ticket vending machines (673) (111) (784) 
Equipment (5,362) (232) 37 (5,557) 
Furniture & fixtures (127) — (127) 
Infrastructure (12) (2) (14) 

Total accumulated depreciation (90,092) (13,630) 11,848 (91,874) 

Total Business-type capital assets being depreciated, net 77,582 15,948 (543) 92,987 

 Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 86,243 $ 18,187 $ (640) $ 103,790 
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Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions in the basic financial statements (In 
thousands of dollars):

Depreciation Expense:
Governmental Business-Type

Administration $ 499 $ — 
Transit service operations — 13,630 

Total depreciation expense $ 499 $ 13,630 

9. Due to Other Governments

Payables to other governments primarily result from accrued member city billings for transportation
services and lead agency disbursements for capital transportation projects which are funded by the
Authority.

Due to Other Governments at June 30, 2020 consist of the following (In thousands of dollars):

Governmental Proprietary
Funds Funds Total

Due to Other Governments

City of Chandler $ — $ 335 $ 335 
City of Glendale 893 893 
City of Goodyear 154 154 
City of Mesa 930 930 
City of Phoenix 7 4,507 4,514 
City of Scottsdale 195 195 
City of Surprise 9 9 
City of Tempe 3,393 3,393 
City of Tolleson 19 31 50 
Gila River Indian Community 29 29 
Federal Transit Administration 1,741 1,741 
Town of Gilbert 584 584 
Town of Youngtown 26 26 
Valley Metro Rail, Inc. 26 38,385 38,411 

Total Due from Other Governments $ 52 $ 51,212 $ 51,264 
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10. Operating Leases

The Authority leases office space under various operating lease agreements. Total lease
expenditures were $1,467 (Thousand) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The future minimum
lease payments under noncancelable and final option of the operating lease at June 30, 2020 were
as follows (In thousands of dollars):

June 30
2021 $ 1,379 
2022 1,390 
2023 1,392 
2024 1,412 
2025 1,423 
2026 797 
Total $ 7,793 

Beginning on July 1, 2014, VMR entered into a new contract to lease office space for a 12 year term 
which included 57,007 square feet of building space.  Simultaneously, a sublease between VMR 
and the Authority took effect for 26,324 square feet. The 12 year term sublease total is $7.5 
(Million).

Beginning on December 1, 2017, VMR entered into a new contract to lease additional office space 
of the 14th Floor of the building for a 8.5 year term which included 13,242 square feet of building 
space.  Simultaneously, a sublease between VMR and RPTA took effect for 6,108 square feet.  The 
sublease total is $1.4 (Million).

11. Long-Term Liabilities

a. Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds

In May 2009, the Board adopted the issuance of 2009 series transportation revenue bonds,
which are specifically for the purpose of payment or reimbursement of the costs of capital
projects expenditures in the regional transportation plan. Proceeds of the bonds were used for
improvements and expansions to the Authority’s bus and light rail projects. These bonds are
payable solely from the revenues received by the Authority from the transportation excise tax
revenues collected by the Arizona Department of Revenue. The bonds were issued on June
30, 2009 in two series. Series 2009A consisted of $73.795 (million) transportation excise tax
revenue bonds – tax exempt bonds and Series 2009B consisted of $26.280 (million)
transportation excise tax revenue bonds – federally taxable Build America Bonds. Interest
ranges were from 3.25 to 6.46 percent.  The final principal payment was made on the 2009
bonds on July 1, 2019. Bonds have also been issued to advance-refund previously issued
bonds. In April 2016, Series 2016 Bonds were issued to advance refund certain Series 2009
maturities ($23.585 million). In June 2019, Series 2019 Bonds were issued to refund certain
Series 2009 maturities ($26.280 million). The Authority has pledged future transportation
excise tax revenues to repay the outstanding transportation revenue bonds for the 2016 and
2019 Refunding Bonds.  The bonds are payable solely from excise tax revenues and are
payable through July 1, 2025.

In November 2013, the Board approved the issuance of the Series 2014 transportation
revenue bonds which are specifically for the purpose of payment or reimbursement of the
costs of light rail capital projects expenditures in the regional transportation plan. The bonds
were issued on January 14, 2014 in the amount of $115.000 (million) and sold at a premium of
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$20.406(Million). The 2014 Series Bonds are payable solely from the revenues received by 
the Authority from the transportation excise tax revenues collected by the Arizona Department 
of Revenue. The bonds are payable through July 1, 2025. Annual installments of $2.453 
(Million) to $13.993 (Million) will be made through 2025; coupon interest rates range from 3.00 
to 5.25 percent with average True Interest Cost at 2.43 percent. As of June 30, 2020, 2014 
Series Bond expenditures to date for the light rail program totaled $135.406 (Million) on an 
accrual basis.

In prior years, the Authority defeased certain revenue bonds by placing proceeds in an 
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on a portion of the 2009 
series bonds.  On July 1, 2019, the defeased revenue bonds were redeemed with the 
proceeds in the irrevocable trust. As the bonds had been called, there are no defeased 
bonds outstanding at June 30, 2020.  As defeased bonds are not reported by the Authority 
the transaction to redeem those defeased bonds is also not included in the Authority's 
financial statements.  

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the revenues available for service of all Bond debt 
was $163.534 (Million) while total debt service requirements were $6.029 (Million) interest 
and $16.805 (Million) principal. Interest expense of $1.821 (Million) on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position, Proprietary Funds, includes 
interest of $6.029 (Million), bank charges and fees of $3 (Thousand), annual amortization of 
the deferred amount on the refunding of $256 (Thousand) and a reduction for the annual 
amortization of premium expense of $4.466 (Million).
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Transportation Excise Revenue Bonds annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2020 
were as follows (In thousands of dollars):

2014 Revenue Bonds Series:
Year Ending Total Premium

June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service Amortization
2021 $ 10,295 $ 3,159 $ 13,454 $ 2,353 
2022 10,835 2,590 13,425 1,929 
2023 11,405 1,991 13,396 1,483 
2024 12,000 1,361 13,361 1,014 
2025 12,630 698 13,328 521 
2026 13,295 — 13,295 — 
Total $ 70,460 $ 9,799 $ 80,259 $ 7,300 

2016 Refunding Revenue Bonds Series:
Year Ending Total Premium

June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service  Amortization
2021 $ 7,090 $ 780 $ 7,870 $ 624 
2022 7,450 408 7,858 326 
2023 — 408 408 325 
2024 8,155 — 8,155 — 
Total $ 22,695 $ 1,596 $ 24,291 $ 1,275 

2019 Refunding Revenue Bonds Series:
Year Ending Total Premium

June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service  Amortization
2021 $ — $ 1,181 $ 1,181 $ 794 
2022 — 1,181 1,181 794 
2023 7,225 820 8,045 551 
2024 — 820 820 551 
2025 8,005 420 8,425 283 
2026 8,390 — 8,390 — 
Total $ 23,620 $ 4,422 $ 28,042 $ 2,973 
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b. Summary of all Long-Term Liabilities

The net pension liability, compensated absences payable, and revenue bonds liability activity
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows (In thousands of dollars):

Balance, Balance, Due Within
July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 One Year

Governmental Activities
Net Pension and other 
postemployment benefits liability $ 9,524 $ 2,664 $ (2,095) $ 10,094 $ — 

Working Capital Advance from 
Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality 6,000 — (2,000) 4,000 2,000 
Compensated absences payable 702 721 (606) 817 707 

Total Governmental Activities $ 16,226 $ 3,385 $ (4,700) $ 14,911 $ 2,707 

Business-type Activities
Net Pension and other 
postemployment benefits liability $ 18,922 $ 4,769 $ (1,411) $ 22,280 $ — 
Compensated absences payable 1,422 1,492 (1,228) 1,685 1,408 
Revenue bonds payable:

2009 Revenue bonds payable 7,025 — (7,025) — — 
2014 Revenue bonds payable 80,240 — (9,780) 70,460 10,295 
2014 Bond premium 10,056 — (2,756) 7,300 — 
2016 Revenue bonds payable 22,695 — — 22,695 7,090 
2016 Bond premium 2,182 — (907) 1,275 — 
2019 Revenue bonds payable 23,620 — —  23,620 — 
2019 Bond premium 3,776 — (803) 2,973 — 

Total Business-Type 
Long-term Liabilities $ 169,938 $ 6,261 $ (23,910) $ 152,289 $ 18,793 

12. Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are
covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. The Authority
purchases insurance coverage for property, general liability, automobile liability, umbrella liability,
commercial crime, public entity employment practices liability, public entity management liability and
excess liability. In addition, the Authority purchases workers’ compensation, employee life insurance
and health and dental insurance coverage for full-time employees. Settled claims for these risks
have never exceeded commercial insurance limits and there were no significant changes in
insurance coverage from the prior year. Insurance coverage for transit operations is carried by the
contracted operators of service; the operators indemnify the Authority for all liability arising from
transit operations.
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13. Contractual and Other Commitments

a. Underground Storage Tank Revolving Fund Replenishment

In fiscal year 1994, the Arizona State Legislature allocated $6,000,000 to the Authority from
the Arizona Area A portion of the underground storage tank revolving fund. Beginning with the
first fiscal year and in each subsequent fiscal year that the Authority is allocated at least
$2,000,000 from the Lottery, the amount allocated to the Authority will be reduced by a
maximum of $2,000,000 each fiscal year until a total of $6,000,000 has been withheld to
replenish the underground storage tank revolving fund. In the event the Authority does not
receive at least $2,000,000 from the Lottery in a given year, no amounts will be withheld from
the respective year’s allocation. The Authority received a Lottery distribution of $1,760,759 in
fiscal year 1998 which is the only year the Authority has received a Lottery distribution.

During fiscal year 2019, the Authority entered into an agreement with the ADEQ requiring the
repayment of the full $6 million dollar working capital advance by July of 2021.  The
agreement states that in the event the amounts cannot be repaid as scheduled ADEQ will
work with the Authority to establish a mutually agreeable amendment and a revised fiscal
repayment plan. In event of default there are no finance related consequences.  There are no
subjective acceleration clauses contained the agreement. On July 1, 2019 in accordance with
this agreement the first of three $2 million payment was made to ADEQ. An Arizona lottery
funds expense of $2 million was recorded in the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for this payment.

b. Commitments

The Authority has entered into various contracts for the administration and operation of transit
services, travel demand management services, marketing services and regional transit
planning. Commitments under these contracts exist only to the extent that services are
requested or provided, and all contracts provide for cancellation without cause.

As of June 30, 2020 (In thousands of dollars):

Contract Type Commitment Spent-to-date Remaining
Bus Operations Contracts $ 907,265 $ 451,237 $ 456,028 
Paratransit & Mobility Center Contracts 144,444 63,170 81,274 
Communications & Marketing Contracts 6,051 1,383 4,668 
Vanpool Contracts 37,625 17,322 20,303 
Various Human Resources, Finance, 
Planning, 17,224 10,190 7,034 
Information Technology Contracts 7,286 2,861 4,425 

$ 1,119,895 $ 546,163 $ 573,732 

In addition, the outstanding Intergovernmental commitments for FY 2020 were for the 
following projects: the Park-and-Ride at Laveen and 59th Avenue, and the City of Phoenix Bus 
fleet. At June 30, 2020, the Authority had outstanding contractual commitments for these 
services aggregating $7.6 million. These commitments have not been recorded in the 
accompanying financial statements because the member cities either had not incurred the 
related expenses or had not requested reimbursement for the related expenses. Only the 
currently payable portions of these contracts have been included in accounts payable in the 
accompanying financial statements.
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c. Coronavirus Relief / CARES act funding

During June 2020 The Authority received FTA funding of $49.5 and $0.9 million from the City
of Phoenix and the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT), respectively.  The funding
was provided from the FTA as part of the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security (CARES) Act to provide financial relief from the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
for transit service providers. These CARES act funds can be used to reimburse the Authority's
transit operating costs incurred on or after January 20, 2020 until the such time as the federal
funds have been exhausted.

14. Contingencies

As a sub-recipient of federal and state grant monies, amounts passed through or receivable from
other agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount,
if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the Authority expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

15. Lawsuits

The Authority is a party to a number of various types of lawsuits, many of which normally occur in
governmental operations. The ultimate outcome of the actions is not determinable, however,
Authority management believes that the outcome of these proceedings, either individually or in the
aggregate, will not have a materially adverse effect on the accompanying financial statements.

16. Related Party Transactions

As mentioned in Note 1 (a), all of the five member cities of VMR’s Board of Directors are also
member cities of the sixteen-member Authority’s Board of Directors. The Board members of the
cities of Glendale, Mesa, Phoenix, and Tempe represent their cities on both Boards. VMR contracts
with the Authority for certain administrative functions, including personnel, administration, financial
and accounting services, purchasing and computer support services.  All VMR staff is hired and
employed by the Authority but work solely under the direction of the VMR and its Board of
Directors, through a contractual agreement with the Authority. For the period ended June 30, 2020,
VMR incurred costs of $20.7 (Million) for services provided by the Authority. At June 30, 2020, the
Authority reported $24.0 (Million) receivable from VMR and $38.4 (Million) payable to VMR.

17. Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

The Authority contributes to the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) plan described below. All
VMR staff are employees of Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA) who contributes to the
ASRS on VMR’s behalf. The plan is a component unit of the State of Arizona.
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At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported the following aggregate amounts related to pensions and 
other postemployment benefits (OPEB) related to the ASRS pension plan to which it contributes (In 
thousands of dollars):

Statement of net position and statement of activities
Governmental 

activities
Business-type 

activities Total
Net pension and OPEB asset $ 19 $ 43 $ 62 
Net pension and OPEB liability 10,094 22,280 32,374 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB 2,012 4,528 6,540 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB 688 1,518 2,206 
Pension and OPEB expense 949 4,193 5,142 

The Authority reported $888 (Thousand) of pension and OPEB contributions as expenditures in the 
governmental funds related to the ASRS pension plan to which it contributes.

A. Arizona State Retirement System

Plan Description - All Authority employees participate in the Arizona State Retirement System 
(ASRS). The ASRS administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance premium supplement (OPEB) plan, 
and a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit long-term disability (OPEB) plan. The Arizona 
State Retirement System Board governs the ASRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, 
Chapter 5, Articles 2 and 2.1. The ASRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes its 
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report is available on the ASRS 
website at www.azasrs.gov.

Benefits Provided. The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium supplement, long-
term disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefit terms. Retirement benefits 
are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly compensation, and service credit as follows:

Retirement Initial Membership Date:
Before July 1, 2011 On or After July 1, 2011

Years of service and age 
required to receive 
benefit

Sum of years and age equals 80 30 years, age 55
10 years, age 62 25 years, age 60
5 years, age 50* 10 years, age 62
Any years, age 65 5 years, age 50*

Any years, age 65

Final average salary is 
based on

Highest 36 consecutive months of Highest 60 consecutive months of
last 120 months last 120 months

Benefit percent per year 
of service 2.1% to 2.3% 2.1% to 2.3%

* With actuarially reduced benefits

Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are subject to 
automatic cost- of-living adjustments based on excess investment earnings. Members with a 
membership date on or after September 13, 2013, are not eligible for cost-of-living adjustments. 
Survivor benefits are payable upon a member’s death. For retired members, the retirement benefit 
plan option chosen determines the survivor benefit. For all other members, the beneficiary is 
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entitled to the member’s account balance that includes the member’s contributions and employer’s 
contributions, plus interest earned.

Health insurance premium benefits are available to retired or disabled members with 5 years of 
credited service.  The benefits are payable only with respect to allowable health insurance 
premiums for which the member is responsible.  For members with 10 or more years of service, 
benefits range from $100 per month to $260 per month depending on the age of the member and 
dependents.  For members with 5 to 9 years of service, the benefits are the same dollar amounts as 
above multiplied by a vesting fraction based on completed years of service.

Active members are eligible for monthly long-term disability equal to two-thirds of monthly earnings. 
Members receiving benefits continue to earn service credit up to their normal retirement dates. 
Members with long-term disability commencement dates after June 30, 1999, are limited to 30 
years of service or the service on record as of the effective disability date if their service is greater 
than 30 years.

Contributions - In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine active 
member and employer contribution requirements. The combined active member and employer 
contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, with 
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 2020, 
statute required active ASRS members to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 12.11 
percent (11.94 percent for retirement and 0.17 percent for long-term disability) of the members’ 
annual covered payroll, and statute required the Authority to contribute at the actuarially determined 
rate of 12.11 percent (11.45 percent for retirement, 0.49 percent for health insurance premium 
benefit, and 0.17 percent for long-term disability) of the active members’ annual covered payroll.  In 
addition, the Authority was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 
10.41 percent (10.29 percent for retirement, 0.05 percent for health insurance premium benefit, and 
0.07 percent for long-term disability) of annual covered payroll of retired members who worked for 
the Authority in positions that an employee who contributes to the ASRS would typically fill.  

The Authority’s contributions to the pension, health insurance premium benefit, and long-term 
disability plans for the year ended June 30, 2020, were $2,777 (Thousand), $119 (Thousand), 
and $41 (Thousand), respectively. 

During the fiscal year 2020, the Authority paid for ASRS pension and OPEB contributions as 
follows: 25.8 from the general fund, 69.8 from major funds, and 4.4 percent from other funds.

Liability. At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported the following asset and liabilities for its 
proportionate share of the net pension/OPEB asset or liability (In thousands of dollars). 

ASRS
Net pension/OPEB 

(asset) liability
Pension $ 32,228 
Health insurance premium benefit (62) 
Long-term disability 146 

The net asset and net liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2019. The total liability used to 
calculate the net asset or net liability was determined using update procedures to roll forward the 
total liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, to the measurement date of June 30, 
2019. 
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The Authority’s proportion of the net asset or net liability was based on the Authority’s actual 
contributions to the plan relative to the total of all participating employers’ contributions for the year 
ended June 30, 2019. The Authority’s proportion measured as of June 30, 2019, and the change 
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018, were:

ASRS
Proportion 

June 30, 2019
Increase (decrease) 
from June 30, 2018

Pension  0.22148 %  0.01828 
Health insurance premium benefit  0.22480 %  0.01829 
Long-term disability  0.22401 %  0.02004 

Expense. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Authority recognized pension and OPEB expense 
(In thousands of dollars):

ASRS
Pension/OPEB 

expense
Pension $ 5,015 
Health insurance premium benefit 78 
Long-term disability 49 

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources. At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB from the following 
sources (In thousands of dollars):

Pension
Health insurance 
premium benefit Long-term disability

Deferred 
Outflows 

of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Outflows 

of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Outflows 

of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual 
experience $ 582 $ 6 $ — $ 74 $ 17 $ — 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 136 1,283 122 — 22 — 
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments — 725 — 82 — 3 
Changes in proportion and differences 
between contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 2,710 33 1 — 13 1 
Contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 2,777 — 119 — 41 — 
Total $ 6,205 $ 2,047 $ 242 $ 156 $ 93 $ 4 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
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The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions and OPEB 
resulting from Authority contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an 
increase of the net asset or a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions and OPEB will be recognized as expenses as follows (In thousands of dollars):

Year Ending 
June 30 Pension

Health insurance 
premium benefit

Long-term 
disability

2021 $ 1,344 $ (27) $ 6 
2022 $ (18) $ (27) $ 6 
2023 (139) 8 8 
2024 194 15 8 
2025 — (3) 8

Thereafter — — 13 

Actuarial Assumptions. The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension/
OPEB liability are as follows:

ASRS
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2018
Actuarial roll forward date June 30, 2019
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Discount rate  7.5 %
Projected salary increases 2.7-7.2% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB
Inflation  2.3 %
Permanent base increase Included for pensions/not applicable for OPEB

Mortality rates
2017 SRA Scale U-MP for pensions and health 

insurance premium benefit

Recovery rates 2012 GLDT for long-term disability
Healthcare cost trend rate Not applicable

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the five-year period ended June 30, 2016. 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

54



The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS plan investments was determined to be 7.5 percent 
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for 
each major asset class of ASRS are summarized in the following table:

ASRS Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-term 
expected 

geometric real 
rate of return

Equity 50% 6.09%
Credit 20% 5.36%
Interest Rate Sensitive Bonds 10% 1.62%
Real Estate 20% 5.85%
Total 100%

Discount Rate. At June 30, 2019, the discount rate used to measure the total pension/OPEB 
liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 
that contributions from participating employers will be made based on the actuarially determined 
rates based on the ASRS Board’s funding policy, which establishes the contractually required rate 
under Arizona statute. Based on those assumptions, the plans' fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, 
the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension/OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension/OPEB (Asset) Liability to Changes 
in the Discount Rate. The following table presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net 
pension/OPEB (asset) liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the 
Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension/OPEB (asset) liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.5 percent) or 1 percentage point 
higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate (In thousands of dollars):

Authority's proportionate share of the
1% Decrease

(6.5%)

Current 
discount rate 

(7.5%)
1% Increase 

(8.5%)

Net pension liability $ 45,868 $ 32,228 $ 20,828 
Net insurance premium benefit liability (asset) 315 (62) (383)
Net long-term disability liability 162 146  131

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the plans' fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued ASRS financial report. The report is available on the ASRS 
website at www.azasrs.gov.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Required Supplementary Information



Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension/OPEB Liability
Cost-sharing plans

ASRS - Pension Reporting Fiscal Year (Measurement Date)

2014
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 through

(2019) (2018) (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014) 2011

Authority's proportion of the net pension liability  0.221 %  0.203 %  0.185 %  0.189 %  0.184 %  0.175 % Information 
Authority's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability $ 32,228 $ 28,339 $ 28,871 $ 30,442 $ 28,687 $ 25,911 

not 
available

Authority's covered payroll $ 23,391 $ 20,564 $ 18,039 $ 17,659 $ 16,963 $ 15,755 
Authority's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll  137.78 %  137.81 %  160.05 %  172.38 %  169.11 %  164.47 %
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability  73.24 %  73.40 %  69.92 %  67.06 %  68.35 %  69.49 %

ASRS - Health insurance premium benefit
Reporting Fiscal Year 
(Measurement Date)

2017
2020 2019 2018 through

(2019) (2018) (2017) 2011

Authority's proportion of the net OPEB (asset)  0.225 %  0.207 %  0.188 % Information 
Authority's proportionate share of the net OPEB 
(asset) $ (62) $ (75) $ (102)

not 
available

Authority's covered payroll $ 23,391 $ 20,564 $ 18,039 
Authority's proportionate share of the net OPEB 
(asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll  (0.27) %  (0.36) %  (0.57) %
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total OPEB liability  101.62 %  102.20 %  103.57 %

ASRS - Long-term disability
Reporting Fiscal Year 
(Measurement Date)

2017
2020 2019 2018 through

(2019) (2018) (2017) 2011

Authority's proportion of the net OPEB liability  0.224 %  0.204 %  0.186 % Information
Authority's proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability $ 146 $ 107 $ 67 

not 
available

Authority's covered payroll $ 23,391 $ 20,564 $ 18,039 
Authority's proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll  0.62 %  0.52 %  0.37 %
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total OPEB liability  72.85 %  77.83 %  84.44 %

Pension schedules in the Required Supplementary Information are intended to show information for ten 
years.  Additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of proportionate share of the net pension/OPEB liability for Cost-Sharing Plan
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(In thousands of dollars)
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ASRS - Pension Reporting Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

2013 
through 

2011

Statutorily required contribution $ 2,777 $ 2,613 $ 2,242 $ 1,945 $ 1,916 $ 1,847 $ 1,686 Information 
Authority's contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution 2,777 2,613 2,242 1,945 1,916 1,847 1,686 

not 
available

Authority's contribution deficiency (excess) $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — — 

Authority's covered payroll $ 23,823 $ 23,391 $ 20,564 $ 18,039 $ 17,659 $ 16,963 $15,755
Authority's contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll  11.66 %  11.17 %  10.90 %  10.78 %  10.85 %  10.89 %  10.70 %

ASRS - Health insurance 
premium benefit Reporting Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017

2016 
through 

2011

Statutorily required contribution $ 119 $ 106 $ 90 101 Information 

Authority's contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution 119 106 90 101 

not 
available

Authority's contribution deficiency (excess) $ — $ — $ — — 

Authority's covered payroll $ 23,823 $ 23,391 $ 20,564 18,039 
Authority's contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll  0.50 % 0.46 %  0.44 %  0.56 %

ASRS - Long-term disability Reporting Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017

2016 
through 

2011

Statutorily required contribution $ 41 $ 37 $ 33 25 Information
Authority's contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution 41 37 33 25

not 
available

Authority's contribution deficiency (excess) $ — $ — $ — — 

Authority's covered payroll $ 23,823 $ 23,391 $ 20,564 18,039 
Authority's contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll  0.17 % 0.16 %  0.16 %  0.14 %

Pension schedules in the Required Supplementary Information are intended to show information for ten 
years.  Additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Pension/OPEB Contributions
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(In thousands of dollars)
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Variance between
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget and

Original Final Amounts Actual Amounts
Revenues:

Sales taxes:
Public transportation funds $ 163,886 $ 163,886 $ 163,534 $ (352) 
Regional area road funds 5,089 5,089 5,092 3 

Intergovernmental:
AZ Lottery fund proceeds 11,200 11,200 11,473 273 
Federal Transit Administration 80 80 104 24 

Charges for services 187 187 199 12 
Interest earnings 261 261 1,032 771 
Miscellaneous — — 268 268 

Total revenues 180,703 180,703 181,702 999 

Expenditures:
Current:
Regional Customer Services:
Marketing 3,219 3,219 2,082 1,137 
Call Center 5,046 5,046 4,905 141 
Other Programs 4,363 4,363 3,951 412 

AZ Lottery Fund Disbursements 11,200 11,200 12,227 (1,027) 
Administration:
Executive director’s office 1,834 1,834 1,709 125 
Finance & management services 4,688 4,688 3,102 1,586 

Capital Outlay 737 737 842 (105) 
Total expenditures 31,087 31,087 28,818 2,269 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 149,616 149,616 152,884 3,268 

Other financing uses:
Transfers in — — — — 
Transfers out (167,061) (171,825) (162,567) 9,258 
Total other financing uses (167,061) (171,825) (162,567) 9,258 

Net change in fund balance (17,445) (22,209) (9,683) 12,526 
Fund balance, beginning 82,551 82,551 39,809 (42,742) 
Fund balance, ending $ 65,106 $ 60,342 $ 30,126 $ (30,216) 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(in thousands of dollars)
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Combining Statements

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

The Transit Planning Fund is a special revenue fund and accounts for the receipt and expenditure of U.S. 
Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration, Federal Transit Technical Studies grant 
monies, regional area road fund sales taxes and member cities local match restricted for various planning 
studies.

The Transportation Demand Management Fund is a special revenue fund and accounts for the receipt 
and expenditure of various grant monies restricted for activities related to the countywide ridesharing 
program, trip reduction program and clean air campaign.
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Transportation Total
Transit Demand Special Revenue

Planning Management Funds
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 8 $ 4 $ 12 
Receivables — 11 11 
Due from other governments 266 230 496 

Total assets $ 274 $ 245 $ 519 

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 161 $ 61 $ 222 
Accrued salaries and benefits 7 4 11 
Due to other funds 2 157 159 
Due to other governments 20 — 20 
Total liabilities 190 222 412 

107 23 130 

Fund balances:  
Restricted 
Unassigned (23) — (23) 

Total fund balances 84 23 107 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 274 $ 245 $ 519 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020
(In thousands of dollars)
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Transportation Total
Transit Demand Special Revenue

Planning Management Funds
Revenues:

Intergovernmental:
State & county grants & federal pass through grants $ 301 $ — $ 301 
Federal Transit Administration 59 — 59 
CMAQ — 1,108 1,108 

Miscellaneous — 28 28 
Total revenues 360 1,136 1,496 

Expenditures:
Current:
Regional planning:
Corridor and facility planning 200 — 200 
Systems and service development 1,314 — 1,314 
Program support & administration 476 — 476 

Transportation demand management:
Trip reduction — 497 497 
Ridesharing — 603 603 
Other programs — 35 35 

Total expenditures 1,990 1,135 3,125 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures (1,630) 1 (1,629) 

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1,714 — 1,714 
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,714 — 1,714 

Net change in fund balances 84 1 85 
Fund balance, beginning — 22 22 
Fund balance, ending $ 84 $ 23 $ 107 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Governmental Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(In thousands of dollars)
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Variance between
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget and

Original Final Amounts Actual Amounts
Revenues:

Intergovernmental:
State & county grants & pass through grants $ 500 $ 500 $ 301 $ (199) 
Federal Transit Administration — — 59 59 

Miscellaneous 183 183 — (183) 
Total revenues 683 683 360 (323) 

Expenditures:
Current:

Regional planning:
Corridor and facility planning 1,091 1,091 200 891 
Systems and service development 610 610 1,314 (704) 
Program support & administration 719 719 476 243 
Total expenditures 2,420 2,420 1,990 430 

Excess of revenues over expenditures (1,737) (1,737) (1,630) 107 

Other financing uses:
Transfers in 1,737 1,737 1,714 (23) 

Total other financing uses 1,737 1,737 1,714 (23) 
Net change in fund balance — — 84 84 

Fund balance, beginning 122 122 — (122) 

Fund balance, ending $ 122 $ 122 $ 84 $ (38) 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual
Transit Planning Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(in thousands of dollars)
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Variance between
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget and

Original Final Amounts Actual Amounts
Revenues:

Intergovernmental:
State grants & pass through grants $ 264 $ 264 $ — $ (264) 
CMAQ 1,007 1,007 1,108 101 

Miscellaneous 45 45 28 (17) 
Total revenues 1,316 1,316 1,136 (180) 

Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation Demand Management:
Trip reduction 659 659 497 162 
Ridesharing 612 612 603 9 
Other programs 45 45 35 10 

Total expenditures 1,316 1,316 1,135 181 

Excess of revenues over expenditures — — 1 1 

Fund balance, beginning (336) (336) 22 358 

Fund balance, ending $ (336) $ (336) $ 23 $ 359 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual
Transportation Demand Management Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(in thousands of dollars)
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Variance between
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget and

Original Final Amounts Actual Amounts
Operating Revenues:

Charges for services $ 46,811 $ 45,864 $ 42,249 (3,615) 
Fare revenues 11,575 11,291 8,746 (2,545) 
Federal Operating Grants 7,773 7,945 13,095 5,150 
Miscellaneous 1,820 1,962 334 (1,628) 

Total operating revenues 67,979 67,062 64,424 (2,638) 

Operating Expenses:
Local & express bus service 99,798 102,299 98,272 4,027 
Paratransit service 22,865 24,615 21,831 2,784 
Vanpool service 889 889 893 (4) 
Safety and security 246 246 219 27 
Lead agency disbursements 17,487 17,487 17,122 * 365 
Contingency 1,207 1,179 — 1,179 
Capital outlay 41,913 45,643 29,579 16,064 

Total operating expenses 184,405 192,358 167,916 24,442 
Operating income (loss) (116,426) (125,296) (103,492) 21,804 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Lead agency disbursements (5,448) (5,083) (6,740) (1,657) 
Interest income 110 110 26 (84) 
Gain on disposal of capital asset — — (306) (306)
Capital conveyance — — (6,759) (6,759)
Debt Service (25,324) (25,324) (3,763) 21,561

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (30,662) (30,297) (17,541) 12,756 
Income (loss) before transfers (147,088) (155,593) (121,033) 34,560 

Capital Contributions 34,485 38,226 32,484 (5,742) 
Transfers in 112,603 117,367 90,363 (27,004) 

147,088 155,593 122,847 (32,746) 
Change in net position

budgetary basis $ — $ — $ 1,814 $ 1,814 

Explanation of differences between budgetary basis and GAAP basis
Change in net position - budgetary basis $ 1,814 
Capital outlay is an expense for budgetary purposes, but assets are
capitalized and are not an expense for GAAP purposes 29,579 
Depreciation is not a budgeted expense, but is an expense for GAAP
purposes (13,630) 
Debt service principal payments are recorded for budgetary purposes, but 
are not recorded for GAAP purposes 3,345 
Compensated absence expenses is not recorded for budgetary purposes,
but is an expense for GAAP purposes. 33 
Pension and OPEB expense is not recorded for budgetary purposes, but 
is an expense for GAAP purposes (369) 
Pension and OPEB contributions are recorded for budgetary purposes, but 
are not recorded for GAAP purposes 164 
Changes in net position per the statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in fund net position $ 20,936 

*Lead agency disbursements for Paratransit activities are reported as operating expenses in the adopted budget.  The actual amount of $17,122(Thousand) for 
lead agency disbursements included in the total operating expenses above is presented as a non-operating expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Position for GAAP Purposes.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Budget to Actual
Transit Service Operations Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(in thousands of dollars)
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Variance between
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget and

Original Final Amounts Actual Amounts
Operating Revenues:

Charges for services $ 26,504 $ 26,504 $ 23,000 $ (3,504) 
Total operating revenues 26,504 26,504 23,000 (3,504) 

Operating Expenses:
Light rail staff and administration 26,504 26,504 23,002 3,502 
Total operating expenses 26,504 26,504 23,002 3,502 

Operating income (loss) — — (2) (2) 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Lead agency disbursements (88,872) (88,872) (89,190) * (318) 
Interest income — — 212 212 
Debt service — — (14,863) (14,863) 
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (88,872) (88,872) (103,841) (14,969) 

Income (loss) before transfers (88,872) (88,872) (103,843) (14,971) 

Transfers in 52,721 52,721 70,490 17,769 

Change in net position -
 budgetary basis $ (36,151) $ (36,151) $ (33,353) $ 2,798 

Explanation of differences between budgetary basis and GAAP basis
Change in net position - budgetary basis $ (33,353) 
Debt Service principal payments are recorded for budgetary purposes, 

but are not recorded for GAAP purpose 13,460 
Compensated absence expenses is not recorded for budgetary purposes,

but is an expense for GAAP purposes. (297) 
Pension and OPEB expense is not recorded for budgetary purposes, but 

is an expense for GAAP purposes (3,823) 
Pension and OPEB contributions are recorded for budgetary purposes, but 

are not recorded for GAAP purposes 1,885 
Changes in net position per the statement of revenues, expenses and

changes in fund net position $ (22,128) 

*Under a new funding agreement, bond-funded disbursements are initially recorded as a note receivable from
Valley Metro Rail, Inc. and subsequently recorded to expense upon the payment of related bond debt principal.
The amount of Note Receivable advance bond proceeds during FY15 was reduced by $9.8 million by the principal
paid in FY20. The aggregate of Lead Agency Disbursements plus the reduction of Note Receivable Advance Bond
Proceeds totaled $99.0 million for the year compared to $101.8 million expended in FY15.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Budget to Actual
Valley Metro Rail Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(in thousands of dollars)
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Statistical Section
The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information regarding the Authority.



Statistical Section

The Statistical Section presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information 
in the financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about the 
Authority’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
Authority’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Authority’s most 
significant local revenue source, the sales tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Authority’s 
current levels of outstanding debt, the Authority’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
There is no statute on the Authority’s debt limit on the issuance of bonds. The only limitation is the 
ability to secure the debts with available excise tax monies.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the Authority’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the Authority’s financial report relates to the services the Authority 
provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 (1) FY 2013/14 (2)

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt $ 1,347 $ 1,199 $ 1,309 $ 1,970 

Restricted 178 189 2,118 2,791 

Unrestricted 51,323 46,388 46,828 48,703 

Total governmental activities net position $ 52,848 $ 47,776 $ 50,255 $ 53,464 

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt $ 21,323 $ 6,529 $ 8,438 $ 43,206 

Restricted — 121 8,287 14,100 

Unrestricted 16,410 51,161 61,618 (33,320) 

Total business-type activities net position $ 37,733 $ 57,810 $ 78,342 $ 23,986 

Primary government
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt $ 22,670 $ 7,728 $ 9,747 $ 45,176 

Restricted 178 309 10,404 16,891 

Unrestricted 67,733 97,549 108,446 15,382 

Total primary government net position $ 90,581 $ 105,586 $ 128,597 $ 77,450 

(1) Total business-type activities net position was restated as of 7/1/13 due to a change in accounting
principle (GASB 65).

(2) Total governmental activities and business-type activities net position was restated as of 7/1/14 due
to a change in accounting principle (GASB 68) and in Debt service presentation.

(3) Total business-type activities net position was restated as of 7/1/16 due to changes in asset
categories and depreciation expense that was not previously recorded for prior year activity.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Net Position By Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting) (In thousands of dollars)
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FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 (3) FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20

$ 1,905 $ 1,917 $ 1,282 $ 1,676 $ 1,166 $ 1,778 

3,121 2,549 2,023 625 47 149 

49,712 70,340 50,218 36,673 24,392 16,516 

$ 54,738 $ 74,806 $ 53,524 $ 38,974 $ 25,605 $ 18,443 

$ 34,551 $ 21,963 $ 20,272 $ 54,557 $ 58,587 $ 77,550 

23,461 21,946 22,955 20,155 19,704 20,436 

(43,169) (68,017) (91,764) (70,579) (50,695) (71,582) 

$ 14,843 $ (24,108) $ (48,537) $ 4,133 $ 27,596 $ 26,404 

$ 36,456 $ 23,880 $ 21,554 $ 56,233 $ 59,753 $ 79,328 
26,582 24,495 24,978 20,780 19,751 20,585 

6,543 2,323 (41,546) (33,906) (26,303) (55,066) 

$ 69,581 $ 50,698 $ 4,986 $ 43,107 $ 53,201 $ 44,847 
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FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 (1) FY 2013/14 (2,3)
Expenses

Governmental activities:

Regional planning:

Long range $ 101 $ 162 $ 148 $ 0 

Short range 1,063 307 298 0 

Capital 113 113 139 0 

Corridor and Facility Planning — — — 231 

Systems and Service Development — — — 818 

Program support 997 705 660 302 

Transportation demand management:

Trip reduction 910 780 777 682 

Ridesharing 590 571 667 589 

Other programs 43 40 143 201 

Regional customer services:

Marketing 2,202 2,019 2,049 1,863 

Call center 3,833 3,579 3,547 3,713 

Other programs 1,960 2,447 2,604 2,661 

AZ Lottery Fund Disbursements — 10,346 10,200 10,795 

Administration:

Executive director’s office 1,284 993 906 995 

Finance & management services 682 828 1,083 1,175 

Total governmental activities expenses 13,778 22,890 23,221 24,025 

Business-type activities:

Transit service operations 90,337 113,092 91,327 148,885 

Light rail transit 66,140 33,665 50,687 108,938 

Total business-type activities expenses 156,477 146,757 142,015 257,823 

Total primary government expenses $ 170,255 $ 169,647 $ 165,236 $ 281,848 

(1) Total business-type activities net position was restated as of 7/1/13 due to a change in accounting
principle (GASB 65).

(2) In FY14, Regional Planning Program activities and titles were changed as part of the budget
process to realign the Planning department. Long range, short range and capital activities were
replaced by Corridor and Facility Planning and Systems and Service Development.

(3) Total governmental activities and business-type activities net position was restated as of 7/1/14
due to a change in accounting principle (GASB 68) and in Debt Service presentation.

(4) Total business-type activities net position was restated as of 7/1/16 due to changes in asset
categories and depreciation expense that was not previously recorded for prior year activity.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting) (In thousands of dollars)
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FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 (4) FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20

$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — 
— — — — — — 
— — — — — — 

699 1,046 345 466 545 200 
1,767 1,061 1,094 1,112 1,859 1,314 

257 292 334 307 371 476 

601 661 611 606 436 497 
579 577 582 560 472 603 
180 270 145 24 48 35 

2,320 2,122 2,311 2,197 2,119 2,082 
3,776 3,639 4,330 4,206 4,654 4,905 
2,721 2,799 2,926 2,830 3,893 3,951 

10,534 10,768 10,366 10,670 16,299 10,227 

1,094 947 1,050 1,471 1,565 1,709 
1,412 1,497 2,359 2,276 3,297 3,508 

25,940 25,679 26,453 26,725 35,558 29,507 

119,341 130,327 153,066 157,724 160,084 166,362 
55,243 84,324 101,890 63,137 69,453 115,830 

174,584 214,651 254,956 220,861 229,537 282,192 

$ 200,524 $ 240,330 $ 281,409 $ 247,586 $ 265,095 $ 311,699 
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FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 (1) FY 2013/14 (2)
Program revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services $ 189 $ 153 $ 176 $ 168 
Operating grants and contributions 2,287 13,602 13,103 13,147 
Capital grants and contributions — — — — 
Total governmental activities
 program revenues 2,476 13,755 13,279 13,315 

Business-type activities:
Charges for services
Transit service operations:

Local & express bus service 9,811 10,256 9,173 31,041 
Paratransit service 2,431 2,638 2,101 4,418 
Vanpool service 319 182 177 411 
Other activities 2,611 2,782 2,121 5,421 

Regional customer services — — — — 
Light rail transit 8,202 9,701 12,294 14,035 

Operating grants and contributions 2,144 1,337 10,717 9,868 
Capital grants and contributions 8,289 31,347 19,661 22,996 
Total business-type activities
 program revenues 33,809 58,243 56,244 88,190 
 program revenues $ 36,285 $ 71,998 $ 69,523 $ 101,505 

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities $ (11,303) $ (9,134) $ (9,942) $ (10,710) 
Business-type activities (122,668) (88,514) (85,770) (169,633) 
expense $ (133,970) $ (97,649) $ (95,712) $ (180,343) 

Changes in
 Net Position
Governmental activities:
Sales taxes $ 107,111 $ 112,353 $ 118,336 $ 126,416 
Interest earnings 80 73 114 146 
Other income 232 100 127 633 
Transfers in (out) (89,250) (108,464) (106,156) (113,275) 

Total governmental activities 18,173 4,062 12,421 13,920 

Business-type activities:
Sales taxes — — — — 
Interest earnings 216 110 137 139 
Other income 561 17 9 2,498 
Transfers in (out) 89,250 108,464 106,156 113,275 
Total business-type activities: 90,026 108,591 106,303 115,912 
Total primary government $ 108,199 $ 112,654 $ 118,723 $ 129,832 

Change in net position:
Governmental activities $ 6,871 $ (5,072) $ 2,478 $ 3,209 
Business-type activities (32,642) 20,077 20,532 (53,721) 
expense $ (25,771) $ 15,005 $ 23,010 $ (50,511) 

(1) Total business-type activities net position was restated as of 7/1/13 due to a change in accounting principle (GASB 65).

(2) Total governmental activities and business-type activities net position was restated as of 7/1/14 due to a change
in accounting principle (GASB 68) and in Debt service presentation.

(3) Total business-type activities net position was restated as of 7/1/16  due to changes in asset categories and
depreciation expense that was not previously recorded for prior year activity.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Changes in Net Position (Continued)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting) (In thousands of dollars)
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FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 (3) FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20

$ 174 $ 192 $ 192 $ 193 $ 199 $ 199 
13,929 13,328 13,371 13,134 12,968 13,045 

— 54 — — — — 

14,103 13,574 13,563 13,327 13,167 13,244 

31,474 30,670 33,526 36,763 39,225 37,182 
4,410 4,701 6,737 7,496 9,079 8,245 

287 323 325 334 314 337 
4,873 4,615 4,832 5,272 5,723 5,231

— — — — — — 
14,950 15,641 14,730 18,712 20,904 23,000
11,990 5,420 1,867 11,631 8,698 13,095 
2,223 10,587 16,923 39,972 14,778 32,484 

70,207 71,957 78,940 120,180 98,721 119,574 
$ 84,310 $ 85,531 $ 92,503 $ 133,507 $ 111,888 $ 132,818 

$ (11,837) $ (12,105) $ (12,890) $ (13,398) $ (22,391) $ (16,263) 
(104,377) (142,694) (176,017) (100,681) (130,816) (162,618) 

$ (116,214) $ (154,799) $ (188,906) $ (114,079) $ (153,207) $ (178,881) 

$ 132,029 $ 136,039 $ 141,792 $ 150,066 $ 160,461 $ 168,626 
162 288 423 765 1,426 1,032 
279 402 80 591 65 296 

(109,916) (104,556) (150,691) (152,573) (152,930) (160,853) 
22,554 32,173 (8,393) (1,151) 9,022 9,101 

— — — — — — 
186 133 346 219 656 239 

1,596 1,289 550 559 693 334 
109,916 104,556 150,691 152,573 152,930 160,853 
111,698 105,978 151,587 153,351 154,279 161,426 

$ 134,252 $ 138,152 $ 143,194 $ 152,200 $ 163,301 $ 170,527 

$ 10,717 $ 20,067 $ (21,283) $ (14,549) $ (13,369) $ (7,162) 
7,321 (36,716) (24,429) 52,670 23,463 (1,192) 

$ 18,038 $ (16,648) $ (45,712) $ 38,121 $ 10,094 $ (8,354) 
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FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14
General fund:

Nonspendable:
Prepaid Items 7 11 8 — 

Restricted 1,887 2,527 

Unassigned 52,165 47,179 47,545 49,385 

Total general fund $ 52,172 $ 47,189 $ 49,440 $ 51,912 

All other governmental funds:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Items 3 — — — 

Restricted 175 189 231 263 

Unassigned — — — — 

Total all other governmental funds $ 178 $ 189 $ 231 $ 263 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
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FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20

86 195 334 363 212 103 

2,820 2,224 1,967 506 — — 

59,916 80,587 60,628 46,417 39,597 30,023 

$ 62,822 $ 83,006 $ 62,929 $ 47,286 $ 39,809 $ 30,126 

— 1 — 8 — — 

301 325 56 74 22 130 

— — — — — (23) 

$ 301 $ 326 $ 56 $ 82 $ 22 $ 107 
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 FY 2010/11  FY 2011/12  FY 2012/13  FY 2013/14 (1) 
Revenues
Sales taxes $ 107,111 $ 112,353 $ 118,336 $ 126,416 

Intergovernmental: 
AZ Lottery Proceeds — 11,666 11,225 11,263 

State & county & pass through grants 636 400 480 681 

Federal Transit Administration 800 589 365 230 

CMAQ 851 947 1,033 974 

Charges for services 189 153 176 168 

Interest earnings 80 73 114 146 

Miscellaneous 233 100 127 633 

Total revenues 109,900 126,282 131,856 140,510 

Expenditures
Governmental activities: 

Regional planning: 
Long range 101 162 148 — 

Short range 1,063 307 298 — 

Capital 113 113 139 — 

Corridor and Facility Planning — — — 231 

Systems and Service Development — — — 818 

Program support 997 705 660 302 

Transportation demand management:
Trip reduction 910 780 777 682 

Ridesharing 590 571 667 589 

Other programs 43 40 143 201 

Regional customer services: 
Marketing 2,202 2,019 2,049 1,863 

Call center 3,833 3,579 3,547 3,713 

Other programs 1,816 2,447 2,604 2,661 

Administration: 
Executive director’s office 1,284 993 906 976 

Finance & management services 360 453 693 756 

AZ Lottery Fund Expenditures — 10,346 10,200 10,795 

Capital outlay 1,113 275 576 1,142 

Total expenditures 14,425 22,790 23,407 24,730 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 95,475 103,492 108,449 115,780 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 1,448 9,957 1,093 1,029 

Transfers out (90,698) (118,421) (107,249) (114,304) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (89,250) (108,464) (106,156) (113,275) 

Net change in fund balances $ 6,225 $ (4,973) $ 2,293 $ 2,507 

(1) Commencing in FY2013/14, the Budget categories for Regional Planning changed from Long range and Short range to Corridor and Facility
Planning and Systems and Service Development.

Valley Metro 
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting) (In thousands of dollars)
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 FY 2014/15  FY 2015/16  FY 2016/17  FY 2017/18  FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20

$ 132,029 $ 136,039 $ 141,792 $ 150,066 $ 160,461 $ 168,626 

11,444 11,502 11,529 11,529 11,464 11,473 
852 117 270 245 448 301 
718 302 297 194 183 163 
915 1,461 1,275 1,166 873 1,108 
174 192 192 193 199 199 
162 288 423 765 1,426 1,032 
279 404 82 592 65 296 

146,573 150,305 155,860 164,750 175,119 183,198 

— — — — — — 
— — — — — — 
— — — — — — 

699 1,046 345 466 545 200 
1,767 1,061 1,094 1,112 1,859 1,314 

257 292 334 307 371 476 

601 661 611 606 436 497 
579 577 582 560 472 603 
180 270 145 24 48 35 

2,320 2,122 2,311 2,197 2,119 2,082 
3,776 3,639 4,330 4,214 4,654 4,905 
2,475 2,630 2,809 2,795 3,880 3,951 

1,094 947 1,050 1,471 1,565 1,709 
987 1,004 1,282 2,229 2,930 3,102 

— — — — — — 
10,534 10,768 10,366 10,670 10,299 12,227 

441 522 258 1,139 550 842 
25,710 25,539 25,517 27,790 29,728 31,943 

120,863 124,766 130,343 136,960 145,391 151,255 

1,721 2,098 1,310 1,555 2,223 1,714 
(111,636) (106,654) (152,001) (154,127) (155,153) (162,567) 
(109,916) (104,556) (150,691) (152,572) (152,930) (160,853) 

$ 10,948 $ 20,210 $ (20,348) $ (15,612) $ (7,539) $ (9,598) 
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FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 

Governmental activities
Regional area road funds $ 4,423 $ 4,464 $ 4,560 $ 4,641 

Public transportation funds 102,689 107,889 113,776 121,774 

Total governmental activities sales taxes $ 107,112 $ 112,353 $ 118,336 $ 126,415 

Business-type activities
Regional area road funds $ — $ — $ — $ — 

Public transportation funds — — — — 

Total business-type activities sales 
taxes $ — $ — $ — $ — 

Primary government
Regional area road funds $ 4,423 $ 4,464 $ 4,560 $ 4,641 

Public transportation funds 102,689 107,889 113,776 121,774 

Total primary government sales taxes $ 107,112 $ 112,353 $ 118,336 $ 126,415 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Sales Tax Revenues by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting) (In thousands of dollars)
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FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20

$ 4,711 $ 4,780 $ 4,828 $ 4,891 $ 4,979 $ 5,092 

127,318 131,259 136,964 145,174 155,482 163,534 

$ 132,029 $ 136,039 $ 141,792 $ 150,065 $ 160,461 $ 168,626 

$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — 

— — — — — — 

$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — 

$ 4,711 $ 4,780 $ 4,828 $ 4,891 $ 4,979 $ 5,092 

127,318 131,259 136,964 145,174 155,482 163,534 

$ 132,029 $ 136,039 $ 141,792 $ 150,065 $ 160,461 $ 168,626 
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FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14

Regional area road funds
Freeways $ 165,321 $ 173,334 $ 182,806 $ 196,106 

Regional Public Transportation
 Authority / Maricopa Association 8,845 8,928 9,119 9,283 

  of Governments (1)
Arterial streets 32,379 34,019 35,875 38,397 

206,545 216,281 227,800 243,786 

102,689 107,889 113,776 121,774 

— — — — 

Total regional area road fund 
distributions

Public transportation funds

Department of Revenue 
administrative fee

Total Maricopa County transportation 
excise tax revenue distributions (2)   $ 309,234 $ 324,170 $ 341,576 $ 365,560 

Source: The Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax Tables for FY 2020 provided by the Arizona Department of 
Transportation, Financial Management Services, Office of Financial Planning. 

Note: The Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax, often referred to as the “1/2 cent sales tax,” is levied upon business 
activities in Maricopa County, including retail sales, contracting, utilities, rental of real and personal property, restaurant 
and bar receipts, and other activities. Under Proposition 300 (passed by the voters in 1985 becoming effective on 
January 1, 1986), the transportation excise tax revenues are deposited in the Maricopa County Regional Area Road 
Fund (RARF) which is administered by the Arizona Department of Transportation. The revenues deposited into the 
RARF account are the principal sources of funding for the Regional Freeway System in Maricopa County and the 
Regional Public Transportation Authority and are dedicated through December 31, 2005. In November 2004, 
Maricopa County’s voters approved Proposition 400, Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax, which became 
effective on January 1, 2006, and extends the 1/2 cent sales tax for another 20 years through December 31, 
2025. The sales tax extension will be used for construction of new freeways, widening of existing freeways and 
highways, improvements to the arterial street system, regional bus service and high-capacity transit services 
such as light rail. The collections of the Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax are as follows: Freeways 
56.2%, Public Transportation Fund 33.3%, and Arterial Streets 10.5%.

(1) The Authority received a portion of the RARF excise tax funds for transit costs through December 31, 2005. On
January 1, 2006 these funds are distributed evenly to the Authority and the Maricopa Association of
Governments to be used for administrative and planning purposes per Proposition 400. These funds are netted
from the Freeway funds.

(2) Distributions are a mix of both Proposition 300 and Proposition 400 collections.

(3) In FY2015/16, the Arizona Department of Revenue assessed a fee of $2.58 million on Regional Transportation
Authorities per Laws 2015, 1st Regular Session, Chapter 323 (HB 2617) to recover a portion of administrative,
program, and other operating costs incurred.

Valley Metro 
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Distributions
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting) (In thousands of dollars)
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FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 (3) FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20

$ 205,305 $ 212,021 $ 221,710 $ 235,390 $ 252,203 $ 264,782 

9,423 9,560 9,656 9,783 9,959 10,184 

40,145 41,388 43,187 45,776 49,026 51,404 

254,873 262,969 274,553 290,949 311,188 326,370 

127,318 131,259 136,964 145,172 155,482 163,023 

— 2,582 2,554 2,531 1,950 1,534 

$ 382,191 $ 396,810 $ 414,071 $ 438,652 $ 468,620 $ 490,927 
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Rental Rental
   Fiscal Retail Restaurant Real Personal
     Year 

(1)
Sales Contracting Utilities and Bar Property Property Other Total

2010/11 $ 152,003 $ 28,012 $ 29,511 $ 31,729 $ 35,731 $ 11,606 $ 20,642 $ 309,234 
2011/12 162,391 30,513 30,217 34,279 36,415 11,966 18,389 324,170
2012/13 172,934 32,660 30,976 36,429 38,097 12,130 18,350 341,576
2013/14 186,406 37,243 31,271 38,532 38,547 12,091 21,470 365,560
2014/15 201,843 36,624 31,087 41,865 40,162 12,876 17,734 382,191
2015/16 214,340 34,543 31,929 44,262 41,794 13,574 16,368 396,810
2016/17 224,240 36,715 31,751 47,478 43,934 14,967 14,985 414,070
2017/18 236,060 40,952 32,895 50,443 46,278 16,229 15,795 438,652
2018/19 251,482 47,599 32,746 53,725 49,672 17,521 15,874 468,619
2019/20 272,930 55,563 31,467 50,533 47,742 17,984 14,883 491,102

Source: The Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax Tables for FY 2020 provided by the Arizona 
Department of Transportation, Financial Management Services, Office of Financial Planning.

Note: The Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax, often referred to as the “1/2 cent sales tax,” is 
levied upon business activities in Maricopa County, including retail sales, contracting, utilities, 
rental of real and personal property, restaurant and bar receipts, and other activities. Under 
Proposition 300 (passed by the voters in 1985 becoming effective on January 1, 1986), the 
transportation excise tax revenues are deposited in the Maricopa County Regional Area Road 
Fund (RARF) which is administered by the Arizona Department of Transportation. The revenues 
deposited into the RARF account are the principal sources of funding for the Regional Freeway 
System in Maricopa County and the Regional Public Transportation Authority and are dedicated 
through December 31, 2005. In November 2004, Maricopa County’s voters approved Proposition 
400, Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax, which became effective on January 1, 2006, 
and extends the 1/2 cent sales tax for another 20 years through December 31, 2025. The sales 
tax extension will be used for construction of new freeways, widening of existing freeways and 
highways, improvements to the arterial street system, regional bus service and high-capacity 
transit services such as light rail. The collections of the Maricopa County Transportation Excise 
Tax are as follows: Freeways 56.2%, Public Transportation Fund 33.3%, and Arterial Streets 
10.5%.

Note: Information for individual taxpayers is confidential, and state statutes prohibit releasing the 
information.

(1) Fiscal year collections are a mix of both Proposition 300 and Proposition 400 collections.

Valley Metro 
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Collections by Category
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars)
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Revenue Category Definitions:

Retail Sales Includes retail sales of automobiles, durable goods and other general merchandise, apparel, 
building materials, furniture and other tangible personal property. The tax on food was 
repealed in July 1980.

Contracting Includes prime contracting and dealership of manufactured buildings and owner-builder 
operations.

Utilities Includes producing and/or furnishing to consumers electricity, natural or artificial gas, and 
water.Restaurant and Bar Includes leasing or renting real property, hotels and motels.

Rental of Real  Property Includes leasing or renting real property, hotels and motels.
Rental of Personal Property Includes leasing or renting tangible personal property such as leased vehicles and 

construction equipment
Other Includes intrastate transportation of persons, freight or operations of property, intrastate 

telecommunication services, intrastate operation of pipelines for oil or natural or artificial gas, 
job printing, engraving, embossing and publication, publication of newspapers, magazines 
and other periodicals, operations of amusement places and miscellaneous other revenues.

Valley Metro 
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Collections by Category
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars)

82



FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15

Retail sales
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  49.160 %  50.100 %  50.630 %  50.990 %  52.810 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %

Contracting
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  9.060 %  9.400 %  9.560 %  10.190 %  9.580 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.512 %

Rental of Real Property (including hotels and motels) (1)
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  11.550 %  11.200 %  11.150 %  10.540 %  10.510 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  1.820 %  1.820 %  1.820 %  1.820 %  1.820 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.512 %  0.512 %  0.512 %  0.512 %  0.512 %

Restaurants and Bars
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  10.260 %  10.600 %  10.670 %  10.540 %  10.950 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %

Utilities
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  9.540 %  9.300 %  9.070 %  8.550 %  8.130 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %

Rental of Personal Property
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  3.750 %  3.700 %  3.550 %  3.310 %  3.370 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %

Communications
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  3.270 %  3.100 %  2.970 %  2.660 %  2.170 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %

Amusements
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  1.180 %  1.200 %  1.140 %  1.090 %  1.220 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %

Publishing and Printing
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  0.520 %  0.400 %  0.470 %  0.350 %  0.380 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %

Other
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  1.710 %  1.000 %  0.790 %  1.770 %  0.880 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %

Mining
Percent of Total Maricopa County
Transaction Privilege Tax Collections  0.000 %  0.000 %  0.000 %  0.000 %  0.000 %
Transaction Privilege Tax Rate  3.125 %  3.125 %  3.125 %  3.125 %  3.125 %
Transportation Excise Tax Rate  0.313 %  0.313 %  0.313 %  0.313 %  0.313 %

Source: The Maricopa County Transportation Excise Tax Tables provided by the Arizona 
Department of Transportation.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Arizona Transaction Privilege Tax Excise Tax Rates by Category
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20

 54.020 %  54.150 %  53.810 %  53.660 %  55.5700 %
 5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.0000 %
 0.500 %  50.000 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.5000 %

 8.710 %  8.870 %  9.340 %  10.160 %  11.3100 %
 5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.0000 %
 0.500 %  50.000 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.5000 %

 10.530 %  10.610 %  10.550 %  10.600 %  9.7200 %
 1.820 %  1.820 %  1.820 %  1.820 %  1.8070 %
 0.512 %  51.200 %  0.512 %  0.512 %  1.0500 %

 11.150 %  11.470 %  11.500 %  11.460 %  10.2900 %
 5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.0000 %
 0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.5000 %

 8.050 %  7.670 %  7.500 %  6.990 %  6.4100 %
 5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.0000 %
 0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.5000 %

 3.420 %  3.610 %  3.700 %  3.740 %  3.6600 %
 5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.0000 %
 0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.5000 %

 1.850 %  1.580 %  1.580 %  1.360 %  1.1800 %
 5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.0000 %
 0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.5000 %

 1.280 %  1.190 %  1.230 %  1.160 %  0.9800 %
 5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.0000 %
 0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.5000 %

 0.330 %  0.300 %  0.270 %  0.240 %  0.1700 %
 5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.0000 %
 0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.5000 %

 0.670 %  0.560 %  0.520 %  0.630 %  0.7000 %
 5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.000 %  5.0000 %
 0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.500 %  0.5000 %

 0.000 %  0.000 %  0.000 %  0.000 %  0.0000 %
 3.125 %  3.125 %  3.125 %  3.125 %  3.1250 %
 0.313 %  0.313 %  0.313 %  0.313 %  0.3125 %
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Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Total

Pledged
Revenue Coverage

2011 $ — $ 5,245 $ 5,245 $ 102,689 19.58
2012 2,265 5,155 7,420 107,889 14.54
2013 5,085 4,951 10,036 113,776 11.34
2014 5,290 7,140 12,430 121,774 9.80
2015 5,555 10,219 15,774 127,318 8.07
2016 14,020 9,265 23,285 131,259 5.64
2017 14,515 8,959 23,474 136,964 5.83
2018 15,230 8,207 23,437 145,174 6.19
2019 15,985 6,541 22,526 155,482 6.90
2020 16,805 6,029 22,834 163,534 7.16

Source: The source of this information is the Authority’s financial records.

Note:On June 30, 2009, the Authority raised $100,075,000 on bonds issued secured by its portion of the 
Transportation Excise Tax revenues collected by the Arizona Department of Revenue.

Note:On January 14, 2014, the Authority raised $115,000,000 on bonds issued secured by its portion of 
the Transportation Excise Tax revenues collected by the Arizona Department of Revenue.

Note:The pledged revenues of the Authority represent future sales taxes to be collected and used to 
repay the debt outstanding.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds
Bond Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years (In thousands of dollars)
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Business-type Activities

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30

Transportation Excise 
Tax Revenue Bonds 
(includes Premium)

Percentage of 
Personal Income Per Capita

2011 $ 105,049  0.07 % 27.52

2012 102,369  0.07 % 26.35

2013 96,870  0.06 % 24.63

2014 226,572  0.14 % 57.43

2015 220,602  0.13 % 54.29

2016 207,124  0.11 % 49.88

2017 189,979 (1) 44.88

2018 169,990 (1) 39.39 

2019 149,594 (1) 33.35 

2020 128,323 (1) (1) 

Governmental Activities

Transportation Excise
Fiscal Year 

Ended June 30
Percentage of 

Personal Income Per Capita
2019 6,000 (1) (1) 

2020 4,000 (1) (1) 

Source: The source of this information is the Authority’s financial records.

(1) Income and Per Capita estimates were not yet available for the fiscal years 2017 through 2020 and
2020, respectively.

(2) Fiscal year 2019 was the first year that a working capital advance from Arizona Department of
Environmental Quality (ADEQ) therefore previous fiscal years are not included.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years (In thousands of dollars)
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Maricopa

Fiscal Total County Cost Revenue
Year Principal Interest Cost Revenue Population (1) Per Capita Per Capita

2011 — 5,245 5,245 102,689 3,817 1 27 
2012 2,265 5,155 7,420 107,889 3,885 2 28 
2013 5,085 4,951 10,036 113,776 3,934 3 29 
2014 5,290 7,140 12,430 121,774 3,945 3 31 
2015 5,555 10,219 15,774 127,318 4,064 4 31 
2016 14,020 9,265 23,285 131,259 4,153 6 32 
2017 14,515 8,959 23,474 136,964 4,233 6 32 

2018 15,230 8,207 23,437 145,174 4,316 5 34 

2019 15,985 6,541 22,526 155,482 4,367 5 36 

2020 16,805 6,029 22,834 163,534 (2) (2) (2) 

(1) Source: Authority’s Financial Records and Workforce Informer Arizona and U.S. Census
Bureau for population

(2) Population and Per Capita estimates were not yet available for the fiscal year 2020.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds
Debt Service Revenue and Cost Per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years (In thousands)
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FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 

Maricopa County 4,023 3,817 3,885 3,934 3,945

Avondale 77 76 77 78 80

Buckeye 53 51 54 56 59

Chandler 245 236 241 246 254

El Mirage 34 32 32 32 34

Gilbert 218 208 220 228 239

Glendale 249 227 229 231 238

Goodyear (1) 62 65 69 72 76

Mesa 461 439 445 450 465

Peoria 159 154 158 161 167

Phoenix 1,575 1,446 1,465 1,486 1,537

Queen Creek (1) 25 26 27 30 32

Scottsdale 244 217 220 222 231

Surprise (1) 109 118 120 122 126

Tempe 175 162 165 165 173

Tolleson (1) 7 7 7 7 7

Source: Workforce Informer Arizona and U.S. Census Bureau

The Regional Public Transportation Authority (“Authority”) was established in 1985 to develop a regional 
transit plan and to develop and operate a regional transit system in Maricopa County, Arizona. The 
Authority is governed by a nineteen-member Board of Directors consisting of a member of the Maricopa 
County Board of Supervisors, and the mayors (or their designees) of the cities of Avondale, Buckeye, 
Chandler, El Mirage, Glendale, Goodyear, Mesa, Peoria, Phoenix, Scottsdale, Surprise, Tempe and 
Tolleson and the towns of Fountain Hills, Gilbert, Queen Creek, Wickenberg and Youngtown. Any 
municipality in Maricopa County may join the Authority and have one elected official serve on the Board 
of Directors by committing a portion of its Arizona Lottery funds to local public transportation.

Note:  Information for FY 2019/20 was not available.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Regional Population Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years (In thousands)

88



FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19

4,064 4,153 4,233 4,316 4,367 

81 83 84 86 88 

62 65 68 74 80 

261 247 253 257 261 

34 35 35 36 36 

248 237 242 248 254 

240 246 247 251 252 

79 77 80 83 87 

472 485 496 509 518 

164 164 168 172 176 

1,563 1,615 1,626 1,660 1,681 

35 36 39 43 51 

237 247 250 255 258 

128 133 134 138 142 

176 182 185 192 196 

7 7 7 7 7 
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2019 2010

Employer Employees Rank
% of 
Total Employees Rank

% of 
Total

 State of Arizona  37,655 1 1.70% 52,420 1 3.02%
 Banner Health  36,213 2 1.63% 27,431 3 1.58%
 Walmart Inc  33,814 3 1.52% 31,280 2 1.80%
 Wells Fargo  15,062 4 0.68% 14,000 5
 City of Phoenix  13,894 5 0.63% 16,375 4 0.94%
 Arizona State University  13,480 6 0.61% 12,043 8 0.69%
 Raytheon Missile Systems 12,000 7 0.54% 11,500 9 0.66%
 Honor Health  11,308 8 0.51%
 Dignity Health  11,206 9 0.51%
 University of Arizona'  10,659 10 0.48%
 Maricopa County  12,996 6 0.75%
 Apollo Inc  12,299 7 0.71%
 Honeywell International  10,145 10 0.58%

Total for Principal Employers 195,291  8.80 % 200,489  11.54 %

Total Employment in Maricopa Cty 2,218,046 1,736,779

Source: Greater Phoenix Economic Council at www.gpec.org for major employers 

Workforce Informer Arizona at www.workforce.az.gov for total employed in Maricopa County

Note:  The information for FY 2020 was not available.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Top Ten Employers for Maricopa County
For the Year 2019 and Nine Years Ago
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FY 2008/2009 FY 2009/2010
FY 2010/2011 

(3)
FY 2011/2012 

(4) FY 2012/2013 FY 2013/2014
Avondale

Local transportation assistance funds received 0   224 224 225 229 230
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

Buckeye (1)
Local transportation assistance funds received — 149 150 150 153 153
Minimum local expenditures required — 
Percentage required 0

Chandler
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 693 694 697 708 712
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

El Mirage
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 93 94 94 95 96
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

Gilbert
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 612 613 615 625 628
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

Glendale
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 665 667 669 680 683
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

Goodyear (1)
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 192 192 193 196 197
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

Maricopa County (1)
Local transportation assistance funds received  NA 834 284 839 853 857 
Minimum local expenditures required  NA 
Percentage required  NA 

Mesa
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 1,288 1,291 1,295 1,316 1,323
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

Peoria
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 452 453 455 462 464
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

Phoenix
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 4,242 4,251 4,265 4,334 4,356
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

Queen Creek (1)
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 76 0 76 78 78 
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

Scottsdale
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 638 639 641 652 655
Minimum local expenditures required 0
Percentage required  0.0 %

Surprise (1) (2)
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 345 346 347 352 354
Minimum local expenditures required 0 
Percentage required  0.0 %

Tempe
Local transportation assistance funds received 0 475 476 477 485 487
Minimum local expenditures required 0 
Percentage required  0.0 %

Tolleson
Local transportation assistance funds received — 19 19 19 20 20
Minimum local expenditures required — 
Percentage required 0

Wickenburg (1)
Local transportation assistance funds received  N/A  N/A 6363 19 19 19 
Minimum local expenditures required  N/A 
Percentage required  N/A 

Source: State of Arizona, Office of the Treasurer and Authority’s financial records

(1) Data for fiscal years prior to membership of the Authority was not available. 

(2) Percentages of proceeds designated for expenditures have been revised according to the reported population starting FY 2005. 

Former State legislation designated that 100% of the proceeds received by participating municipalities with 300,000 or more in population from the Arizona 
State Lottery, known as local transportation assistance funds, must be expended for public transportation in the respective municipalities to maintain a position 
on the Authority’s Board of Directors. For all other municipalities, the requirement is 33.3% for cities with a population between 60,000 and 300,000 and 75% 
for cities with less than 60,000 population. Local transportation assistance funds (“LTAF”) and minimum public transportation expenditures for participating 
municipalities for the last ten years are shown above. 

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Arizona Lottery Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years (In thousands of dollars)
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FY 2016/2017 FY 2017/2018 FY2018/2019  FY2019/2020 

224 225 218 218 

149 177 172 172 

693 693 674 674 

93 95 92 92 

612 661 643 643 

665 668 649 649 

192 214 208 208 

834 842 818 818 

1,288 1,319 1,282 1,282 

452 458 445 445 

4,242 4,344 4,220 4,220 

76 93 0 0 

638 660 642 642 

345 357 347 347 

475 492 478 478 

19 20 19 19 

19 19 18 18

(3) In the seventh special session of the 49th Arizona Legislature (2010), a bill was passed and signed into law that repealed the LTAF program and eliminated the 
distribution all together. 

(4) In September, 2011, due to a lawsuit filed by claimants against ADEQ, a court order reestablished the funding in Maricopa County because the repeal of the law 
violated provisions of the Federal Environmental SIP in areas of non-attainment. Distribution methodology reverted to the original statutory language where the 
Maricopa County RPTA is the direct recipient of funds. The remaining areas of the state where not identified as part of the SIP remain without LTAF II support. 

92



Fiscal Population 
(1,6)

Income (1,6) Per Capita Median School Unemployment
Year (in thousands) Income (1,6) Age (3) Enrollment (4) Rate (2,6)

2011 3,817,117 147,724,392 38,701 35.1 678,593  8.9 %
2012 3,884,705 156,763,179 40,354 35.3 693,276  7.5 %
2013 3,933,712 160,497,824 40,801 35.6 701,842  7.1 %
2014 3,944,859 167,439,604 42,445 35.8 713,323  6.4 %
2015 4,063,700 175,437,829 43,172 36.1 723,452  5.3 %
2016 4,152,800 185,111,698 44,575 36.3 731,673  5.3 %
2017 4,233,300 (5) (5) 36.5 744,816  4.5 %
2018 4,315,600 (5) (5) 34.0 732,996  4.1 %
2019 4,366,583 36.9 759,457  4.5 %
2020 na

(5) 
na

(5) 
na na 765,415 na

(1) Source: Workforce Informer Arizona at www.workforce.az.gov for Maricopa County

(2) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis

(3) Source: U.S. Census Bureau, by calendar year. Data was adjusted for fiscal years 2010 through 2015 for Median age to be
consistent with U.S. Census Bureau.

(4) Source: Arizona Department of Education, Accountability and Research Section. School enrollment is based on the census
at the start of the school year. Data was adjusted for fiscal years 2011 thru 2015.

(5) Income and Per Capita estimates were not yet available for the fiscal year 2017 thru 2019.

(6) Data was adjusted for fiscal years 2005 through 2013 for Population and Income to be consistent with Workforce Informer
Arizona for Maricopa County. Data was adjusted for fiscal years 2005 through 2013 for Unemployment Rate to be
consistent with U.S. Department of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Function/Program
Governmental activities: 

Regional planning 7.7 7.9 7.1 8.1 8.9 8.3 7.3 9.0 8.6 6.8
Transportation demand management 9.0 8.5 7.3 7.3 7.2 6.1 16.6 6.8 5.8 5.7
Regional customer services 72.9 73.3 78.2 68.2 66.8 64.4 54.8 75.6 75.4 76.1
Administration 20.4 19.5 15.5 31.6 32.4 33.3 34.1 41.1 40.5 46.5

Total governmental activities FTE 110.0 109.2 108.1 115.2 115.3 112.1 112.8 132.5 130.2 135.1

Business-type activities: 
Transit service operations 10.1 10.4 11.9 11.8 15.8 16.7 18.3 21.3 21.1 20.8
Light rail transit (1) 84.0 88.5 153.0 161.0 165.2 183.2 179.1 210.3 224.8 271.2

Total business-type activities FTE 94.1 98.9 164.9 172.8 181.0 199.9 197.4 231.6 245.9 292.0

Total primary government FTE 204.1 208.1 273.0 288.0 296.3 312.0 310.2 364.1 376.0 427.0 

Source:  Adopted Valley Metro RPTA and Valley Metro Rail, Inc. Operating Budgets for the applicable years.

(1) Light rail transit staff report to the Valley Metro Rail, Inc. Board of Directors.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Full-time Equivalent Employees (FTE) by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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FY 2009/2010 FY 2010/2011
FY 2011/2012 

(4) FY 2012/2013 FY 2013/2014 (5)
Fixed Route System (1)

City of Phoenix Transit System
Total boardings 35,806,019 37,437,652 37,122,975 37,713,203 36,218,582 
Revenue miles 17,692,736 16,915,379 16,013,826 15,306,424 15,807,220 
Revenue hours 1,196,437 1,125,763 1,225,077 1,110,556 1,288,260 
Operating cost $ 113,744,493 $ 130,360,068 $ 138,046,662 $ 137,800,189 $ 137,009,877 
Operating cost per boarding $ 3.18 $ 3.48 $ 3.72 $ 3.65 $ 3.78 
Farebox recovery ratio  30.9 %  25.7 %  25.1 %  24.4 %  24.8 %

Regional Public Transportation Authority (2)
Total boardings 7,277,608 8,054,520 8,803,900 9,326,130 14,660,186 
Revenue miles 6,392,468 5,902,973 5,738,650 5,954,546 9,831,917 
Revenue hours 438,051 355,964 433,301 439,516 719,979 
Operating cost $ 33,248,059 $ 34,380,383 $ 40,845,490 $ 43,378,047 $ 63,991,098 
Operating cost per boarding $ 4.57 $ 4.27 $ 4.64 $ 4.65 $ 4.36 
Farebox recovery ratio  20.4 %  20.9 %  19.4 %  22.2 %  22.6 %

City of Tempe
Total boardings 5,217,425 8,313,058 5,435,181 5,814,968 NA
Revenue miles 4,889,470 5,678,666 3,803,757 3,753,634 NA
Revenue hours 370,738 498,944 285,591 233,981 NA
Operating cost $ 28,676,837 $ 24,851,193 $ 24,989,805 $ 25,892,432 NA
Operating cost per boarding $ 5.5 $ 2.99 $ 4.6 $ 4.45 NA
Farebox recovery ratio  17.2 %  19.3 %  20.0 %  22.6 % NA

City of Glendale - Luke Link (3)
Total boardings 116,952 110,913 NA NA NA
Revenue miles 101,154 99,773 NA NA NA
Revenue hours 37,006 8,713 NA NA NA
Operating cost $ 820,392 $ 786,101 NA NA NA
Operating cost per boarding $ 7.01 $ 7.09 NA NA NA
Farebox recovery ratio  3.1  3.1 % NA NA NA

Total fixed route system
Total boardings 48,418,004 53,916,143 51,362,056 52,854,301 50,878,768 
Revenue miles 29,075,828 28,596,791 25,556,233 25,014,604 25,639,137 
Revenue hours 2,042,232 1,989,384 1,943,969 1,784,053 2,008,239 
Operating cost $ 176,489,781 $ 190,377,745 $ 203,881,957 $ 207,070,668 $ 201,000,975 
Operating cost per boarding $ 3.65 $ 3.53 $ 3.97 $ 3.92 $ 3.95 
Farebox recovery ratio  26.6 %  23.9 %  23.3 %  23.8 %  24.1 %

Source:  Reports prepared by the Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA).
Annual Transit Performance Report.

(1) Fixed route systems are comprised of various operators and contractors of service in Maricopa County; as the regional
authority, the Regional Public Transportation Authority in its role compiles and reports on system efficiency and
effectiveness performance indicators.

(2) The Regional Public Transportation Authority statistics include the City of Mesa fixed route system and the City of
Scottsdale fixed route system that were separately managed through fiscal year 2004 and fiscal year 2001,
respectively.

(3) NA - City of Glendale did not run a fixed route.

(4) In FY12, operating costs were reported under a new accounting standard to be consistent with the National Transit
Database-NTD. The NTD reporting standard includes additional costs such as regional customer services and
planning.

(5) Commencing FY14, Fixed Route Transit services operated by City of Tempe were united with fixed route services
operated by RPTA.

NR Not reported
Note: Information for fiscal year 2020 was not available at the time the CAFR was drafted.

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Operating Indicators by Program – Fixed Route System
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/2016 FY 2016/2017 FY 2017/2018  FY 2018/2019 

35,657,045 32,985,667 32,702,214 34,426,360 32,966,322 
15,789,798 16,117,459 18,331,497 20,952,046 20,364,814 
1,233,609 1,327,885 1,527,352 1,748,833 1,671,183 

$ 141,260,727 $ 145,727,588 $ 155,973,115 $ 175,762,917 $ 176,208,018.48 
$ 3.96 $ 4.42 $ 4.77 $ 5.11 $ 5.35 

 23.5 %  19.3 %  17.3 %  16.0 %  14.9 %

14,393,943 12,905,511 11,867,741 11,923,532 10,412,260 
9,744,135 9,753,676 10,083,832 10,383,049 9,381,977 

721,629 728,762 758,197 793,202 756,164 
$ 66,927,052 $ 67,265,366 $ 69,590,174 $ 75,480,664 $ 71,199,774.62 
$ 4.65 $ 5.21 $ 5.86 $ 6.33 $ 6.84 

 20.4 %  18.3 %  15.7 %  13.0 %  11.1 %

NA NA NA NA  NA 
NA NA NA NA  NA 
NA NA NA NA  NA 
NA NA NA NA  NA 
NA NA NA NA  NA 
NA NA NA NA  NA 

NA NA NA NA  NA 
NA NA NA NA  NA 
NA NA NA NA  NA 
NA NA NA NA  NA 
NA NA NA NA  NA 
NA NA NA NA  NA 

50,050,988 45,891,178 44,569,955 46,349,892 43,378,582 
25,533,933 25,871,135 28,415,329 31,335,095 29,746,791 
1,955,238 2,056,647 2,285,549 2,542,035 2,427,347 

$ 208,187,779 $ 212,992,954 $ 225,563,289 $ 251,243,581 $ 247,407,793 
$ 4.16 $ 4.64 $ 5.06 $ 5.42 $ 5.70 

 22.5 %  19.0 %  16.8 %  15.0 %  13.8 %
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FY 2009/2010 FY 2010/2011
FY 2011/2012 

(2) FY 2012/2013 FY 2013/2014 FY 2014/2015
Dial-a-Ride System (1)

Phoenix Dial-a-Ride
Total boardings 353,674 328,502 337,182 336,318 328,170 355,948 
Revenue miles 3,675,478 3,464,880 3,485,711 3,467,247 3,710,650 3,823,261 
Revenue hours 283,686 257,874 308,915 255,835 263,459 271,807 
Operating cost $ 14,749,818 $ 15,519,920 $ 16,848,817 $ 17,299,362 $ 17,330,044 $ 16,947,935 
Operating cost per boarding $ 41.70 $ 47.24 $ 49.97 $ 51.44 $ 52.81 $ 47.61 
Farebox recovery ratio  7.3 %  6.3 %  5.8 %  5.3 %  5.7 %  6.0 %

Phoenix Reserve-a-Ride
Total boardings  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Revenue miles  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Revenue hours  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Operating cost  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Operating cost per boarding  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Farebox recovery ratio  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 

Phoenix Taxi
Total boardings 18,821 37,892 58,966 
Revenue miles 101,096 125,513 238,675 
Revenue hours  NR   NR  NR 
Operating cost $ 844,264 $ 852,299 $ 665,592 
Operating cost per boarding $ 44.86 $ 22.49 $ 11.29 
Farebox recovery ratio  17.9 %  20.4 %  25.8 %

East Valley Dial-a-Ride (3)
Total boardings 248,462 234,095 215,536 279,597 316,618 343,411 
Revenue miles 2,123,274 2,191,197 1,299,371 2,141,137 2,530,142 2,674,048 
Revenue hours 129,168 128,335 117,381 79,573 89,164 88,551 
Operating cost $ 9,322,558 $ 9,096,936 $ 12,339,120 $ 10,973,348 $ 11,035,889 $ 10,802,255 
Operating cost per boarding $ 37.52 $ 38.86 $ 57.25 $ 39.25 $ 34.86 $ 31.46 
Farebox recovery ratio  4.9 %  7.8 %  4.5 %  7.1 %  9.3 %  11.3 %

Sun Cities Area Transit
Total boardings 30,509 14,715  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Revenue miles 120,305 53,614  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Revenue hours 30,509 5,367  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Operating cost $ 558,965 $ 228,146  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Operating cost per boarding $ 18.32  $15.50  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Farebox recovery ratio  18.6 %  24.9  NR  NR  NR  NR 

Valley Metro Northwest Dial-a-Ride (2) (3)

Total boardings 33,058 59,260 81,761 89,275 
Revenue miles 263,092 451,977 589,846 602,238 
Revenue hours 8,841 12,373 17,979 18,385 
Operating cost $ 792,405 $ 1,817,524 $ 2,353,161 $ 2,671,905 
Operating cost per boarding $ 23.97 $ 30.67 $ 28.78 $ 29.93 
Farebox recovery ratio  6.2 %  4.1  4.3 $ 0.04 

Valley Metro Paratransit (3)
Total boardings
Revenue miles
Revenue hours
Operating cost
Operating cost per boarding
Farebox recovery ratio

Source:  Reports prepared by the Regional Public Transportation Authority:
Annual Transit Performance Report for fiscal years beginning FY 2010
(1) Dial-a-ride systems are comprised of various operators and contractors of service in Maricopa County; as the regional authority, the Regional Public 

Transportation Authority in its role compiles and reports on system efficiency and effectiveness performance indicators. 
(2) In FY12, operating costs were reported under a new accounting standard to be consistent with the National Transit Database-NTD. The NTD 

reporting standard includes additional costs such as regional customer services and planning. 
(3) In FY19 EVDAR and NWDAR combined to become Valley Metro Paratransit

NR - Not Reported
Note: Information for fiscal year  2020 was not available at the time the CAFR was drafted

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Operating Indicators by Program – Dial-a-Ride System
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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FY 2015/2016 FY 2016/2017 FY 2017/2018  FY 2018/2019 

370,720 313,603 339,092 346,276 
3,924,032 3,394,545 3,398,596 3,429,929 

260,845 263,622 267,299 263,492 
$ 17,083,365 $ 18,301,279 $ 19,524,465 $ 20,080,991 
$ 46.08 $ 58.36 $ 57.58 $ 57.99 

 6.2 %  4.6 %  5.0 %  4.5 %

 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 

55,074 51,952 48,408 54,720 
242,412 228,480 221,318 253,898 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 
$ 657,377 $ 631,530 $ 610,173 $ 733,345 
$ 11.94 $ 12.16 $ 12.60 $ 13.40 

 26.1 %  26.1 %  23.0 %  11.2 %

358,484 315,518 250,106  NR 

2,818,955 2,354,948 2,426,494  NR 

104,079 88,720 163,261  NR 

$ 12,453,370 $ 11,743,510 $ 11,199,040  NR 

$ 34.74 $ 37.22 $ 44.78  NR 
 10.3 %  9.6 %  8.0 % NR

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

101,919 122,739 77,532  NR 

720,661 919,294 859,325  NR 

22,760 28,885 55,111  NR 

$ 3,449,893 $ 4,119,872 $ 3,411,138  NR 

$ 33.85 $ 33.57 $ 44.00  NR 

 3.7 %  3.5 %  2.0 %  NR 

526,686 
6,163,714 

329,744 
$ 27,751,268 
$ 52.69 

 5.8 %
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FY 2009/2010 FY 2010/2011
FY 2011/2012 

(2) FY 2012/2013 FY 2013/2014 FY 2014/2015
Dial-a-Ride System (1)

Valley Metro Ridechoice
Total boardings 65,168 144,299 48,834 51,850 
Revenue miles  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Revenue hours  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Operating cost $ 1,521,274.00 $ 2,374,019.00 $ 1,148,091.00 $ 1,104,528 
Operating cost per boarding  23.4  16.5  23.5        $ 21.30 
Farebox recovery ratio  8.4 %  5.1 %  15.3 %  12.6 %

Scottsdale Taxi
Total boardings 53,476 54,538 63,113 51,170 
Revenue miles  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Revenue hours  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Operating cost $ 431,037.00 $ 460,760.00 $ 568,054.00 $ 472,515 
Operating cost per boarding  8.1  8.5  9.0        $ 9.2 
Farebox recovery ratio  20.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %

Glendale Dial-a-Ride
Total boardings 89,808 97,741 96,683 93,305 85,649 84,819 
Revenue miles 411,136  406,413 404,838 388,368 389,372 391,406 
Revenue hours 29,927 30,347 29,957 28,975 35,216 37,076 
Operating cost $ 2,430,543 $ 2,604,743 

$

2,620,334 $ 2,622,120 $ 2,427,706 $ 2,344,055 
Operating cost per boarding $ 27.06 $ 26.65 $ 27.10 $ 28.10 $ 28.34 $ 27.64 
Farebox recovery ratio  4.3 %  4.0 %  4.0 %  1.7 %  3.1 %  3.3 %

Peoria Dial-a-Ride
Total boardings 32,921 29,317 30,943 24,201 25,281 23,861 
Revenue miles 158,846  122,789 141,596 98,999 101,211 86,519 
Revenue hours 13,218 8,156 7,652 6,935 7,912 6,679 
Operating cost $ 1,109,380 $ 1,006,618 $ 903,468 $ 955,554 $ 1,104,216 $ 777,579 
Operating cost per boarding $ 33.70 $ 34.34 $ 29.20 $ 39.48 $ 43.68 $ 32.59 
Farebox recovery ratio  2.9 %  3.1 %  3.0 %  2.7 %  2.6 %  3.8 %

El Mirage Dial-a-Ride
Total boardings  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Revenue miles  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Revenue hours  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Operating cost  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Operating cost per boarding  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
Farebox recovery ratio  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 

Surprise Dial-a-Ride
Total boardings 22,151 23,942 24,301 5,926  NR  NR 
Revenue miles 83,761 81,859 84,636 17,880  NR  NR 
Revenue hours 8,561 8,601 8,955 1,976  NR  NR 
Operating cost $ 591,150 $ 617,751 $ 661,287 $ 127,252  NR  NR 
Operating cost per boarding $ 26.69 $ 25.80 $ 27.21 $ 24.03  NR  NR 
Farebox recovery ratio  3.8 %  4.1 %  3.7 %  3.8 %  NR  NR 

Total Dial-a-Ride System
Total boardings 777,525 728,312 856,347 997,444 987,318 1,059,300 
Revenue miles 6,572,800 6,320,752 5,679,244 6,565,608 7,446,734 7,816,147 
Revenue hours 495,069 438,680 481,701 385,667 413,730 422,498 
Operating cost $ 28,762,414 $ 29,074,114 $ 36,117,742 $ 36,629,939 $ 36,819,460 $ 35,786,364 
Operating cost per boarding $ 36.99 $ 39.92 $ 42.18 $ 36.72 $ 37.29 $ 33.78 
Farebox recovery ratio  6.2 %  6.8 %  5.4 %  5.9 %  7.0 %  7.7 %

Source:  Reports prepared by the Regional Public Transportation Authority:
Annual Transit Performance Report for fiscal years beginning FY 2009.

(1) Dial-a-ride systems are comprised of various operators and contractors of service in Maricopa County; as the regional authority, the
Regional Public Transportation Authority in its role compiles and reports on system efficiency and effectiveness performance
indicators.

(2) In FY12, operating costs were reported under a new accounting standard to be consistent with the National Transit Database-NTD.
The NTD reporting standard includes additional costs such as regional customer services and planning.

NR  Not reported

Note: Information for fiscal year 2020 was not available at the time the CAFR was drafted.
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FY 2015/2016 FY 2016/2017 FY 2017/2018 FY 2018/2019

48,675 44,075 67,427 78,901 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 

$ 1,028,574 $ 1,062,949 $ 1,463,422 $ 1,537,384 
$ 21.13 $ 24.12 $ 21.70 $ 19.48 

 13.3 %  12.6 %  24.0 %  21.3 %

37,094 33,817 32,233 28,767 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 

$ 331,436 $ 335,245 $ 319,655 $ 287,026 
$ 8.94 $ 9.91 $ 9.92 $ 9.98 

 0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 % NR

80,114 76,879 76,728 77,051 
354,503 293,920 280,391 323,981 
34,386 25,995 25,481 33,006 

$ 2,419,238 $ 2,814,669 $ 2,782,853 $ 2,641,451 
$ 30.20 $ 36.61 $ 36.27 $ 34.28 

 3.1 %  2.6 %  4.0 %  5.4 %

22,637 21,016 20,871 21,613 
81,683 79,174 83,401 90,030 
7,317 7,758 7,837 9,675 

$ 866,278 $ 775,743 $ 1,019,864 $ 1,149,108 
$ 38.27 $ 36.91 $ 48.87 $ 53.17 

 4.0 %  3.5 %  3.0 % NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

 NR  NR  NR  NR 

1,074,717 1,142,308 1,096,336 1,134,014 
8,142,246 9,622,006 10,492,881 10,261,552 

429,387 478,822 621,276 635,917 
$ 35,786,364 $ 49,855,716 $ 48,263,639 $ 54,180,573 
$ 33.30 $ 43.64 $ 44.02 $ 47.78 

 7.6 %  6.2 %  6.7 %  6.0 %
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FY 2009/2010 FY 2010/2011 FY 2011/2012 (6) FY 2012/2013 FY 2013/2014 (7)
Shuttle/Circulator System

City of Phoenix (1) 
Total boardings 2,643,678 1,410,810 1,325,435 1,876,635 2,679,891 
Revenue miles 1,609,412 624,617 518,763 671,245 786,672 
Revenue hours 99,367 37,488 39,210 48,686 71,356 
Operating cost $ 7,306,773 $ 4,062,374 $ 3,849,920 $ 5,337,126 $ 6,228,762 
Operating cost per boarding $ 2.76 $ 2.88 $ 2.90 $ 2.84 $ 2.32 
Farebox recovery ratio  0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %

City of Tempe (2) 
Total boardings 3,660,543 3,143,824 3,490,934 3,081,111  NR 
Revenue miles 1,819,126 1,489,463 1,506,444 1,449,887  NR 
Revenue hours 194,057 169,543 168,166 145,472  NR 
Operating cost $ 10,070,159 $ 9,191,363 $ 9,404,570 $ 10,001,270  NR 
Operating cost per boarding $ 2.75 $ 2.92 $ 2.69 $ 3.25  NR 
Farebox recovery ratio  0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %  NR 

City of Scottsdale (3)
Total boardings 652,230 897,858 969,718 897,167 955,627 
Revenue miles 358,482 619,658 480,480 552,033 629,453 
Revenue hours 37,006  NR 60,857 171,339 57,547 
Operating cost  NR $ 2,570,545 $ 2,645,244 $ 2,581,006 $ 2,687,328 
Operating cost per boarding  NR $ 2.86 $ 2.73 $ 2.88 $ 2.81 
Farebox recovery ratio  NR  NR  0.0  0.0 %  0.0 %

City of Glendale (4) 
Total boardings 116,952 110,915 120,642 120,885 119,248 
Revenue miles 104,154 99,773 98,668 95,244 93,981 
Revenue hours 12,412 8,713 8,713 8,498 8,562 
Operating cost $ 820,392 $ 786,101 $ 812,589 $ 812,589 $ 802,959 
Operating cost per boarding $ 7.01 $ 7.09 $ 6.74 $ 6.72 $ 6.73 
Farebox recovery ratio  3.1 %  3.1 %  3.3 %  3.3 %  3.3 %

Regional Public Transportation Authority (5) 
Total boardings 200,504 211,887 204,176 293,613 3,172,246 
Revenue miles 105,935 104,540 279,762 369,149 1,814,134 
Revenue hours 8,726 8,044 22,045 28,723 180,374 
Operating cost 547,823 618,061 $ 1,533,426 $ 1,920,057 $ 10,913,672 
Operating cost per boarding 2.73 2.92 $ 7.51 $ 6.54 $ 3.44 
Farebox recovery ratio — —  2.9 %  4.2 %  0.7 %

Total Shuttle/Circulator System
Total boardings 7,273,907 5,775,294 6,110,905 6,269,411 6,927,012 
Revenue miles 3,997,109 2,938,051 2,884,117 3,137,558 3,324,240 
Revenue hours 351,568 223,788 298,991 402,718 317,839 
Operating cost $ 18,745,147 $ 17,228,444 $ 18,245,749 $ 20,652,048 $ 20,632,721 
Operating cost per boarding $ 2.58 $ 2.98 $ 2.99 $ 3.29 $ 2.98 
Farebox recovery ratio  NR  0.1  0.4 %  0.4 %  0.5 %

Source: Reports prepared by the Regional Public Transportation Authority: 
Annual Transit Performance Report for fiscal years beginning FY 2009.

(1) City of Phoenix - Alex, Dash, Mary & Smart.
(2) City of Tempe - FLASH, Orbit-Earth, Jupiter, Mars, Mercury & Venus. 
(3) City of Scottsdale - Neighborhood Trolley, Miller Road Trolley, and Downtown Trolley. 
(4) City of Glendale - GUS 
(5) RPTA- Mesa BUZZ 
(6) In FY12, operating costs were reported under a new accounting standard to be consistent with the National Transit Database-NTD. The NTD 

reporting standard includes additional costs such as regional customer services and planning. 

(7) Commencing in FY14 Circulator transit services operated by City of Tempe were unified with RPTA circulator transit services. 

Note: Information for FY 2020 was not available at the time the CAFR was drafted.
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FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/2016 FY 2016/2017 FY 2017/2018  FY 2018/2019 

2,669,161 1,631,035 1,022,887 938,187 841,375 
724,333 598,183 533,418 531,586 519,355 
62,471 57,138 50,595 50,525 49,053 

$ 5,270,763 $ 3,188,246 $ 3,430,970 $ 3,456,011 $ 4,219,496 
$ 1.97 $ 1.95 $ 3.35 $ 3.68 $ 5.02 

 0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %

 NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 
 NR  NR  NR  NR  NR 

880,858 864,534 894,633 798,825 771,902 
631,772 729,748 834,136 843,559 1,053,495 
59,377 64,851 70,174 69,801 77,717 

$ 3,555,556 $ 4,709,528 $ 5,144,000 $ 4,446,308 $ 3,387,145 
$ 4.04 $ 5.45 $ 6.05 $ 5.57 $ 4.39 

 0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 %  1.0 %  0.0 %

103,538 91,245 84,440 104,385 125,033 
90,554 93,335 98,046 98,756 94,565 
8,001 7,829 8,581 8,902 8,745 

$ 654,692 $ 689,665 $ 890,261 $ 966,039 $ 1,093,323 
$ 6.32 $ 7.56 $ 10.54 $ 9.25 $ 8.74 

 3.7 %  3.1 %  2.3 %  1.0 %  0.0 %

2,752,254 3,278,149 2,899,066 2,790,091 2,844,489 
1,851,992 1,898,958 1,901,805 2,156,795 2,423,094 

200,237 204,012 203,069 212,809 231,833 
$ 11,196,470 $ 12,075,097 $ 12,212,501 $ 14,340,518 $ 16,663,099 
$ 4.07 $ 3.68 $ 4.21 $ 5.14 $ 5.86 

 0.7 %  0.5 %  0.5 %  2.0 %  0.7 %

6,405,811 5,864,963 4,856,026 4,631,488 4,582,799 
3,298,651 3,320,224 3,367,405 3,630,696 4,090,509 

330,086 333,830 332,419 342,038 367,348 
$ 20,677,481 $ 20,662,536 $ 21,677,732 $ 23,208,876 $ 25,363,063 
$ 3.23 $ 3.52 $ 4.46 $ 5.01 $ 5.53 

 0.5 %  0.4 %  0.4 %  1.0 %  0.0 %
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Fiscal Local and Paratransit /
Year Express Bus Dial-a-Ride Vanpool

2010/11 242 80 376
2011/12 205 58 400
2012/13 207 25 419
2013/14 225 2 433
2014/15 223 1 431
2015/16 223 0 435
2016/17 230 0 438
2017/18 278 0 440
2018/19 253 0 420
2019/20 278 0 435

Source: Reports prepared by the Regional Public Transportation Authority

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Revenue Vehicles for Transit Service Operations
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority
Phoenix, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Valley Metro Regional 
Public Transportation Authority (Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority
as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information – Schedule of 
the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension/OPEB Liability and Contributions and the 
General Fund budgetary comparison schedule, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary 
information which include the Introductory Section, Other Supplementary Information – Combining and 
Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules, and Statistical Section are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Other Supplementary Information – Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and 
Schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements 
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Other
Supplementary Information – Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The introductory Section and Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
January 27, 2021, on our consideration of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority‘s 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Valley Metro 
Regional Public Transportation Authority‘s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority‘s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
January 27, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 27, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority‘s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
January 27, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE,

AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority
Phoenix, Arizona

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority (the Authority)’s compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2020. The Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s
compliance.



Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority

(4)

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority

(5)

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Valley Metro Regional Public 
Transportation Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. We issued 
our report thereon dated January 27, 2021, which contained unmodified opinions on the financial 
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
January 27, 2021
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Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

 Material weakness(es) identified? yes         X no

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?         yes        X         none reported

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted?         yes         X no

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs:

 Material weakness(es) identified?          yes       X        no

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?         yes        X        none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on 
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 
2 CFR 200.516(a)?         yes         X no

Identification of Major Federal Programs

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.500, 20.507, 20.525, 20.526 Federal Transit Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $   1,410,174

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?           X yes                      no
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Section II – Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Section III – Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Programs

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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CFDA Pass-Through Pass-Through Awards to
Number Grantor Grant Number Expended Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Transit Administration

Federal Transit Program Cluster:

Federal Transit Capital Investment Grant (Section 5309) 20.500 City of Phoenix AZ-04-0004 9,593$          -$                 

Subtotal CFDA No. 20.500 9,593            -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-90-X136 2,079            -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-90-X137 57,054          -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2018-009 2,746,920     -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2018-015 959,811        -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2019-014 18,644,716   -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2019-015 1,562,469     -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2020-008 10,524,522   -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307)  (CARES) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2020-015 4,401,795     -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307)  (CARES) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2020-016 901,513        -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2018-014 1,247,054     -                   

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Section 5307) 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2018-025 2,187,177     -                   

Subtotal CFDA No. 20.507 43,235,110   -                   

State of Good Repair Grant Program (Section 5337) 20.525 City of Phoenix AZ-2018-010 701,660        -                   

Subtotal CFDA No. 20.525 701,660        

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program (Section 5339) 20.526 City of Phoenix AZ-2016-011 63,454          

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program (Section 5339) 20.526 City of Phoenix AZ-2018-008 94,957          -                   

Subtotal CFDA No. 20.526 158,411        -                   

    Total Federal Transit Cluster CFDA No. 20.500, 20.507, 20.525, 20.526 44,104,774   -                   

Metropolitan Transportation Planning and State and Non-Metropolitan

 Planning and Research 20.505 MAG 822 224,717        -                   

Subtotal CFDA No. 20.505 224,717        

Formula Grants for Rural Areas (Section 5311) GB 20.509 ADOT AZ-2016-019 109,575        -                   

Formula Grants for Rural Areas (Section 5311) GB 20.509 ADOT AZ-2018-017 100,619        -                   

Formula Grants for Rural Areas (Section 5311) GB 20.509 ADOT AZ-2019-022 163,887        -                   

Formula Grants for Rural Areas (Section 5311) GB  (CARES) 20.509 ADOT AZ-2020-021 381,326        -                   

Formula Grants for Rural Areas (Section 5311) GB 20.509 ADOT AZ-18-X077 30,453          -                   

Subtotal CFDA No. 20.509 785,860        -                   

Transit Services Program Cluster:

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 20.513 City of Phoenix AZ-2016-017 6,797            -                   
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 20.513 City of Phoenix AZ-2019-003 149,295        -                   

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 20.513 City of Phoenix AZ-2019-038 626,703        -                   

Total Transit Services Programs Cluster CFDA No. 20.513 782,795        -                   

    Total Federal Transit Administration 45,898,146   -                   

Federal Highway Administration

Highway Planning and Construction (Federal Aid Highway Program) 20.205 MAG MAGQ019 609,277        -                   

Highway Planning and Construction (Federal Aid Highway Program) 20.205 Maricopa County C-85-18-008-M-01 348,363        -                   

Highway Planning and Construction (Federal Aid Highway Program) 20.205 Maricopa County C-85-18-019-3-00 150,000        -                   

Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster CFDA No. 20.205 1,107,640     -                   

    Total Federal Highway Administration 1,107,640     -                   

    Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 47,005,786$ -$                 

Federal Grantor Agency and Program Title
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NOTE 1 GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) presents the 
activity of all federal awards of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority
(Authority). The Authority’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the Authority’s basic 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020. All federal awards received from 
federal agencies are included in the schedule. The information in this Schedule is presented 
in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the 
Authority, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net 
position, or cash flows of the Authority.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, except 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are 
recorded only when payment is due. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost 
principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not 
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST

The Authority did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate. 

NOTE 4 PASS-THROUGH GRANTORS REFERECE

The Authority receives all federal awards as pass-through from other governmental and 
nonprofit agencies. Abbreviations are as follows:

ADOT Arizona Department of Transportation
MAG Maricopa Association of Governments

NOTE 5 FEDERAL ASSISTANCE NOT INCLUDED

Expenditures related to assistance not considered federal awards in accordance with the 
Uniform Grant Guidance have not been presented in this schedule as follows:

Capital Reinvestment:

Beginning Balance $  1,383,473
Proceeds from the Sale of Federally Funded Assets 357,922
Federally Funded Proceeds Reinvested                   -

Ending Balance $  1,741,435

Capital reinvestment represents the proceeds from the sale of federally funded assets.
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NOTE 6 DONATED PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT

In June of 2020, the Authority received a donation of 25,000 cloth face coverings from the 
Federal Transportation Authority as part of the COVID-19 response. These face coverings
were donated at no cost to the Authority. The estimated fair market value at the time of the 
donation of the personal protective equipment is $17,500. The value of the donated 
personal protective equipment is not included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards.



Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC,  
an SEC-registered investment advisor.  |  CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
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 Valley Metro

Rail System Fact Sheet

SYSTEM OVERVIEW
• Number of miles: 28

• Number of stations: 38

• Number of vehicles: 50

• Number of parking spaces: 4,488

• Total travel time: 90 minutes

• Cost to ride: $2.00 per ride
$4.00 1-Day Pass

ABOUT VALLEY METRO RAIL
Valley Metro Rail is responsible for the planning, design, construction and operations 
of the region’s light rail/high-capacity transit system, serving nearly 13 million total 
passengers in Fiscal Year 2020.

The initial 20-mile light rail line opened on December 27, 2008. Two extensions 
began service by spring 2016, adding six more miles and connecting downtown 
Mesa to northwest Phoenix. In 2019, the line extended 1.9 miles east to the new 
Gilbert Rd/Main St light rail station, where there are additional transit connections. 
The 50th St/Washington station also opened in 2019 with enhanced accessibility 
features, including advanced pedestrian detection crosswalk signals, wider  
platforms and gently sloped entries.

The 38 stations were designed with significant consideration given to the desert 
sun and heat. Eleven park-and-rides provide 4,488 parking spaces along 28 miles. 
Artwork is also an integral part of the urban system, reflecting the history and  
culture of local neighborhoods.

Each light rail vehicle has a comfort capacity of 175 passengers and features 
state-of-the-art technology designed for the urban desert climate.

The system is expanding, with three new extensions currently under construction: 
Northwest Extension Phase II, South Central Extension/Downtown Hub and  
Tempe Streetcar.

To stop the spread of COVID-19, riders are required to wear face coverings 
and encouraged to social distance on board.   
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OPERATIONS
Valley Metro Rail operates 365 days a year, 20+ hours a day, with 12-minute peak 
frequency. In March 2020, peak hour service was adjusted to operate every 15 minutes 
as a response to COVID-19 impacts. The cost of operations is supported by rail 
member cities, passenger fares and advertising.

Rail service is coordinated with bus service to provide a seamless transit network 
for customers. Transit passes can be purchased at fare vending machines located at 
each station, online or from retail outlets valleywide. Security officers regularly patrol 
the system and ask passengers at random for proof of payment. Violators are subject 
to fines ranging from $50 to $500 and can even lose their transit privileges. As of 
FY 2020, 10 Customer Experience Coordinators were added as a way to help riders 
throughout the system, providing a welcoming presence and aiding with wayfinding 
and purchasing correct fare.

The Valley Metro Rail system connects the region to the cities of Phoenix, Tempe and 
Mesa. It provides connections to work, education and entertainment. There are many 
sports, shopping, restaurants and arts and culture destinations along the line. Valley 
Metro Rail also connects to Phoenix Sky Harbor International Airport with PHX Sky 
Train® at the 44th St/Washington station. 

Rail is a catalyst for jobs and economic development with $14.4 billion in public and 
private sector investment since 2008.

FUTURE  
EXPANSION
Five high-capacity 
extensions are planned 
or under construction 
to create a 50-mile 
system by 2030. The 
Valley Metro Rail Board 
of Directors sets the 
policy direction for the 
system with the intent 
of advancing regional 
public transit in  
the Valley.

FUNDING SOURCES

TEN BUSIEST STATIONS
1. 19th Ave/Dunlap

2. Gilbert Rd/Main St

3. 19th Ave/Montebello

4. 44th St/Washington

5. 19th Ave/Camelback

6. Van Buren/Central Ave

7. Veterans Way/College Ave

8. University Dr/Rural

9. Jefferson/1st Ave

10. McDowell/Central Ave

@valleymetro

 Fares
 Member Cities
 Federal
 Advertising

16%

3%
3%

78%

valleymetro.org 
602.262.7433   |   TTY 602.251.2039

101 N. 1st Ave., Suite 1400, Phoenix, AZ 85003
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INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
The Introductory Section includes Valley Metro Rail's transmittal letter, policy organizational chart, 

and list of appointed officials 



Beginning Wednesday, July 1, passengers were required to wear face coverings while riding transit on Valley 
Metro to help prevent the spread of COVID-19. Valley Metro provided face coverings to riders at transit centers 
and light rail stations. 
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101 N. 1st Ave. Suite 1400 
Phoenix, AZ 85003 
valleymetro.org 
602.253.5000 

November 10, 2020 

To Chairman and Members of the Valley Metro Rail, Inc. Board of Directors: 

The comprehensive annual financial report of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR) for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020, is hereby submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bylaws and Board 
directives. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, 
the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner that presents fairly 
the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of VMR. All disclosures necessary to enable 
the reader to gain an understanding of VMR’s activities have been included. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for local governments as prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (AICPA). 

The independent auditors, CliftonLarsonAllen LLP., whose report is included herein, have audited the 
basic financial statements and related notes. As stated in the independent auditors' report, the goal of 
the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the basic financial statements of VMR 
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are free from material misstatement. The independent 
audit involved examining, on a test basis; evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; assessing accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditors 
concluded, based upon their audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified 
opinion that the basic financial statements of VMR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors’ report is 
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 

Additionally, VMR is required to have an independent audit of expenditures of federal awards received 
(Single Audit) by VMR directly from federal agencies, or passed through to VMR by other governmental 
entities during the fiscal year. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the 
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on 
VMR’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements having a direct and material impact on 
major programs, with special emphasis on internal controls and compliance requirements involving the 
administration of major federal awards. The results of VMR’s Single Audit for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2020, found no instances of material weakness in the internal control structure or significant 
violations of applicable laws and regulations with respect to major programs. The auditors’ reports on 
internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations are included in a separately 
issued Single Audit Report. 

The financial statements are prepared and presented in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. More information about the presentation can be found in 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) beginning on page 4 and also discussed in the notes 
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to the financial statements beginning on page 13. This transmittal letter is designed to complement 
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. 

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 

VMR was established in October 2002 as a public nonprofit corporation to manage the design, 
construction and operation of the Light Rail Transit (LRT) System within the Phoenix Metropolitan Area. 
Membership is governed by a Joint Powers Agreement and the By-Laws of the corporation. Current 
membership consists of the cites of Phoenix, Tempe, Mesa, and Chandler. 

During the fiscal year 2020, a four-member Board of Directors governed VMR, consisting of the mayors 
or the designated representatives from each member city. The Board of Directors establishes overall 
policies for management and administration of the LRT System, provides oversight over the design, 
construction and operation of light rail, and receives and disburses funds and grants from federal, state, 
local, and other funding sources. A Chief Executive Officer, appointed by the Board of Directors, is 
responsible for the day-to-day management of the organization. 

Funding Milestones 

On November 2, 2004, the voters of Maricopa County approved Proposition 400, the continuation of 
the transportation excise tax, for a twenty-year period, beginning in calendar year 2006. A major 
milestone in transportation funding and service in the region, the proposition had unanimous support 
from the mayors of all the cities in the region and the Maricopa County Board of Supervisors, the 
Maricopa Association of Governments Regional Council, and the Arizona Department of Transportation. 

In August 2015, Phoenix voters approved Proposition 104, which extended the dedicated transportation 
tax sunset from 2020 to 2050. In addition, it raised the tax rate from 0.4% to 0.7%. The revenues are 
intended to support a variety of transportation projects in the City of Phoenix, including many light rail 
transit projects. 

LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

VMR serves the cities of Phoenix, Tempe, Mesa and Chandler that are centrally located in Maricopa 
County, Arizona. These cities collectively encompass approximately 760 square miles. Together they 
form a significant portion of the greater metropolitan Phoenix area, which is the economic, political, and 
population center of Arizona. 

The combined four cities have grown from 2.28 million residents in the year 2010 to 2.66 million 
residents in 2019, an increase of approximately 16.7% in the last nine years. The four cities’ population 
represents over 59% of the total Maricopa County population. According to the Greater Phoenix 
Economic Council, population in the region is projected to grow at more than twice the national rate for 
the next few decades, growing from 4.0 million in 2010 to 6.5 million in 2030. 

The outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, specifically identified as "COVID 19", has resulted in 
Arizona governments enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These 
measures which include the implementation of travel bans, self-imposed quarantine periods and social 
distancing, have caused material disruptions to business in Arizona resulting in an economic slowdown. 
Prior to the emergency measures, Arizona continued to show steady growth in jobs and income, with 
the Phoenix metropolitan area driving the job gains. After the emergency measures were implemented 
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Arizona and the greater Phoenix area experienced substantial declines in employment and income. At 
this time, it is not possible to estimate the length of continued severity of these developments. In spite 
of the economic disruptions, personal income for the Phoenix area is forecasted to grow, annually, 
between 3% and 6% over the next four years. Retail sales growth is projected between 1% to 7% during 
the same period. Non-farm job growth is projected to decline in 2020 by 2% but then grow, annually, 
between 2% and 4% through 2023. These projections are published by the University of Arizona, 
Economic and Business Research Center. Sales tax projections prepared by Arizona Department of 
Transportation forecast the revenues to grow by an average of 5.7% per year for the next five years. 

FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Accounting and Administrative Controls 

As previously noted, VMR’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal 
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of VMR are protected from loss, theft or misuse 
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. VMR’s internal control structure 
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The 
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the 
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and 
judgments by management. 

As a sub-recipient of federal financial assistance, VMR is also responsible for ensuring that an adequate 
internal control structure is in place to ensure and document compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations related to these programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by 
management and by VMR’s independent auditors. As part of VMR’s Single Audit, tests were made of 
the internal control structure and of its compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including those 
related to federal awards. Although this testing is limited in scope and is not sufficient to support an 
opinion on VMR’s internal control system or its compliance with laws and regulations, the audit for the 
year ended June 30, 2020, disclosed no material internal control weaknesses or material violations of 
laws and regulations. The audit of VMR’s compliance with requirements applicable to each major federal 
program and internal control over compliance resulted in an unmodified opinion of compliance and 
noted no material weaknesses in internal controls. 

Budgetary Systems and Controls 

The objective of the budgetary controls maintained by VMR is to ensure compliance with legal 
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Board of Directors. The by- 
laws require a balanced budget to be adopted by the VMR Board each fiscal year. The level of 
budgetary control, i.e., the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations, is the total 
operating budget. VMR maintains budgetary control by conducting quarterly evaluations of expenditures 
against appropriations and through close monitoring of revenues. Encumbrance accounting is not 
utilized. 

In addition to the annual budget, VMR also prepares a Five-Year Capital Program and Operating 
Forecast and the Transit Life Cycle Plan (TLCP) update. The five-year forecast uses the annual budget 
information as a base and extends it an additional four years to provide information about the anticipated 
schedule, costs, and revenues. The TLCP gives a longer term perspective by outlining the sources and 
uses of funds for specific regionally supported planning and capital projects through fiscal year 2026. 
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For each major capital construction project, VMR regularly reports the project budget status showing 
by project element the budget amount versus actual expenditures and forecasted cost at completion. 
Should anticipated contractual costs appear to exceed the Board approved project budget, VMR staff 
will seek Board action to adjust project scope or approve additional funding. During construction, 
significant issues are addressed in narrative reports included in the project progress report submitted 
to the Board on a quarterly basis. 

Current Rail Passenger Operations 

The total LRT System encompasses about 27.3 miles with the cities of Phoenix, Tempe, and Mesa 
sharing the responsibility for funding the operating and maintenance (O&M) costs. Costs are currently 
shared based on the proportion of track miles constructed within each city. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

Design and Construction of Light Rail and Modern Streetcar 

In Tempe, a 3-mile modern streetcar construction is underway with the opening for revenue service 
scheduled for 2021. In Phoenix, the 2-mile Northwest Extension-Phase II across Interstate 17 (I-17) to 
the Metrocenter Mall and the 5-mile South Central/Downtown Hub Light Rail Extension proceeding 
directly south of downtown along Central Avenue are all being advanced in various stages of planning, 
design and construction. All are currently scheduled to begin revenue service in 2023. (See pages 33-
38 for project information). 

Tempe Streetcar Project 

The Tempe Streetcar project is a 3-mile streetcar project running in the Mill avenue corridor and along 
Rio Salado Parkway and Apache Boulevard in the City of Tempe. The project is expected to service 
one of the highest transit ridership centers in the region.  The Streetcar route will pass around Arizona 
State University with over 70,000 students and through downtown Tempe. The project design is nearly 
complete and construction began in June 2017. The project is expected to open to revenue service in 
2021. 

Northwest Extension-Phase II 

The 1.6-mile Northwest Extension-Phase II will extend light rail west on Dunlap Avenue from 19th 
Avenue, north on 25th Avenue and across I-17 on Mountain View Road with a terminus on the west 
side of the freeway near Metrocenter Mall. The project also includes three new stations, including the 
system’s first elevated station, and a park-and-ride transit center. The project is expected to open for 
revenue service in 2024. 

South Central/Downtown Hub Extension LRT Project 

The 5.5-mile South Central Light Rail Extension project will connect downtown Phoenix with the South 
area of Phoenix from downtown to Baseline road. The South Central corridor is one of the seven project 
areas identified by the U.S. Department of Transportation for inclusion in its Ladders of Opportunity 
Transportation Empowerment Pilot (LadderSTEP) program. The LadderSTEP pilot program aims to 
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build and restore connections, develop workforce capacity and catalyze neighborhood revitalization 
through planned transportation projects. The project was expanded to include additional work in 
downtown Phoenix needed to create a two-line system, including 2 new passenger stations. The project 
is expected to open for revenue service in 2024. 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Awards 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Valley Metro Rail, Inc. for 
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both 
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s 
requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine eligibility for another certificate. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Phoenix, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Valley Metro 
Rail, Inc. (VMR), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the VMR’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to VMR’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of VMR’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the business-type activities of VMR as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in 
financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The Schedule of Operations – Budget and Actual, listed as Other Supplementary Information in the 
table of contents, and the Introductory and Statistical Sections are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The Schedule of Operations – Budget and Actual is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule 
of Operations – Budget and Actual is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole.

The Introductory Section and Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 10, 2020, on our consideration of VMR's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of VMR’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
VMR’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
November 10, 2020



The Tempe Streetcar and South Central Extension/Downtown Hub projects continued construction throughout the 
summer of 2020. 



As management of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR), we offer this narrative overview and analysis of the 
financial activities of VMR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to 
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have 
furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i – v of this report.  This 
discussion and analysis is designed to (1) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, 
(2) provide an overview of VMR’s financial activity, (3) identify changes in VMR’s financial position,
(4) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (adopted annual budget), and (5) identify 
other issues or concerns.

Financial Highlights

• VMR’s total net position increased $153.2 million in FY 2020. The increase was caused by new
capital investments (funded through federal grants, contributions from member cities, and local
PTF funds) which exceeded scheduled depreciation charges.  Total net position for VMR was
$1.664 billion at June 30, 2020.

• VMR’s operating revenues for FY 2020 were $13.0 million compared to $12.4 million for the prior
period, a increase of $0.6 million, or 4.9%.   Fare revenues of $8.3 million were down over the
prior period due to reduced ridership from March through June because of the outbreak of
COVID 19.  In FY20, regional revenues were $3.6 million for the regional capital rebuild program.
With the system now over ten years old, the regional capital asset rebuild program is helping to
maintain the light rail vehicle fleet in a state of good repair.  Operating expenses were $114.1
million compared to $101.4 million, an increase of $12.7 million, or 12.5%.

• Capital contributions totaled $214.8 million primarily consisting of public transportation funds of
$77.3 million, Federal Transit Administration capital grants totaling $60.4 million and $77.1 million
in city contributions.  The construction in progress additions (CIP) for capital projects totaled
$190.6 million.  The increase mostly consisted of $60.7 million for the Tempe streetcar project;
$57.6 million for the south central/downtown hub extension project; $16.4 million for the
northwest extension-phase II; $36.3 million for the operations maintenance center expansion;
$17.0 million for expansion light rail vehicles (LRVs).  In addition, the capital funds provided for
conveyance of $4.2 million in real estate to member cities.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VMR’s financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). GAAP requires that the financial statements be 
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the government’s financial 
activities in the form of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” (MD&A). The financial section of 
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for VMR consists of this discussion and 
analysis and the basic financial statements.   This report also contains other supplementary 
schedules presented after the basic financial statements. VMR’s basic financial statements include a 
statement of net position; a statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position; a 
statement of cash flows; and the notes to the financial statements. VMR’s financial statements are 
prepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB).

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Fund Financial Statements – VMR is presented as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used 
for activities that primarily serve customers outside the governmental unit. A fund is a grouping of 
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or conditions.   Funds are used to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements as well as for managerial control to demonstrate fiduciary 
responsibility over the assets of VMR.

The statement of net position presents information on all of VMR’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of VMR is improving or 
deteriorating.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position presents information 
showing how the agency’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net 
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for 
some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected grant revenues).

Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes to the financial statements provide additional 
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements 
and should be read with the financial statements.  The notes can be found beginning on page 13.

Enterprise Operations – VMR was formed in October 2002 by the cities of Glendale, Mesa, 
Phoenix and Tempe as a public nonprofit corporation to manage design, construction and operation 
of the Light Rail Transit (LRT) System within the Metropolitan Area. The City of Chandler became the 
fifth contributing member in April of 2007.  During Fiscal Year 2020 the City of Glendale elected to 
discontinue it's membership in VMR reducing the total member cities from five to four.  The member 
cities pay for their share of VMR’s operating expenses based on expense allocation methods 
approved in the by-laws of VMR. See Note 1 for a summary of VMR’s significant accounting policies.

Light Rail Ridership Comparison FY  2018 / 2019 / 2020

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF VMR

The following tables and analysis discuss the financial position and changes to the financial position 
for VMR as a whole as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, with comparative information for the 
previous period.

Net Position – Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of VMR’s financial position. 
The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2020, compared 
to the prior period.

VMR's Condensed Statement of Net Position
As of June 30, 2020 and 2019 

(in thousands of dollars)

2020 2019 Change
Percent 
Change

Current and other assets $ 127,278 $ 110,042 $ 17,236  15.7 %
Capital assets 1,682,674 1,544,907 137,767  8.9 %

 Total assets 1,809,952 1,654,949 155,003  9.4 %

Current Liabilites 118,388 118,765 (377)  -0.3 %
Noncurrent Liabilities 27,242 25,044 2,198  8.8 %
 Total liabilities 145,630 143,809 1,821  1.3 %

Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,653,764 1,490,269 163,495  11.0 %
Unrestricted 10,558 20,871 (10,313)  -49.4 %

Total Net Position $ 1,664,322 $ 1,511,140 $ 153,182  10.1 %

Total net position represents the sum of VMR’s unrestricted net position plus net investment in 
capital assets.   The largest portions of the investment are the light rail system capital assets.  It is 
not VMR’s intention to sell these assets and they are therefore not available for future spending. In 
FY20 net position increased $153.2 million largely due to the addition of the construction in progress 
for the Tempe streetcar, south central/downtown hub extension, northwest extension-phase II, 
operations maintenance center expansion, and LRV expansion projects.  Funding sources for the 
new investments include federal grants, public transportation funds and city local match funding.

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Total operating revenues, which consist of passenger fares and other revenues (advertising), 
increased by $0.6 million 4.9%.  The passenger fare revenues decreased by $2.7 million or 24.7% 
due to a decrease in ridership between March and June 2020 due to COVID 19.  Regional capital 
rebuild revenues increased by $3.4 million, because of ongoing efforts to maintain the light rail 
vehicles which are now over ten years old.  Other revenues, mostly consisting of advertising 
revenues, increased by  $31 thousand or 2.8% due to a reduction in advertising sales between April 
and June 2020 due to COVID 19.  

Operating expenses increased by $12.7 million to $114.1 million or 12.5%.  Administrative 
expenditures increased by $1.6 million to $4.6 million or 56.2%. The increase was caused by 
increases in system wide improvement costs and a  research project with costs capitalized as 
construction in progress in the prior year and it was determined in the current year it would not result 
in a capital asset and therefore the costs were reported as current year administration expense. In 

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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VMR's Changes in Net Position
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

(in thousands of dollars)

2020 2019 Change
Percent 
Change

Operating Revenues
Passenger Fares $ 8,340 $ 11,071 $ (2,731)  -24.7 %
Regional Capital Rebuild Revenue 3,586 222 3,364  1,515.3 %
Other Revenues 1,082 1,113 (31)  -2.8 %
Operating Revenues 13,008 12,406 602  4.9%

Operating Expenses:
Administrative 4,577 2,930 1,647  56.2 %
Passenger Operations Service 50,292 47,150 3,142  6.7 %
Regional Capital Rebuild Program 3,192 762 2,430  318.9 %
Depreciation 56,053 50,550 5,503  10.9 %
Operating expenses 114,114 101,392 12,722  12.5 %

Operating Loss (101,106) (88,986) (12,120)  13.6 %

Non-operating revenues (expense) 39,455 48,526 (9,071)  -18.7 %
Deficiency before Capital Contributions (61,651) (40,460) (21,191)  52.4 %

Capital Contributions 214,833 151,963 62,870  41.4 %
Increase in Net Position 153,182 111,503 41,679  37.4 %

Net Position, July 1 1,511,140 1,399,637 111,503  8.0 %

Net Position, June 30 $ 1,664,322 $ 1,511,140 $ 153,182  10.1 %

Capital contributions totaling $214.8 million consist of FTA capital grants of $60.4 million, Public 
Transportation Funds of $77.3 million and capital member contributions of $77.1 million.   Capital 

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FY20, passenger operations service expenses increased by $3.1 million from $47.2 million to $50.3 
million or 6.7%.  The increase was a result of increases in fare inspection and security services, 
increases in LRV and facility cleaning services, a station repainting program, and consultant services 
to implement a new transit asset management plan.  The regional capital rebuild program increased 
to $3.2 million as the effort continued to maintain the light rail vehicles which are now over ten years 
old continued.  Depreciation expense was $56.1 million, an increase of $5.5 million or 10.9% over 
the previous year. This large increase was due to the $145.2 million in assets converted from 
construction in progress to capital assets for the Gilbert road extension.  

Non-operating revenues and expenses: A  decrease of $9.1 million or 18.8% in net position was 
reported.  The expenses for future project development decreased because the northwest extension-
phase II environmental assessment, which cost $3.8 million in 2019, was completed last fiscal year. 
There was an increase of $4.6 million for concurrent non project activities and private utility 
relocations associated with the Tempe street car project.  There was an increase of $2.6 million in 
capital conveyance of real estate to member cities, with the largest increase in south central light rail 
extension real estate costs. Additional expenses include interest of $239 thousand for the FTA 
advance funds received from the City of Mesa for the Gilbert road extension and public 
transportation fund and interest expense $2.2 million for bond proceeds advanced from the Regional 
Public Transportation Authority; see Note 9 for details.  The expenses were offset by contributions 
from member cities of $45.9 million, Regional Public Transportation Funds revenue of $10.0 million, 
and receipts from federal grants of $5.5 million.  In addition, other planning revenues of $1.0 million 
were received. 

The following table compares the revenues and expenses of VMR for the current fiscal year and the 
previous period.



projects funded include the Gilbert Road Extension, Tempe Streetcar Project, south central light rail 
extension,  Northwest Phase II and LRV Expansion vehicles construction projects.  The $62.9 million 
increase versus prior year capital contributions were primarily related to the $44.5 million increase in 
Public Transportation Funds (PTF) contributions for capital projects, a $8.5 million decrease in 
federal capital grants and a $26.8 million increase in capital contributions from member cities. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG TERM DEBT

Capital Assets:
The following table provides a breakdown of capital assets of VMR at June 30, 2020, with 
comparative information for the previous period.  Additional information on VMR’s capital assets may 
be found in Note 5.

VMR's Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
As of June 30, 2020 and 2019 

(in thousands of dollars)

2020 2019 Change
Percent 
Change

Buildings $ 69,415 $ 71,978 $ (2,563)  -3.6 %
Guideway 710,209 677,204 33,005  4.9 %
Bridges 37,935 39,986 (2,051)  -5.1 %
Operations Control Center 8,720 8,720 —  — %
Passenger Stations and Facilities 114,626 100,661 13,965  13.9 %
Park and Ride Facilities 17,458 17,648 (190) -1.1 %
Bus Shelter 411 488 (77)  -15.8 %
Electric Power Substations 145,157 98,216 46,941  47.8 %
Signal and Communication System 82,796 68,817 13,979  20.3 %
Computers and Software 58 76 (18)  -23.2 %
Revenue Vehicles 117,666 126,539 (8,873)  -7.0 %
Non-Revenue Vehicles 645 711 
Site Improvements 1,964 2,343 

(66) -9.3 %
(379) -16.2 %

Tenant Improvements 249 292 (43) -14.7 %
Equipment 8,319 8,239 80  1.0 %
Construction in Progress 367,046 322,989 44,057  13.6 %

Net Capital Assets $ 1,682,674 $ 1,544,907 $ 137,767  8.9 %

As of June 30, 2020, VMR had $1.7 billion in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. There 
was a large increase in capital assets of $137 million.  Construction in progress had a net change of 
$44 million increase for current year costs for ongoing construction projects, a decrease for assets 
converted from construction in progress to capital assets for the Gilbert road extension and a HVAC 
replacement project, and a decrease for assets converted from construction in progress to a current 
period expense for accumulated costs for a research project that would not result in a capital asset. 
Increases in the value of guideway, passenger stations and facilities, electric power substations, 
signal and communications system were all due to the completion of the Gilbert road extension. 
Reductions in capital assets were due to the annualized depreciation of the existing VMR assets. 
Refer to Note 5 on page 18 for more information regarding the capital assets.

Long Term Debt:
In April 2015, the VMR and RPTA Boards amended the interagency LRT Program Agreement 
whereby RPTA holds an interagency receivable for PTF bond proceeds advanced to VMR to fund 
LRT capital projects.   In FY20, the PTF Advance Bond Proceeds due from VMR to RPTA totaled 
$25.0 million.  See Note 9 on page 21 for details.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 

VMR’s adopted fiscal year 2021 total operating and capital budget is $435.6 million, up $26.4 million 
from fiscal year 2020’s adopted budget. The primary cause for the increase are changes to the major 
construction projects budgets; with increases to the construction activities for the South Central 
Extension of $29.9 million and Northwest Phase II of $51.7 million. Tempe Streetcar budget 
decreased $(45.9) million since all track work is completed and 13 of 14 streetcar stop foundations 
have been installed. Background on the capital projects may be found in the Statistical Section 
commencing on page 33.

On the operating side, VMR’s FY21 budget is $72 million, up $1.7 million versus fiscal year 2020 
Adopted budget.  Revenue operations costs are up $4.2 million to $49.8 million in FY21 due to 
contractual increases for light rail operations and phased in positions in FY20 at full effort in FY21. 
Also VMR has budgeted $613 thousand for operations of Tempe Streetcar should it become 
operational in FY21. This is partially offset by the Future Projects Development costs which are down 
$1.5 million from FY20 Adopted budget, of decreases in the number of planning/environmental 
studies.

Comparison of Annual Expenditure Budgets
Fiscal Year 2021 vs. 2020 

Uses of Funds

FY 2021 
Adopted 

($,000)

FY 2020 
Adopted 

($,000)
Change 
($,000)

Operating
 Revenue Light Rail Operations & Maintenance $ 49,227 $ 45,666 $ 3,561 
 Revenue Streetcar Operations & Maintenance 613 — 613 
 Light Rail Security 8,489 9,373 (884) 
 Streetcar Security 110 — 110 
 Future Project Development 11,686 13,165 (1,479) 

 Agency Operating 1,870 2,140 (270) 
Total Operating $ 71,995 $ 70,344 $ 1,651 

Capital Projects:
  Gilbert Road $ 3,296 $ 4,067 $ (771) 
50th Street Station — 1,226 (1,226) 

  Tempe Streetcar 39,837 85,731 (45,894) 
South Central 253,136 223,269 29,867 
Northwest Phase II 91,334 39,659 51,675 
OMC Expansion 27,860 32,077 (4,217) 
State of Good Repair 8,695 13,472 (4,777) 
Central Mesa Extension — 349 (349) 

  Systemwide Improvements 11,461 9,404 2,057 
Total Capital $ 435,619 $ 409,254 $ 26,365 

Total Uses of Funds $ 507,614 $ 479,598 $ 28,016 

FINANCIAL CONTACT

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Concluded)

The financial report  is designed to provide  a general overview of  VMR’s  finances  and  to 
demonstrate accountability for the use of public funds.  Questions about any of the information 
provided in this report, or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Valley 
Metro’s Chief Financial Officer, Valley Metro Rail, Inc., 101 North 1st Avenue, Suite 1400, Phoenix, 
Arizona 85003.
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Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and Investments $ 3,449 
Receivables 442 
Due from Other Governments 85,140 
Inventory 17,260 
Other Assets 901 
Total Current Assets 107,192 

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Cash and Investments 20,086 
Capital Assets, not being depreciated 367,046 
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,315,628 
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,702,760 

Total Assets 1,809,952 

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 53,827 
Other Accrued Expenses 178 
Insurance Reserves 922 
Due to Other Governments 18,024 
Due to RPTA PTF Advance Bond Proceeds 10,295 
Other Deposits 107 
Member Cities Deposits 11,138 
Retainage Payable 10,868 
Unearned Revenue 13,029 
Total Current Liabilities 118,388 

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due to Other Governments 12,493 
Due to RPTA PTF Advance Bond Proceeds 14,749 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 27,242 

Total Liabilities 145,630 

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,653,764 
Unrestricted 10,558 
Total Net Position $ 1,664,322 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020
(in thousands of dollars)
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Operating Revenues:
Passenger Fares $ 8,340 
Regional Capital Rebuild Revenue 3,586 
Other Revenues 1,082 

Total Operating Revenues 13,008 

Operating Expenses:
Administrative 4,577 
Passenger Operations Service 50,292 
Regional Capital Rebuild Program 3,192 
Depreciation 56,053 

Total Operating Expenses 114,114 

(101,106) Operating Loss 

Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense):
Contributions from Member Cities 45,892 
Public Transportation Funds 10,014 
Receipts from Federal Grants 5,462 
Other Planning Revenues 1,000 
Future Project Development (8,282) 
Private Utilities Relocations (4,437) 
Capital Conveyance to Member Cities (4,238) 
Concurrent Non Project Activities (3,552) 
Interest Expense for Gilbert Road Extension (239) 
PTF Interest expense (2,165) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues/ (Expense) 39,455 

Deficiency Revenues under Expenses (61,651) 

Capital Contributions:
Capital Contributions from Member Cities 77,065 
Public Transportation Funds Capital 77,308 
Federal Transit Administration Capital Grants 60,391 
Other Capital Contributions 69 
Total Capital Contributions 214,833 

Changes in Net Position 153,182 
Net Position, Beginning of Period 1,511,140 
Net Position, End of Period $ 1,664,322 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Cash Flows from Operating Activties
Receipts from Fare Revenues $ 7,989 
Receipts from Regional Capital Rebuild Program 2,223 
Other Revenues 862 
Payments for Payroll Related Expenses (21,545) 
Payments to Suppliers (38,512) 

(48,983) Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Receipts from Member Cities 43,950 
Receipts from Regional Public Transportation Authority 7,499 
Receipts from Federal Non-Capital Grants 3,528 
Receipts from Maricopa Association of Governments 557 
Payments for Concurrent Non Project Activities (4,590) 
Payments for Future Project Development (8,098) 
Payment for Private Utility Relocations (4,672) 
Capital Conveyance to Member Cities (4,239) 

33,935 Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Capital Contributions from Member Cities 67,792 
Receipts from FTA Capital Grants 64,782 
Receipts from Regional PTF for Capital 48,267 
Gilbert Road Extension Advance Funding Obligation (5,250) 
Other Capital Contributions 69 
Restricted cash received for Tempe Street Car Project 13,000 
Interest earned on restricted cash received for Tempe Street Car Project 29 
Payments for Capital Assets (164,986) 

Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities 23,703 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,655 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 14,879 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 23,535 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Investments 3,449 
Restricted Cash and Investments 20,086 

$ 23,535 

$ (101,106) 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 
Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities:

Depreciation 56,053 
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:

Accounts Receivable (249) 
Due from Other Governments (1,437) 
Inventory 263 
Other Assets (100) 

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable (2,446) 
Other Accrued Expenses 39 

$ (48,983) Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Noncash Transactions affecting Financial Position
$ 4,389 Capital Contributions from Member Cities for real estate

  Advance PTF Revenue and Bond interest payment used for bond interest and principal payment 11,945 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR) conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

a. Financial Reporting Entity

In October 2002, the city councils of Glendale, Mesa, Phoenix and Tempe approved the formation
of a government entity with a nonprofit status by the name of Valley Metro Rail, Inc.  The nonprofit
corporation was organized under A.R.S. 11-952 and 40-1152. The initial members entered into a
Joint Powers Agreement which provides that this corporation be organized as the instrumentality
to plan, design, construct, and operate the  Light  Rail Transit Project  (“LRT”).    Prior to October
2002,  the Regional  Public Transportation Authority (RPTA) performed these roles.

VMR contracts with the RPTA for certain administrative functions, including personnel, HR
administration, and computer support services.  All VMR staff is hired and employed by RPTA but
works solely under the direction of Valley Metro Rail, Inc., and its Board of Directors, through a
contractual arrangement with RPTA.

The Board of Directors of VMR is solely responsible for the governance of LRT and VMR is not a
component unit of RPTA; economic resources received by VMR are entirely for the direct benefit
of VMR, and RPTA is not entitled to and has no ability to otherwise access any of the economic
resources received or held by VMR.

b. Financial Statements

These financial statements are presented in accordance with Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) and all applicable GASB Statements.   VMR is engaged only in business-type
activities and is required to present the financial statements required for enterprise funds which
are part of proprietary funds.  VMR does not report any component units.

c. Basis of Presentation

Proprietary funds account for activities of VMR similar to those found in the private sector, where
cost recovery and the determination of net income is useful or necessary for sound fiscal
management.  The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon the determination of operating
income, changes in net position, financial position and cash flows.  Currently, the VMR is
classified as a stand-alone Enterprise fund.

d. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net
Position are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis
of  accounting.   Revenues  are recorded when  earned  and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.   Such revenue is subject to review by the funding agency, which may result in disallowance
in subsequent periods.

All of VMR’s activities are accounted for in a single proprietary or business-type fund. Proprietary
funds  distinguish  operating  revenues  and  expenses  from  non-operating items and capital
contributions.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connecting with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
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operations.  Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as either non-
operating revenues and expenses or capital contributions.

e. Cash and Investments

State statutes authorize VMR to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and any of its agencies,
corporations or instrumentalities, collateralized repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit,
and the Local Government Investment Pool.  VMR’s investments are stated as fair value.  Fair
value is based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date.

VMR considers short-term investments in mutual fund-money markets, U.S. Treasury bills and
notes with maturities of three months or less at acquisition date to be cash equivalents.

f. Receivables

Management analyzes receivables periodically to determine the adequacy of the allowance for
doubtful accounts.  There is no current provision required for possible bad debts.

g. Inventory

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption.  Inventories are valued at cost
using the average cost method.  Inventories are expensed when the resources are used.

h. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items.   Prepaids are recorded as assets and the expense is recognized
when the assets are consumed or used.   The prepaid items are included in Other Assets on the
Statement of Net Position.

i. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an
estimated useful life greater than one year.

Capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

VMR capitalizes all costs incurred in connection with the construction of capital projects. The
costs for the non-federal agency operating, Rail Operations, and the LRV Regional Capital
Rebuild program (considered maintenance for capitalization purposes) costs are recorded as
annual operating expenses.

VMR is not the legal owner of any land.   The land required for the LRT system is acquired and
owned by the Member Cities and is the subject of a long-term use agreement between each City
and VMR.   Land, subject to the above agreement, is recorded on the books of member cities.  If
a member city submits a reimbursement for real estate purchases, the cost is paid to the city
through federal and regional sources. At fiscal year end, the cost is removed from the books and
“conveyed” back to the member city.

The costs included as construction in progress consist primarily of project administration,
engineering, construction management, utilities relocation, facility construction, equipment
procurement, and other costs related to construction.  No depreciation is provided on construction
in progress until construction is completed and the assets are placed in service.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
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The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized.  Major improvements are capitalized and depreciated over 
the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.   Capital assets are depreciated using the 
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Useful Life (Years)
Buildings 40
Guideway 50
Bridges 30
Operation Control Center 30
Passenger Stations and Facilites 15-30
Park and Ride Facilites 15
Electric Power Substations 25
Signal and Communication System 10-20
Revenue Vehicles 25
Equipment 5-15
Furniture and Fixtures 7
Non-Revenue Vehicles 4
Computers and Software 3
Tenant Improvements 5-10
Site Improvements 5-10
Bus Shelter 10

j. Allocation of Costs to Member Cities

Design and construction costs for the Light Rail Extensions that comprise the System are
allocated to the member cities as follows:

i) Regional design and construction costs are allocated based upon the Design and Construction
Miles percentage method as stated in the bylaws of the corporation.  The components of the
LRT that are currently classified as “regional” are light rail vehicles,  the  maintenance  and
storage facility,  operations  control  center,  bridge structures, and regional park-and-ride lots.

ii) Local design and construction costs are allocated to the member cities within whose
boundaries the LRT Component designed or constructed will be located.  Design and
construction costs that are not classified as regional are deemed to be local.

iii) Design and construction costs for future LRT extensions are funded based upon Design and
Construction Agreements which are executed in accordance with the adopted Regional Transit
Life Cycle Plan (TLCP). Each construction project of a light rail extension has a different
funding structure based on the TLCP.   Under the Design and Construction project agreement
for each extension, a Member City may be required to fund a local match as part of project
funding, if the project is located within  its  jurisdiction.  The  remaining  funding  comes  from
Federal  and  regional monies.

If a member city’s share of the LRT costs for a fiscal year is determined to be less than $50,000, 
such member city’s share of the LRT costs shall be $50,000.  The purpose of the Minimum Cost 
is so that all member cities will contribute to payment of the overhead expense of the Corporation 
for matters such as the cost of meetings of the Board of Directors, administrative support to the 
Board of Directors, and support to member cities by the Rail Program Staff.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
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Passenger Operations Service Expenses are funded by the Member Cities according to the ratio 
of LRT route mileage currently in service. Costs related to fare inspection, on-board security and 
park-and-ride security are considered regional costs.  Member Cities may also contribute 
amounts to fund local security within their respective jurisdictions.

k. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America necessarily requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reporting financial period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

l. Net Position

VMR’s net position consists of unrestricted net position and net investment in capital assets. Net
investment in capital assets, which is capital assets, net of related debt, is separately reported
because capital assets make up a significant portion of net position.

2. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

An annual budget of revenues and expenses is prepared and adopted by the Board of Directors
each fiscal year.   According to the By-Laws of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. annual operating and capital
budget is required.  The legal level of budgetary control is the total annual appropriated budget. The
annual budget is adopted on the accrual basis.   Encumbrance accounting is not used and all
appropriations lapse at year end.  Depreciation expense is not included in the annual budget.  Prior
to final adoption, a proposed budget is presented to the Board of Directors for review and public
comment is received.   Final adoption of the budget must be on or before June 30 of each year.

A schedule of actual  operating  revenues  and  expenses  versus  original  budget  and  final
budget  is presented as other supplementary information. See Page 26.

3. Cash and Investments

Cash deposits and investments at June 30, 2020, consisted of the following
(in thousands of dollars):

Cash on Hand and in Bank $ 2,501 
Insurance Trust Fund 948 
Restricted Cash with Bank 13,005 
Restricted Cash with Escrow Agent 7,081 

Total Cash and Investments $ 23,535 

VMR has deployed Ticket Vending Machines (TVM’s) which contain coin and bill vaults to 
accommodate the purchase of fares.  At June 30, 2020, the total cash contained in the coin and bill 
vaults totaled $191 thousand.

VMR's bank deposits at June 30, 2020, had a carrying value of $15.315 million and the bank ledger 
balance was $16.260 million.  The difference of $(945) thousand represents deposits in transit and 
outstanding checks.  Of the bank balance, $1.5 million is covered by federal depository insurance 
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and $14.760 million is collateralized 102% by securities held by the pledging financial institution in 
VMR’s name.  

The restricted cash bank deposits totaling $13.005 million is  money contributed for the Tempe 
Streetcar project restricted to be spent on that project.  This money is held in an interest bearing 
checking account.

The Self Insurance Reserve Trust Account totaling $948 thousand was covered by collateral held by 
the pledging financial institution in VMR’s name. It is invested within Money Market Funds with Wells 
Fargo that are measured at amortized cost.

The Cash with Escrow Agent Accounts totaling $7.081 million for retainage payable for construction 
contracts.  The money is invested in Money Market Funds with US Bank that are measured at 
amortized cost.

Custodial Credit Risk – Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure VMR’s 
deposits may not be returned.  VMR does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. All of 
VMR’s bank deposits, except the restricted cash with bank, are in non-interest bearing accounts.

Interest Rate Risk – VMR’s formal investment policy limits type of investment as a means of 
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  During FY 2020 all 
investment durations were shorter than 90 days.

Credit Risk – State Statutes and VMR’s Investment Policy authorize VMR to invest in bank demand 
deposit accounts and obligations of the U.S. Treasury.

Concentration of Credit Risk – VMR’s Investment Policy limits the total investments by type of 
account including, General Operating, Imprest Fund, Self-Insurance Reserve and TVM Credit Card. 
At June 30, 2020, VMR maintains all available cash in these accounts.

4. Accounts Receivable and Due From Other Governments

All receivable balances at June 30, 2020 are displayed on the financial statements and are expected
to be collected in full; therefore, an allowance for uncollectibles has not been recorded.

Due from other governments consists of Federal receivables due from the City of Phoenix as
Grantee of Federal Funds, PTF receivable due from Regional Public  Transportation  Authority
(RPTA),  project  funding  receivables  due  from  cities  of Mesa, Phoenix and Tempe and
miscellaneous receivables due from Maricopa Association of Governments (in thousands of dollars).

City of Phoenix (Grantee of Federal Funds) $ 20,259 
Public Transportation Funding 38,414 
City of Mesa 302 
City of Phoenix 22,125 
City of Tempe 3,988 
Arizona State University 7 
Maricopa Association of Governments 45 

 Total Due from Other Governments $ 85,140 

Public Transportation Funding is discussed more fully in Note 15.
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5. Capital Assets

Capital asset and construction in progress activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows
(in thousands of dollars):

Balances, Balances,
June 30, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020

Nondepreciable assets:
Construction in progress $ 322,989 $ 190,622 $ (146,565) $ 367,046 

Depreciable assets:
 Buildings 102,532 — — 102,532 
 Guideway 813,598 50,283 — 863,881 
 Bridges 61,516 — — 61,516 
 Operation Control Center 13,104 — — 13,104 
 Passenger Stations and Facilites 139,184 19,297 — 158,481 
 Park and Ride Facilites 46,662 3,129 — 49,791 
 Bus Shelter 772 — — 772 
 Electric Power Substations 143,465 54,875 — 198,340 
 Signal and Communication System 102,846 20,769 — 123,615 
 Computers and Software 2,302 — — 2,302 
 Furniture and Fixtures 1,138 — — 1,138 
 Revenue Vehicles 219,803 — — 219,803 
 Non-Revenue Vehicles 3,554 260 (44) 3,770
 Site Improvements 3,750 — — 3,750 
 Tenant Improvements 342 — — 342 
 Equipment 21,765 1,166 (18) 22,913
 Total depreciable assets at 
       historical cost 1,676,333 149,779 (62) 1,826,050

Less accumulated depreciation for:
 Buildings (30,554) (2,563) — (33,117) 
 Guideway (136,394) (17,278) — (153,672) 
 Bridges (21,530) (2,051) — (23,581) 
 Operation Control Center (4,384) — — (4,384) 
 Passenger Stations and Facilites (38,523) (5,332) — (43,855) 
 Park and Ride Facilites (29,014) (3,319) — (32,333) 
 Bus Shelter (284) (77) — (361) 
 Electric Power Substations (45,249) (7,934) — (53,183) 
 Signal and Communication System (34,029) (6,790) — (40,819) 
 Computers and Software (2,226) (18) — (2,244) 
 Furniture and Fixtures (1,138) — — (1,138) 
 Revenue Vehicles (93,264) (8,873) — (102,137) 
 Non-Revenue Vehicles (2,843) (326) 44 (3,125) 
 Site Improvements (1,407) (379) — (1,786) 
 Tenant Improvements (50) (43) — (93) 
 Equipment (13,526) (1,070) 2 (14,594) 

      Total accumulated depreciation (454,415) (56,053) 46 (510,422) 
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,221,918 93,726 (16) 1,315,628
Business-type activities, capital 
assets, net $ 1,544,907 $ 284,348 $ (146,581) $ 1,682,674 
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6. Member Cities’  Deposits

The member cities advance monies to cover the cost of operations plus the federal and local share
of project costs.  In addition, unpaid expenses to be funded by member contributions are accrued for
each city.  A summary of member cities’ deposits at June 30, 2020 follows (in thousands of dollars):

City of Chandler $ 178 
City of Glendale 142 
City of Mesa 925 
City of Peoria 37 
City of Phoenix 7,239 
City of Tempe 2,618 

$ 11,138 

7. Operating Leases

VMR leases office space with an operating lease agreement. Total expense for the lease was
$1,827 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.   Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancelable operating leases are as follows (in thousands of dollars) :

Year Ending June 30, 2020
2021 $ 1,720 
2022 1,720 
2023 1,720 
2024 1,720 
2025 1,705 
2026 1,705 

$ 10,290 

Beginning on July 1, 2014, VMR entered into a new contract to lease office space for a 12 year term 
which included 57,007 square feet of building space.  Simultaneously, a sublease between VMR and 
RPTA took effect for 26,324 square feet.  The 12 year term contract total is $16.2 million for VMR. 
The sublease to RPTA is $7.5 million.

Beginning on December 1, 2017, VMR entered into a new contract to lease additional office space 
for the 14th Floor of the building for a 8.5 year term which included 13,242 square feet of building 
space. The 8.5 year term contract total is $3.0 million for VMR. The sublease to RPTA is $1.4 
million.
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8. Due to Other Governments

As mentioned in Note 1 VMR contracts with RPTA for administrative functions, including personnel,
HR administration, and computer support services.  All  VMR staff is hired and employed by RPTA
but works solely under the direction of VMR and its Board of Directors through a contractual
arrangement with RPTA. As of June 30, 2020, VMR owed to RPTA $1.9 million for payroll and fringe
benefits and $0.8 million to reimburse shared contractual services.  Both amounts are expected to
be repaid to RPTA next fiscal year.

On August 14, 2006, VMR and RPTA executed an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) that formally
designated VMR as Lead Agency to plan, design, and construct the light rail transit (LRT) program.
The IGA specifies that RPTA will reimburse or advance VMR, from the Public Transportation Fund,
for eligible incurred expenses. VMR receives employee services as well as Public Transportation
Funds (PTF) for capital project planning and design and construction funding from RPTA.  As of
June 30, 2020, VMR had received $21.4 million in PTF Funds for capital projects owed back to
RPTA.  Two capital projects received $8.9 million in PTF funds and it is expected that VMR will
receive federal grant funding within the next fiscal year and it will be used to repay RPTA.  Another
capital project received $1.1 million in PTF funds and federal grant funding is not expected to be
received until fiscal year 2022.  In addition, there is $11.4 million received for a capital project that is
not expected to be repaid during fiscal year 2021.

In January 2019, VMR entered into an agreement with City of Mesa, City of Phoenix, and Maricopa
Association of Governments for City of Mesa to advance Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
funding  to VMR for the Gilbert Road Extension project.  At June 30, 2019, the total amount due to
City of Mesa is $5.588 million and interest payable is $45 thousand.  VMR received a federal grant
in FY2021 and used those funds to repay the outstanding amount due to City of Mesa.  See Note 17
for details. For this agreement, VMR did not pledge assets as collateral for the debt. There are no
terms specified in the agreement related to significant (1) events of default with finance-related
consequences, (2) termination events with finance-related consequences, and (3) subjective
acceleration clauses. The terms specify the amount to advance can be up to $20.3 million (less
5.7% for Mesa's local match requirement).  This advance is a direct borrowing from City of Mesa.

Total Due to Other Governments is as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Payroll and Fringe Benefits $ 1,858 
Reimbursement for shared contractual services 778 
PTF Accrued Reimbursements 8,931 

Due to RPTA (Current liabilities) 11,567 

Due to City of Phoenix 604 
Due to City of Mesa 5,764 
Due to Other 89 

Total Due to Other Governments (Current liabilities) $ 18,024 

PTF Accrued Reimbursements 12,493 

Total Due to Other Governments (Noncurrent Liabilities) $ 12,493 
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9. Due to RPTA PTF Advance Bond Proceeds

During FY15, VMR and RPTA Boards amended the inter-agency LRT Program Agreement, whereby
RPTA will hold an inter-agency receivable from VMR for the advance of bond proceeds.  In order to
accelerate planning, design and construction of the Light Rail Capital Projects as identified in the
Regional Transportation Plan, RPTA advances bond proceeds prior to the collection of sales tax
proceeds necessary to fund the debt service payments.

The inter-agency payable to RPTA of the Advance Bond Proceeds shall be paid from the collection of
PTF Sales Taxes by RPTA on VMR’s behalf.  As the debt service payments are made, VMR will
record PTF revenue-capital contributions and reduce the note payable.  In addition, VMR will record
each fiscal year, the VMR portion of the bond interest expense of the 2009 bond issue and the 2014
bond issue according to the debt service schedules.  For FY20, the PTF bond interest expense was
$2.2 million.

As of June 30, 2020, PTF Advance Bond Proceeds totaled $ 25.0 million.   Principal and interest
payments follow the Series 2014 Debt Service schedule as shown in table below (in thousands of
dollars).

Advance Bond Proceeds:
Year Ending Total 

June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service
2021 $ 10,295 $ 1,901 $ 12,196 
2022 10,835 1,623 12,458 
2023 3,914 1,331 5,245 

$ 25,044 $ 4,855 $ 29,899 

*Note A portion of the total Series 2014 Bond Issue interest expense is allocated to the Series 2014 Advance.  The 
allocation is based on ratio of Series 2014 Advance Note Payable $69,583,715 versus the Total Series 2014 
Bond Proceeds $135,406,165.

The beginning balance of this debt at July 1, 2019 was $34.8 million.  During the year there was a 
$0 increase and $9.8 million decrease in Advance Bond proceeds debt.  The balance at June 30, 
2020 is $25.0 million.  For this agreement, PTF sales taxes received by RPTA on VMRs behalf are 
collateral for the debt.  There are no terms specified in the debt agreement related to the significant 
(1) events of default with finance-related consequences, (2) termination events with finance-related
consequences, and (3) subjective acceleration clauses.  This advance is a direct borrowing from
RPTA.
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10. Contractual and Other Commitments

VMR has entered into various contractual agreements for engineering services, project
management, construction administration, light rail vehicles, construction, operations services, legal
services and artists.   At June 30, 2020, VMR had remaining contractual commitments for these
services aggregating approximately $1,005.4 million.  These commitments have not been recorded
in the accompanying financial statements.  Only the currently payable portions of these contracts
have been included in accounts payable in the accompanying  financial  statements.

As of June 30, 2020:
(in thousands of dollars)

Contractor Commitment Spent-to-date Remaining
AECOM $ 44,570 $ 41,707 $ 2,863 
AlliedBarton	Security	Services,	LLC 31,386 21,612 9,774 
Alternate	Concepts	Inc.	LRV	Drivers 60,669 32,406 28,263 
Arcadis 11,800 7,168 4,632 
Award	Winning	Restorations 3,483 541 2,942 
Brookville	Equipment	Corporation 35,054 16,342 18,712 
Builders	Guild,	Inc. 6,000 — 6,000 
City	of	Mesa 18,881 14,264 4,617 
Corrpro	Companies	inc 145 140 5 
Dye	Management	Group 678 39 639 
Entertainment	Solutions,	Inc. 1,000 172 828 
HDR	Engineering 35,000 28,412 6,588 
Hensel	Phelps 89,134 42,289 46,845 
Hill	International	Inc. 55,000 22,730 32,270 
Hubner	Manufacturing	Corp. 500 132 368 
J. Banicki	Construction	Co. 6,000 81 5,919 
Jacobs	Engineering	Group 35,161 30,333 4,828 
Kiewit Infrastructure 770,084 39,901 730,183 
Kiewit	McCarthy,	JV 3,267 2,530 737 
Knorrr	Brake	Company,	LLC 2,280 1,335 945 
LTK	Engineering 252 45 207 
National	Corrosion 170 33 137 
PGH	Wong 30,000 13,429 16,571 
Routematch	Software	Inc 800 795 5 
Scheidt	&	Bachmann	USA,	Inc. 159 53 106 
Siemens	Mobility	Inc. 81,357 45,105 36,252 
Simmons	Machine	Tool	Corp 125 34 91 
Stacy	and	Witbeck 117,466 117,222 244 
Stacy	and	Witbeck,	Inc. 127,612 108,269 19,343 
Stantec	Consulting	Services,	Inc. 11,402 11,140 262 
Operations	&	Maintenance 30,857 17,137 13,720 
Public	Art	Program 5,366 1,116 4,250 
Utilities 11,097 4,802 6,295 

$ 1,626,755 $ 621,314 $ 1,005,441 
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11. Risk Management

VMR is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to contracted labor; and natural disasters.  These risks are
covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties.  VMR purchases
insurance coverage for property, general liability, excess liability, automobile liability,   umbrella
liability,   public   entity   employment   practices   liability,   public   entity management liability, boiler
and machinery, crime, inland marine, owner’s protective professional indemnity, environmental site
protection, contractor’s environmental protection and excess liability.  In addition, the RPTA
purchases workers’ compensation, employee life insurance, health and dental insurance coverage
for all LRT full-time employees.   Settled claims for these risks have never exceeded commercial
insurance limits.   See schedule of insurance coverage on page 46 and Note 14-Related Party
Transactions.

VMR has received notice of general liability claims related to its operations.   VMR’s commercial
insurance policies provide coverage against  losses  arising from the claims subject to policy
deductible amounts.  Such claims are evaluated and specific reserves are established to cover
VMR’s contingent risk of loss pending settlement with the parties involved.  At June 30, 2020 the
Reserve for General Liability Claims totaled $0.9 million.

12. Contingencies

As a subrecipient of federal grant monies, amounts passed through or receivable from other
agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies.  Any disallowed claims, including
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability.  The amount, if  any, of expenditures which may
be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although VMR expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

13. Lawsuits

VMR is a party to a number of various types of lawsuits, many of which normally occur in
governmental  operations.   The  ultimate  outcome  of  the  actions  is  not  determinable, however,
VMR management believes that the outcome of these proceedings, either individually  or  in  the
aggregate,  will  not  have  a  materially  adverse  effect  on  the accompanying financial statements.

14. Related Party Transactions

All of the four member cities of VMR’s Board of Directors are also member cities of the sixteen-
member RPTA Board of Directors.  The Board members of the cities of Chandler, Mesa, Phoenix,
and Tempe represent their cities on both Boards.  VMR has entered into contracts with the RPTA for
certain administrative functions, including personnel, administration, financial and accounting
services, purchasing, and computer support services.   All VMR staff is hired and employed by RPTA
but works solely under the direction of the VMR and its Board  of  Directors,  through  a contractual
arrangement  with  RPTA.    All  payroll  related expenses (excluding pension related expenses) are
paid by RPTA and RPTA charges VMR for all contracted payroll related expenses (excluding
pension related expenses).  For the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, VMR incurred costs
of $23.2 million for services provided by RPTA. At June 30, 2020 VMR recorded a receivable to
RPTA in the amount of $38.4 million and a payable to RPTA in the amount of $11.6 million.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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In September 2010, the VMR Board authorized the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to enter into a 
sublease with the Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA) for a portion of the office space 
currently leased and occupied by VMR.  The contract commenced in December 2010 and would 
end in June 2017.  Office space lease costs were paid by VMR monthly to the landlord and then 
prorated and charged to RPTA based on square footage used by RPTA. In July 2014, a new 
contract with the landlord was made which also includes the sublease with RPTA.  This new contract 
began on July 1, 2014 and will end on June 30, 2026.  The total sublease over the 144-month period 
is estimated to equal $7.5 million.  During the fiscal year 2020 the sublease cost totaled $0.6 million.

15. Public Transportation Funding

In  November  2004,  the  voters  of  Maricopa  County  approved  Proposition  400,  the
continuation of the transportation tax, for a twenty-year period beginning in calendar year 2006.  On
August 14, 2006, VMR and RPTA executed an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) that formally
designated VMR as Lead Agency to plan, design, and construct the light rail transit (LRT) program.
Among other things, the IGA specifies that RPTA will reimburse VMR, from the Public Transportation
Fund, for eligible incurred expenses.

Valley Metro Rail began receiving Public Transportation Funding (PTF) in March 2006. These
monies are used to reimburse private utility companies for costs incurred in the relocation of non-
prior rights utilities, to reimburse Member Cities for their share of local costs incurred in connection
with the acquisition of certain regional transportation assets, and to fund the local share of future
light rail extensions as designated in the Regional Transportation Plan.

The Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA) manages the PTF which is held in a Savings
Account designated for LRT program expenses.  RPTA also sells bonds as needed to fund LRT
program expenses and uses this PTF Savings Account for Debt Service.

In June 2009, the RPTA issued Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds in the amount of $100.1
million.  A portion of the 2009 Series Bonds will pay or reimburse LRT capital expenditures as
designated in the Regional Transportation Plan.  As of June 30, 2020, the 2009 Series Bond
expenditures to date for the  LRT  program  totaled  $55.0 million  on  a  cash  basis.

In January 2014, the RPTA issued Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds in the amount of
$115.0 million.  The 2014 Series Bonds will pay or reimburse LRT capital expenditures as
designated in the Regional Transportation Plan.   As of June 30, 2020, the 2014 Series Bond
expenditures to date for the LRT program totaled $135.4 million on a cash basis.

In April 2016, the RPTA issued Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds in the amount
of $22.6 million.  The 2016 issue will advance refund part of the tax-exempt portion of the 2009
Series Bonds.   For this Legal Defeasance, the funds have been placed in an escrow account to pay
off a portion of the debt on July 1, 2019, the first call date of the 2009 Series Bonds.

In  June 2019,  RPTA  issued Refunding bonds in the amount of $22.7 million.  The 2019 issue will
refund part of the taxable portion of the 2009 Series Bonds.

16. Unearned revenues
The City of Tempe contributed $13 million of monies in advance for the construction of the Tempe
Street Car Project.  This money is not considered earned and eligible to be spent by Valley Metro
until all the Public Transit Funds obligated for this project have been spent.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
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17. Subsequent Events
On October 9, 2020, Valley Metro paid off the advance direct borrowing from the City of Mesa
totaling  $5.588 million plus interest for advance funding provided to VMR for the Gilbert Road
Extension project.  See Note 8 for information about additional information amounts the advance
direct borrowing.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
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The Operations and Maintence Center (OMC) expansion is needed to accommodate more vehicles with future rail system 

expansion. Construction for additional space will include expanding various maintenance buildings, adding five new storage 

tracks and adding new service and cleaning facilities. 



Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts

(Budgetary Basis)

Variance with Final 
Budget Over 

(Under)Original Final
Sources of Funds:

Net Contributions From Member Cities $ 267,744 $ 267,744 $ 122,957 $ (144,787) 
Passenger Fares 11,713 11,713 8,340 (3,373) 
Federal Transit Administration Grants 110,860 110,860 65,853 (45,007) 
Public Transportation Funds - Sales Tax 88,372 88,372 78,963 (9,409) 
MAG/RPTA Grants 1,000 1,000 1,000 — 
TPAN (1,491) (1,491) (7,879) (6,388) 
Other Revenues 1,400 1,400 1,151 (249) 

Total Sources of Funds 479,598 479,598 270,385 (209,213) 

Uses of Funds:
Operating Activities

Revenue Operations 55,039 55,039 50,926 (4,113) 
Regional Capital Rebuild Program — — 3,192 3,192 
Future Project Development 13,165 13,165 8,282 (4,883) 
Agency Operations 2,140 2,140 1,643 (497) 

Sub Total Operating Activities Use of Funds 70,344 70,344 64,043 (6,301) 

Capital Projects:
South Central 167,011 167,011 59,671 (107,340) 
Northwest Extension Phase II 27,641 27,641 16,610 (11,031) 
SCADA Project 349 349 398 49 
Gilbert Road Capital Project 4,067 4,067 9,227 5,160 
Tempe Streetcar Extension 67,581 67,581 60,671 (6,910) 
State of Good Repair - Capital Maintenance 13,472 13,472 1,815 (11,657) 
Non-Prior Rights Utilities Relocations 41,050 41,050 4,438 (36,612) 
Systemwide Improvements 9,404 9,404 14,465 5,061 
50th Street LRT Station 356 356 236 (120) 
OMC & Maintenance Center Expansion 32,077 32,077 32,802 725 
Concurrent Non Project Activities 46,246 46,246 4,750 (41,496) 

Sub Total Capital Before Debt Service 409,254 409,254 205,083 (204,171) 

Total Uses of Funds 479,598 479,598 269,126 (210,472) 

Excess of sources of funds over uses of funds
Budgetary Basis $ — $ — $ 1,259 $ 1,259 

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Basis and GAAP Basis
Total Uses of Funds - Budgetary Basis $ 269,126 
Total Operating Expenses - GAAP Basis (114,114) 
Budgetary Operating Expenses in Excess of GAAP Operating Expenses $ 155,012 

Capital Projects Before Debt Service (Budgeted expenses not recorded to expense for GAAP basis) $ 205,083 
Future Project Development (Budgeted expenses in Operating above but in Non-operating expenses in the Financial 8,282 
 Statements)
Rail Operations Capital Assets (GAAP expenses not included in budgetary basis) 634 
Rent liability adjustment (GAAP expenses not included in budgetary basis) 69 
Systemwide Improvements operating expenses (GAAP expenses not included in budgetary basis) (2,852) 
expenses in the Financial Statements)
Gilbert Road Capital adjustments made in FY20 (GAAP expenses not included in budgetary basis) (154) 
Overhead adjustment made in FY20 (GAAP expense reduction not included in budgetary basis) 3 
Depreciation (GAAP expenses not included in budgetary basis) (56,053) 

Total Reconciling Items $ 155,012 

This schedule is prepared on a budgetary basis for the operating accounts of the proprietary fund and as such does not present the
results of operations on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles, but is presented for supplemental information.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Schedule of Operations - Budget and Actual
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(in thousands of dollars)

26





This part of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR) comprehensive financial report presents information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the financial statements, footnotes, and supplementary information says 
about VMR's overall financial condition.  VMR's principal activities consist of planning, designing constructing and 
operating light rail transit system in Maricopa County, Arizona.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 28
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how VMR's 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity N/A
VMR's principal source of operating revenues are contributions from Member Cities.  With respect 
to capital projects, VMR receives federal grants and utilizes Public Transportation Funds 
administered by the Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA).  (Refer to Note 15 on Page 
24 in the Notes to the Financial Statements section.)

Debt Capacity 30
These schedules include outstanding debt by type and percentage of debt to income and 
population in Maricopa County.  There are not specific pledged revenues and not debt limits so 
these schedules have not been included.

Demographic and Economic Information 32
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which VMR's financial activities take place.

Operating Information 35
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
information in VMR's financial report relates to the services VMR provides and the activities it 
performs.

Statistical Section
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Business -type Activities FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20
Investment in Capital Assets 

Construction in Progress (1) $ 32,912 $ 44,410 $ 76,374 $ 141,245 $ 198,400 $ 12,781 $ 62,358 $ 304,085 $ 322,989 $ 367,046 

92,485 89,921 87,358 84,795 82,231 79,668 77,105 71,978 71,978 69,415 
537,015 525,958 514,647 503,337 492,026 602,666 656,197 632,526 622,567 681,299 
56,390 54,339 52,289 50,238 48,188 46,137 44,087 39,986 39,986 37,935 
10,754 10,363 11,340 10,903 10,466 10,030 9,593 8,719 8,719 8,720 
93,454 90,056 86,657 83,259 79,861 98,895 94,734 86,413 100,661 114,626 
33,910 31,242 28,574 25,907 23,239 26,981 23,870 17,649 17,649 17,457 

— — — — — 720 643 488 488 411 
79,859 76,309 72,760 69,210 65,661 115,394 109,694 98,217 98,217 145,158 
42,496 40,016 37,590 35,165 32,739 73,140 68,439 59,167 68,817 82,796 

— 175 168 131 — 601 455 (125) 76 58 
209 74 — — — — — — — — 

— — 13 11 3,173 2,952 2,807 2,637 2,343 1,964 
— — — — — — — 670 292 249 

163,681 164,747 167,304 170,655 161,863 151,451 144,205 126,621 126,540 117,666 
1,056 732 813 824 719 943 840 729 710 645 

Buildings

Guideway (2)

Bridges

Operation Control Center 

Passenger Stations & Facilities 

Park and Ride Facilities

Bus Shelter

Electric Power Substations 

Signal and Communication System 

Computers & Software

Furniture & Fixtures

Site Improvements

Tenant Improvements

Revenue Vehicles 

Non-Revenue Vehicles 

Equipment 9,132 8,461 7,138 5,969 5,080 9,767 9,122 8,061 8,237 8,319 

Subtotal Investment in Capital Assets $ 1,153,353 $ 1,136,804 $ 1,143,025 $ 1,181,649 $ 1,203,646 $ 1,232,126 $ 1,304,149 $ 1,457,821 $ 1,490,269 $ 1,653,764 

Restricted — — — — — — — — — — 
Unrestricted 5,020 2,062 2,398 12,654 12,102 12,737 14,438 (3,720) 20,871 10,558 
Total business-type activities net position $ 1,158,373 $ 1,138,866 $ 1,145,424 $ 1,194,303 $ 1,215,747 $ 1,244,863 $ 1,318,587 $ 1,454,101 $ 1,511,140 $ 1,664,322 

Source: Valley Metro Rail, Inc. Finance Division

(1) In FY 12/13, FY 13/14, and FY14/15 Construction In Progress is shown net of the Northwest Extension Advance Funding Obligation.  Further, in FY14/15 Construction in Progress is shown net
of the RPTA PTF Advance Bond Proceeds

(2) Starting in FY 15/16 Guideway is shown net of the Northwest Extension Advance Funding Obligation and the RPTA PTF Advance Bond Proceeds. In FY 18/19, and FY19/20 Guideway is
shown net of City of Mesa FTA advance obligation, Retainage Payable, restricted cash with escrow agent, and construction related payables and receivables.

(3) In FY16/17, the FY15/16 balances by asset category were adjusted between categories but there was no impact to the overall total.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Net Position by Component
FY 10/11 through FY 19/20
(in thousands of dollars)
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FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20
Operating Revenues

Contributions from Member Cities $ 19,430 $ 14,275 $ 11,615 $ 16,804 $ 16,591 $ 20,011 $ — $ — $ — $ — 
Passenger Fares 10,238 11,890 12,792 12,505 12,832 13,461 13,363 9,370 11,071 8,340 
Federal Transit Administration Operating Grants 240 3,615 5,383 2,400 2,135 258 — — — — 
Regional Capital Rebuild Revenue — — — — 305 — — 646 222 3,586 
Other Revenues 909 1,225 1,253 1,731 3,272 1,157 1,144 1,112 1,113 1,082 

Total Operating Revenues 30,817 31,004 31,042 33,439 35,136 34,886 14,507 11,128 12,406 13,008 

Operating Expenses

Administration and Planning Services 7,214 8,201 8,287 8,840 9,129 43,987 479 124,848 2,930 4,577 
Passenger Operations Service 31,020 28,910 28,712 31,260 31,289 — 41,487 41,601 47,150 50,292 
Regional Capital Rebuild Program — — — — 881 678 — 646 762 3,192 
Depreciation 39,177 39,115 38,978 38,912 39,014 45,679 48,010 — 50,550 56,053 

Total Operating Expenses 77,411 76,226 75,977 79,012 80,312 90,343 89,977 167,095 101,392 114,114 
Operating Income (Loss) (46,594) (45,221) (44,935) (45,573) (45,176) (55,457) (75,469) (155,967) (88,986) (101,106) 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expense)

Contributions from Member Cities — — — — — 1,283 29,836 44,573 37,626 45,892 
Public Transportation Funds 8,679 6,469 10,111 6,626 10,527 — 6,139 8,131 15,835 10,014 
Federal Transit Administration Non-Operating Grants 2,118 1,060 799 454 — 1,345 2,894 464 14,026 5,462 
Other Planning Revenues — — — — — 644 503 920 1,000 1,000 
Future Project Development — — — — — — (11,190) (10,867) (12,434) (8,282) 
Private Utilities Relocations (3,733) (56) (5,500) (14,877) (5,120) (1,475) (39) (463) (2,030) (4,437) 
Capital Conveyance to Member Cities — — (11,488) (9,950) (3,883) (1,277) (4,030) — (1,658) (4,238) 
Concurrent Non Project Activities (1,381) (3,552) 
Interest on Capital Funding Obligation (2,084) (2,828) (2,231) (1,642) (552) — — — (42) (239) 
PTF Interest expense — — — — (8,120) — (2,860) (2,416) (2,416) (2,165)
Distributions to Member Cities (38,401) (6,664) — — — — — — — — 

Other Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 161 23 25 16 — — — — — — 
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expense) (33,259) (1,996) (8,284) (19,373) (7,148) 520 21,253 39,725 48,526 39,455 

Capital Contributions

Contributions from Member Cities 2,651 331 4,268 51 25 731 45,250 26,554 50,225 77,065 
Public Transportation Funds Capital 49,586 18,255 27,766 86,209 29,895 62,601 5,609 31,836 32,848 77,308 
Federal Transit Administration Capital Grants 7,255 9,125 27,742 27,564 43,849 20,721 76,984 39,893 68,890 60,391 

Other Capital Contributions — — — — — — 95 — — 69 
Total Capital Contributions 7,255 9,125 27,742 27,564 43,849 84,053 127,938 98,283 151,963 214,833 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ (72,597) $ (38,092) $ (25,477) $ (37,382) $ (8,476) $ 29,116 $ 73,722 $ (17,959) $ 111,503 $ 153,182 

Source: Valley Metro Rail, Inc Finance Division

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Changes in Net Position
FY 10/11 through FY 19/20
(in thousands of dollars)
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Business-type Activities

Due to RPTA PTF 
Advance Bond Fiscal Year 

Ended June 30
RPTA Advance 
Bond Proceeds

Percentage of 
Personal Income Per Capita

2015 (1) 69,583,715  0.04 % 17
2016 61,398,715  0.03 % 15
2017 52,968,715 (2) 13
2018 44,118,715 (2) 10
2019 34,823,715 (2) 8
2020 25,043,715 (2) (2)

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30

Direct Borrowing 
from City of Mesa

Percentage of 
Personal Income Per Capita

2019 (1) 10,602,550 (2) 2
2020 5,588,000 (2) (2)

Source: The source of this information is Valley Metro Rail's financial records for debt data by year.  The source for 
personal income and population in Marcopa County is the audited FY2019 Maricopa County CAFR.

(1) The first year for Due to RPTA PTF Advance Bond Proceeds and Direct Borrowing from City of Mesa did not exist
before fiscal year 2015 and 2019, respectively.

(2) Personal income data for Maricopa County was not yet available for 2017-2020.  Population estimates were not
yet available for 2020.  Therefore, percentage of Personal Income and Per Capita could not be calculated for these
periods.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Debt service cost per capita
Last ten Fiscal Years
(In thousands of dollars)
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Due to RPTA PTF Advance Bond Proceeds Maricopa County
Fiscal Year 

Ended June 30 Principal Interest
Total 
Cost

Percentage of 
Personal Income

Per 
Capita Population Income

2015 (1) —  12,161  12,161  0.01 % 3 4,064 175,437,829 
2016 8,185 2,986  11,171  0.01 % 3 4,153 185,111,698 
2017 8,430 2,860  11,290 (2) 3 4,233 (2)
2018 8,850 2,643  11,493 (2) 3 4,316 (2)
2019 9,295 2,416  11,711 (2) 3 4,367 (2)
2020 9,780 2,165  11,945 (2) (2) (2) (2)

Direct Borrowing from City of Mesa Maricopa County
Fiscal Year 

Ended June 30 Principal Interest
Total 
Cost

Percentage of 
Personal Income

Per 
Capita Population Income

2019 (1) 10,603 42  10,645 (2) 2 4,367 (2)
2020 5,588 45 5,633 (2) (2) (2) (2)

Source: The source of this information is Valley Metro Rail's financial records for debt data by year.  The source for 
personal income and population in Marcopa County is the audited FY2019 Maricopa County CAFR.

(1) The first year for Due to RPTA PTF Advance Bond Proceeds and Direct Borrowing from City of Mesa did not
exist before fiscal year 2015 and 2019, respectively.

(2) Personal income data for Maricopa County was not yet available for 2017-2020.  Population estimates were
not yet available for 2020.  Therefore,Percentage of Personal Income and Per Capita could not be calculated for
these periods.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Debt service cost per capita
Last ten Fiscal Years
(In thousands of dollars)
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Fiscal Year Boardings Change
2011 67,608  (0.13) %
2012 71,043  5.08 %
2013 73,410  3.33 %
2014 72,137  (1.73) %
2015 70,760  (1.91) %
2016 67,353  (4.81) %
2017 65,958  (2.07) %
2018 66,785  1.25 %
2019 64,380  (3.60) %
2020 52,529  (18.41) %

Source:  Regional Public Transportation Authority

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Growth in Regional Transit Usage
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(in thousands)

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Growth in Regional Transit Usage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Year Chandler Glendale Mesa Phoenix Tempe
2010 236.1 226.7 439.0 1,445.6 161.7
2011 238.4 227.4 441.2 1,452.0 162.5
2012 246.2 231.1 450.3 1,485.8 165.2
2013 250.4 235.1 458.3 1,512.4 168.9
2014 254.3 237.5 464.7 1,537.1 172.8
2015 260.8 240.1 471.8 1,563.0 175.8
2016 247.5 245.9 484.6 1,615.0 182.5
2017 253.5 246.7 496.4 1,626.1 185.0
2018 257.2 250.7 509.0 1,660.3 192.4
2019 261.2 252.4 518.0 1,681.0 195.8

For the Years 2009 through 2018
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n

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Member Cities' Population Growth
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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Sources: Maricopa Association of Governments
US Census Bureau

Year 2019 is the most current year available.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Population Growth
Ten Years from 2010 to 2019
(in thousands)
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2019 2010
Employer Employees Rank % of Total Employees Rank % of Total

State of Arizona 37,655 1  1.70 % 52,420 1  3.02 %
Banner Health 36,213 2  1.63 % 27,431 3  1.58 %
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 33,814 3  1.52 % 31,280 2  1.80 %
Wells Fargo 15,062 4  0.68 % 14,000 5  0.81 %
City of Phoenix 13,894 5  0.63 % 16,375 4  0.94 %
Arizona State University 13,480 6  0.61 % 12,043 8  0.69 %
Raytheon Missile Systems 12,000 7  0.54 % 11,500 9  0.66 %
Honor Health 11,308 8  0.51 %
Dignity Health 11,206 9  0.51 %
University of Arizona 10,659 10  0.48 %
Maricopa County 12,996  0.75 %
Apollo Inc. 12,299  0.71 %
Honeywell International 10,145  0.58 %

Total for Principal Employers 195,291  8.81 % 200,489  11.54 %

Total Employment in Maricopa County 2,218,046 1,736,779 

2019 - Employees (000s)

37.7

36.2

33.8
15.1

13.9

13.5

12.0

11.3

11.2

10.7

State of Arizona Banner Health
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Wells Fargo
City of Phoenix Arizona State University
Raytheon Missile Systems Honor Health
Dignity Health University of Arizona

 Source:     The Phoenix Business Journal, Book of Lists
Workforce Informer Arizona at www.workforce.az.gov for total employed in Maricopa County

 Note:         The information for FY 2020 was not available. 

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Top Employers in Maricopa County
For the Year 2019 and Nine Years Ago
(in thousands)
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T I T L E

T Y P E

TEMPE STREETCAR

STREETCAR

FACT SHEET / Q3 2020
valleymetro.org/tempestreetcar

About the 
Project
Tempe Streetcar will serve one of the highest 
transit ridership centers in the region. It will 
connect riders to neighborhoods, major 
business centers, and regional events and 
destinations. As the Valley’s first modern 
streetcar line, it will add to the comprehensive 
transit network in Tempe, which includes 
buses, circulators, light rail, bicycle and 
pedestrian amenities.

Streetcar vehicles are smaller than light rail 
vehicles and operate individually, not linked 
together like trains. Streetcar stops are similar 
to bus stops and occur more frequently than 
light rail stations.

The design includes:
• Off-wire operation through downtown on

Mill Avenue and at gateway intersections

• Primarily shared roadway with vehicle traffic

• Landscaping and public art

PROJECT STATUS

• Installation of track at Ash Avenue/University Drive and Mill Avenue/
University Drive completed.

• The second phase of the light rail track tie-in at Apache Boulevard
and Dorsey Lane is underway.

• Local business outreach and support continues with webinars,
resource sharing, and one-on-one assistance.

• Developed and launched new GIS map to showcase businesses
along route.

• Community Advisory Board continues to assist in construction
oversight and community feedback.

COST FORECAST*

Programmed $ Expended % Expended Forecast

Construction  $114,345,818  $80,184,092  70% $114,330,687

Utilities $7,221,298  $2,984,291  41% $7,221,298 

Right of Way $1,895,064 $481,397 25% $1,895,064 

Design/Management  $32,724,452    $25,890,858  79% $32,701,693 

Vehicles $36,051,798    $16,801,844  46% $36,227,971 

TOTAL $192,376,713 $126,342,482 $192,376,713

3
MILES

14
STOPS

2
CONNECTIONS TO 

VALLEY METRO RAIL

PROJECT FACTS

NEXT STEPS

• Overhead Catenary System (OCS) installation in the wired
portions of the route.

• Construction of stop platform foundations throughout the route.

• Wrapping up track installation.

*Estimated as of May 2020
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TEMPE STREETCAR

STREETCAR

FACT SHEET / Q3 2020
valleymetro.org/tempestreetcar

ROUTE MAP
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Gammage 
Auditorium

Birchett
Park

Nelson Fine 
Arts Center

City Hall

Marina
Heights

Tempe Center 
for the Arts

Hayden Ferry
Lakeside

Sun Devil
Stadium

Desert Financial 
Arena

Hayden 
Flour Mill

Hudson
Park

Tempe 
Beach 
Park

6 MIN

Hayden Butte 
Preserve

DOWNTOWN
TEMPE

ARIZONA STATE 
UNIVERSITY,

TEMPE CAMPUS

ROUTE
3 miles
Downtown/ASU/Rio Salado Pkwy/Apache Blvd

STOPS
14 sheltered stops
Public art
2 light rail connections

POWER
Hybrid battery
Off-wire through downtown on Mill Ave.

FLEET
6 vehicles
±125 passenger capacity
ADA and bike accessible

CAPITAL COST
$200 million

FUNDING
Federal grants
Regional funding – Prop 400
Local public-private partnership

STATUS
100% design
Rail delivered and welded
Under construction

OPENING YEAR
2021

At-A-Glance

TEMPE

STREETCAR

Valley Metro Rail/Station

Tempe Streetcar/Stop

Walking Distance

LEGEND

PROJECT SCHEDULE

2014-2016 2018-20212016-2018 2021

2021

COMPLETIONDESIGNPLANNING CONSTRUCTION

Tempe Streetcar Hotline: 602.254.RAIL (7245) /valleymetro /valleymetroconstruction

Bree Boehlke, Valley Metro 
Community Outreach Coordinator 
602.256.5822 
bboehlke@valleymetro.org

Mary Ann Miller, Valley Metro  
Business Assistance Program Coordinator  
602.322.4475
mmiller@valleymetro.org 

Jordan Brackett, Valley Metro
Community Outreach Coordinator 
602.744.5552
jbrackett@valleymetro.org

To subscribe to weekly email updates, contact Jordan Brackett. For more information, please visit valleymetro.org/tempestreetcar.
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LIGHT RAIL EXTENSION

SOUTH CENTRAL EXTENSION/
DOWNTOWN HUB

SOUTH CENTRAL EXTENSION/DOWNTOWN HUB 
COMMUNITY OFFICE

5040 S. Central Avenue  |  Phoenix, AZ 85040  |  602.687.8585

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday: 9 a.m. - 5 p.m.

Thursday: Noon - 7 p.m.

First and Third Saturday: 9 a.m. – Noon 

or by appointment

About the 
Project
The South Central Extension/Downtown 
Hub will connect with the current light rail 
system in downtown Phoenix and operate 
south on Central Avenue to Baseline Road. 
The project also includes a light rail transit 
hub in downtown Phoenix, new stations 
and public art. 

Light rail has proven to generate economic 
prosperity for historically underserved 
communities in metro Phoenix. Light 
rail makes the unique offerings of South 
Phoenix more accessible to others, 
attracting new customers, businesses and 
jobs to the area.

FACT SHEET / Q3 2020
valleymetro.org/southcentral

PROJECT STATUS

• Construction activities, including utility relocation, are occurring in
the downtown area and along south Central Avenue.

• Valley Metro Business Assistance is currently implementing programs
such as business banners, marketing and technical assistance.

• Detailed construction activity descriptions and schedule information
are available at valleymetro.org/southcentral.

• Stay up to date by downloading the Construct VM app.

NEXT STEPS

• Two Construction Advisory Boards (CAB) have been initiated and are
assisting with construction oversight.

D
O

W
NTOWN HU

B

SO

UTH CENTRAL

Voter approved

MILES STATIONS

8
PARK-AND-RIDES

25.5

To subscribe to weekly email updates, contact your Community Outreach Coordinator. For more information, 
please visit valleymetro.org/southcentral.

Victoria Bray
Downtown - I-17 Bridge
Business Assistance Coordinator
vbray@valleymetro.org
O: 602.495.8284

Flor D. Mason
I-17 Bridge - Baseline
Business Assistance Coordinator
fmason@valleymetro.org
O: 602.523.6032

Julie Cruz Gilfillan 
Downtown - Lincoln
Community Outreach Coordinator
jcruz@valleymetro.org
O: 602.495.8274 

Julie Smith
Lincoln – Broadway 
Community Outreach Coordinator
jmsmith@valleymetro.org
O: 602.744.5563

Khandle Hedrick
Broadway – Baseline
Community Outreach Coordinator
khedrick@valleymetro.org
O: 602.523.6039 

COST FORECAST*

PROGRAMMED EXPENDED %  EXPENDED  FORECAST 

Construction $829,458,088  $39,901,071 5%  $829,458,088 

Utilities $52,750,123  $678,738 1%  $52,750,123 

Right of Way $66,287,525  $2,554,223 4%  $66,287,525 

Design/Management $313,694,283  $87,975,597 28%  $313,694,283 

Vehicles $82,897,877 0%  $82,897,877 

TOTAL $1,345,087,896  $131,109,629 10%  $1,345,087,896 

*Estimated as of May 2020.

37



T I T L E

T Y P E

LIGHT RAIL EXTENSION

SOUTH CENTRAL EXTENSION/
DOWNTOWN HUB

2012 - 2017 2017 - 2019 2019 - 2024 2024

PLANNING DESIGN CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION

2024

PROJECT SCHEDULE*

ROUTE MAP

FACT SHEET / Q3 2020
valleymetro.org/southcentral

*Dates are approximate and subject to change.

Download the Construct VM app  
for real-time construction information. D
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W
NTOWN HU
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UTH CENTRAL

Voter approved

/valleymetro

/valleymetroconstruction

/extensionsurcentral
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About the 
Project
Phase II of the Northwest Extension will 
extend light rail west on Dunlap Avenue 
from 19th Avenue, then north on 25th 
Avenue and across I-17 on Mountain 
View Road with a terminus on the west 
side of the freeway near Metrocenter 
Mall. 

At the end-of-line, the Metrocenter 
Station will be the first elevated station 
in Valley Metro’s light rail system. The 
existing Transit Center will relocate to 
below the elevated station. Adjacent 
to the transit center will be a four-
story park-and-ride garage that will be 
accessible to the station.

PROJECT STATUS
• The project design is now complete.
• Representatives are beginning the real estate acquisition process and

have started contacting property owners.
• Coordination and collaboration with local area community groups,

business owners and residents continues.
• An online public meeting later this summer will provide information

on the project’s final design, public art concepts and an overview of
upcoming construction. Online public meeting details will be posted on
the project website.

• An online groundbreaking ceremony will be held in mid-August. Please
refer to the project website for the details.

• The property owner of the former Metrocenter Mall is actively looking
for redevelopment opportunities.

NEXT STEPS
• Construction is anticipated to begin in August 2020.
• The first phase of work, utility relocations, will occur at various locations

on Dunlap and 25th avenues and on Mountain View Road.
• Business assistance programming will begin in August 2020.
• A workforce development program focused on education and career

development related to the project will be launched in late 2020.

STATIONS

3
PARK-AND-RIDE/
TRANSIT CENTER

1
MILES

1.6

/valleymetro

/valleymetroconstruction

T I T L E

T Y P E

NORTHWEST PHASE II

LIGHT RAIL EXTENSION

2015 - 2017 2018 - 2020 2020-2023 2024

PLANNING DESIGN CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION

2024

PROJECT SCHEDULE

ROUTE MAP
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COST FORECAST*

Programmed Expended

Design Phase $25 million $22.5 million

*Estimated as of May 2020.

Michael Book 
Community Outreach Coordinator 

mbook@valleymetro.org 
602.256.5811  I  TTY 602.256.5811

Join the Northwest Extension Phase II mailing list by contacting:

For more information, please visit valleymetro.org/northwest2.

Metrocenter Station Rendering

FACT SHEET / Q3 2020
valleymetro.org/northwest2

PHASE II

N
O

RTHWEST EXTENSIO
N

Voter approved
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About the Project
The Valley Metro Operations and Maintenance Center 
(OMC) opened in 2006 to store and maintain a fleet of 
50 light rail vehicles. The light rail vehicles are used to 
operate the current 28-mile Valley Metro rail system. 
With expansion to a 66-mile system by 2034, new 
vehicles will be added to the fleet and additional space 
is needed at the OMC to properly operate and maintain 
them.

Construction for additional space will include 
expanding various maintenance buildings, adding 
five new storage tracks, and adding new service and 
cleaning facilities. The expansion will allow the OMC 
to operate and maintain a fleet of approximately 
90 vehicles. Construction will be phased to ensure 
operations and maintenance of the current light rail 
system is unaffected.

PROJECT STATUS

• Construction is underway for:

- Completing earth retaining wall on north side of
facility for extra light rail vehicle storage.

- Erecting steel for Maintenance of Equipment building
expansion.

- Continuing foundation work for Maintenance of Way
building expansion.

- Renovating existing Maintenance of Equipment
building office and shop space.

- Constructing cleaning platform with new sanding
system.

- Installing special track work.

• Coordination with stakeholders about construction
impacts continues.

COST FORECAST*

Budgeted Expended

Design and Construction $82.6 million $34.8 million

*Estimated as of May 2020.

FACT SHEET / Q3 2020
valleymetro.org/omcexpansion

T I T L E

T Y P E

OMC EXPANSION

FACILITY DEVELOPMENT

PLANNING DESIGN CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION

2017-2018 2019 - 20212018-2019 2021

2021

PROJECT SCHEDULE

Michael Book
Community Outreach Coordinator

mbook@valleymetro.org
602.256.5811 | TTY 602.251.2039

For more information, please visit valleymetro.org/omcexpansion.

/valleymetro

/valleymetroconstruction

Valley Metro Operations and Maintenance Center

Track crew placing ballast with pettbone and trailer

NEXT STEPS

• Construction of diamond cross over track work.

• Installation of Traction Power Substation.

• Installation of storage track.

• Erecting steel for Maintenance of Way building office
and shop space.

• Renovating existing Maintenance of Way building office.
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Grade RPTA Position Titles FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
I Cleaner 0.0 11.0 9.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.00

III Administrative Assistant I 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 0.5 0.0 0.00
Document Control Clerk 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.0 0.90
LRV Yard Operator 0.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.00
Stockroom Clerk 0.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0 4.00
Transit Distribution and Signage Assistant 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.00
Clerk 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.9 0.00

IV Lead Document Control Clerk 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.90
LRV Inspector 0.0 8.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 12.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 17.00
Materials Handler 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.00

V Accounting Technician 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 1.0 0.8 0.9 0.85
Administrative Assistant II 6.0 8.0 8.0 6.4 6.4 5.7 5.3 7.5 10.1 9.40
LRV Lead Inspector/Cleaner 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.00

VI Contracts Specialist 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.8 0.5 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.00
Project Assistant 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.6 0.8 0.90
LRV Maintenance Technician I 0.0 6.0 11.0 11.0 13.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 0.0 22.00
Technician 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 18.0 0.00
Track Maintainer 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 8.0 10.00

VII Accountant I 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.9 0.9 0.5 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.50
Administrative Assistant III 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.5 1.3 1.6 1.85
Document Control Specialist 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.95
IT Administrative Specialist 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.0 0.15
Internal Audit Specialist 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.00
LRV Maintenance Technician II 0.0 11.0 10.0 10.0 11.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 13.0 22.00
Marketing Production Program Representative 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Paralegal 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.50
Planner I 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.3 0.7 0.8 2.0 1.8 0.00
Planning Program Specialist 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.00
Program Representative 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.8 0.5 0.50
Signal & Comm Systems Maintainer 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.00
Specialist 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4 4.80
Utility Relocation Specialist 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.0 0.90
Vehicle Parts Coordinator 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.00

VIII Art Specialist 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.00
Customer Experience Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.00
Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.9 1.00
Engineering Technician 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.80
Executive Administrative Coordinator 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.50
Facilities Maintenance Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 1.85
Graphics Designer 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.4 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.90
Specialist 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.6 0.00
Technician 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 28.9 0.00
Information Technology Systems Specialist 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
LRV Lead Maintenance Technician 0.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 0.0 3.00
Non-Revenue Vehicle Maintenance Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.95
Maintenance Scheduling 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Materials/Warranty Coordinator 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Signal & Communications Syst Tech 4.0 7.0 7.0 9.0 9.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 0.0 11.00
Traction Power Systems Technician 10.0 10.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 0.0 19.00

IX Accountant II 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.5 1.5 1.5 0.00

Valley Metro Rail, Inc
Full-Time Equivalent Positions

Source: Valley Metro Rail, Inc Finance and Administration Division

Authorized FTEs (1)
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Valley Metro Rail, Inc
Full-Time Equivalent Positions (Continued)

Grade RPTA Position Titles FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
Area Coordinator 2.0 2.0 4.0 5.8 5.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Budget Analyst 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.30
Construction Inspector 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 2.0 1.00
Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 12.0 2.50
Contract Administrator 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.2 2.7 2.5 1.3 1.6 1.6 2.00
Customer Service Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.10
GIS Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.00
LRV Maintenance Supervisor 0.0 3.0 4.0 3.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
LRV Systems/Equipment Specialist 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Management Analyst 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.00
Office and Business Services Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.20
Network Support Analyst 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Senior Internal Auditor 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 1.50
Sustainability Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Transit Bus Safety Security Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Specialist 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.2 0.00
Planner II 1.0 1.0 0.0 2.1 1.6 1.7 2.1 2.4 2.7 0.00
Program Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.1 6.4 11.5 0.0 1.90
Public Information Specialist 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 1.2 1.5 1.0 0.0 8.80
Regulatory Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Safety Specialist 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.00
Transit Security Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.8 0.0 1.00
Training Safety Specialist 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.00
Service Analyst II 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.00
Supervisor, Facility Maintenance 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Supervisor, Track Maintenance 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Web Developer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.00

X Database Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.70
Asset Management System Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.80
Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.1 0.00
Digital Comm/Marketing Program Lead 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Engineer (Civil) 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.5 0.90
GIS Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.65
Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Lead 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.00
Lead Graphic Designer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.30
LRV Maintenance Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 0.0 3.00
Network Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.50
Planner II 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.85
Production Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Network Systems Engineer 0.0 0.0 2.0 1.8 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Program Control Lead 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Program Control Specialist 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.00
Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.0 0.00
SCADA Network Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Senior Contract Administrator 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.3 0.8 1.6 2.2 2.9 0.0 3.05
Maintenance of Way Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.9 3.0 3.0 0.0 5.00
Systems Administrator [G10] - NEW 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Systems Analyst  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.30
Server Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.00
Signals/Communications Maintenance Supervisor 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
TES Supervisor 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Vmware/Storage Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.00

XI Deputy Manager, Community Relations 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 0.0 0.00
Accountant III 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.35
Budget Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Business Intelligence Analyst [G11] - NEW 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.9 0.00

Authorized FTEs (1)
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Valley Metro Rail, Inc
Full-Time Equivalent Positions (Continued)

Grade RPTA Position Titles FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
Assistant Manager, Community Relations 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.00
Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.00
Labor Compliance Officer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.80
Maintenance Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.00
Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.00
GIS Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.00
IT Project Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.50
Light Rail Technical Trainer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.00
Planner III 2.0 2.0 3.0 1.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 2.75
Project Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.5 1.0 1.2 0.8 0.8 0.0 0.50
Public Arts Administrator 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.95
Public Information Officer 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Quality Assurance Administrator 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.0 1.00
SCADA System Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Senior Construction Project Coordinator 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.0 0.0 3.25
Senior Information Technology Systems Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Senior Management Analyst 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.8 1.5 1.3 1.4 1.50
Technical Trainer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 1.00

Senior Server/Exchange Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00

Senior Network Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00

Senior Project Certification Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.00

Senior Project Compliance Coordinator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.00

XII Senior Internal Auditor 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Architect / Urban Designer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.75
Assistant Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 1.00
Assistant Manager, LRT System 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Assistant Manager, Rail Operations 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.00
Assist. Superintendent LRV Maintenance 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.00
Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.3 0.00
Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.8 6.85
Admin Support Services & Project Management 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.00
Budget & Operations Financial Controls Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.00
Business Manager 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Communications Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.00
Community Relations Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.0 0.00
Customer Service Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Environmental Program Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.9 0.0 0.00
Facilities Maintenance Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.0 0.00
General Accounting Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.00
Geographic Services Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.00
Human Resources Support Services Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Service Planning Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.0 0.00
LRT Systems Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Lead Procurement Officer 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Program Manager, Safety & Training 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Marketing Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.00
Rail Public Involvement Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Office Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.00
Senior Transportation Engineer 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Security Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.50
Senior Application Developer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.40
Senior GIS Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.25
Stakeholder Affairs Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Track & Facilities Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Utility Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.00

XIII Business Intelligence Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Enterprise Systems Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.50
Maintenance Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 4.60
Corridor & Facility Development Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00

Authorized FTEs (1)
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Valley Metro Rail, Inc
Full-Time Equivalent Positions (Continued)

Grade RPTA Position Titles FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
Accessible Transit Services Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.00
Field Safety & Security Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Financial Reporting Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.00
LRT Systems Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Information Technology Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Operations Support and Analysis Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.0 0.00
Transit Safety Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Transit Security Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.00
Procurement  & Risk Management Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Project Controls Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Quality Assurance Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Safety and Security Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.00
Rail Design & Construction Manager 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Rail Project Manager, Transit Planning 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
SCADA System Administrator 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.00
Senior Project Engineer 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.95
System & Service Development Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Systems Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.85

XIV Construction Manager 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.00
Capital Planning Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.9 0.0 0.00
Contracts & Procurement Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.00
Chief Maintenance Engineer 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.00
Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.7 2.00
Corridor & Facility Development 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Chief System Engineering Officer 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Chief Transportation Officer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Design Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Information Technology Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.00
Government Relations Officer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.50
Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.0 4.05
Info Tech Sys Specialist 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.00
Business Performance Improvement Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.00
Internal Audit Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.50
Rail Systems Engineering Manger 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Resident Engineer 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.7 0.0 2.00
Manager, Start up & Activation 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Revenue Generation & Financial Planning Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.00
Senior Database Architect 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.00
Senior Project Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Superintendent, LRV Maintenance 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.00

XV Administration & Organizational Development Director 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Service Planning & Accessible Transit Deputy Director 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.00
Chief, Safety and Security 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Rail Chief Operations Officer 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Chief of Staff 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.00
Chief Procurement Officer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.7 0.70
Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5 2.85
Program Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.00
Construction and Utilities Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.00
Design Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
Rail Operations Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00
T2050 Program Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00

XVI Chief Engineer 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Planning and Accessible Transit Director 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.00
Service Planning and Accessible Transit Deputy Director 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.00
Rail Design & Construction Director 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Rail Operations & Maintenance Director 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Planning/Development Director 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.0 0 0.0 0.00

Authorized FTEs (1)
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Valley Metro Rail, Inc
Full-Time Equivalent Positions (Concluded)

Grade RPTA Position Titles FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
Director 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.5 0.00
Deputy Director, Planning 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.70
Safety, Security and Quality Assurance Director 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.5 0.8 0.0 0.85
Communication and Marketing Director 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.80
Capital Program Deputy Director 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.00

XVII Chief Financial Officer 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.50
Chief Officer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 0.75
Deputy Direcotr, Corridor Development 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 1.00
Deputy Director, Corridor Planning 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.00
Senior Project Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 1.00
Chief Operating Officer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.0 0.00
Chief Operations Officer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.00
Chief Technology Officer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.8 0.00
Capital and Service Development Director 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.75

GC General Counsel 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.50
Chief Administrative Officer 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0 0.0 0.50

ED Chief Executive Officer 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.50
81.0 138.0 150.0 158.6 163.5 182.9 179.1 209.3 224.8 271.2

Authorized FTEs (1)
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 Source: Valley Metro Rail, Inc. - Legal Division

Valley Metro Rail, Inc (VMR) previously employed the firm of Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. as its 
broker for the purchase of insurance up until the term of the contract - June 30, 2019. As of July 1, 2019, Alliant Insurance 
Services, Inc. will assume its role as VMR's broker. VMR's current commercial insurance program consists of the following:

Policy # Coverage Limits Policy Term Premium Carrier
KTK-CMB-2700C68-6-19 Commercial 

Property
$601,966,326 Buildings & 
Business
Personal property Limit;
$100,000,000 B&M Limit
$10,000 B&M Deductible
$10,000 Property Deductible
$25,000,000 Flood and EQ 
Limit
$100,000 Flood & EQ 
Deductible

12/1/2019-20 $343,880 Travelers Indemnity 
Co.

QT-660-5833B340-TIL-19 Inland Marine - 
Rolling Stock

$151,465,207 Limit
$100,000 Deductible EXCEPT 
$50,000 for certain equipment

12/1/2019-20 $181,758 Travelers P&C 
Insurance Co. of 
America

QT-660-5833B352-TIL-19 Inland Marine - 
Town Lake 
Bridge

$22,581,224 Limit
$100,000 Deductible
$5,000,000 Flood and EQ Limit

12/1/2019-20 $30,710 Travelers P&C 
Insurance Co. of 
America

I21112951013 DIC - Excess 
Flood Town 
Lake Bridge

$15,000,000 per Occurrence x/
o
$5,000,000 Underlying / 
Retained Limit

12/1/2019-20 $34,936 ACE Fire 
Underwriters 
Insurance Co.

03-979-37-10 Commercial 
Crime

$2,000,000 Insuring 
Agreement Limits
$10,000 Deductible

12/1/2019-20 $5,991 National Union Fire

810-9N838743-19-43 Commercial 
Auto Liability, 
excluding buses 
and light rail 
vehicles

$750,000 CSL Limit
Deductible $5,000

12/1/2019-20 $131,333 Travelers P&C 
Insurance Co. of 
America

PEM000003806 SIR Buffer $500,000 Each Occurrence
$1,000,000 Aggregate
$250,0000 Self-Insured 
Retention (SIR)

12/1/2019-20 $201,240 Gemini Insurance 
Co.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Schedule of Insurance Coverage
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

46



Policy # Coverage Limits Policy Term Premium Carrier
N1-A3-RL-0000066-10 Primary Excess 

Liability
$10,000,000 xs of $750,000 
SIR

12/1/2019-20 $539,220 Princeton Excess 
and Surplus Lines 
Insurance Co.

XCI0000053 Excess Liability 
(2nd)

$10,000,000 xs of $10,000,000 12/1/2019-20 $135,421 Scottsdale Insurance 
Co.

SCP1005019 Excess Liability 
(3rd)

$5,000,000 xs of $20,000,000 12/1/2019-20 $59,340 Scion/Brit

3051169 Excess Liability 
(4th)

$15,000,000 xs of $25,000,000 12/1/2019-20 $146,652 Allied World 
Assurance Co.

EXC2969753 Excess Liability 
(5th)

$20,000,000 xs of $40,000,000 12/1/2019-20 $160,000 Great American 
Assurance Co.

G24100868011 Excess Liability 
(6th)

$ 15,000,000 xs of 
$60,000,000

12/1/2019-20 $85,140 Westchester Surplus 
Lines

P00100021783301 Excess Liability 
(7th)

$15,000,000 xs of $75,000,000 12/1/2019-20 $67,080 AXIS Surplus 
Insurance Co.

B0180PN1904157 Excess Liability 
(8th)

$10,000,000 xs of $90,000,000 12/1/2019-20 $56,760 Lloyd's of London

B0180PG1902731 Terrorism $50,000,000 Property Limit 
(coverage also applies to 
rolling stock)
$1,000,000 Liability Limit
$1,000,000 Nuclear, Chemical, 
Bio Limit
$50,000 Deductible

12/1/2019-20 $23,855 Lloyd's of London

MTP903159005 Cyber/Privacy $2,000,000 Third Party Liability
$2,000,000 First Party 
Coverge
$25,000 Retention

12/1/2019-20 $31,321 Indian Harbor 
Insurance Co.

PPLG71465433 001 Pollution 
Environmental 
Liability

$5,000,000 each Pollution 
Incident
$5,000,000 Aggregate
$25,000 Deductible

12/1/2018-21 $0 Chubb Custom 
Insurance Co.

1017940 Workers 
Compensation 
& Employers 
Liabilities 
Insurance 

WC - Statutory 
EL - $1,000,000

3/1/2020-20 $119,124 Copper Point 
Western Insurance 
Company

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Schedule of Insurance Coverage (Concluded)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
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PRE-INCORPORATION ACTIVITIES

November 2000 - Final light rail alignment approved

February 2001 - Project opens community office for the public

September 2001 - City of Phoenix purchases first property for the light rail system at Camelback Road and 3rd
Avenue.

December 2001 - Project receives first recommended rating from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) in its
New Starts Report.

October 2002 - Valley Metro Rail, Inc. is incorporated.

VALLEY METRO RAIL, INC. ACTIVITIES

July 2003 - METRO receives formal approval from the FTA for the light rail project to enter the Final Design phase. The 
approval allows designers to finalize the construction plans during the coming months, begin utility relocation, and request 
early approval to begin purchasing light rail vehicles and construction materials.

August 2004 - The METRO board approves the METRO Business Outreach Plan to help minimize the impacts of light rail 
construction on businesses located along the light rail transit alignment.

November 2004 - A groundbreaking ceremony is held for the reconstruction of an access bridge over the Grand
Canal at 48th Street that leads to the light rail Maintenance and Storage Facility.

January 2005 - Full Funding Grant Agreement signed for the Central Phoenix East Valley (CPEV) Light Rail
Project. (20 mile initial operating segment)

April  2005  -  METRO  Max  program  launched,  business  support  program  encouraging  residents  to  patronize 
businesses impacted by light rail construction.

March 2007 - Phoenix City Council approves funding for Northwest Extension.

December 2008 - Central Phoenix East Valley Light Rail Project (Initial 20 Mile Segment)
construction completes on-time and within budget.

January 2009 - Rail Passenger Operations commence; ridership planned for 26,000 passengers per day 
reaches over 40,000 daily passengers in April 2009.

March 2010 - Mesa City Council approves a 3.1-mile extension of the LRT system.

October 2010 - Tempe City Council approves Mill Avenue Alignment for modern streetcar.

October 2011 - Valley Metro receives a $1.0 million federal grant to conduct an Alternatives Analysis on the South
Central Phoenix Corridor.

June 2012 - Phoenix City Council approves funding plan to accelerate Northwest Extension Project.

July 2012 - Phoenix City Council approves the 11-mile Phoenix West Extension Project light rail alignment.

October 2012 - Project Construction Grant Agreement signed for the Central Mesa Extension Project.

January 2013 – Groundbreaking of the Northwest Extension light rail construction adding 3.2 miles to existing 20 mile system.

November 2013 – Valley Metro received the Finding of No Significant Impact (or FONSI) from the FTA completing the 
federal environmental assessment for the 1.9-mile Gilbert Road light rail extension.

April 2015 – Valley Metro Rail completes solar panel installation at the Operations and Maintenance Center, reducing 
electrical costs and dependence on the metropolitan grid.

January 2015 – On Saturday, January 31,Valley Metro Rail served the 2015 Superbowl activities reaching a historic 
ridership record with 126,000 boardings.

August 2015 - Valley Metro opens the 2.81 mile Central Mesa LRT Extension, serving downtown Mesa and extending the 
light rail line to nearly 23 miles.

March 2016 - Valley Metro opens the 3.28 mile Northwest LRT Extension, serving North Phoenix and extending the light rail 
line to 25.4 miles.

April 2019 - Valley Metro opens 50th Street Station the first completed project using Phoenix voter-approved Transportation 
2050 funds.  This is the first new station within the 26 mil Valley Metro Rail corridor.  It is also the first station to have 
enhanced accessibility features, as well as a permanent tribute to Arizona Congressman Ed Pastor.

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Design & Construction Milestones
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May 2019 - Valley Metro opens the 1.9 mile Gilbert Road LRT Extension, serving Mesa and extending the light rail line to 28 
miles.

Source: Valley Metro Rail, Inc. Finance Division

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Design & Construction Milestones (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Phoenix, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Valley Metro 
Rail, Inc. (VMR), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the VMR’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to VMR’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of VMR’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.



Board of Directors
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.

(2)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the business-type activities of VMR as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in 
financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The Schedule of Operations – Budget and Actual, listed as Other Supplementary Information in the 
table of contents, and the Introductory and Statistical Sections are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The Schedule of Operations – Budget and Actual is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule 
of Operations – Budget and Actual is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole.

The Introductory Section and Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 10, 2020, on our consideration of VMR's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of VMR’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
VMR’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
November 10, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related 
notes to the financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 10, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered VMR‘s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of VMR’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of VMR’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of VMR’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Board of Directors
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.

(2)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether VMR’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of VMR’s 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering VMR’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
November 10, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE,

AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Phoenix, Arizona

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR)’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of VMR’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. VMR’s major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of VMR’s major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit 
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about VMR’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of VMR’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, VMR complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of VMR is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered VMR’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine 
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of VMR’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements. We issued our 
report thereon dated November 10, 2020. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an 
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not 
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
November 10, 2020
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Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

 Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

 Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 
200.516(a)? yes X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.500, 20.507 and 20.525 Federal Transit Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs: $ 1,680,906

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no



VALLEY METRO RAIL, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(7)

Section II – Financial Statement Findings

None

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

Section IV – Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

None
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See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal Grantor Agency and Program Title

CFDA 

Number

Pass-Through 

Grantor

Pass-Through 

Identifying 

Number

Passed Through 

to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Transportation

Direct Grants:

   Federal Transit Administration

Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grant 20.500 City of Phoenix AZ-2019-031-00  $      27,540,218 -$                       

Federal Transit- Formula Grants 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-90-X136-00 213,966$          -                         

Federal Transit- Formula Grants 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-95-X015-00 318,498            -                         

Federal Transit- Formula Grants 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2016-014-00 812,436            -                         

Federal Transit- Formula Grants 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2017-004-00 577,536            -                         

Federal Transit- Formula Grants 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2018-025-00 10,879,489       -                         

Federal Transit- Formula Grants 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2020-003-00 12,607,313       -                         

Federal Transit- Formula Grants 20.507 City of Phoenix AZ-2020-008-00 1,746,108         -                         

Total Federal Transit Administration (20.507) 27,155,346       -                         

State of Good Repair Grants Program 20.525 City of Phoenix AZ-2018-007 893,806            -                         

Total Federal Transit Cluster (20.500, 20.507 and 20.525) 55,589,370       -                         

Public Transportation Research, Technical

  Assistance and Training 20.514 City of Phoenix AZ-2017-002 440,817            -                         

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 56,030,187$     -$                       

2020 Awards

Expended
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NOTE 1 GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (Schedule) presents the 
activity of all federal awards of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR). VMR’s reporting entity is 
defined in Note 1 to VMR’s basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020. All 
federal awards received from federal agencies are included in the schedule. The information 
in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the 
operations of VMR, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net position, or cash flows of VMR.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented using the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, except 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are 
recorded only when payment is due. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost 
principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not 
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST

VMR did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate. 

NOTE 4 PRIOR YEAR GRANT FUNDING

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) includes all federally funded 
expenditures incurred from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020. However, certain Federal 
Transit – Capital Investment Grant (CFDA Number 20.500) and Federal Transit – Formula 
Grant (CFDA Number 20.507) project expenditures, passed through the City of Phoenix, 
were awarded to VMR subsequent to June 30, 2019. Total federal expenditures approved 
for reimbursement for the FTA Cluster was $65,412,132. Of the total, $55,589,370 is 
reflected on the June 30, 2020 SEFA and $9,822,762 was not reported on the June 30, 
2020 SEFA. 
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NOTE 4 PRIOR YEAR GRANT FUNDING (CONTINUED) 

The $9,822,762 was excluded from the June 30, 2020 SEFA because the federally funded 
expenditures were incurred during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 or prior. Those funds 
were not reported on the June 30, 2019 SEFA because no award had been made for those 
funds prior to issuance of the June 30, 2019 single audit reporting package. 
 

Project Federally Funded 
Expenses Recorded in 

Prior Fiscal Years 

Pass-Through Identifying 
Number 

CFDA Number 

Tempe Streetcar         $   252,344 AZ-2019-031 20.500 
Gilbert Road Light 
Rail Extension 

        $7,806,390 AZ-2018-025        
AZ-2020-003 

20.507 

OMC Expansion         $1,764,028 AZ-2020-003 20.507 
Total         $9,822,762   
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DATE AGENDA ITEM 5 
January 28, 2021 

SUBJECT 
Valley Metro RPTA Fixed Route Bus Advertising  
 
PURPOSE 
To provide an informational update on bus advertising revenue potential on RPTA-
operated fleet. 

COST AND BUDGET 
OUTFRONT Media estimates bus advertising on RPTA-operated fleet could potentially 
generate between $800,000 – $900,000/year in revenue.   

RECOMMENDATION 
This item is being presented to the Audit and Finance Subcommittee for information 
only, at their request. 

BACKGROUND | DISCUSSION | CONSIDERATION 
Across the region, advertising strategies are used to maximize revenue outside of the 
farebox to help offset transit operating costs. For example, the City of Phoenix allows 
advertising on most of their bus fleet and transit assets (“furniture”). Several other 
municipalities offer advertising opportunities to generate revenue at city-owned bus 
shelters. 

Valley Metro RPTA’s Board of Directors had previously adopted a “no advertising” 
policy. In the late 1990s and early 2000s, bus advertising was discussed, but did not 
move forward.  

Valley Metro Rail (VMR)’s Board of Directors adopted an advertising policy in 2013, 
establishing a standard set of criteria to be used across the light rail system consistent 
with the City of Phoenix Transit Department’s advertising policy standards. These 
opportunities range from exterior train wraps to kiosk advertisements at select light rail 
stations.  

In FY19, pre-pandemic, the VMR advertising program generated $1.82 million, which is 
used to offset individual member city contributions for rail operating costs. VMR utilizes 
OUTFRONT Media to sell and manage the available inventory at a minimal annual 
(revenue) guarantee (or MAG) of $1.1 million. VMR receives the MAG or 65% of net 

Information Summary
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advertising revenues, whichever is greater. The contract was initiated in July 2015 and 
is currently in year one of the first, three-year option period.  

OUTFRONT Media prepared a proposal to illustrate potential advertising revenue 
generated from RPTA-operated fleet. The proposal reflects a conservative forecast due 
to the changing market and timeline (approximately 12 months) to ramp up interest in 
an advertising program. 

Additional expenses such as maintenance, coordination and oversight of an advertising 
program would be expected, however the costs would be minimal relative to revenue 
potential.    

Bus Advertising Revenue Projections 
OUTFRONT’s estimate assumes the current revenue structure in place for VMR, which 
is 65% of net advertising revenues, and the availability to advertise on approximately 
half of the RPTA-operated bus fleet (limited to 40’ and 60’ buses; does not include 
locally-funded circulators). The Bus Exterior Products noted are the most 
popular/effective advertisement types based on national trends within markets of 
commensurate size to metro Phoenix.  

Total Annual 
RPTA  

Revenue 
Estimate

Number of 
Available 

Units

Monthly 
Revenue 
Estimate

Total Annual 
Revenue 
Estimate

Bus Exterior 
Product

Full Bus Wraps 50 $70,000 $840,000  

Ultra Super 50 $35,000 $420,000 
Kings 
Standard Bus 50 $6,000 $72,000  
Kings 

$1,332,000 $865,800 

Other Considerations 
If Valley Metro RPTA’s Board of Directors were to pursue fixed route bus advertising, 
necessary policy changes and ordinance compliance would need to be considered. 
RPTA’s current “no advertising” policy would need to be repealed; and an advertising 
policy would need to be created and adopted, alongside the development of a contract 
mechanism with an advertising administrator. Additionally, any advertising on RPTA-
operated fleet would need to conform with applicable municipal sign and/or advertising 
ordinances within the cities Valley Metro operates fixed route bus service. 
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COMMITTEE ACTION 
AFS: February 4, 2021 for information 

CONTACTS  
Paul Hodgins 
Chief Financial Officer 
602-523-6043 
phodgins@valleymetro.org  

Hillary Foose 
Director, Communications & Strategic Initiatives 
602-322-4468 
hfoose@valleymetro.org  

ATTACHMENT 
None 

mailto:phodgins@valleymetro.org
mailto:hfoose@valleymetro.org
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DATE AGENDA ITEM 6
January 28, 2021 

SUBJECT 
Internal Audit Update 

PURPOSE 
To update the Audit and Finance Subcommittee on current Internal Audit activities and 
external audits. 

COST AND BUDGET 
None 

RECOMMENDATION 
Item presented for information only. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION 
None  

COMMITTEE ACTION 
None  

CONTACTS  
Sebrina Beckstrom 
Chief Internal Auditor 
sbeckstrom@valleymetro.org

Jennifer Davis 
Senior Internal Auditor 
jdavis@valleymetro.org
602-322-4452 

ATTACHMENT 
None 

Information Summary
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Valley Metro
Audit and Finance Subcommittee
Internal Audit Update

February 2021

Update:

2

Fiscal Year 20/21 Audit Plan
Process Status
Credit Card Transactions and Travel Expenses Chief Auditor is reviewing 

Audit Plan and resources 
available to determine 

Audit Schedule

Contract Mgmt.–Fare Inspection & Security Services
Contract Mgmt.–Rail Transportation Services
Mobility Center Cash Collection
Federal Grant Compliance
Special Projects Status
Safety and Security Audits – ADOT ISSA Reviews:
-SEPP Security #1 (Policy, Goals,& Objectives)
-SEPP Security #4 & #5 (Audits and SEPP approvals)
-PTASP Safety #1-4 (Policy, Goals, Objectives, & Updates)
-PTASP Safety #17 (Configuration Management)
-PTASP Safety #18 (Local, State, & Federal Requirements) 
-PTASP Safety #20 (Drug and Alcohol Programs)
-PTASP Safety #19 (Hazardous Materials)
-PTASP Safety #16 (Training)

All reviews Completed:
09/04/2020
10/12/2020
11/30/2020
01/05/2021
01/05/2021
01/08/2021
01/19/2021
01/27/2021

1

2



1/27/2021

2

Update:

3

Fiscal Year 20/21 Audit Plan
Special Projects Status
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System Monitoring
External Audits:

City of Phoenix – Vanpool Program.

AZ Auditor General – MAG Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP) Audit. 

City of Phoenix – Contract Risk Assessment.

ADOT – Rail Safety Audit. 
(Rail PTASP BoD Approved 10/22).

Kick-off meeting 02/02/21

Initial Interviews conducted 11/30-12/04
Briefing meeting 01/21/21

CAPs are closed
Quarterly meeting 01/13/21

ADOT confirmed closure of 42 CAPs 12/08
(97% of those submitted)
Submitted 12 of 38 CAPs for closure on 
01/29/21 

3
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DATE          AGENDA ITEM 7 
January 28, 2021 

SUBJECT 
Audit exceptions update 

PURPOSE 
Update the Audit and Finance Subcommittee on the progress of audit exceptions. 

COST AND BUDGET 
Funding for monitoring the progress of audit exceptions is included in the FY20/21 
Valley Metro budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Items presented for information only. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION 
The International Standards for Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (Standards) 
2017 version, Standard number 2500 Monitoring Progress states:  

The chief audit executive must establish and maintain a system to monitor the 
disposition of results communicated to management. 

COMMITTEE ACTION 
None 

CONTACTS  
Sebrina Beckstrom 
Chief Internal Auditor 
sbeckstrom@valleymetro.org

Jennifer Davis 
Senior Internal Auditor 
jdavis@valleymetro.org
602-322-4452 

ATTACHMENT 
Audit exceptions log 

Information Summary 
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Valley Metro
Audit and Finance Subcommittee
Audit Exception Log Summary

February 2021

Audit Exception Log Summary

• Six Open Recommendations

• Four pending Travel & Credit Card Audits
• Audit Schedule under review

• One delayed – Oracle changes
• One due by the end of FY20/21 – ERP/EAM System

2

1

2
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To be Reviewed During Current Audits:

3

Ref # Management Response

1 Additional clarity is being added to the Travel Policy and procedures will be updated 
to ensure that travel documentation is proper and complete.

2 Annual refresher training will be provided to ensure compliance with the Travel Policy.

3 Management will revise the Credit Card policy to clarify that a management staff 
(Manager or Director level) must review and approve transactions. Finance staff will 
confirm that a management staff has approved the credit card packet and return 
unapproved packets to the cardholder.

4 Complete documentation for authorized travel or for local dining is the responsibility of 
the Travel Administrators as described in the Travel Policy, or the Controller (or 
designee) as described in the Local Dining Policy. 
Management will update the Local Dining Policy to clarify that standing committee 
meetings are exempt from the requirements. 

Delayed:

4

Ref # Management Action Due Date
Responsible 

Parties
Current Actions

5 Performance Management 
Procedures

9/30 CAO and 
HR Director

Changes to the Oracle Perf. 
Mgmt. modular are delaying 
the final procedures. Expected 
completion early March 2021.

3

4
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Future Due Date:

5

Ref # Management Action Due Date
Responsible 

Parties
Current Actions

6 Explore electronic form options for 
the Division Sponsored 
Professional Development form; a 
solution that includes a digital 
workflow approval process and 
payment through the Financial 
System.

6/30/2021 Learning & 
Development 
Manager and 
CFO

ERP Project kicked-off on 
9/01/2020 and design 
meetings are on-going.

Electronic forms and 
digital workflow 
processes will be 
considered within the 
scope of the project.

5



Valley Metro Internal Audit
Audit Exceptions Tracking Log

February 2021

Ref # Finding Title Department
Finding 

Description
Recommendations

Management 
Response

Report 
Date

Due 
Date

Status Responsible Party AFS Notes

1 Travel Policy 
Clarification

Finance The Travel policy:
• Encourages individuals to stay at the 
conference or training host hotel site.  If the 
host hotel nightly rate exceeds the GSA 
Lodging Rate Schedule, the excess host hotel 
rate is authorized.  GSA §301‐11.303 states: 
“The maximum amount that you may be 
reimbursed under actual expense is limited 
to 300 percent (rounded to the next higher 
dollar) of the applicable maximum per diem 
rate.”  17 of 93 travel instances were 
identified where the daily rate for lodging 
was in excess of the GSA published rate but 
under the 300 percent cap.  The rates ranged 
from $35 to over $100 per night above the 
allowed GSA rate.  Total spending on lodging 
for travel during fiscal year 2017 was 
$59,551, of which a total of $2,539 was spent 

Management should align the Travel 
policy intent with associated forms 
and practices.  If circumstances 
warrant travel to be completed in 
less than 21‐day of the submission 
the Agency Travel, Conference and 
Out‐of‐County Training form, the 
policy should reflect such verbiage.  
The Travel Authorization form should 
be revised to include identification if 
the user is staying at the host hotel 
and the rate exceeds the GSA rate. 
Otherwise, revisions to verbiage 
related to “hotel expense are 
reimbursed up the to the maximum 
GSA hotel rate; and a traveler is 
responsible for the difference in the 
rates” should be considered.  Further 

Management concurs with the 
recommendation. Additional clarity 
is being added to the Travel Policy 
and procedures will be updated to 
ensure that documentation is proper 
and complete.

4/6/2018 05/31/2018 Open Chief Financial 
Officer

Pending Next Audit: 
01/27/21: Chief Auditor is 
reviewing Audit Plan and 
resources available to determine 
Audit Schedule

2 Travel Policy 
Exceptions

Finance After reviewing 93 travel requests, 87 
instances were in compliance.  In six 
instances, documentation was insufficient to 
determine whether costs were appropriate.  
The six instances were:
• One traveler requested to arrive at a more 
distant airport and rent a car to a different 
city where the conference was held.  The 
traveler indicated on the Travel Authorization 
form the arrival city would be a savings.  
Additionally, a copy of the airfare cost 
comparison nor explanation was not 
included.  Therefore evidence to verify the 
saving was not present.
• One traveler used a more expensive vehicle 
option for transportation for a San Francisco 
hotel to the Oakland airport at the end of the 
conference.  The cost was $96.  An 

Management should require 
travelers acknowledge review of the 
current Travel policy on an annual 
basis.  Travel Administrators should 
document within the travel file any 
unusual requests for travel expenses 
and receive appropriate approval for 
such requests prior to booking.  
Travelers should be required to 
explain any unusual expenses 
incurred on the Expense form prior 
to being approved for 
reimbursement.   

Management concurs with the 
recommendation. Annual refresher 
training will be provided to ensure 
compliance with the Travel Policy.

4/6/2018 05/31/2018 Open Chief Financial 
Officer

Pending Next Audit: 
01/27/21: Chief Auditor is 
reviewing Audit Plan and 
resources available to determine 
Audit Schedule

3 Policy Compliance – 
Documented Division 
Head Approvals Not 
Maintained

Finance & 
Procurement

Six cardholders did not have evidence of the 
Division Head's review/approval by means of 
a dated Division Head signature for 18 
monthly credit card reconciliation packets.
� Four cardholders had sixteen credit card 
reconciliation packets that were not signed 
by the Division Head, but rather a Manager 
with no delegation of authority paperwork 
applicable

� One cardholder had one credit card 
reconciliation packet that did not have a 
Division Head signature. Although notations 
indicating the cardholder was no longer a 
Valley Metro employee, no Division Head 
review/approval signature was obtained
� One cardholder had one credit card 
reconciliation packet that did not have the 
required Audit and Finance Subcommittee 

Management should expand the 
policy’s training requirement beyond 
the cardholders to include applicable 
employees in the Agency’s credit 
card transaction process. 
Additionally, management should 
include in the credit card transaction 
review process a method to track 
and return credit card packets to 
Division Heads who fail to complete 
all policy‐required
documentation. 

Management disagrees with the 
recommendation. The intent of
the credit card policy is to ensure 
that credit card transactions comply 
with the procurement policies and 
procedures. It is management’s view 
that a cardholder’s manager is 
responsible for reviewing and 
approving the cardholder’s 
transactions. Management will revise 
the policy to clarify that a 
management staff (Manager or 
Director level) must review and 
approve

transactions. Finance staff will 
confirm that a management staff has 
approved the credit card packet and 
return unapproved packets to the 

2/21/2019 03/31/2019 Open Chief Financial 
Officer

Pending Next Audit: 
01/27/21: Chief Auditor is 
reviewing Audit Plan and 
resources available to determine 
Audit Schedule

1
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4 Policy Compliance – 
Insufficient/Incomple

te Documents within 
Cardholder 
Reconciliation 
Packets

Finance & 
Procurement

Credit card reconciliation packets were 
submitted and processed without all policy 
required signatures or documentation. 
     One cardholder’s Pre‐Approval Local 
Dining and Refreshments form for a credit 
card transaction, totaling $113, was for a FTA 
meeting, did not have the CFO and CEO 
approval

signatures, only the Division Head signature 
existed.

     Eight cardholders did not have the Pre‐
Approval Local Dining and Refreshments 
forms in their credit card reconciliation 
packets. Fifty‐seven credit card transactions, 
totaling $16,237, were for 
committee/employee meetings and events. 
Evidence of a completed form could not be 
located.

Management should expand the 
cardholder’s training requirements 
beyond the Credit Card, Acceptable 
Use policy to include other policies 
wherein credit card purchases 
maybe applicable, specifically the 
Agency Local Dining and  
Refreshments policy. Additionally, 
management should include in the 
credit card transaction review 
process a method to track and return 
credit card packets to Division Heads 
who fail to complete all policy‐
required documentation. 

Management disagrees with the 
recommendation. Complete

documentation for authorized travel 
or for local dining does not need to 
be included in the credit card packet, 
nor should the Credit Card 
Administrator review travel related 
charges to ensure
that they are authorized. That is all 
the responsibility of the travel 
administrators as described in the 
travel policy, or the Controller as 
described in the Local Dining policy. 
Additionally, the Local Dining policy 
fails to acknowledge the accepted 
and longstanding practice of 
providing meals at Committee and 
Board meetings and inadvertently 

2/21/2019 04/30/2019 Open Chief Financial 
Officer

Pending Next Audit: 
01/27/21: Chief Auditor is 
reviewing Audit Plan and 
resources available to determine 
Audit Schedule

5 Established 
Performance 
Management Policies 
and Procedures Do 
Not Exist 

Human 
Resources

Valley Metro does not have documented 
policies or procedures regarding 
performance management to address:
• Job Descriptions (Creation, Minimum 
contents, Periodic reviews, Modifications)

• Pay Ranges (Establishment, Evaluations and 
modifications, Guidance when an employee 
exceeds the range)
• Performance Evaluations (Requirements to 
complete, Guidance for factors to consider, 
Timing, Documentation)

• Performance Incentives (Reclassification, 
Market adjustments, Merit increases, Factors 
to consider, Necessary documentation)

Develop, document and implement 
comprehensive performance 
management policies and 
procedures. 

Given that job descriptions and pay 
ranges are largely or entirely the 
responsibility of the HR Department, 
written HR procedures are more 
applicable for these topics than 
agency policies. In addition, steps 
will be taken to prevent the clerical 
error that resulted 17 merit increase 
forms being signed after the merit’s 
implementation. 

3/4/2020 9/30/2020 Open Human 
Resources 
Director & CAO

01/27/2021‐ Per the HR Director, 
procedures are pending final 
modifications to the Oracle 
Performance Management 
modular with an expected 
completion in early March 2021.

6 Process Efficiencies 
for Approving and 
Tracking Division 
Sponsored 
Development 
Opportunities

HR & Finance Valley Metro’s current systems do not 
support electronic 
request/approval/processing of professional 
development forms. Additionally, there is no 
electronic method to track and report, only 
the manually maintained Excel file. The 
professional development processes could be 
strengthened and more efficient if a 
centralized electronic approval and tracking 
system was utilized. This would allow, 
Divisions to enter and route their 
department’s trainings for approvals and 
provide an electronic platform to track and 
report on the activities. 

Valley Metro should include the 
electronic processing and tracking of 
Division Sponsored  Development 
opportunities in the implementation 
of the new Enterprise Resource 
Planning (ERP) system or another 
electronic based workflow system.

Both Finance and HR concur with the 
recommendation.

An electronic form that includes 
workflows would be more efficient 
than the current paper process.
Action Plan:
The Learning and Development 
Manager will work with Finance and 
IT to explore electronic form options 
for the Division Sponsored 
Professional Development form; a 
solution that includes a digital 
workflow approval process and 
payment through the Financial 
System.

4/2/2020 6/30/2021 Open Learning and 
Development 
Manager and 
CFO

Per the CFO, the ERP/EAM 
System project kicked‐off 
09/01/2020 and design meetings 
are on‐going.

Electronic forms and digital 
workflow processes will be 
considered within the scope of 
the project.
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DATE          AGENDA ITEM 8 
January 29, 2021 

SUBJECT 
Fiscal Year 2022 Preliminary Budget Assumptions 

PURPOSE 
To provide an update to the preliminary assumptions that are proposed for developing the 
Fiscal Year 2022 preliminary operations budget. 

BACKGROUND | DISCUSSION | CONSIDERATION 
Valley Metro has begun development of the Fiscal Year 2022 annual operating budget. 
The first milestone in the process is to develop and distribute a preliminary operations 
budget by October 31st. The preliminary operations budget encompasses all of the 
transit services that are funded with member city contributions. The intent of the 
preliminary budget is to provide input to the cities for the development of their city 
budgets. The preliminary budget is intended to be a “not-to-exceed” amount and as 
such has more contingency than the final adopted budget.  

The assumptions that were used to develop the preliminary operations budget were 
presented to the Audit and Finance Subcommittee in October. The preliminary 
operations budgets were distributed to city staff on October 31. Staff has been actively 
responding to questions from city staff. In addition, the assumptions have been refined. 
Staff will provide an overview of the updates. 

The most significant change is the addition of the Coronavirus Response and Relief 
Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA). This is a follow-on to the CARES Act 
funding used in FY21 to support on-going operations. Staff expects that RPTA will 
receive approximately $19.8 million and VMR will receive $20.5 million. These amounts 
will be applied in FY22 to offset any continued loss of fare revenues and reduce the net 
cost of service to regional and city funds. 

RECOMMENDATION 
For information only. 
 
CONTACT  
Paul Hodgins 
Chief Financial Officer 
phodgins@valleymetro.org
602-262-7433 

ATTACHMENT 
None 

Information Summary

mailto:phodgins@valleymetro.org


1/29/2021

1

FY22 Budget
Key Assumptions Update

1

RPTA

2

1

2
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2

Revenue Forecasts

Prop 400 (Updated Forecast)
• PTF – 3 scenarios

Average Fare Uncertain (Updated)
• FY20 Q4 - $0.10
• FY21 through Nov - $0.13
• FY22 Assumption - $0.51

Federal PM/5307 (Updated)
• Increase 1.5% from actual FY21 allocation
• Add new CRRSAA funds

3

CRRSAA Overview
• Provides $14 billion for public transportation

• Intended to support on-going operations
• Maintain workforce, fund additional expenses, address economic conditions and 

lost revenues

• Allocated to regions by FTA using existing formulas
• Urbanized areas have caps on amounts

• MAG allocates funds to local operators
• Use same methodology as CARES Act funds
• Phoenix-Mesa UZA: $85.26 million
• Avondale-Goodyear UZA No additional funding

4

3

4



1/29/2021

3

Transit Funding Distribution

5

MAG: Phoenix-Mesa UZA
CRRSAA Apportionment $ 85,260,499 

Rail sub-allocation $   20,418,620 
Bus sub-allocation $ 64,841,879 
Operator Amount 

Valley Metro Rail $   20,418,620 
City of Glendale $        478,539 

City of Peoria $        219,886 
City of Phoenix $   43,285,259 

City of Scottsdale $     1,017,611 
Valley Metro RPTA $   19,840,493 

Allocations 
estimated by Valley 
Metro staff

FY21 PTF Revenues

6

Month FY 20 Actuals FY 21 Budget FY 21 Actuals Budget Variance

July 13,247,508 13,572,827 14,716,415 1,143,588 

August 13,123,348 13,095,124 14,644,448 1,549,324 

September 13,343,646 13,372,281 14,439,173 1,066,892 

October 13,174,681 13,343,325 14,728,743 1,385,418 

November 13,846,014 13,615,463 14,378,010 762,547 

December 14,071,530 13,902,679 14,886,458 983,779 

Totals YTD $80,806,727 $80,901,699 $87,793,247 $6,891,548 

Totals Fiscal Year $163,533,938 $166,800,000 

5

6
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4

FY21 PTF Trend

7

$171.3 

$165.2 

$158.5 

$151.7 

$178.5 

$140.0

$145.0

$150.0

$155.0

$160.0

$165.0

$170.0

$175.0

$180.0

$185.0

$190.0

Official Forecast Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3 Current Trend

PTF Forecasts 

8

Agency FY20 Actual FY21 Budget Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3
RPTA $92.8 $94.7 $98.7 $90.5 $82.1

VMR $70.7 $72.1 $75.2 $68.9 $62.6

Total $163.5 $166.8 $173.9 $159.4 $144.7

FY22 
Budget

Updated

ADOT Forecast $178.2

‐2%

7

8



1/29/2021

5

Base Service Levels

9

FY21 Budgeted Miles used as base

Locally Funded Service PTF Funded Service

Contractor Circulator Express Local Circulator Express Local

Total 
Revenue 
Miles

Phoenix ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐               1,588,562    1,588,562     
First Transit 1,673,573    55,276         4,100,028    ‐               489,029       5,561,866    11,879,772   
Total Ride 916,305       27,563         ‐               ‐               225,786       ‐               1,169,654     
Total 2,589,877   82,838         4,100,028   ‐               714,816       7,150,428   14,637,987  

Service Contingency Plans

• Scenario 1 – defer SRTP improvements beyond prop 400

• Scenario 2 – 15% services/operations cut and 5% cuts to fleet, regional 
services, and mobility services

• Scenario 3 – 30% services/operations cut and 10% cuts to fleet, 
regional services, and mobility services

10

9

10
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Contract Rates – East Valley Bus

11

New contract - Rates Unknown

Contract Rates – West Valley Bus

12

11

12
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7

Fixed Route Bus

Fuel
• Natural gas and diesel fuel are fairly stable

13

Facilities
• Mesa Bus and Operations & Maintenance
• Tempe Bus and Operations & Maintenance

Contract rates – Demand Services

14

Potential Contract Restructure

13

14
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8

Ridership Recovery Plan

• Phased approach

• Surveys

• Communication Plans

• Front Door Boardings

15

15
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FY22 Budget
Key Assumptions Update

1

VMR

2

1
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2

Revenue Forecasts

Fares 
• Average Fare Uncertain

• FY20 Q4 - $0.61
• July 2020 - $0.37
• FY21 through Nov - $0.24
• FY22 Assumption - $0.40

Federal (PM) (Updated)
• Increase 1.5% from actual FY21 allocation
• Addition of CRRSAA funds

Advertising (No Change)
• Contract currently being renegotiated
• Conservative in FY22

3

Fare Revenues

• FY21 below budget
• Currently 16% of pre-pandemic levels
• Lower ridership – 43% of pre-pandemic levels
• Visual fare enforcement

• FY22 budget forecasts higher revenues
• Return to full fare inspections
• Ridership projected to remain flat, at current COVID levels

4

3

4



1/29/2021

3

CRRSAA Allocations

5

Total Allocation: $20,418,700

By Member City  Mileage Allocation
Phoenix  1,868,600 $       10,844,400 
Tempe * 998,900 $         5,797,100 
Mesa  650,800 $         3,777,200 

3,518,300 $       20,418,700 

* Tempe mileage includes 8 months of Streetcar operations

Streetcar Operations

New Staffing Necessary for Operations
• 2 Track Maintainers
• 2 Traction Power Technicians
• Operators and supervisors from ACI contract

“Revenue” Start Date
• Sep/Oct 2021

Fares
• Free for a period, TBD

6

5

6
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4

Rail Transportation
Headways

• 12 minutes

Alternate Concepts Inc.
• Rates up 6% 4%

Allied Universal
• Contract up 6/30/21
• 5% increase over known rates

Propulsion Power
• APS – 4%
• SRP – 3%

Contingency
• 5% Less than 1%

7

State of Good Repair

• FY22 from current CIP
• Locally funded major items include:

• Replace non-revenue vehicles (5) (2)
• Repaint Kinkisharyo Fleet LRVs (14)
• Repaint passenger stations (7)
• Asphalt Repairs and Resealing

• OMC, Park and Rides, Substations/Signal Buildings

• Continue installing station fencing at locations with high pedestrian crossings (4)
• Replace Water Fountain Shells (20)
• Replace Batteries Controls at substations (248)

8

7

8
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DATE      AGENDA ITEM 9 
January 28, 2021 

SUBJECT 
FY21 2nd Quarter Budget Review 

PURPOSE 
To present a review of the FY21 second quarter budget and revenue performance. 

COST AND BUDGET 
There is no cost associated with this item.  

RECOMMENDATION 
This item is for discussion only. 

BACKGROUND | DISCUSSION | CONSIDERATION 

Revenues 
Public Transportation Fund (PTF) revenues are 8.2% above budget through the second 
quarter. Monthly revenues have been very stable. Staff recognizes that there is still a 
risk that the economy and revenues could take a downturn; to date staff hasn’t seen any 
indicators speculating that occurence. 

CARES Act funds are received on a reimbursement basis to offset operating expenses. 
These funds often lag, as it takes some time to document the eligible expenses and 
submit them to the City of Phoenix for reimbursement, as the designated recipient of 
those federal funds; the delivery of funds to Valley Metro generally takes in 5-10 
business days. CARES Act funds reimbursed through the second quarter to RPTA are 
above budget, with $28.6 million reimbursed. CARES Act funds reimbursed to VMR are 
under budget, with $15.8 million reimbursed to date. Staff expects to be fully reimbursed 
all CARES Act funds. 

Fare revenues continnue to be under budget and significantly under pre-pandemic 
levels. Fare revenue for Valley Metro operated bus service are $500 thousand under 
budget, and approximately $5 million under pre-pandemic levels. Fare revenue for light 
rail service are $700 thousand under budget, and approximately $4.8 million below pre-
pandemic levels. The loss in fare revenue is offset by CARES Act funds. 

Expenses 
Overall, RPTA’s expenses are running under budget through the second quarter. 
Paratransit Service, Regional Services and Administration/Finance are the areas most 
under budget as Valley Metro has limited discretionary and non-essential spending. 

Information Summary



 
 

2 
 

Paratransit demand is still well below pre-pandemic levels.Operating expenses through 
the second quarter are approximately $13.5 million below the budget target (50% of 
annual expenses), and equates to 41% of the annual RPTA budget spent. 

Likewise, VMR operating expenses are below budget by $7.3 million through the 
second quarter, equating to approximately 40% of the annual budget spent. Of this 
amount, approximately $4.3 million is from light rail operations and security. Future 
Project Development is under budget by $2.7 million. 

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT 
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan: 
• Goal 1: Advance performance-based operations 

COMMITTEE PROCESS 
AFS: February 3, 2021 for information 

CONTACT  
Paul Hodgins 
Chief Financial Officer 
phodgins@valleymetro.org 

ATTACHMENT 
None 

mailto:phodgins@valleymetro.org
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FY21 Budget
Q2 Actuals

1

RPTA

2
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RPTA FY 21 Q2 Budget v. Actual

3

         FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Received
Sources of Funds

Operating
        Carry Forward & Reserves 837,000$                      ‐$                              837,000$                      0%

        Fares 2,944,000                     962,000                        1,982,000                     33%

        Federal Funds 7,459,000                     470,000                        6,989,000                     6%

        Federal Funds ‐ CARES 49,774,000                   28,617,000                   21,157,000                   57%

        MAG Funds 225,000                        90,000                          135,000                        40%

        Other 413,000                        136,000                        277,000                        33%

        Public Transportation Funds 62,539,000                   39,736,000                   22,803,000                   64%

        Regional Area Road Funds 5,180,000                     5,920,000                     (740,000)                       114%

        Transit Service Reimbursements 28,386,000                   12,049,000                   16,337,000                   42%
Sub‐Total Operating 157,757,000               87,980,000                  69,777,000                  56%

Pass‐Through

        VMR Reimbursements 27,530,000                   10,209,000                   17,321,000                   37%

Sub‐Total Pass‐Through 27,530,000                  10,209,000                  17,321,000                  37%
‐                                

Total Operating 185,287,000               98,189,000                  87,098,000                  53%

RPTA FY 21 Q2 Budget v. Actual

4

         FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Received
Sources of Funds
        Carry Forward & Reserves 1,611,000                     ‐                                 1,611,000                     0%

        Federal Funds 43,365,000                   782,000                        42,583,000                   2%

        Other 200,000                        37,000                          163,000                        19%

        Public Transportation Funds 15,045,000                   ‐                                 15,045,000                   0%

        Regional Area Road Funds ‐                                 264,000                        (264,000)                       0%

        Transit Service Reimbursements ‐                                 35,000                          (35,000)                         0%

Sub‐Total Capital 60,221,000                  1,118,000                    59,103,000                  2%
‐                               

Pass‐Through ‐                                
        VMR Public Transportation Funds Progra 53,930,000                   ‐                                 53,930,000                   0%

Sub‐Total Pass‐Through 53,930,000                  ‐                                53,930,000                  0%
‐                                

Total Capital 114,151,000               1,118,000                    113,033,000               1%
‐                                

Total Sources of Funds 299,438,000$             99,307,000$               200,131,000$             33%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Operating Overview

Operating
        Fixed Route Operations 103,833,000$      45,870,000$        57,963,000$        44%

        Paratransit Operations 31,392,000          10,873,000          20,519,000          35%

        Vanpool Operations 953,000                472,000                481,000                50%

        Planning 2,033,000             961,000                1,072,000             47%

        Commute Solutions 1,299,000             542,000                757,000                42%
        Regional Services 13,917,000          5,330,000             8,587,000             38%

        Administration and Finance 4,110,000             1,144,000             2,966,000             28%

Total Operating 157,537,000       65,192,000         92,345,000         41%

Pass‐Through
        VMR RARF Disbursements 500,000                500,000                ‐                        100%

        Valley Metro Rail 27,250,000          11,915,000          15,335,000          44%

Total Pass‐Through 27,750,000         12,415,000         15,335,000         45%

Total Operating Overview 185,287,000       77,607,000         107,580,000       42%

RPTA Q2 Budget vs. Actual

6

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
        Fixed Route Operations

Operation Services 98,048,000$        42,647,000$        55,401,000$        43%

Facility Maintenance 3,613,000             1,644,000             1,969,000             46%

Administrative Support 2,172,000             1,579,000             593,000                73%

Total Fixed Route Operations 103,833,000$     45,870,000$       57,963,000$       44%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Paratransit Operations

Operation Services 29,610,000$        10,471,000$        19,139,000$        35%

Administrative Support 1,782,000             402,000                1,380,000             23%

Total Paratransit Operations 31,392,000$       10,873,000$       20,519,000$       35%

5
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
CARES Act Application

        Operation Services 98,048,000$        42,647,000$        55,401,000$        43%

        Facility Maintenance 3,613,000             1,644,000             1,969,000             46%

        Administrative Support 2,172,000             1,579,000             593,000                73%

Total CARES Act Application 103,833,000       45,870,000         57,963,000         44%

        Less Fare Revenue 2,916,000             712,000                2,204,000             24%

        Costs eligible for Federal Funds 100,917,000       45,158,000         55,759,000         45%

        Less Cares Act Revenue 43,848,000          24,768,000          19,080,000          56%

        Less Other Federal 4,808,000             ‐                        4,808,000             0%

        Net Costs ‐ PTF/Member City Fund 52,261,000$       20,390,000$       31,871,000$       39%

RPTA Q2 Budget vs. Actual
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Regional Services

Operation Services 1,903,000$          535,000$              1,368,000$          28%

Facility Maintenance ‐                        1,000                    (1,000)                   0%

Administrative Support 12,014,000          4,794,000             7,220,000             40%

Total Regional Services 13,917,000$       5,330,000$         8,587,000$         38%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Planning  

Systems Development 506,000$              374,000$              132,000$              62%

Corridor & Facility 1,051,000             325,000                726,000                33%

Administrative Support 476,000                262,000                214,000                55%

Total Planning 2,033,000$         961,000$             1,072,000$         47%

7
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Administration and Finance

Total Administration and Finance 4,110,000$         1,144,000$         2,966,000$         28%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Commute Solutions

Total Commute Solutions 1,299,000$         542,000$             757,000$             42%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Vanpool Operations

        Opeation Services 600,000                302,000                298,000                50%

        Administrative Support 353,000                170,000                183,000                48%

Total Vanpool Operations 953,000$             472,000$             481,000$             50%

RPTA Q2 Budget vs. Actual

10

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Capital Overview

Capital
        Regional Fleet 49,379,000$        2,919,000$          46,460,000$        6%

        Other Regional Projects 1,185,000             385,000                800,000                32%

        Member Agency Disbursements 5,563,000             ‐                        5,563,000             0%

        Regional Facilities and Administration 4,094,000             3,315,000             779,000                81%

Total Capital 60,221,000         6,619,000            53,602,000         11%

Pass‐Through
        Rail Program Disbursements 42,926,000          18,997,000          23,929,000          44%

        VMR Reserve for Future Use 11,004,000          ‐                        11,004,000          0%

Total Pass‐Through 53,930,000         18,997,000         34,933,000         35%

Total Capital Overview 114,151,000$     25,616,000$       88,535,000$       22%

9
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VMR FY21 Q2 Budget v. Actual
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Sources of Funds

Operating
      Advertising 275,000$              46,000$                 229,000$              17%

      Fares 2,710,000             661,000                 2,049,000             24%

      Federal Funds 1,546,000             135,000                 1,411,000             9%

      Federal Funds ‐ CARES 42,961,000           15,863,000           27,098,000           37%

      MAG Funds 500,000                 200,000                 300,000                 40%

      Member City Contributions 12,890,000           7,508,000             5,382,000             58%

      Public Transportation Funds 10,483,000           965,000                 9,518,000             9%

      Regional Area Road Funds 500,000                 ‐                         500,000                 0%

      Other 130,000                 36,000                   94,000                   28%

Total Operating 71,995,000$        25,414,000$        46,581,000$        35%

11
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VMR FY21 Q2 Budget v. Actual
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Use of Funds

Operating
Operations & Maintenance 49,840,000$        20,700,000$        29,140,000$        42%

Security 8,599,000             4,225,000             4,374,000             49%

Future Project Development 11,686,000          3,128,000             8,558,000             27%

Agency Operating 1,870,000             672,000                1,198,000             36%

Total Operating 71,995,000$       28,725,000$       43,270,000$       40%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Uses of Funds

Capital
      Tempe Streetcar 39,837,000$        21,973,000$        17,864,000$        55%

      South Central/Downtown Hub 253,136,000        46,991,000          206,145,000        19%

      Northwest Phase II 91,334,000          3,021,000             88,313,000          3%

      OMC Expansion 27,860,000          22,301,000          5,559,000             80%

      Gilbert Road Extension 3,296,000             180,000                3,116,000             5%

      50th Street Station ‐                        5,000                    (5,000)                   0%

      Systemwide Improvements 11,461,000          2,252,000             9,209,000             20%

      State of Good Repair 8,695,000             2,615,000             6,080,000             30%

Total Capital 435,619,000$     99,338,000$       336,281,000$     23%

Total Uses of Funds 507,614,000$     128,063,000$     379,551,000$     25%

VMR FY 21 Q2 Budget v. Actual

16

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Light Rail O&M

      Operations 15,930,000$        7,129,000$          8,801,000$          45%

      Vehicle Maintenance 9,780,000             4,483,000             5,297,000             46%

      Maintenance of Way 13,558,000          5,411,000             8,147,000             40%

      Administrative Support 9,959,000             3,677,000             6,282,000             37%

Total Light Rail O&M 49,227,000$       20,700,000$       28,527,000$       42%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Light Rail Security

Total Light Rail Security 8,489,000$         4,225,000$         4,264,000$         50%

15
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Future Project Development

Corridor & Facility  $         6,706,000   $         1,437,000   $         5,269,000  21%

Systems Development                488,000                 215,000                 273,000  44%

Administrative Support             4,492,000              1,476,000              3,016,000  33%

Total Future Project Development  $      11,686,000   $        3,128,000   $        8,558,000  27%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Agency Operating

Total Administrative Support 1,870,000$         672,000$             1,198,000$         16%

Total Agency Operating 1,870,000$         672,000$             1,198,000$         36%

CARES Act Application Q2

18

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Application of Revenue

Total Light Rail Operations 57,716,000$        24,925,000$        32,791,000$        43%

Less Fare Revenue 2,710,000             661,000                2,049,000             24%

Costs Eligible for CARES Act 55,006,000          24,264,000          30,742,000          44%

Less CARES Act Revenue 42,961,000          15,863,000          27,098,000          37%

Less Other federal funds 1,546,000             135,000                1,411,000             9%

Less Advertising revenue 275,000                46,000                  229,000                17%

Net Costs ‐ Member City Funded 10,224,000$       8,220,000$         2,004,000$         80%
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RPTA FY21 Budget vs. Actual  
July 1, 2020-December 31,2020 

Summary 

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Sources of Funds

Operating
        Carry Forward & Reserves 837,000$  -$  837,000$  0%
        Fares 2,944,000 962,000 1,982,000 33%
        Federal Funds 7,459,000 470,000 6,989,000 6%
        Federal Funds - CARES 49,774,000 28,617,000 21,157,000 57%
        MAG Funds 225,000 90,000 135,000 40%
        Other 413,000 136,000 277,000 33%
        Public Transportation Funds 62,539,000 39,736,000 22,803,000 64%
        Regional Area Road Funds 5,180,000 5,920,000 (740,000) 114%
        Transit Service Reimbursements 28,386,000 12,049,000 16,337,000 42%
Sub-Total Operating 157,757,000              87,980,000                 69,777,000                 56%

Pass-Through

        VMR Reimbursements 27,530,000 10,209,000 17,321,000 37%
Sub-Total Pass-Through 27,530,000                 10,209,000                 17,321,000                 37%

- 
Total Operating 185,287,000              98,189,000                 87,098,000                 53%

Capital - 
        Carry Forward & Reserves 1,611,000 - 1,611,000 0%
        Federal Funds 43,365,000 782,000 42,583,000 2%
        Other 200,000 37,000 163,000 19%
        Public Transportation Funds 15,045,000 - 15,045,000 0%
        Regional Area Road Funds - 264,000 (264,000) 0%
        Transit Service Reimbursements - 35,000 (35,000) 0%
Sub-Total Capital 60,221,000                 1,118,000 59,103,000                 2%

Pass-Through
        VMR Public Transportation Funds Progra 53,930,000 - 53,930,000 0%
Sub-Total Pass-Through 53,930,000                 - 53,930,000 0%

- 
Total Capital 114,151,000              1,118,000 113,033,000              1%

- 
Total Sources of Funds 299,438,000$            99,307,000$              200,131,000$            33%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Uses of Funds

Operating
        Fixed Route Operations 103,833,000$            45,870,000$               57,963,000$               44%
        Paratransit Operations 31,392,000                 10,873,000                 20,519,000                 35%
        Vanpool Operations 953,000 472,000 481,000 50%
        Planning 2,033,000 961,000 1,072,000 47%
        Commute Solutions 1,299,000 542,000 757,000 42%
        Regional Services 13,917,000                 5,330,000 8,487,000 38%
        Administration and Finance 4,110,000 1,144,000 2,966,000 28%
Sub-Total Operating 157,537,000              65,192,000                92,245,000                41%

Pass-Through
        VMR RARF Disbursements 500,000 500,000 - 100%
        Valley Metro Rail 27,250,000                 11,915,000                 15,335,000                 44%
Sub-Total Pass-Through 27,750,000                12,415,000                15,335,000                45%

Total Operating 185,287,000              77,607,000                107,580,000              42%

Capital
        Regional Fleet 49,379,000                 2,919,000 46,460,000                 6%
        Regional Facilities and Admin 4,094,000 3,315,000 779,000 81%
        Other Regional Projects 1,185,000 385,000 800,000 32%
        Member Agency Disbursements 5,563,000 - 5,563,000 0%
Sub-Total Capital 60,221,000                6,619,000 53,602,000                11%

Pass-Through
        Rail Program Disbursements 42,926,000                 18,997,000                 23,929,000                 44%
        VMR Reserve for Future Use 11,004,000                 - 11,004,000 0%
Sub-Total Pass-Through 53,930,000                18,997,000                34,933,000                35%

Total Capital 114,151,000              25,616,000                88,535,000                22%

Total Uses of Funds 299,438,000$           103,323,000$           196,115,000$           35%
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Operating 

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Operating Overview

Operating
        Fixed Route Operations 103,833,000$     45,870,000$       57,963,000$       44%
        Paratransit Operations 31,392,000         10,873,000         20,519,000         35%
        Vanpool Operations 953,000               472,000               481,000               50%
        Planning 2,033,000            961,000               1,072,000            47%
        Commute Solutions 1,299,000            542,000               757,000               42%
        Regional Services 13,917,000         5,330,000            8,587,000            38%
Total Operating 157,537,000      65,192,000        92,345,000        41%

Pass-Through
        VMR RARF Disbursements 500,000               500,000               - 100%
        Valley Metro Rail 27,250,000         11,915,000         15,335,000         44%
Total Pass-Through 27,750,000        12,415,000        15,335,000        45%

Total Operating Overview 185,287,000      77,607,000        107,580,000      42%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Fixed Route Operations

Operation Services
        Transit Services 90,072,000$       39,561,000$       50,511,000$       44%
        Fuel & Lubricants 5,704,000            2,315,000            3,389,000            41%
        Contractual Services 2,272,000            771,000               1,501,000            34%
Total Operation Services 98,048,000        42,647,000        55,401,000        43%

Facility Maintenance
        Other 54,000                 - 54,000 0%
        Contractual Services 2,737,000            1,205,000            1,532,000 44%
Total Facility Maintenance 3,613,000           1,644,000           1,969,000           46%

Administrative Support
        Personal Services 1,092,000            576,000               516,000               53%
        Advertising 4,000 1,000 3,000 25%
        Fuel & Lubricants 7,000 2,000 5,000 29%
        Insurance 64,000                 38,000 26,000 59%
        Supplies 9,000 3,000 6,000 33%
        Travel & Meetings 1,000 - 1,000 0%
        Other 66,000                 49,000 17,000 74%
        Allocated Overhead 749,000               314,000               435,000               42%
        Contractual Services 180,000               596,000               (416,000)              331%
Total Administrative Support 2,172,000           1,579,000           593,000              73%

Total Fixed Route Operations 103,833,000$    45,870,000$      57,963,000$      44%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Demand Services-Paratransit & RideChoice

Operation Services
        Transit Services 21,506,000         7,188,000            14,318,000         33%
        Fuel & Lubricants 1,445,000            327,000               1,118,000            23%
        PTF Disbursements 6,659,000            2,956,000            3,703,000            44%
Total Operation Services 29,610,000        10,471,000        19,139,000        35%

Administrative Support
        Computers & Software 200,000               - 200,000 0%
        Insurance 56,000 28,000 28,000 50%
        Contractual Services - 10,000 (10,000) 0%
        Allocated Overhead 366,000               129,000 237,000 35%
        Contingency 628,000               - 628,000 0%
Total Administrative Support 1,782,000           402,000              1,380,000           23%

Total Demand Services-Paratransit & RideCho 31,392,000        10,873,000        20,519,000        35%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Vanpool Operations

Operation Services
        Transit Services 600,000$             302,000$             298,000$             50%
Total Operation Services 600,000              302,000              298,000              50%

Administrative Support
        Personal Services 140,000               65,000 75,000 46%
        Advertising 25,000 - 25,000 0%
        Insurance 60,000 29,000 31,000 48%
        Supplies 20,000 1,000 19,000 5%
        Travel & Meetings 1,000 - 1,000 0%
        Other 4,000 2,000 2,000 50%
        Allocated Overhead 97,000 37,000 60,000 38%
Total Administrative Support 353,000              170,000              183,000              48%

Total Vanpool Operations 953,000$            472,000$            481,000$            50%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Commute Solutions

Administrative Support
        Personal Services 577,000$             273,000$             304,000$             47%
        Advertising 45,000 32,000 13,000 71%
        Contractual Services 142,000               36,000 106,000               25%
        Supplies 30,000 25,000 5,000 83%
        Travel & Meetings 2,000 - 2,000 0%
        Other 109,000               24,000 85,000 22%
Total Administrative Support 1,299,000           542,000              757,000              42%

Total Commute Solutions 1,299,000$        542,000$            757,000$            42%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Planning

Systems Development
        Personal Services 138,000$             133,000$             5,000$                 96%
        Computers & Software 100,000               62,000 38,000 62%
        Contractual Services 175,000               109,000               66,000 62%
        Allocated Overhead 93,000 70,000 23,000 75%
Total Systems Development 506,000              374,000              132,000              74%

        Personal Services 521,000               198,000               323,000               38%
        Contractual Services 172,000               10,000 162,000               6%
        Allocated Overhead 358,000               117,000               241,000               33%
Total Corridor & Facility 1,051,000           325,000              726,000              31%

Administrative Support
        Personal Services 250,000               168,000               82,000 67%
        Computers & Software 2,000 - 2,000 0%
        Contractual Services 20,000 - 20,000 0%
        Supplies 3,000 - 3,000 0%
        Travel & Meetings 3,000 - 3,000 0%
        Other 27,000 1,000 26,000 4%
        Allocated Overhead 171,000               93,000 78,000 54%
Total Administrative Support 476,000              262,000              214,000              55%

Total Planning 2,033,000           961,000              1,072,000           47%

6



FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Regional Services

Operation Services
        Fuel & Lubricants -$  2,000$  (2,000)$                0%
        Transit Services 1,903,000            533,000               1,370,000            28%
Total Operation Services 1,903,000           535,000              1,368,000           28%

Facility Maintenance
        Contractual Services - 1,000 (1,000) 0%
Total Facility Maintenance - 1,000 (1,000)                 0%

Administrative Support
        Personal Services 4,775,000            2,060,000            2,715,000            43%
        Advertising 490,000               55,000 435,000               11%
        Computers & Software 100,000               - 100,000 0%
        Equipment 20,000 - 20,000 0%
        Furniture & Fixtures 88,000 - 88,000 0%
        Contractual Services 1,257,000            469,000               788,000 37%
        Leases/Rent 657,000               364,000               293,000 55%
        Non-Revenue Vehicles - - - 0%
        Site Improvements 158,000               1,000 157,000               1%
        Supplies 558,000               469,000               89,000 84%
        Transit Books 211,000               42,000 169,000               20%
        Travel & Meetings 21,000 1,000 20,000 5%
        Other 404,000               203,000               201,000               50%
        Allocated Overhead 3,275,000            1,130,000            2,145,000            35%
Total Administrative Support 12,014,000        4,794,000           7,220,000           40%

Total Regional Services 13,917,000        5,330,000           8,587,000           38%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Administration and Finance

Administrative Support
        Personal Services 1,370,000$         532,000$             838,000$             39%
        Advertising 2,000 - 2,000 0%
        Computers & Software 20,000 - 20,000 0%
        Contingency 500,000               - 500,000 0%
        Contractual Services 615,000               93,000 522,000 15%
        Furniture & Fixtures 17,000 - 17,000 0%
        Site Improvements 118,000               1,000 117,000 1%
        Supplies 20,000 4,000 16,000 20%
        Travel & Meetings 66,000 9,000 57,000 14%
        Other 446,000               194,000               252,000               43%
        Allocated Overhead 936,000               311,000               625,000               33%
Total Administrative Support 4,110,000            1,144,000            2,966,000            28%

Total Administration and Finance 4,110,000           1,144,000           2,966,000           28%
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Capital 

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Capital Overview

Capital
        Regional Fleet 49,379,000$       2,919,000$         46,460,000$       6%
        Other Regional Projects 1,185,000            385,000               800,000               32%
        Member Agency Disbursements 5,563,000            - 5,563,000 0%
        Regional Facilities and Administration 4,094,000            3,315,000            779,000 81%
Total Capital 60,221,000        6,619,000           53,602,000        11%

Pass-Through
        Rail Program Disbursements 42,926,000         18,997,000         23,929,000         44%
        VMR Reserve for Future Use 11,004,000         - 11,004,000 0%
Total Pass-Through 53,930,000        18,997,000        34,933,000        35%

Total Capital Overview 114,151,000$    25,616,000$      88,535,000$      22%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Regional Fleet

Bus
        Fleet 44,025,000$       2,874,000$         41,151,000$       7%
        Travel & Meetings 7,000 - 7,000 0%
        Other 37,000                 - 37,000 0%
Total Bus 44,069,000        2,874,000           41,195,000        7%

Vanpool
        Fleet 3,307,000            44,000                 3,263,000            1%
        Other 3,000 1,000 2,000 33%
Total Vanpool 3,310,000           45,000                3,265,000           1%

Other
        Fleet 1,800,000            - 1,800,000 0%
        Contractual Services 15,000                 - 15,000 0%
        Carry Forward & Reserves 185,000               - 185,000 0%
Total Other 2,000,000           - 2,000,000 0%

Total Regional Fleet 49,379,000$      2,919,000$        46,460,000$      6%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Other Regional Projects

Fare Collection Systems
        Equipment 50,000$               -$  50,000$               0%
        Contractual Services - 19,000 (19,000)                0%
Total Fare Collection Systems 50,000                19,000                31,000                38%

State of Good Repair
        Equipment 1,135,000            366,000               769,000               32%
Total State of Good Repair 1,135,000           366,000              769,000              32%

Total Other Regional Projects 1,185,000$        385,000$            800,000$            0$          

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Member Agency Disbursements

Bus
        PTF Disbursements 3,623,000$         -$  3,623,000$         0%
Total Bus 3,623,000           - 3,623,000 0%

Fare Collection Systems
        PTF Disbursements 847,000               - 847,000 0%
Total Fare Collection Systems 847,000              - 847,000 0%

Other
        PTF Disbursements 382,000               - 382,000 0%
Total Other 382,000              - 382,000 0%

Passenger Facilities
        PTF Disbursements 711,000               - 711,000 0%
Total Passenger Facilities 711,000              - 711,000 0%

Total Member Agency Disbursements 5,563,000$        -$  5,563,000$        0%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Regional Facilities and Administration

Maintenance Facilities
        Equipment 1,045,000$         196,000$             849,000$             19%
        Contractual Services - 17,000 (17,000)                0%
        Site Improvements - 9,000 (9,000) 0%
Total Maintenance Facilities 1,045,000           222,000              823,000              21%

Passenger Facilities
        Personal Services 160,000               17,000 143,000               11%
        PTF Disbursements 582,000               1,012,000            (430,000)              174%
        Contractual Services 379,000               54,000 325,000               14%
        Site Improvements - - - 0%
        Allocated Overhead 113,000               8,000 105,000               7%
Total Passenger Facilities 1,234,000           1,091,000           143,000              88%

IT Infrastructure
        Computers & Software 1,692,000            1,869,000            (177,000)              110%
        Equipment - - - 0%
        Contractual Services 123,000               129,000               (6,000) 105%
        Other - 4,000 (4,000) 0%
Total IT Infrastructure 1,815,000           2,002,000           (187,000)             110%

Total Regional Facilities and Administration 4,094,000$        3,315,000$        779,000$            81%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Pass-Through

VMR Public Transportation Funds Program
Rail Program Disbursements 42,926,000$       18,997,000$       23,929,000$       44%
VMR Reserve for Future Use 11,004,000         - 11,004,000 0%

VMR Public Transportation Funds Program Total 53,930,000         18,997,000         34,933,000         35%

Total Pass Through 53,930,000$      18,997,000$      34,933,000$      35%
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VMR FY21 Budget vs. Actual 
July 1, 2020 – December 31, 2020 

Summary 

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Sources of Funds

Operating
  Advertising 275,000$              46,000$                229,000$              17%

  Fares 2,710,000    661,000    2,049,000       24%

  Federal Funds 1,546,000    135,000    1,411,000       9%

  Federal Funds ‐ CARES 42,961,000          15,863,000       27,098,000    37%

  MAG Funds 500,000       200,000    300,000          40%

  Member City Contributions 12,890,000          7,508,000          5,382,000       58%

  Public Transportation Funds 10,483,000          965,000    9,518,000       9%

  Regional Area Road Funds 500,000       ‐   500,000          0%

  Other 130,000       36,000       94,000             28%

Total Operating 71,995,000$        25,414,000$        46,581,000$        35%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Sources of Funds

Capital
  Federal Funds 282,659,000$      11,843,000$        270,816,000$      4%

  Member City Contributions 120,518,000        57,174,000       63,344,000    47%

  Public Transportation Funds 32,442,000          12,344,000       20,098,000    38%

Total Capital 435,619,000$      81,361,000$        354,258,000$      19%

Total Sources of Funds 507,614,000$      106,775,000$      400,839,000$      21%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Uses of Funds

Operating
  Light Rail O&M 49,227,000$       20,700,000$       28,527,000$       42%

  Streetcar O&M 613,000     ‐    613,000     0%

  Light Rail Security 8,489,000      4,225,000    4,264,000   50%

  Streetcar Security 110,000          ‐    110,000     0%

  Future Project Development 11,686,000    3,128,000    8,558,000   27%

  Agency Operating 1,870,000      672,000     1,198,000   36%

Total Operating 71,995,000$       28,725,000$       43,270,000$       40%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Uses of Funds

Capital
  Tempe Streetcar 39,837,000$       21,973,000$       17,864,000$       55%

  South Central/Downtown Hub 253,136,000   46,991,000    206,145,000   19%

  Northwest Phase II 91,334,000    3,021,000      88,313,000    3%

  OMC Expansion 27,860,000    22,301,000    5,559,000   80%

  Gilbert Road Extension 3,296,000    180,000          3,116,000   5%

  50th Street Station ‐    5,000         (5,000)      0%

  Systemwide Improvements 11,461,000    2,252,000      9,209,000   20%

  State of Good Repair 8,695,000    2,615,000      6,080,000   30%

Total Capital 435,619,000$     99,338,000$       336,281,000$     23%

Total Uses of Funds 507,614,000$     128,063,000$     379,551,000$     25%
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Operating 

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Operating

Operations & Maintenance 49,840,000$       5,468,000$          44,372,000$       11%

Security 8,599,000            536,000                8,063,000            6%

Future Project Development 11,686,000          2,244,000            9,442,000            19%

Agency Operating 1,870,000            672,000                1,198,000            36%

Total Operating 71,995,000$       8,920,000$          63,075,000$       12%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Operating ‐ Light Rail

Light Rail O&M 49,227,000$       5,468,000$          43,759,000$       11%

Light Rail Security 8,489,000            536,000                7,953,000            6%

Total Operating ‐ Light Rail 57,716,000$       6,004,000$          51,712,000$       10%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Operating ‐ Streetcar

Streetcar O&M 613,000$             ‐$                      613,000$             0%

Streetcar Security 110,000                ‐                             110,000                0%

Total Operating ‐ Streetcar 723,000$             ‐$                      723,000$             0%

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Operating ‐ Other

Future Project Development 11,686,000$       2,244,000$          9,442,000$          19%

Agency Operating 1,870,000            672,000                1,198,000            36%

Total Operating ‐ Other 13,556,000$       2,916,000$          10,640,000$       22%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Light Rail  (O&M)

Operations
      Personal Services 221,000$             57,000$                164,000$             26%

      Contractual Services 3,000                    12,000                  (9,000)                   400%

      Fuel & Lubricants 30,000                  10,000                  20,000                  33%

      Propulsion Power 3,020,000            1,229,000            1,791,000            41%

      Transit Services 12,636,000          5,802,000            6,834,000            46%

      Allocated Overhead 20,000                  19,000                  1,000                    95%

Total Operations 15,930,000          7,129,000            8,801,000            45%

Vehicle Maintenance
      Personal Services 5,137,000            2,439,000            2,698,000            47%

      Contractual Services 957,000                ‐                         957,000                0%

      Parts 3,509,000            1,963,000            1,546,000            56%

      Allocated Overhead 446,000                212,000                234,000                48%

      Other (269,000)              (131,000)              (138,000)              49%

Total Vehicle Maintenance 9,780,000            4,483,000            5,297,000            46%

Maintenance of Way
      Personal Services 5,385,000            2,215,000            3,170,000            41%

      Computers & Software 181,000                40,000                  141,000                22%

      Contractual Services 4,267,000            1,647,000            2,620,000            39%

      Equipment 30,000                  2,000                    28,000                  7%

      Fuel & Lubricants 288,000                114,000                174,000                40%

      Parts 1,252,000            297,000                955,000                24%

      Supplies 1,000                    ‐                         1,000                    0%

      Utilities 1,589,000            826,000                763,000                52%

      Allocated Overhead 460,000                192,000                268,000                42%

      Other 105,000                78,000                  27,000                  74%

Total Maintenance of Way 13,558,000          5,411,000            8,147,000            40%

Administrative Support
      Personal Services 2,988,000            1,168,000            1,820,000            39%

      Advertising 448,000                10,000                  438,000                2%

      Computers & Software 127,000                65,000                  62,000                  51%

      Contractual Services 1,074,000            628,000                446,000                58%

      Equipment 64,000                  ‐                         64,000                  0%

      Insurance 2,109,000            828,000                1,281,000            39%

      Leases/Rent 50,000                  ‐                         50,000                  0%

      Non‐Revenue Vehicles 90,000                  ‐                         90,000                  0%

      Site Improvements 3,000                    ‐                         3,000                    0%

      Supplies 101,000                33,000                  68,000                  33%

      Travel & Meetings 3,000                    3,000                    ‐                         100%

      Allocated Overhead 1,459,000            466,000                993,000                32%

      Other 1,143,000            476,000                667,000                42%

      Contingency 300,000                ‐                         300,000                0%

Total Administrative Support 9,959,000            3,677,000            6,282,000            37%

Total Light Rail  (O&M) 49,227,000$       20,700,000$       28,527,000$       42%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Light Rail Security

Security
      Personal Services 840,000$             401,000$             439,000$             48%

      Computers & Software ‐                         38,000                  (38,000)                0%

      Contractual Services 74,000                  ‐                         74,000                  0%

      Safety & Security 7,329,000            3,689,000            3,640,000            50%

      Supplies 11,000                  1,000                    10,000                  9%

      Travel & Meetings 2,000                    ‐                         2,000                    0%

      Allocated Overhead 227,000                94,000                  133,000                41%

      Other 6,000                    2,000                    4,000                    33%

Total Security 8,489,000            4,225,000            4,264,000            50%

Total Light Rail Security 8,489,000$          4,225,000$          4,264,000$          50%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Future Project Development

Corridor & Facility
      Personal Services 575,000$             260,000$             315,000$             45%

      Contractual Services 5,805,000            1,053,000            4,752,000            18%

      Allocated Overhead 326,000                124,000                202,000                38%

Total Corridor & Facility 6,706,000            1,437,000            5,269,000            21%

Systems Development
      Personal Services 241,000                143,000                98,000                  59%

      Contractual Services 110,000                ‐                         110,000                0%

      Allocated Overhead 137,000                72,000                  65,000                  53%

Total Systems Development 488,000                215,000                273,000                44%

Administrative Support
      Personal Services 1,704,000            654,000                1,050,000            38%

      Advertising 19,000                  7,000                    12,000                  37%

      Computers & Software 43,000                  3,000                    40,000                  7%

      Contractual Services 1,640,000            484,000                1,156,000            30%

      Other Capital 10,000                  ‐                         10,000                  0%

      Supplies 13,000                  ‐                         13,000                  0%

      Travel & Meetings 43,000                  ‐                         43,000                  0%

      Allocated Overhead 955,000                328,000                627,000                34%

      Other 65,000                  ‐                         65,000                  0%

Total Administrative Support 4,492,000            1,476,000            3,016,000            33%

Total Future Project Development 11,686,000$       3,128,000$          8,558,000$          27%

 

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Agency Operating

Administrative Support
      Personal Services 922,000$             381,000$             541,000$             41%

      Contractual Services 307,000                70,000                  237,000                23%

      Supplies 26,000                  11,000                  15,000                  42%

      Travel & Meetings 19,000                  ‐                         19,000                  0%

      Allocated Overhead 521,000                189,000                332,000                36%

      Other 75,000                  21,000                  54,000                  28%

Total Administrative Support 1,870,000            672,000                1,198,000            36%

Total Agency Operating 1,870,000$          672,000$             1,198,000$          36%
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Capital 

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Tempe Streetcar

Project Costs
      Personal Services 1,815,000$       740,000$           1,075,000$       41%

      Advertising 75,000                ‐                      75,000                0%

      Computers & Software 52,000                50,000                2,000                  96%

      Contractual Services 22,005,000       15,217,000       6,788,000          69%

      Non‐Prior Right Utilities 2,166,000          686,000             1,480,000          32%

      Non‐Revenue Vehicles 120,000             26,000                94,000                22%

      Propulsion Power ‐                      61,000                (61,000)              0%

      Real Estate 2,200,000          ‐                      2,200,000          0%

      Revenue Vehicles 6,910,000          4,674,000          2,236,000          68%

      Supplies 71,000                7,000                  64,000                10%

      Transit Services 213,000             6,000                  207,000             3%

      Travel & Meetings 37,000                10,000                27,000                27%

      Allocated Overhead 653,000             362,000             291,000             55%

      Other 363,000             37,000                326,000             10%

Total Project Costs 36,680,000       21,876,000       14,804,000       60%

Associated Costs
      Art 357,000             13,000                344,000             4%

      Contractual Services 2,800,000          84,000                2,716,000          3%

Total Associated Costs 3,157,000          97,000                3,060,000          3%

Total Tempe Streetcar 39,837,000$     21,973,000$     17,864,000$     55%

 
FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent

South Central/Downtown Hub

Project Costs
      Personal Services 1,642,000$          767,000$           875,000$              47%

      Computers & Software ‐                         76,000                (76,000)                 0%

      Contractual Services 181,007,000        30,624,000       150,383,000        17%

      Non‐Prior Right Utilities 16,845,000          101,000             16,744,000          1%

      OMC Expansion 18,574,000          ‐                      18,574,000          0%

      Real Estate 32,587,000          ‐                      32,587,000          0%

      Revenue Vehicles ‐                         14,991,000       (14,991,000)        0%

      Supplies 63,000                  9,000                  54,000                  14%

      Transit Services 156,000                ‐                      156,000                0%

      Travel & Meetings 19,000                  ‐                      19,000                  0%

      Allocated Overhead 869,000                370,000             499,000                43%

      Other 381,000                26,000                355,000                7%

Total Project Costs 252,143,000        46,964,000       205,179,000        19%

Associated Costs
      Art 693,000                27,000                666,000                4%

      Other 300,000                ‐                      300,000                0%

Total Associated Costs 993,000                27,000                966,000                3%

Total South Central/Downtown Hub 253,136,000$     46,991,000$     206,145,000$     19%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Northwest Phase II

Project Costs
      Personal Services 1,119,000$       528,000$           591,000$           47%

      Advertising 1,000                  ‐                      1,000                  0%

      Computers & Software ‐                      48,000                (48,000)              0%

      Contractual Services 58,703,000       1,929,000          56,774,000       3%

      Non‐Prior Right Utilities 6,520,000          248,000             6,272,000          4%

      Real Estate 24,000,000       ‐                      24,000,000       0%

      Supplies 33,000                6,000                  27,000                18%

      Travel & Meetings 34,000                ‐                      34,000                0%

      Allocated Overhead 595,000             258,000             337,000             43%

      Other 241,000             4,000                  237,000             2%

Total Project Costs 91,246,000       3,021,000          88,225,000       3%

Associated Costs
      Art 88,000                ‐                      88,000                0%

Total Associated Costs 88,000                ‐                      88,000                0%

Total Northwest Phase II 91,334,000$     3,021,000$       88,313,000$     3%  

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
OMC Expansion

Project Costs
      Personal Services 1,278,000$       546,000$           732,000$           43%

      Contractual Services 44,013,000       21,313,000       22,700,000       48%

      Supplies 2,000                  ‐                      2,000                  0%

      Transit Services 420,000             172,000             248,000             41%

      Travel & Meetings 1,000                  ‐                      1,000                  0%

      Allocated Overhead 510,000             265,000             245,000             52%

      Other 210,000             5,000                  205,000             2%

Total Project Costs 46,434,000       22,301,000       24,133,000       48%

Total OMC Expansion 46,434,000$     22,301,000$     24,133,000$     48%

 

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Gilbert Road Extension

Project Costs
      Personal Services ‐$                    42,000$             (42,000)$            0%

      Computers & Software ‐                      17,000                (17,000)              0%

      Contractual Services 50,000                91,000                (41,000)              182%

      Revenue Vehicles 3,246,000          8,000                  3,238,000          0%

      Allocated Overhead ‐                      22,000                (22,000)              0%

Total Project Costs 3,296,000          180,000             3,116,000          5%

Total Gilbert Road Extension 3,296,000$       180,000$           3,116,000$       5%
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FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
50th Street Station

Project Costs
      Personal Services ‐$                    1,000$                (1,000)$              0%

      Computers & Software ‐                      2,000                  (2,000)                0%

      Contractual Services ‐                      1,000                  (1,000)                0%

Allocated Overhead ‐$                    1,000$                (1,000)$              0%

Total Project Costs ‐                      5,000                  5,000                  0%

Total 50th Street Station ‐$                    5,000$                5,000$                0%

 

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
Systemwide Improvements

Project Costs
        Personal Services 300,000$           77,000$             223,000$           26%

        Computers & Software 1,192,000          1,560,000          (368,000)            131%

        Contractual Services 586,000             327,000             259,000             56%

        Equipment 1,645,000          ‐                      1,645,000          0%

        Other Capital 100,000             ‐                      100,000             0%

        Transit Services ‐                      15,000                (15,000)              0%

        Revenue Vehicles 7,591,000          234,000             7,357,000          3%

        Travel & Meetings 5,000                  1,000                  4,000                  20%

        Allocated Overhead 42,000                38,000                4,000                  90%

Total Project Costs 11,461,000       2,252,000          9,209,000          20%

Total Systemwide Improvements 11,461,000$     2,252,000$       9,209,000$       20%

 

FY21 Budget FY21 Actual FY21 Variance % Spent
State of Good Repair

Project Costs
        Personal Services 296,000$           107,000$           189,000$           36%

        Contractual Services ‐                      854,000             (854,000)            0%

        Equipment 5,318,000          499,000             4,819,000          9%

        Non‐Revenue Vehicles 169,000             ‐                      169,000             0%

        Parts ‐                      741,000             (741,000)            0%

        Revenue Vehicles 2,886,000          380,000             2,506,000          13%

        Allocated Overhead 26,000                34,000                (8,000)                131%

Total Project Costs 8,695,000          2,615,000          6,080,000          30%

Total State of Good Repair 8,695,000$       2,615,000$       6,080,000$       30%
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DATE AGENDA ITEM 10 

Information Summary 
January 28, 2021 

SUBJECT 
Future Agenda Items Request and Report on Current Events 

PURPOSE 
Chair Arredondo-Savage will request future agenda items from members and members 
may provide a report on current events. 

Future Items 
Item Month 

FY22 Preliminary Operating and Capital Budgets March 2021 
Valley Metro Office Space March 2021 
FY22-26 Preliminary Five-Year Forecasts April 2021 
TLCP Update April 2021 
Valley Metro Regionally Operated Service April 2021 
FY22 Proposed Operating and Capital Budgets May 2021 
Farebox Recovery/Fare Enforcement May 2021 

CONTACT 
Paul Hodgins 
Chief Financial Officer 
602-262-7433 
phodgins@valleymetro.org 

Valley Metro I 101 N. 1st Ave. Phoenix, AZ 85003 602.262.7433 

mailto:phodgins@valleymetro.org
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